
 
 
 

 
Democratic Services Your ref:  
Riverside, Temple Street, Keynsham, Bristol BS31 1LA Our ref:  
Telephone: (01225) 477000 main switchboard Date: Date Not Specified 
Direct Lines - Tel: 01225 395090  Fax: 01225 394439 E-mail: Democratic_Services@bathnes.gov.uk 
Web-site - http://www.bathnes.gov.uk   
 
 
To: All Members of the Avon Pension Fund Committee 

 
Bath and North East Somerset Councillors: Paul Fox (Chair), Gabriel Batt, 
Nicholas Coombes, Charles Gerrish and Katie Hall 
 
Co-opted Voting Members: Councillor Mary Blatchford (North Somerset Council), 
Councillor Mike Drew (South Gloucestershire Council), Cllr Mark Wright (Bristol City 
Council), Bill Marshall (HFE Employers), Rowena Hayward (Trade Unions), Ann Berresford 
(Independent Member) and Carolan Dobson (Independent Member) 
 
Co-opted Non-voting Members: Councillor Clive Fricker (Town and Parish Councils),  
Richard Orton (Trade Unions), Steve Paines (Trade Unions) and Paul Shiner (Trade 
Unions) 

 
Chief Executive and other appropriate officers  
Press and Public  

 
 
Dear Member 
 
Avon Pension Fund Committee: Friday, 23rd September, 2011  
 
You are invited to attend a meeting of the Avon Pension Fund Committee, to be held on 
Friday, 23rd September, 2011 at 2.00 pm in the Council Chamber - Keynsham Town Hall. 
 
A buffet lunch for Members will be available at 1.30pm. 
 
The agenda is set out overleaf. 
 
Yours sincerely 
 
 
 
Sean O'Neill 
for Chief Executive 
 
 
 

If you need to access this agenda or any of the supporting reports in an alternative 
accessible format please contact Democratic Services or the relevant report author 
whose details are listed at the end of each report. 

 



This Agenda and all accompanying reports are printed on recycled paper 
 



NOTES: 
 

1. Inspection of Papers: Any person wishing to inspect minutes, reports, or a list of the 
background papers relating to any item on this Agenda should contact Sean O'Neill who is 
available by telephoning Bath 01225 395090 or by calling at the Riverside Offices 
Keynsham (during normal office hours). 
 

2. Public Speaking at Meetings: The Council has a scheme to encourage the public to 
make their views known at meetings. They may make a statement relevant to what the 
meeting has power to do.  They may also present a petition or a deputation on behalf of a 
group.  Advance notice is required not less than two full working days before the meeting 
(this means that for meetings held on Wednesdays notice must be received in Democratic 
Services by 4.30pm the previous Friday)  
 
The public may also ask a question to which a written answer will be given. Questions 
must be submitted in writing to Democratic Services at least two full working days in 
advance of the meeting (this means that for meetings held on Wednesdays, notice must 
be received in Democratic Services by 4.30pm the previous Friday). If an answer cannot 
be prepared in time for the meeting it will be sent out within five days afterwards. Further 
details of the scheme can be obtained by contacting Sean O'Neill as above. 
 

3. Details of Decisions taken at this meeting can be found in the minutes which will be 
published as soon as possible after the meeting, and also circulated with the agenda for 
the next meeting.  In the meantime details can be obtained by contacting Sean O'Neill as 
above. 
 
Appendices to reports are available for inspection as follows:- 
 
Public Access points - Riverside - Keynsham, Guildhall - Bath, Hollies - Midsomer 
Norton, and Bath Central, Keynsham and Midsomer Norton public libraries.   
 
For Councillors and Officers papers may be inspected via Political Group Research 
Assistants and Group Rooms/Members' Rooms. 
 

4. Attendance Register: Members should sign the Register which will be circulated at the 
meeting. 
 

5. THE APPENDED SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS ARE IDENTIFIED BY AGENDA ITEM 
NUMBER. 
 

6. Emergency Evacuation Procedure 
 
When the continuous alarm sounds, you must evacuate the building by one of the 
designated exits and proceed to the named assembly point.  The designated exits are 
sign-posted. 
 
Arrangements are in place for the safe evacuation of disabled people. 
 

 



 

 

Avon Pension Fund Committee - Friday, 23rd September, 2011 
 

at 2.00 pm in the Council Chamber - Keynsham Town Hall 
 

A G E N D A 
 
 PRELIMINARY MATTERS 

 
1. EMERGENCY EVACUATION PROCEDURE  
 The Chair will ask the Committee Administrator to draw attention to the emergency 

evacuation procedure as set out under Note 8. 
2. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND SUBSTITUTIONS  
3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 Members who have an interest to declare are asked to state: 

 
(a) the Item No in which they have an interest;  
(b) the nature of the interest; and  
(c) whether the interest is personal or personal and prejudicial. 
 
Any Member who is unsure about the above should seek the advice of the Monitoring 
Officer prior to the meeting in order to expedite matters at the meeting itself. 
 

4. TO ANNOUNCE ANY URGENT BUSINESS AGREED BY THE CHAIR  
5. ITEMS FROM THE PUBLIC - TO RECEIVE DEPUTATIONS, STATEMENTS, 

PETITIONS OR QUESTIONS  
6. ITEMS FROM COUNCILLORS AND CO-OPTED AND ADDED MEMBERS  
 To deal with any petitions or questions from Councillors and where appropriate co-

opted and added members. 
 

7. MINUTES: 24 JUNE 2011 (Pages 7 - 46) 
 FOR APPROVAL 

 
8. FINAL ACCOUNTS 2010/11, GOVERNANCE REPORT AND AUDIT PLAN 2011/12 

(Pages 47 - 100) (15 MINUTES) 
 These are presented to the APFC prior to approval by the Corporate Audit Committee. 

The Auditor will attend to answer questions. 
9. AVON PENSION FUND ANNUAL REPORT 2010/11 (Pages 101 - 166) (10 

MINUTES) 



10. APPLICATION BY THE PARK FOR COMMUNITY ADMISSION BODY STATUS 
(Pages 167 - 174) (5 MINUTES) 

11. APPLICATION BY SOUTH  WEST ACADEMIES FOR COMMUNITY ADMISSION 
BODY STATUS (Pages 175 - 180) (5 MINUTES) 

 STRATEGIC REPORTS 
 

12. LGPS CHANGES/HUTTON REVIEW - VERBAL UPDATE (15 MINUTES) 
13. ADMINISTRATION STRATEGY - STEWARDSHIP REPORT (Pages 181 - 198) (15 

MINUTES) 
 INFORMATION ONLY REPORTS 

 
14. ADMITTED BODIES - VERBAL UPDATE (10 MINUTES) 
 Before the update the Committee is invited to pass the following resolution: 

 
Having been satisfied that the public interest would be better served by not 
disclosing relevant information, the Committee resolves that in accordance with 
the provisions of Section 1000(A)(4) the public be excluded from the meeting for 
this item of business because of the likely disclosure of exempt information as 
defined in paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act as amended. 

15. INVESTMENT PANEL MINUTES (Pages 199 - 204) (5 MINUTES) 
 MONITORING REPORTS 

 
16. REVIEW OF INVESTMENT PERFORMANCE FOR QUARTER ENDING 30 JUNE 

2011 (Pages 205 - 266) (20 MINUTES) 
 If Members wish to discuss Appendix 4, they are invited to pass the following 

resolution: 
 

Having been satisfied that the public interest would be better served by not 
disclosing relevant information, the Committee resolves that in accordance with 
the provisions of Section 1000(A)(4) the public be excluded from the meeting for 
this item of business because of the likely disclosure of exempt information as 
defined in paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act as amended. 

17. PENSION FUND ADMINISTRATION - BUDGET MONITORING FOR YEAR TO 31 
AUGUST 2011 AND PERFORMANCE INDICATORS FOR QUARTER ENDING 31 
JULY 2011 (Pages 267 - 298) (20 MINUTES) 

18. WORKPLANS (Pages 299 - 314) (5 MINUTES) 
 
The Committee Administrator for this meeting is Sean O'Neill who can be contacted on  
01225 395090. 



 
 



Bath and North East 
Somerset Council 

 

 

 
Page 1 

 

AVON PENSION FUND COMMITTEE 
 
Minutes of the Meeting held 
Friday, 24th June, 2011, 2.00 pm 

 
Bath and North East Somerset Councillors: Paul Fox (Chair), Gabriel Batt, 
Nicholas Coombes, Charles Gerrish and Katie Hall 
 
Co-opted Voting Members: Councillor Mike Drew (South Gloucestershire Council), Ann 
Berresford (Independent Member) and Bill Marshall (HFE Sector) 
 
Co-opted Non-voting Members: Richard Orton (Trade Unions) 
 
Advisors: Tony Earnshaw (Independent Advisor) and John Finch (JLT Benefit Solutions)  
 
Also in attendance: Andrew Pate (Strategic Director, Resources & Support Services), Tony 
Bartlett (Head of Business, Finance and Pensions), Liz Feinstein (Investments Manager), 
Matthew Betts (Assistant Investments Manager), Steve McMillan (Pensions Manager) and 
Martin Phillips (Finance & Systems Manager (Pensions)) 

 
1 
  

EMERGENCY EVACUATION PROCEDURE  
 
The Democratic Services Officer read out the procedure. 
  
 

2 
  

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND SUBSTITUTIONS  
 
Apologies were received from Councillor Mary Blatchford, Carolan Dobson, 
Councillor Clive Fricker, Rowena Hayward, Steve Paines, Paul Shiner and Councillor 
Mark Wright. 
  
 

3 
  

ELECTION OF VICE-CHAIR  
 
Councillor Charles Gerrish was elected Vice-Chair for the Council Year. 
  
 

4 
  

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
There were none. 
  
 

5 
  

TO ANNOUNCE ANY URGENT BUSINESS AGREED BY THE CHAIR  
 
There was none. 
  
 

6 
  

ITEMS FROM THE PUBLIC - TO RECEIVE DEPUTATIONS, STATEMENTS, 
PETITIONS OR QUESTIONS  
 

Agenda Item 7

Page 7



 

 
Page 2 of 8 

 

There were none. 
  
 

7 
  

ITEMS FROM COUNCILLORS AND CO-OPTED AND ADDED MEMBERS  
 
There were none. 
  
 

8 
  

MINUTES: 18 MARCH 2011  
 
These were approved as a correct record and signed by the Chair, subject to the 
following amendment: 
 

page 3, item 46 (Review of Hedge Fund Portfolio), after “The Investments 
Manager replied that officers would ascertain the costs” insert “and report to 
the Investment Panel”.  

  
 

9 
  

ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE COMMITTEE  
 
The Investments Manager presented the report, which set out the roles and 
responsibilities of all those involved in the governance of the Fund. She drew 
attention to the need for the Committee to appoint three non-B&NES voting 
members to the Investment Panel. 
 
A Member asked about the interpretation of “obtain proper advice at reasonable 
intervals about its investments”, which was quoted from the LGPS (Management and 
Investment of Funds) Regulations 2009 in paragraph 4.9 of the report. The 
Investments Manager replied that the Committee’s quarterly meetings would suffice 
for this purpose, though in fact additional advice was available from the external 
advisers who attended all meetings of the Committee and the Investment Panel. 
 
RESOLVED: 
 

1. To note the role and responsibilities of the members, advisors and officers. 
 

2. To agree that the non-B&NES members of the Investment Panel will be Ann 
Berresford , Councillor Mary Blatchford and Bill Marshall. 

 
To note that the B&NES members appointed to the Councillor places on the 
Investment Panel are Councillor Gabriel Batt, Councillor Nicholas Coombes and 
Councillor Charles Gerrish. 
  
 

10 
  

PRESENTATION BY MERCERS ON THE FAIR DEAL CONSULTATION  
 
The Investments Manager reported that the Government’s consultation on the Fair 
Deal had just ended. If the Fair Deal was abolished or substantially reformed there 
could be serious implications for the Fund. 
 
The Chair welcomed Paul Middleman of Mercer Limited to the meeting. Mr 
Middleman made a presentation; a copy of his slides is attached as Appendix 1 to 

Page 8



 

 
Page 3 of 8 

 

these minutes. He said that there were currently two options when functions were 
contracted out from the local authorities to the private sector: either outsourced staff 
could remain in the local authority pension fund through the use of admitted body 
status, or they could be enrolled in a broadly comparable scheme maintained by the 
contractor. It was the contractor’s choice which of these would apply. The admitted 
body route was the more common one for employees in the Local Government 
Pension Scheme. Currently about 5% of the members of the LGPS were employed 
by admitted bodies. The Government was concerned that the current arrangements 
were a potential barrier for the outsourcing of public sector functions, so had initiated 
a consultation on whether the Fair Deal should be abolished or modified. The 
response to the consultation submitted on behalf of the Avon Pension Fund had 
argued that Fair Deal should be maintained but modified. Mr Middleman thought that 
if Fair Deal were abolished, it would be difficult for the LGPS to maintain current 
membership levels and that it would face increased volatility in relation to 
contributions and funding levels. As shown in the graph on page 4 of the 
presentation, the crossover point after which LGPS funds might have to use cash or 
sell assets to pay benefits could shift forward by about 8 years. Organisational 
restructuring resulting in a large number of redundancies at the same time would 
have a significant impact on LGPS funds.  
 
A Member asked how additional costs could be incurred through staff leaving the 
Fund. Mr Middleman replied that while there were no additional costs when 
individual employees left the Fund, the Fund would be less able to pursue a higher-
risk strategy and would have to invest more in defensive assets. A 4% decline in 
membership would cause a significant increase in volatility. Mr Middleman agreed 
with the Member’s comment that the Fund would benefit from a reduction in the 
number of high earners who were members. 
 
In reply to questions about the reasons for staff choosing to opt out of the Fund now, 
Mr Middleman said that people were behaving irrationally because of pressure on 
pay and a lot of misinformation. However, he would expect a fall in membership of 
about 20% if the Fair Deal was abolished. A Member responded that their behaviour 
might not seem so irrational when it was considered that employees were seeing 
steep rises in contributions and a fall in the value of their pensions; a contribution 
rate of 3.5% of total pay would mean a 50% increase in contributions and a change 
in the accrual rate from 1/80th to 1/100th would mean a 40% reduction in pension. 
The Chair suggested that a workshop could be arranged for Members to review this 
wider context after the Government had announced its decision on Fair Deal. 
 
The Director of Resources and Support Services said that not only was there a 
danger of a “race to the bottom”, as Hutton had warned against, but also of a race to 
the exit. The prospect of a 20% fall in membership was really worrying. There would 
probably be a bigger deficit to fund, but fewer active members, so the current 
investment strategy would have to be altered. Hutton had emphasised that the LGPS 
was different because it is a funded scheme. There was a need for more effective 
communication with fund members; it was important that they were not panicked into 
leaving the Fund. 
 
The Chair asked how communications with members would be handled. The Head 
of Finance, Business and Pensions said that information would be added to the 
website the following week. A Member said that the information on the website was 
not enough; it was important to involve the employers. The Pensions Manager said 

Page 9



 

 
Page 4 of 8 

 

that data on opt-outs was being collected and could be presented to the Committee. 
Members agreed that this information should be presented regularly. 
 
The Chair thanked Mr Middleman for his presentation. 
  
 

11 
  

PRESENTATION BY SCHRODERS ASSET MANAGEMENT ON THE 
ECONOMIC/MARKET OUTLOOK  
 
The Investments Manager explained that Schroders was one of the Fund’s 
investment managers, specialising mainly in retail, property and global equities. 
 
The Chair welcomed Lyndon Bolton, Schroders’ Client Director, to the meeting.  
 
Mr Bolton made a presentation. A copy of his slides is attached as Appendix 2 to 
these minutes. There were currently three main threats to the global economy: 
 

(a) the spike in oil prices; 
(b) inflation and the possibility of rises in interest rates; 
(c) the crisis in the Eurozone. 

 
These issues were discussed in depth based on the information included in the 
slides. 
 
A Member observed that despite the Greek debt crisis the euro was appreciating 
against the pound. Mr Bolton responded that the key driver was the euro against the 
dollar. The dollar would appreciate against the euro if US interest rates rose. 
 
A Member referred to slide 10 (“growth reliant on fall in savings ratio”) and asked 
where the increase in spending necessary for the recovery would come from. Mr 
Bolton replied that one of the conditions for the bailout of the banks was that they 
would lend to businesses. However, the banks were reluctant to lend. That was part 
of the problem. Recovery required companies to spend more, and that was not 
happening at the moment. 
 
The Investments Manager asked whether the main risk to the portfolio was through 
its investments in European financial institutions. Mr Bolton agreed, though a 
significant degree of Greek contagion risk was probably priced into valuations.  
 
The Chair thanked Mr Bolton for his presentation. 
  
 

12 
  

REVIEW OF INVESTMENT PERFORMANCE FOR YEAR AND QUARTER 
ENDING 31 MARCH 2011  
 
 The Investments Manager presented the report. There had been a return of 7.8% 
over the year, with positive returns across all asset classes. It had been a good year 
for the Fund’s managers, although in the last quarter they had slightly 
underperformed relative to their benchmarks. The return slightly lagged behind other 
LGPS funds, because of the Fund’s lower than average allocation to equities and 
higher than average allocation to hedge funds. The funding level had marginally 
increased from 82% to 83% since March 2010. The change in the allocations 

Page 10



 

 
Page 5 of 8 

 

between the hedge fund managers which had been agreed in March would be 
completed by end July. 
 
Mr Finch commented on the JLT performance review, attached as Appendix 2 to the 
report. There had been strong returns in Asian, Pacific and emerging markets. The 
return on government bonds had been negative in the last quarter. Volatile markets 
had been tough for investment managers. The graph of risk versus return on page 
19 showed that the Fund now had a more balanced profile. Lyster Watson is low 
risk, but had underperformed the benchmark during the last quarter, over the year 
and over the last three years, justifying the decision to disinvest from this manager 
taken in March. Gottex had generated reasonably good returns with low risk. Bonds 
had generated reasonable positive returns over the year. Jupiter had outperformed 
the benchmark by 7.2% over the year, though it had fallen back during the final 
quarter. The Fund’s strategic allocation remained well diversified in terms of asset 
class and regional exposure. 
 
The Investments Manager said that the Fund’s asset allocation strategy would be 
covered in the next induction session for new Members of the Committee. 
 
A Member suggested that the Fund might invest in land. The Investments Manager 
responded that this had not yet been considered by the Committee. The Chair 
observed that agricultural land appeared to be a good investment at the moment. 
 
RESOLVED to note the report. 
  
 

13 
  

APPOINTMENT OF MANAGER TO HEDGE CURRENCY EXPOSURE  
 
The Assistant Investments Manager presented the report. 
 
RESOLVED to note the report. 
  
 

14 
  

ADMISSION OF COMMUNITY HEALTH AND SOCIAL CARE TO THE FUND  
 
The Investments Manager presented the report. She explained that under the Local 
Government Pension Scheme (Administration) Regulations 2005 community 
admission bodies could be admitted to the Avon Pension Fund with the consent of 
the Committee. The Director of Resources and Support Services explained that only 
existing B&NES social care staff transferred to Community Health and Social Care 
CIC would become members of the Fund and that there would be other 
arrangements for new recruits to the CIC. A Member observed that this would 
prevent people who would have been previously eligible to join the Fund from 
becoming members, so that outsourcing was another factor threatening membership 
levels. 
 
RESOLVED that Community Health and Social Care (CIC) be allowed entry into the 
Avon Pension Fund as a Community Admission Body with Bath & North East 
Somerset acting as a guarantor. 
  
 

Page 11



 

 
Page 6 of 8 

 

15 
  

PENSION FUND ADMINISTRATION - BUDGET OUTTURN 2010/11 AND 
PERFORMANCE INDICATORS FOR 3 MONTHS TO 30 APRIL 2011  
 
The Finance & Systems Manager (Pensions) presented the financial report. 
Expenditure for the year had been £660,394 under budget. £267,144 had been 
saved on investment manager fees because of a delay in appointing a new 
manager. There had also been less than expected expenditure on the guides, 
postage and the website. The Pensions Manager explained that these savings had 
been made without a reduction in the level of service provided. 
 
The Pensions Manager presented the Administration Report. He referred to the key 
performance indicators in Appendix 3a of the report and asked members to note that 
most were on or ahead of target. There was 100% compliance with statutory targets, 
but some minor shortfall in the internal targets agreed with employers in service level 
agreements. 
 
A Member asked about shortfalls in meeting service targets. The Pensions Manager 
reported that quite often delays by employers in providing information, e.g. about 
retirements, in time to enable the Fund to achieve the internal service target. He 
emphasised however that all statutory targets had been met. The new Administration 
Strategy which came into effect in April 2011 was expected to lead to improvements 
in service delivery to Scheme members through closer working with employers. 
 
A Member noted that, only 0.3% of the Fund’s services were delivered to members 
electronically. The Pensions Manager replied that the aim was to deliver as much to 
members electronically as possible; this was easy with the Newsletter, but more 
difficult with personal confidential pensions information. The 0.3% level was 
achieved when members were asked some time ago whether they wished to receive 
the Newsletter electronically. The administration team would like to e-mail members 
advising them that their annual benefits statement was available online, but needed 
to check whether this met legal requirements. The Chair asked for a report at the 
next meeting on the progress made in achieving electronic service delivery.  
 
The Pensions Manager drew attention to the delays which had been experienced 
last year in processing transfers in and out while waiting for the Government 
Actuaries Department to supply revised factor tables following the change in 
indexation from RPI to CPI. The backlog had now been cleared, although there was 
a similar situation since early 2011 in quoting for costs to members for buying 
additional pension (ARCs). This problem had now been resolved following a recent 
direction issued by CLG, and it was reported that the outstanding cases were now 
starting to be cleared. The Pensions Manager confirmed that members had been 
kept informed of the delay and the reasons for it.   
 
RESOLVED 
 

1. To note the expenditure and administration and management expenses 
incurred for the year ending 31 March 2011 and Performance Indicators for 
the 3 months to 30 April 2011. 

 
2. To note the conclusions from the Internal Audit Report. 

  
 

Page 12



 

 
Page 7 of 8 

 

16 
  

DRAFT STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2010/11  
 
 The Finance and Systems Manager (Pensions) tabled a revised statement of 
accounts with changes highlighted. He said that the most significant change was the 
addition of note 22 (Financial Risk Management Disclosure). This had been included 
to comply with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS). 
 
The addition of note 16 (Actuarial present Value of promised Retirement Benefits) 
was also required by IFRS. He drew attention to the Fund Account on page 4 of the 
revised Statement of Accounts, which showed that assets and benefits payable had 
both increased.  
 
The Director of Resources and Support Services referred to note 4 (Contributions 
Receivable) and observed that this was why the Committee needed to monitor the 
numbers of members regularly. 
 
RESOLVED to note the Draft Statement of Accounts for year to 31 March 2011 for 
audit. 
  
 

17 
  

COMMITTEE'S ANNUAL REPORT TO COUNCIL  
 
The Investments Manager introduced this item. The Annual Report would be 
submitted to the Council in September. She invited Members to let her know of any 
matters they thought should be included. 
 
RESOLVED to approve the Annual Report to Council. 
  
 

18 
  

WORKPLANS  
 
The Investments Manager presented the report.  
 
She said that the next training session would be held on 15th July 2011. It would deal 
with the Fund’s investment strategy and investment managers. It was intended for 
new Members, but all Members would be welcome to attend. She invited Members 
to suggest items for inclusion in the work plans. A Member asked when Socially 
Responsible Investment (SRI) would be coming to the Committee. The Investments 
Manager replied that there would be two workshops on SRI during 2011.  
 
RESOLVED to note the workplans. 
  
 

19 
  

DATES OF FUTURE MEETINGS  
 
The dates of future meetings were noted. 
 
It was agreed that meeting dates should be scheduled up to the end of 2015 with the 
preferred time Friday afternoon and the preferred location Bath. 
  
 
Appendix 1: Mercers presentation on Fair Deal 

Page 13



 

 
Page 8 of 8 

 

 
Appendix 2: Schroders presentation on macro outlook 
 
 
 

The meeting ended at 4.33 pm  
 

Chair(person)  
 

Date Confirmed and Signed  
 

Prepared by Democratic Services 
 

Page 14



M
er

ce
r 

Li
m

ite
d 

is
 a

ut
ho

ris
ed

 a
nd

 r
eg

ul
at

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
F

in
an

ci
al

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
A

ut
ho

rit
y

R
eg

is
te

re
d 

in
 E

ng
la

nd
 N

o.
 9

84
27

5 
R

eg
is

te
re

d 
O

ffi
ce

: 1
 T

ow
er

 P
la

ce
 W

es
t, 

T
ow

er
 P

la
ce

, L
on

do
n 

E
C

3R
 5

B
U

A
vo

n
 P

en
si

o
n

 F
u

n
d

F
ai

r 
D

ea
l –

Im
pl

ic
at

io
ns

 fo
r 

th
e 

F
un

d

24
 J

un
e 

20
11

P
au

l M
id

dl
em

an
 F

IA

Minute Annex

Page 9Page 15



1
M

er
ce

r

C
O

N
T

R
A

C
T

O
R

’S
 

B
R

O
A

D
L

Y
C

O
M

P
A

R
A

B
L

E
S

C
H

E
M

E

A
D

M
IT

T
E

D
B

O
D

Y
R

O
U

T
EO
u

ts
o

u
rc

in
g

 c
o

n
tr

ac
t 

–
cu

rr
en

t 
p

en
si

o
n

s 
o

p
ti

o
n

s

!
C

o
n

ta
ct

o
r’

s 
ch

o
ic

e

!
Im

p
ac

t 
o

f 
F

ai
r 

D
ea

l C
o

n
su

lt
at

io
n

 a
n

d
 r

em
o

va
l o

f 
T

w
o

 T
ie

r 
C

o
d

e?

!
S

ta
y 

w
it

h
in

 F
u

n
d

!
A

u
to

m
at

ic
 

co
n

ti
n

u
at

io
n

 o
f 

p
en

si
o

n
 r

ig
h

ts

!
R

ep
lic

at
es

 b
en

ef
it

s 
ex

ac
tl

y

!
A

lt
er

n
at

iv
e 

to
 A

B
S

 f
o

r 
fu

tu
re

 s
er

vi
ce

!
B

u
lk

 t
ra

n
sf

er
 f

o
r 

p
as

t 
se

rv
ic

e

!
B

en
ef

it
s 

n
o

t 
ex

ac
t

Page 10Page 16



2
M

er
ce

r

F
ai

r 
D

ea
l C

o
n

su
lt

at
io

n

!
F

ai
r 

D
ea

l a
p

p
lie

s 
to

 L
A

s
in

 E
n

g
la

n
d

 u
n

d
er

 B
es

t 
V

al
u

e 
A

u
th

o
ri

ti
es

 S
ta

ff
 

T
ra

n
sf

er
s 

(P
en

si
o

n
s)

 D
ir

ec
ti

o
n

 2
00

7

!
H

M
 T

re
as

u
ry

 c
o

n
su

lt
at

io
n

 o
n

 t
h

e 
F

ai
r 

D
ea

l p
o

lic
y:

 t
re

at
m

en
t 

o
f 

P
en

si
o

n
s 

o
n

 c
o

m
p

u
ls

o
ry

 t
ra

n
sf

er
s 

o
f 

st
af

f 
fr

o
m

 t
h

e 
p

u
b

lic
 s

ec
to

r

!
R

ec
o

m
m

en
d

at
io

n
 m

ad
e 

in
 t

h
e 

H
u

tt
o

n
 r

ep
o

rt
 f

o
r 

“d
es

ir
ab

ili
ty

”
o

f 
o

n
ly

 
p

u
b

lic
 s

ec
to

r 
em

p
lo

ye
es

 b
ei

n
g

 a
llo

w
ed

 a
cc

es
s 

to
 p

u
b

lic
 s

ec
to

r 
sc

h
em

es

!
C

o
n

su
lt

at
io

n
 r

an
 f

ro
m

 3
 M

ar
ch

 –
15

 J
u

n
e 

20
11

!
M

er
ce

r 
an

d
 F

u
n

d
 r

es
p

o
n

se
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
iv

e 
o

f 
F

ai
r 

D
ea

l b
u

t 
w

it
h

 m
o

d
if

ic
at

io
n

 / 
si

m
p

lif
ic

at
io

n

P
o

ss
ib

le
 O

u
tc

o
m

es
?

!
S

cr
ap

p
ed

   
   

   
n

o
 o

b
lig

at
io

n
s 

(o
th

er
 t

h
an

 r
eq

u
ir

ed
 u

n
d

er
 T

U
P

E
 o

r 
N

E
S

T
)

!
R

et
ai

n
ed

   
   

   
as

 n
o

w
 b

u
t 

ve
ry

 li
ke

ly
 w

ill
 b

e 
am

en
d

ed

Page 11Page 17



3
M

er
ce

r

Im
p

lic
at

io
n

s 
o

f 
sc

ra
p

p
in

g
 F

ai
r 

D
ea

l

!
C

u
rr

en
t 

p
re

ss
u

re
 o

n
 m

em
b

er
sh

ip
 f

ro
m

 r
es

tr
u

ct
u

re
 a

n
d

 o
p

t-
o

u
ts

!
S

cr
ap

p
in

g
 F

ai
r 

D
ea

l
p

o
te

n
ti

al
 f

o
r 

an
 in

cr
ea

se
d

 f
al

l i
n

 n
u

m
b

er
s

!
F

u
rt

h
er

 c
h

an
g

e 
in

 c
as

h
fl

o
w

 a
n

d
 F

u
n

d
 m

at
u

ri
ty

 p
ro

fi
le

!
P

re
ss

u
re

 o
n

 f
u

n
d

in
g

 s
tr

at
eg

y,
 li

q
u

id
it

y 
re

q
u

ir
em

en
ts

 a
n

d
 lo

n
g

 t
er

m
 

in
ve

st
m

en
t 

st
ra

te
g

y

P
o

ss
ib

ly
 h

ig
h

er
 

lo
n

g
 t

er
m

 c
o

st
T

re
as

u
ry

 m
an

ag
em

en
t 

is
su

es
 a

n
d

 c
o

n
st

ra
in

ts
 

o
n

 in
ve

st
m

en
t 

st
ra

te
g

y

Page 12Page 18



4
M

er
ce

r

A
vo

n
 P

en
si

o
n

 F
u

n
d

 C
as

h
flo

w
 P

ro
je

ct
io

n
 

!4
00

!2
000

20
0

40
0

60
0

80
0

2010/11

2012/13

2014/15

2016/17

2018/19

2020/21

2022/23

2024/25

2026/27

2028/29

2030/31

2032/33

2034/35

2036/37

2038/39

£Millions

Sc
h
e
m
e
!Y
e
ar

To
ta
l"C

on
tr
ib
ut
io
ns

(e
xc
l"e
xp
)

Be
ne
fit
s"
(a
gg
re
ga
te
)

N
et
"c
as
hf
lo
w
s

Im
p

ac
t 

o
f 

re
d

u
ci

n
g

 m
em

b
er

sh
ip

C
as

hf
lo

w
 P

ro
je

ct
io

n 
fo

r 
F

un
d

20
20

 C
ro

ss
o

ve
r 

p
o

in
t

8 
ye

ar
 s

h
if

t 
in

 c
ro

ss
o

ve
r 

p
o

in
t 

if
 

re
d

u
ce

 w
o

rk
fo

rc
e 

b
y 

40
%

Page 13Page 19



5
M

er
ce

r

A
N
Y

Q
U
E
S
T
IO
N
S

Page 14Page 20



A
p

p
en

d
ix

Page 15Page 21



7
M

er
ce

r

A
d

m
it

te
d

 B
o

d
y 

R
o

u
te

S
ta

ke
ho

ld
er

s

A
d

m
in

is
te

ri
n

g
A

u
th

o
ri

ty

C
o

n
tr

ac
to

r

M
em

b
er

s

L
et

ti
n

g
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty

!
A

d
m

is
si

o
n

 A
g

re
em

en
t 

   
   

   
A

d
m

in
is

te
ri

n
g

 A
u

th
o

ri
ty

, L
et

ti
n

g
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 

an
d

 C
o

n
tr

ac
to

r

!
C

o
m

m
er

ci
al

 A
g

re
em

en
t 

   
   

   
L

et
ti

n
g

 A
u

th
o

ri
ty

 a
n

d
 C

o
n

tr
ac

to
r

Page 16Page 22



8
M

er
ce

r

V
ie

w
s 

o
n

 A
B

S
 P

ro
vi

si
o

n
s

!
W

id
el

y 
h

el
d

 v
ie

w
 t

h
at

 A
B

S
 is

 a
 v

al
u

ab
le

 m
ec

h
an

is
m

 f
o

r 
p

en
si

o
n

 
p

ro
vi

si
o

n
 f

o
r 

tr
an

sf
er

ri
n

g
 s

ta
ff

 –
p

ar
t 

o
f 

o
u

r 
re

sp
o

n
se

 o
n

 F
ai

r 
D

ea
l

!
C

o
n

ce
rn

s 
fr

o
m

 c
o

n
tr

ac
to

rs
 o

ve
r 

a 
n

u
m

b
er

 o
f 

ar
ea

s
–

B
ac

kd
o

o
r 

co
m

p
u

ls
io

n
 t

o
 o

ff
er

 A
B

S
–

L
ac

k 
o

f 
co

n
tr

o
l o

ve
r 

p
en

si
o

n
 r

is
k

–
L

ac
k 

o
f 

tr
an

sp
ar

en
cy

 o
r 

co
n

si
st

en
cy

 o
f 

ap
p

lic
at

io
n

!
C

an
 le

ad
 t

o
 u

n
co

m
p

et
it

iv
e 

b
id

s 
o

r 
ev

en
 n

o
 b

id
 a

t 
al

l (
es

p
ec

ia
lly

fr
o

m
 

sm
al

le
r 

b
id

d
er

s)

!
T

es
t 

o
f 

b
el

ie
fs

 w
ill

 e
m

er
g

e 
fr

o
m

 t
h

e 
F

ai
r 

D
ea

l C
o

n
su

lt
at

io
n

Page 17Page 23



M
er

ce
r 

Li
m

ite
d 

is
 a

ut
ho

ris
ed

 a
nd

 r
eg

ul
at

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
F

in
an

ci
al

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
A

ut
ho

rit
y

R
eg

is
te

re
d 

in
 E

ng
la

nd
 N

o.
 9

84
27

5 
R

eg
is

te
re

d 
O

ffi
ce

: 1
 T

ow
er

 P
la

ce
 W

es
t, 

T
ow

er
 P

la
ce

, L
on

do
n 

E
C

3R
 5

B
U

Page 18Page 24



Av
on

 Pe
ns
ion

 Fu
nd

Ma
cro

-ec
on

om
ic 
ou

tlo
ok
: 

Wi
ll t
he
 oi
l s
ho

ck
 an

d i
nfl
ati
on

 de
rai
l th

e w
or
ld 

ec
on

om
y?
 

Fo
r p

ro
fes

sio
na

l a
dv

ise
rs 

on
ly.

 Th
is 

ma
ter

ial
 is

 no
t s

uit
ab

le 
for

 re
tai

l c
lie

nts

Ly
nd

on
 B

olt
on

Cl
ien

t D
ire

cto
r

24
 Ju

ne
 20

11

Minute Annex

Page 19Page 25



Th
em
es
 fo
r 2
01
1

�
Sw

ee
t s

po
t fo

r ri
sk

 as
se

ts
�

Se
arc

h f
or 

yie
ld

�
Ea

st/
 w

es
t d

ive
rge

nc
e

�
So

ve
rei

gn
 de

bt 
res

tru
ctu

rin
g i

n E
uro

zo
ne

1

Page 20Page 26



Sw
ee
t s
po
t u
nd
er 
thr
ea
t

Oi
l, J

ap
an
es
e e

art
hq

ua
ke
 pr

es
en
t n
ea
r t
erm

 ch
all
en
ge
 to
 re
co
ve
ry

Ma
nu

fac
tur

ing
 P

ur
ch

as
ing

 M
an

ag
ers

 In
de

x

5658606264Ind
ex

Eu
ro

zo
ne

UK
US

Ph
as

e 
1

Ph
as

e 
2

Ph
as

e 
3

2

So
urc

e: 
Sc
hro

de
rs,
 M
ark

it P
MI
, J
un
e 2

01
1. 
BR

IC
: B
raz

il, 
Ch
ina

, In
dia
 & 
Ru
ss
ia.

GD
P w

eig
hts

 ba
se
d o

n n
om

ina
l G
DP

 in
 U
SD

 fro
m 
IM
F.

44464850525456

1
2

3
4

5
6

7
8

9
10

11
12

13
14

15
16

17
18

19
20

21
22

23
24

25
26

No
. o

f m
on

th
s 

ab
ov

e 
th

e 
50

 le
ve

l

Ch
ina

Ja
pa

nBR
IC

s

Page 21Page 27



Wi
ll t
he
 ris
e i
n o
il p
ric
es
 ca
us
e a
no
the
r re

ce
ss
ion
?

La
tes

t r
ise

 in
 oi
l p
ric
es
 is
 sm

all
er 
tha

n p
rev

iou
s s

ho
ck
s

8010
0

12
0

14
0

16
0

1
US

D 
pe

r b
arr

el
Oi

l p
ric

es
 in

 no
mi

na
l a

nd
 re

al 
ter

ms
 (2

01
0)

Pe
rio

d
Oi
l p

ric
e: 

% 
ris

e
tro

ug
h t

o p
ea
k

Du
rat

ion
1-y

ea
r 

aft
er 

pe
ak
 

vs
. tr

ou
gh

No
mi

na
l

Re
al

De
c-7

3 t
o 

Ja
n-7

4
29
3%

28
6%

1 m
on
th

17
9%

No
v-7

8 t
o 

20
1%

17
0%

12
 m
on
ths

17
0%

Oi
l s

ho
ck

s c
om

pa
red

2. 
OP

EC
 II

5. 
Liq

uid
ity

 
dr
ive

n s
pik

e

3So
urc

e: 
Th

om
so
n D

ata
str

ea
m,

 N
BE

R 
(N
ati
on
al 
bu
rea

u o
f E

co
no
mi
c R

es
ea
rch

), S
ch
rod

ers
, 1
9 M

ay
 20

11
.

020406080

70
73

76
79

82
85

88
91

94
97

00
03

06
09

0

NB
ER

 re
ce

ss
ion

 ph
as

e
Re

al 
oil

 pr
ice

s (
20

10
)

No
mi

na
l o

il p
ric

es

No
v-7

8 t
o 

No
v-7

9
20
1%

17
0%

12
 m
on
ths

17
0%

Ju
n-9

0 t
o 

Oc
t-9

0
13
3%

12
8%

4 m
on
ths

-40
%

Ma
r-9

9 t
o 

No
v-0

0
15
1%

14
2%

20
 m
on
ths

13
8%

Ju
l-0

7 t
o 

Ju
l-0

8
92
%

83
%

12
 m
on
ths

-10
%

Ju
l-1

0 t
o 

Ma
y-1

1?
77
%

73
%

10
 m
on
ths

?

3. 
Gu

lf 
Wa

r I
1. 
OP

EC
 I

4. 
OP

EC
 

cu
t 

pr
od

uc
tio

n

Page 22Page 28



10
0

12
0

Gl
ob

al 
oil

 de
ma

nd
 to

 G
DP

 (1
97

1=
10

0)

En
erg

y i
nte
ns
ity
 ha
s f
all
en

Oi
l’s
 ro

le 
in 
the

 w
or
ld 
ec
on

om
y h

as
 ha

lve
d

4

406080

71
73

75
77

79
81

83
85

87
89

91
93

95
97

99
01

03
05

07
09

11

Ra
tio:

 O
il d

em
an

d/ 
rea

l gl
ob

al G
DP

So
urc

e: 
Th

om
so
n D

ata
str

ea
m,

 19
 M

ay
 20

11

Page 23Page 29



1214161820
1

Po
lic
y r
es
po

ns
e t
o o

il p
ric
e s

ho
ck
s c

rit
ica

l a
nd

 de
pe
nd

en
t o
n s

ec
on

d 
ro
un

d e
ffe

cts

Lin
k b
etw

ee
n i
nte
res
t ra
tes
 an
d r
ec
es
sio
ns
 is
 st
ron

ge
r

%

5

-2024681012

70
72

74
76

78
80

82
84

86
88

90
92

94
96

98
00

02
04

06
08

10
0

NB
ER

 re
ce
ss
ion

 ph
as
e

US
 Fe

d f
un

ds
 ta
rg
et 
rat

e

So
urc

e: 
Th

om
so
n D

ata
str

ea
m,

 N
BE

R 
(N
ati
on
al 
bu
rea

u o
f E

co
no
mi
c R

es
ea
rch

), 1
9 M

ay
 20

11
.

Page 24Page 30



Th
e E

CB
 ha
s s
tar
ted
 ra
isin

g i
nte
res
t ra
tes

Ta
xe
s a

nd
 en

erg
y p

ric
e i
nfl
ati
on

 hu
rti
ng

 co
ns
um

ers
Infl

ati
on
, y/

y

2%3%4%5%
Y/Y 2%3%4%5%

66

So
urc

e: 
Th

om
ps
on
 Da

tas
tre

am
. U

pd
ate

d 5
 M

ay
 20

11
.

-1%0%1%2%

05
06

07
08

09
10

11

He
ad

line
He

ad
line

 ex
cl. 

tax
 ch

an
ge

s

-2%-1%0%1%

20
05

20
06

20
07

20
08

20
09

20
10

20
11

Co
re 

CP
I

En
erg

y
Fo

od
 inc

l. a
lco

ho
l &

 to
ba

cc
o

To
tal 

CP
I

Page 25Page 31



Pe
rip

he
ra

l c
on

su
me

r c
on

fid
en

ce
Co

re
 co

ns
um

er
 co

nfi
de

nc
e

Gr
ow
th 
div
erg

en
ce
 w
ith
in 
Eu
rop

e
A t

ale
 of
 tw

o c
on

su
me

rs

012No
rm

ali
se

d

0123No
rm

ali
se

d

7

So
urc

e: 
Th

om
so
n D

ata
str

ea
m,

 Eu
rop

ea
n C

om
mi
ss
ion

, 1
8 M

ay
 20

11
. 

-4-3-2-1

06
07

08
09

10
11

Ire
lan

d
Sp

ain
Gr

ee
ce

Po
rtu

ga
l

-4-3-2-10

06
07

08
09

10
11

Ge
rm

an
y

Sw
ed

en
Au

str
ia 

Ne
the

rla
nd

s

Page 26Page 32



Th
e E

uro
 cr
isis

Ho
w 
far

 ca
n g

ov
ern

me
nt’
s c

ut 
sp
en
din

g?

1112131415%

8
So

urc
e: 
Th

om
so
n D

ata
str

ea
m,

 19
 M

ay
 20

11
, B

BC

78910

98
01

04
07

10

Gr
ee

ce
 un

em
plo

ym
en

t r
ate

 (%
 of

 la
bo

ur
 fo

rc
e)

Page 27Page 33



Sti
ll f
oll
ow
ing
 Pl
an
 A

Pa
th 
of 
fis
ca
l ti
gh

ten
ing

 in
 th
e U

K
% 
of G

DP

2.02.53.0
PS
BR
, %
 of 
GD

P

11
.1

9.9

7.9
8101214

Ch
an

ge
 in

 PS
BR

99So
urc

e: 
ON

S, 
Da

tas
tre

am
, O

BR
, B

ud
ge
t M

arc
h 2

01
1, 
Sc

hro
de
rs.

 30
 M

arc
h 2

01
10.00.51.01.5

20
10
-11

20
11
-12

20
12-
13

20
13-
14

20
14
-15

20
15
-16

Bu
dg
et M

ar 
'11

OB
R N

ov 
'10

Bu
dg
et J

un 
'10

6.2

4.1

2.5
1.5

0246

09
/10

10
/11

11
/12

12
/13

13
/14

14
/15

15
/16

Str
uct
ura
l

Cy
clic
al

Page 28Page 34



Bu
t c
an
 th
e U

K w
ith
sta
nd
 th
e f
isc
al 
sq
ue
ez
e?

Gr
ow

th 
rel
ian

t o
n f
all
 in
 sa

vin
gs
 ra

tio

8101214Ho
use

ho
ld s

avi
ng
s a

s %
 of
 re

al d
isp

os
ab

le i
nco

me
6m

, y/
y

2%4%6%8%

1010So
urc

e: 
ON

S, 
 D
ata

str
ea
m.

 U
pd
ate

d 5
 Ap

ril 
20
11
.

-20246 86
88

90
92

94
96

98
00

02
04

06
08

10

-6%-4%-2%0%

94
95

96
97

99
00

01
02

04
05

06
07

09
10

Re
al h

ou
se
ho
ld d

isp
os
ab

le i
nco

me
Co

nsu
mp

tio
n g

row
th

Page 29Page 35



678910Inf
lat
ion

 is
 di
ve
rg
ing

 in
 th
e d

ev
elo

pe
d a

nd
 em

erg
ing

 w
or
lds

Ea
st/
 w
es
t d
ive
rge

nc
e

y/y
%

11

-2-1012345

00
01

02
03

04
05

06
07

08
09

10
11

G7
 C
PI 
rat
e

BR
IC
s C
PI 
rat
e

So
urc

e: 
Th

om
so
n D

ata
str

ea
m,

 Sc
hro

de
rs,

 19
 M

ay
 20

11
.

BR
IC
s: 
Br
az
il, 
Ru

ss
ia,
 In
dia

 an
d C

hin
a. 

US
D 
GD

P-
we

igh
ted

.

Page 30Page 36



78910%Tig
hte
r p
oli
cy
 in
 em

erg
ing
 m
ark
ets

Inf
lat
ion

 an
d r

ate
s i
n t
he
 B
RI
C’
s

12

234567 02
03

04
05

06
07

08
09

10
11

BR
ICs

 3-
mo

nth
 in

ter
ba

nk
 ra

te
BR

ICs
 C

PI 
rat

e, 
y/y

%

So
urc

e: 
Th

om
so
n D

ata
str

ea
m,

 Sc
hro

de
rs,

 19
 M

ay
 20

11
.

BR
IC
s: 
Br
az
il, 
Ru

ss
ia,
 In
dia

 an
d C

hin
a. 

US
D 
GD

P-
we

igh
ted

.

Page 31Page 37



Co
rp

or
ate

 ca
sh

 flo
w 

0.
5

1.
0

1.
5

2.
0

2.
5

3.
0%

010203040y/y
%,

 sm
oo

the
d (

3-m
on

th 
mo

vin
g a

ve
rag

e)

Bu
sin

es
s c

ap
ex

 or
de

rs

Co
rpo

rat
e s
pe
nd
ing
 is
 re
co
ve
rin
g

Ca
sh
 flo

w 
su
rg
es
 –
ca
pe
x a

cc
ele

rat
es

13

So
urc

e: 
Sc

hro
de
rs,

 Th
om

so
n D

ata
str

ea
m,

 19
 M

ay
 20

11

-3
.0

-2
.5

-2
.0

-1
.5

-1
.0

-0
.50.
0

0.
5

51
56

61
66

71
76

81
86

91
96

01
06

11

US
 to

ta
l in

te
rn

al
 fu

nd
s 

m
in

us
 fi

xe
d 

in
ve

st
m

en
t a

s 
a 

%
 o

f
GD

P

-40-30-20-100 96
98

00
02

04
06

08
10

Ja
pa
n m

ac
hin

ery
 or
de
rs 
ex
 vo

lat
ile
 or
de
rs

Ge
rm
an
y c

ap
ita
l g
oo
ds

US
 du

rab
le 
go
od
 or
de
rs 
ex
 de

fen
ce
 ca

pit
al

Page 32Page 38



9910
0

10
1

10
2US
 G
DP

 an
d j
ob

s
Wa

itin
g f
or 
a r
ec
ov
ery
 in
 jo
bs

Ind
ex
 (B

as
e 1

00
 = 

15
/02

/20
08
)

14

949596979899

08
09

10
11

US
 to
tal
 ci
vil
ian
 em
plo
ym
en
t

US
 re
al 
GD
P l
ev
el

So
urc

e: 
Th

om
so
n D

ata
str

ea
m,

 19
 M

ay
 20

11
.

Page 33Page 39



As
se
t a
llo
ca
tio
n

15

Page 34Page 40



121416Pr
ofi
t m

arg
ins

 ha
ve
 ris

en
 sh

arp
ly 
in 
the

 U
S

Eq
uit
ies
: c
orp

ora
te 
pro

fits
 ar
e b
uo
ya
nt

% 
of 
GD

P

20
09

20
10

20
11

20
12

Ec
on

om
ic 
pro

fits
y/y

%
-9.
7

49
.7

9.6
6.3

No
nfi

na
nc

ial
 sh

are
 %

 
GD

P
5.8

8.2
8.7

8.8

S&
P 5

00
 EP

S

Ta
ble

: P
ro

fit 
an

d E
PS

 fo
rec

as
ts

16

6810

50
55

60
65

70
75

80
85

90
95

00
05

10

US
 pr

of
it s

ha
re 

as
 a 

%
 of

 G
DP

So
urc

e: 
Sc

hro
de
rs,

 Th
om

so
n D

ata
str

ea
m,

 D
ata

 to
 Q
4 2

01
0, 
19
 M

ay
 20

11

S&
P 5

00
 EP

S
Op

era
tin

g $
$5
7

$8
4

$9
2

$9
8

y/y
%

15
47

10
6

Re
po

rte
d $

$5
1

$7
7

$8
6

$9
3

y/y
%

24
3

51
11

8
S&

P 5
00
 PE

    
ma

rke
t a

t: 
11
15
.1

12
57
.64

13
30

13
30

Ba
se
d o

n o
pe

rat
ing

 EP
S

19
.6

15
14
.4

13
.5

Ba
se
d o

n r
ep

ort
ed

 EP
S

21
.9

16
.3

15
.5

14
.3

So
urc

e: 
S&

P, 
Sc

hro
de
rs,

 1 
Ma

rch
 20

11

Page 35Page 41



Bo
nd
s: 
wh
ere

 is
 th
e b
ub
ble
…

…
an
d w

he
re 
is 
the

 op
po

rtu
nit
y t
od

ay
?

456789Yie
ld 

%

17So
urc
e: 
Ba
nk
 of
 Am

eri
ca
 M
err
ill L

yn
ch
 In
dic
es
 us
ing
 yi
eld
 to
 w
ors
t  (
co
nv
en
tio
na
l) :
 ER

00
. B
loo
mb
erg

 5 
ye
ar 
 go
ve
rnm

en
t b
on
d (
GD

BR
5) 

BB
A 1

 m
on
th 
LIB

OR
 (E
U0
00
1M
 In
de
x).
 M
on
th 
en
d d
ate
s. 
31
 M
ay
 20
11

01234

Feb-07

Jul-07

Dec-07

May-08

Oct-08

Apr-09

Sep-09

Feb-10

Jul-10

Dec-10

May-11

Eu
ro 

Co
rpo

rat
e B

on
d

Eu
ro 

Ca
sh

5 Y
ea

r G
erm

an
 G

ov
ern

me
nt

Page 36Page 42



Ris
k a
ss
ets
 pe
rfo
rm
 w
ell
 in
 th
e r
ec
ov
ery
 ph
as
e

“H
ist
or
y d

oe
s n

ot 
rep

ea
t it
se
lf…

bu
t it
 do

es
 rh

ym
e”

Ph
as
e/ 

As
se
t

Re
co

ve
ry

Ex
pa

ns
ion

Slo
wd

ow
n

Re
ce

ss
ion

Eq
uit

y
Ex
ce
ss
 

ret
urn

*
8.6

8.4
-8.
4

7.4
 

Go
ve
rnm

en
t 

Bo
nd

s
Ex
ce
ss
 

ret
urn

1.0
-1.
0

0.0
2.1

Hig
h Y

iel
d

Ex
ce
ss
 

6.7
2.0

-11
.9

11
.7

Re
co

ve
ry

Ou
tpu

t b
elo

w 
tre

nd
, G

row
th 

ac
ce
ler
ati
ng
, 

Inf
lat
ion

 fa
llin

g

Re
ce
ss
ion

Ou
tpu

t b
elo

w 
tre

nd
, G

row
th 

de
ce
ler
ati
ng
, 

Inf
lat
ion

 fa
llin

g

18

So
urc
e: 
Th
om
so
n D

ata
Str
ea
m,
 Sc
hro

de
rs.
 

Da
ta:
 Eq

uit
y S
&P
 50
0 T
R 
& U

S 1
0y
r G
ov
t. b
on
ds
 fro
m 
19
50
 to
 20
10
, B
arC

ap
 U
S H

igh
 Yi
eld
 fro

m 
19
83
 -2
01
0, 
Ba
rC
ap
 U
S 

Co
rpo

rat
e I
nv
es
tm
en
t G
rad

e f
rom

 19
73
 -2
01
0, 
S&
P G

SC
I C
om
mo
dit
y. 

Da
ta 
for
 ca
pa
cit
y u
tilis

ati
on
 an
d t
he
 un
em
plo
ym
en
t ra
te 
in 
the
 U
S a

re 
us
ed
 to
 es
tim
ate
 th
e o
utp
ut 
ga
p.

All
 ris
k r
etu
rn 
fig
ure

s a
re 
in 
% 
an
d a
nn
ua
lise

d f
or 
ea
ch
 ph
as
e o
f th
e c
yc
le.
 R
isk
 re
tur
n n
um
be
rs 
are

 re
lat
ive
 to
 ca
sh
.

Hig
h Y

iel
d

Ex
ce
ss
 

ret
urn

6.7
2.0

-11
.9

11
.7

Inv
es
tm

en
t 

Gr
ad

e
Ex
ce
ss
 

ret
urn

5.2
2.9

-1.
9

7.3

Co
mm

od
ity

Ex
ce
ss
 

ret
urn

2.9
15
.3

7.9
-4.
4

Ex
pa

ns
ion

Ou
tpu

t a
bo
ve
 

tre
nd
, G

row
th 

ac
ce
ler
ati
ng
, 

Inf
lat
ion

 ris
ing

Slo
w-

do
wn

Ou
tpu

t a
bo
ve
 

tre
nd
, G

row
th 

de
ce
ler
ati
ng
, 

Inf
lat
ion

 ris
ing

Co
mm

od
itie

s  
    

    
    

    
  C

as
h  

    
    

    
    

   H
igh

 Yi
eld

    
    

    
    

    
 Eq

uit
ies

Page 37Page 43



As
se
t a
llo
ca
tio
n: 
the
me
s a
nd
 vi
ew
s

�
Sw

ee
t s

po
t fo

r ri
sk

 as
se

ts
�

Ov
erw

eig
ht 

eq
uit

y/ 
un

de
rw

eig
ht 

go
vt 

bo
nd

s

�
Se

arc
h f

or 
yie

ld
�

Un
de

rw
eig

ht 
ca

sh
/ O

ve
rw

eig
ht 

hig
h y

iel
d

19

�
Ea

st/
 w

es
t d

ive
rge

nc
e

�
Un

de
rw

eig
ht 

em
erg

ing
 m

ark
et 

bo
nd

s/ 
ne

utr
al 

EM
 eq

uit
y/ 

ov
erw

eig
ht 

EM
 

cu
rre

nc
ies

�
So

ve
rei

gn
 de

bt 
res

tru
ctu

rin
g i

n E
uro

zo
ne

�
Un

de
rw

eig
ht 

Eu
roz

on
e e

qu
ity

/ o
ve

rw
eig

ht 
US

Page 38Page 44



Fo
r p

ro
fes

sio
na

l a
dv

ise
rs 

on
ly.

 Th
is 

ma
ter

ial
 is

 no
t s

uit
ab

le 
for

 re
tai

l c
lie

nts
. 

Pa
st 
pe
rfo
rm
an
ce
 is
 no

t a
 gu

ide
 to
 fu
tur
e p

erf
orm

an
ce
 an

d m
ay
 no

t b
e r
ep
ea
ted

. T
he
 va

lue
 of
 in
ve
stm

en
ts 
an
d t
he
 

inc
om

e f
rom

 th
em

 m
ay
 go

 do
wn

 as
 w
ell
 as

 up
 an

d i
nv
es
tor
s m

ay
 no

t g
et 
ba
ck
 th
e a

mo
un
t o
rig
ina

lly 
inv

es
ted

. 
Sc
hro

de
rs 
ha
s e

xp
res

se
d i
ts 
ow

n v
iew

s a
nd
 th
es
e m

ay
 ch

an
ge
. 

Th
e f
ore

ca
sts

 in
clu

de
d i
n t
his

 pr
es
en
tat
ion

 sh
ou
ld 
no
t b
e r
eli
ed
 up

on
, a
re 
no
t g
ua
ran

tee
d a

nd
 ar
e p

rov
ide

d o
nly

 as
 

at 
the

 da
te 
of 
iss

ue
.O

ur 
for
ec
as
ts 
are

 ba
se
d o

n o
ur 
ow

n a
ss
um

pti
on
s w

hic
h m

ay
 ch

an
ge
.W

e a
cc
ep
t n
o 

res
po
ns
ibi
lity
 fo
r a
ny
 er
ror

s o
f fa

ct 
or 
op
ini
on
 an

d a
ss
um

e n
o o

bli
ga
tio
n t
o p

rov
ide

 yo
u w

ith
 an

y c
ha
ng
es
 to
 ou

r 
as
su
mp

tio
ns
 or
 fo
rec

as
ts.

Fo
rec

as
ts 
an
d a

ss
um

pti
on
s m

ay
 be

 af
fec

ted
 by

 ex
ter
na
l e
co
no
mi
c o

r o
the

r fa
cto

rs.
 Th

e 
da
ta 
co
nta

ine
d i
n t
his

 do
cu
me

nt 
ha
s b

ee
n s

ou
rce

d b
y S

ch
rod

ers
 an

d s
ho
uld

 be
 in
de
pe
nd
en
tly
 ve

rifi
ed
 be

for
e 

fur
the

r p
ub
lica

tio
n o

r u
se
. 

Im
po
rta
nt 
inf
orm

ati
on

2020

Iss
ue
d i
nJ

un
e 2

01
1 b

y S
ch
rod

er 
Inv

es
tm
en
ts 
Lim

ite
d, 
31
 G
res

ha
m 
Str

ee
t, L

on
do
n E

C2
V 7

QA
. R

eg
ist
ere

d N
o: 

20
15
52
7 E

ng
lan

d. 
Au

tho
ris
ed
 an

d r
eg
ula

ted
 by

 th
e F

ina
nc
ial
 Se

rvi
ce
s A

uth
ori
ty.
 10

/12
96

Page 39Page 45



Page 40

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 46



Printed on recycled paper 1

 
Bath & North East Somerset Council 

 
MEETING: Avon Pension Fund Committee 
MEETING 
DATE: 23 September 2011 AGENDA 

ITEM 
NUMBER  

TITLE: Audited Statement of Accounts & the Annual Governance Report – 
2010/11 

WARD: ALL 
AN OPEN PUBLIC ITEM  

List of attachments to this report: 
Appendix 1 – 2010/11 Audited Statement of Accounts – subject to any further 
issues raised by the Auditor 
Appendix 2 – Draft Annual Governance Report 2010/11  
 
 
1 THE ISSUE 
1.1 The Annual Governance Report summarises the results of the Audit 

Commission’s audit of the 2010/11 accounts.  It includes the issues arising from 
the audit of the financial statements and those issues which they are formally 
required to report under the Audit Commission’s Code of Audit Practice and 
International Standard of Auditing (UK & Ireland) (ISA(UK&I) 260) – 
“Communication of audit matters with those charged with governance”. 

1.2 The Audited Statement of Accounts is now presented for final approval. They 
remain subject to any issues raised by the Auditors prior to this meeting. If there 
are any such issues they will be discussed at this meeting.  

1.3 The Corporate Audit Committee will be recommended to approve the final audited 
Statement of Accounts for 2010/11 and note the issues raised in the Governance 
reports at its meeting on 29 September 2011, subject to any recommendations 
from the Avon Pension Fund Committee. 
 
 

2 RECOMMENDATION 
That the Committee: 
2.1 Approves the final audited Statement of Accounts for 2010/11. 
2.2 Notes the issues raised in the Annual Governance Report. 
 

Agenda Item 8

Page 47



Printed on recycled paper 2

3 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
3.1 The Pension Fund’s Statement of Accounts shows the Total Net Assets at 31 

March 2011 as £2,668,063,000. This is £134,000 less than the figure in the draft 
accounts prior to the external audit. 

 
4 CHANGES FROM THE DRAFT STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 
4.1 The Committee noted the draft Statement of Accounts 2010/11 at its meeting of 

24th June 2011.  
4.2 They are now being resubmitted following several presentational and technical 

changes. 
4.3 The main changes are:-  
 1) Following the instruction of the auditors, the cost of the Triennial Valuation is 

not deferred to be charged over the period to which the valuation applies as it was 
in the draft accounts. Instead it is to be charged to the year in which the valuation 
work was performed. Consequently the £134,000 cost of the triennial valuation is 
now included in the Fund Account under Administrative Expenses and is no 
longer included under Net Current Assets in the Net Asset Statement as a 
deferred charge. In consequence the directly controlled administration out-turn 
costs that were reported to the Committee in June as being £200,000 below 
budget for the year ending 31st March 2011 are now £66,000 below budget for the 
year. 

 2) An addition to note 10 regarding Investment income discloses:- Dividends from 
equities in the year to 31 March 2011 includes tax reclaims from former 
investment managers of £275,598 received in the year ending 31 March 2009 but 
not previously recognised as income in the accounts. 

 3) An additional disclosure has been added as note 22 to disclose the Fund’s 
holdings of financial instruments and related income, expenses, gains and losses. 
Former notes 22 and 23 have become notes 23 and 24. 

 4) Notes 4 and 6 now include separate disclosure of the contributions paid by 
B&NES Council to the Fund during the year and the benefits paid to B&NES 
pensioners during the year, respectively. 

 5) Paragraph 2.2 previously point viii, referring to AVCs not being included in the 
accounts, has been deleted as this is also stated in note 19. 

 6) Paragraph 2.2 (new) point viii has been amended to replace “Pensions SORP” 
with “CIPFA code of practice on local authority accounting”. 

5 CHANGES FROM LAST YEAR, MADE TO COMPLY WITH INTERNATIONAL 
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS 

5.1 The Statement of Accounts 2010/11 includes the following major changes from 
the 2009/10 Statement of Accounts in order to comply with the new CIPFA code 
of practice based on International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and 
International Accounting Standards (IAS). 

Page 48



Printed on recycled paper 3

5.2 In compliance with IAS 26 note 16 discloses the actuarial present value of 
promised retirement benefits. The assumptions required by this accounting 
standard are different from those used in the triennial valuation. Consequently the 
resulting valuation of liabilities is not the same. 

5.3 In compliance with IFRS 7 note 23 is a financial risk management disclosure. This 
explains and quantifies the financial risks to which the Fund is exposed. These are 
analysed as market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. Market risk includes price 
risk, interest rate risk and currency risk. Note 23 also includes a classification of 
the Fund’s financial assets and liabilities in a three level fair value hierarchy that 
reflects the subjectivity of the inputs used in making an assessment of their fair 
value. 

5.4 In compliance with IAS 39 note 22 discloses the financial instruments held by the 
Fund and related income, expenses, gains and losses. 

6 RISK MANAGEMENT 
6.1 A proportionate risk assessment has been carried out in relation to the Councils 

risk management guidance. Management of the Avon Pension Fund remains a 
key risk although the work in relation to this years audit has not identified any new 
corporate risks or significant changes.  

7 EQUALITIES 
7.1 An equalities impact assessment is not necessary 
8 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED 
8.1 None as this report is a statutory requirement. 
9 CONSULTATION 
9.1 Consultation has been carried out with the Section 151 Finance Officer. 
10 ISSUES TO CONSIDER IN REACHING THE DECISION 
10.1 No decision as this is a statutory requirement. 
11 ADVICE SOUGHT 
11.1 The Council's Monitoring Officer and Section 151 Officer (Divisional Director - 
Finance) have had the opportunity to input to this report and have cleared it for 
publication.  

Contact person  Martin Phillips, Finance and Systems Manager (Pensions) 
(01225) 395259 

Background 
papers 

Pension Fund Committee – 24th June – Draft Statement of 
Accounts 

Please contact the report author if you need to access this report in an 
alternative format 
 

Page 49



Page 50

This page is intentionally left blank



Printed on recycled paper 1

PENSION FUND ACCOUNTS 2010/11                
 
Statement of Accounts  
 
Introduction  

1.1 The following comprises the Statement of Accounts for the Avon Pension Fund 
(The Fund). The accounts cover the financial year from 1 April 2010 to 31 March 
2011.  

1.2 These accounts have been prepared in accordance with the Code of Practice on 
Local Authority Accounting (‘Code of Practice’) in the United Kingdom 2010 based 
on International Financial Reporting Standards as published by the Chartered 
Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy. The accounts have been prepared 
on an accruals basis, except for certain transfer values as described at ‘Statement 
of Accounting Policies’ – item 2.5.  They do not take account of liabilities to pay 
pensions and other benefits in the future.  

1.3 This is the first year in which the accounts have been prepared following 
International Financial Reporting Standards as required by the Code of Practice. 
There is no material difference in the Net Assets as at 1 April 2009 that would 
effect the 2009/10 accounts shown for comparison with the 2010/11 accounts. 

1.4 The accounts are set out in the following order:  
 Statement of Accounting Policies which explains the basis of the figures in the 

accounts.  
 
 Fund Account which discloses the size and nature of financial additions to and 

withdrawals from the Fund during the accounting period and reconciles the 
movements in the net assets to the Fund Account. 

      Net Assets Statement which discloses the size and disposition of the net assets 
of the Fund at the end of the accounting period. 

      Notes to the Accounts which give supporting details and analysis concerning the 
contents of the accounts, together with information on the establishment of the 
Fund, its membership and actuarial position. 

Actuarial Valuation 
1.5 As required by the Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations 2008 an 

actuarial valuation of the Fund was carried out as at 31 March 2010.   The market 
value of the Fund’s assets at the valuation date was £2,459 million.  The Actuary 
estimated that the value of the Fund was sufficient to meet 82% of its expected 
future liabilities (of £3,011m) in respect of service completed to 31 March 2010.   

1.6 The deficit recovery period for the Fund overall is 23 years.  
1.7 The 2010 actuarial valuation was carried out using the projected unit actuarial 

method.  The main assumptions, on the basis of which employers’ contributions 
are set, are as set out in the table below: 

 
 

Page 51



Printed on recycled paper 2

  
   

Past Service Future Service 
Rate of Discount 6.85% per annum (pre retirement) 

5.7% per annum (post retirement) 
6.75% per annum 

Rate of pensionable pay inflation 4.5% per annum 4.5% per annum 
Rate of price inflation 3.0% per annum 3.0% per annum 

 
1.8 The 2010 valuation set the employer contribution rates effective from 1 April 2011.  

In previous years the employer contribution rate has been expressed as a 
percentage of pay.  For the 2010 valuation, due to declining payrolls, the deficit 
recovery payment has been expressed as a monetary amount payable annually, 
whereas the future service rate is still expressed as a percentage of pay. 

 
1.9 The Actuary has estimated that the funding level as at 31 March 2011 has 

marginally increased to 83% from 82% at 31 March 2010.   
 
1.10 The Fund’s Funding Strategy Statement can be found on the Fund’s website 

www.avonpensionfund.org.uk or supplied on request from Liz Feinstein, 
Investments Manager. 

Statement of Investment Principles 
1.11 The Fund’s Statement of Investment Principles as required by the Local 

Government Pension Scheme (Management and Investment of Funds) 
Regulations 2009 can be found on the Fund’s website 
www.avonpensionfund.org.uk or supplied on request from Liz Feinstein, 
Investments Manager. 

 
Statement of Accounting Policies  
 
Basis of Preparation 
2.1 Except where otherwise stated, the accounts have been prepared on an accruals 

basis, i.e. income and expenditure is recognised as it is earned or incurred, not as it 
is received or paid. The accounts have been prepared on a going concern basis. 

 
Investments  
2.2 Investments are shown in the accounts at market value, which has been determined 

as follows:  
i. Quoted Securities have been valued at 31 March 2011 by the Fund’s custodian 
using internationally recognized pricing sources (bid-price or ‘last trade’) where a 
quotation was available on a recognised stock exchange or the unlisted securities 
market. Unquoted securities are included at fair value based on the Fund Manager’s 
valuation. 

ii. Fixed interest securities exclude interest earned but not paid over at the year end, 
which is included separately within investment debtors. 

iii. Pooled investments are stated at their bid price or at the Net Asset Value quoted by 
their respective managers at 31 March 2011.  

iv. Foreign currency transactions are recorded at the prevailing rate at the date of 
transaction. Investments held in foreign currencies are shown at market value 
translated into sterling at the exchange rates ruling as at 31 March 2011. 

v. Open futures contracts are included in the net asset statement at their fair market 
value, which is the unrealised profit or loss at the current bid or offer market quoted 
price of the contract. The amounts included in the change in market value are the 

Page 52



Printed on recycled paper 3

realised gains or losses on closed futures contracts and the unrealised gains or 
losses on open futures contracts. 

vi. Forward foreign exchange contracts outstanding at the year end are stated at fair 
value which is determined as the gain or loss that would arise if the outstanding 
contract was matched at the year end with an equal and opposite contract. Foreign 
currency transactions are recorded at the prevailing rate at the date of transaction. 

vii. Acquisition costs of investments (e.g. stamp duty and commissions) are treated as 
part of the investment cost. 

viii. Investment debtors and creditors at the year end are included in investment assets 
in accordance with the CIPFA code of practice on local authority accounting.  

ix. The Fund’s surplus cash is treated as an investment asset. Prior to 1 April 2010 the 
Fund’s surplus cash was managed together with the surplus cash of B&NES 
Council, consequently this balance was shown as a debtor in the Fund’s accounts. 
Since 1 April 2010 the Fund’s surplus cash has been managed separately and 
consequently is now treated as an investment asset.  

 
Contributions  
2.3 Contributions represent those amounts receivable from the employing bodies in 

respect of their own and their pensionable employees’ contributions. Employers’ 
contributions are determined by the Actuary on the basis of triennial valuations of 
the Fund’s assets and liabilities and take into account the Funding Strategy 
Statement set by the administering authority. Employees’ contributions have been 
included at the rates prescribed by the Local Government Pension Scheme 
(Benefits, Membership and Contributions) Regulations 2007.  

 
Benefits, Refunds of Contributions and Cash Transfer Values  
2.4 Benefits payable and refunds of contributions have been brought into the accounts 

as they fall due. 
 
2.5 Cash Transfer Values are those sums paid to or received from other pension 

schemes and relate to previous periods of pensionable employment. Cash Transfer 
Values have been included in the accounts on the basis of the cheque payment 
date or “Bath & North East Somerset Council cash office received” date. Accruals 
are only made when it is certain that a transfer is to take place.  

 
2.6 Charges for splitting pensions on divorce are either invoiced to members or, on 

request, paid out of future benefits. In the case of payment from future benefits the 
charge against benefits and income to the Fund are both made in the current year.   

 
Investment Income  
2.7 Dividends and interest have been accounted for on an accruals basis.  Income on 

pooled investments is accumulated and reflected in the valuation of the units.  
 
Investment Management & Administration  
2.8 The Local Government Pension Scheme (Management and Investment of Funds) 

Regulations 2009 permit Bath & North East Somerset Council to charge 
administration costs to the Fund. A proportion of relevant Council costs has been 
charged to the Fund on the basis of actual time spent on Pension Fund business.  

 
2.9 The fees of the Fund’s external investment managers reflect their differing 

mandates. Fees are linked to the market value of the Fund’s investments and 
therefore may increase or reduce as the value of the investment changes. 

Page 53



Printed on recycled paper 4

Management fees are recognised in the year in which the management services are 
provided. Fees are also payable to the Fund’s global custodian and other advisors.  

 
Taxation  
2.10 The Fund is an exempt approved fund under the Income and Corporation Taxes Act 

1988 and is therefore not liable to UK income tax on investment income or  to 
capital gains tax. As Bath & North East Somerset Council is the administering 
authority for the Fund, VAT input tax is recoverable on all Fund activities including 
expenditure on investment expenses. For taxation of overseas investment income 
please see note 3 iv. in the Notes to the Accounts. 

 
Use of Accounting Estimates 
2.11 Estimates are used in the valuation of unquoted investments (see 2.2i) and in the 

actuarial valuation for the purposes of IAS 26 (note 16) in which the actuarial 
calculation of the liability is subject to the professional judgement of the actuary. 
 

Fund Account  
For the Year Ended 31 March 2011 

Notes 2010/11 2009/10 
Contributions and Benefits  

 
£’000 £’000 

Contributions Receivable  4 139,519 134,681 
Transfers In   9,571 14,934 
Other Income  5 273 361 
  

149,363 149,976 
    
Benefits Payable 6 121,745 115,101 
Payments to and on account of Leavers  7 9,094 14,618 
Administrative Expenses  8 2,379 2,340 
  

133,218 132,059 

Net Additions from dealings with members 
 

16,145 17,917 
Returns on Investments  

   
Investment Income  10 22,663 16,014 
Profits and losses on disposal of investments 
and change in value of investments.  11 177,861 612,435 
Investment Management Expenses  9 (7,194) (6,860) 
    
Net Returns on Investments   193,330 621,589 
    
Net Increase in the net assets available for 
benefits during the year  209,475 639,506 
    
Net Assets of the Fund     
At 1 April  2,458,588 1,819,082 
At 31 March  2,668,063 2,458,588 
 

Page 54



Printed on recycled paper 5

 
Net Assets Statement  at 31 March 2011 

 
                                                                                Note    

31 March 
2011  

31 March 
2010 

  £'000 % £'000 % 
INVESTMENT ASSETS      
Fixed interest securities : Public Sector  154,494 5.8 134,999 5.5 
      
Equities  246,996 9.3 241,265 9.8 
      
Index Linked securities : Public Sector  157,378 5.9 147,483 6.0 
      
Pooled investment vehicles :-                                 
  - Property        : Unit Trusts   69,935 2.6 43,608 1.8 
                          : Unitised Insurance Policies  49,875 1.9 33,034 1.3 
                          : Other Managed Funds  52,242 2.0 26,071 1.1 
             Property Pooled Investment Vehicles  172,052  102,713  
      
  - Non Property : Unitised Insurance Policies  844,190 31.6 873,040 35.5 
                          : Other Managed Funds            1,028,962 38.6 873,533 35.5 
       Non Property Pooled Investment Vehicles 1,873,152  1,746,573  
      
Derivative Contracts: FTSE Futures  542 0.0 152 0.0 
      
Cash deposits  50,515 1.9 63,042 2.5 
      
Other  Investment balances  4,750 0.2 4,150 0.2 
      
INVESTMENT LIABILITIES      
Derivative contracts (Foreign Exchange hedge) (59) 0.0 0 0.0 
      
Other  Investment balances  (1,869) (0.1) (738) 0.0 
      
TOTAL INVESTMENT ASSETS                         12 2,657,951  2,439,639  

Net Current Assets      

Current Assets                                                                     14 11,548 0.4 21,149 0.9 
      
Current Liabilities                                                                14 (1,436) (0.1) (2,200) (0.1) 
      
Net assets of the scheme available to fund 
benefits at the period end  
 2,668,063 100 2,458,588 100 
The Fund’s financial statements do not take account of liabilities to pay pensions and 
other benefits after 31 March 2011.  

Page 55



Printed on recycled paper 6

Notes to the Accounts - Year Ended 31 March 2011 
 

1, GENERAL  
The Fund is administered by Bath & North East Somerset Council under arrangements 
made following the abolition of the former Avon County Council on 31 March 1996.  

 
The Fund is governed by the Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations 2008 (as 
amended). Membership of the Fund is open to pensionable employees of scheduled 
bodies in the former Avon County area, together with employees of eligible designating 
admission bodies. A list of employers with contributing scheme members can be found in 
note 24. 

 
Employers’ contributions are payable at the rate specified for each employing authority by 
the Fund’s actuary. The employees’ contribution rate is payable in accordance with the 
Local Government Pension Scheme (Benefits, Membership and Contributions) 
Regulations 2007.  

 
2, MEMBERSHIP  
Membership of the Fund at the year-end was as follows:-  
 

31 March  31 March 
 2011  2010 
    Employed Members 33,810  34,800 
Pensioners  22,541  21,313 
Members entitled to Deferred Benefits  26,868  24,544 
    
TOTAL  83,219  80,657 
 
 
3, TAXATION 
i. Value Added Tax  
 The Fund's administering authority Bath & North East Somerset Council is 

reimbursed VAT by H. M. Revenue and Customs and the accounts are shown 
exclusive of VAT.  

 
ii. Income Tax  
 The Fund is a wholly exempt fund and some UK income tax is recoverable from HM  

Revenue and Customs.  Where tax can be reclaimed, investment income in the 
accounts is shown gross of UK tax.  

 
iii. Capital Gains Tax 
 No capital gains tax is chargeable. 
 

iv. Taxation of Overseas Investment Income  
 The Fund receives interest on its overseas government bond portfolio gross, but a 

variety of arrangements apply to the taxation of interest on corporate bonds and 
dividends on overseas equities. 

 

Page 56



Printed on recycled paper 7

4, CONTRIBUTIONS RECEIVABLE  
Contributions receivable are analysed below:- 
 2010/11 2009/10 
  £’000  £'000 
Employers’ normal contributions      
      Scheduled Bodies  75,120  

                   
72,746  

      Administering Authority            11,560  11,648  
      Admission Bodies  7,587 94,267 7,564 

      
91,958 

Employers’ contributions- Augmentation     
      Scheduled Bodies 4,226  

                     
3,042  

      Administering Authority            825  506  
      Admission Bodies 552 5,603 

                        
814  

                
4,362 

Employers’ Deficit Funding     
      Administering Authority            35  -  
      Admission Bodies 1963 1,998 241 241 
Members’ normal contributions      
      Scheduled Bodies  29,060  29,306  
      Administering Authority            4,292  4,276  
      Admission Bodies  3,568 36,920 3,595 37,177 
 
Members’ contributions towards 
additional benefits      
      Scheduled Bodies  570  784  
      Administering Authority            126  117  
      Admission Bodies  35 731 42 943 
                                                        Total  139,519  134,681 
 
The Members’ contributions towards additional benefits above represent members’ 
purchase of added years or additional benefits under the Scheme. Augmentation 
contributions are paid by employers to meet the cost of early retirements. Deficit funding 
contributions have been paid by some employers in respect of the recovery of their deficit 
relating to past service.  
 
A further facility is provided whereby members can make Additional Voluntary 
Contributions, on a money purchase basis, which are invested in insurance policies with 
The Equitable Life Assurance Society or Friends Life on behalf of the individual members 
concerned. These contributions are not part of the Pension Fund and are not therefore 

Page 57



Printed on recycled paper 8

reflected in the Fund's accounts.  A statement of the value of these investments is given in 
Note 19.  
 
5, OTHER INCOME  
 2010/11  2009/10 
 £'000  £'000 
Recoveries for services provided  262  356 
Cost recoveries  11  5 
 273  361 

‘Recoveries for services provided refers to administrative and accounting services 
provided to employing bodies. Cost recoveries are the recovery of the cost of calculating 
Pension Sharing on divorce 
 
6, BENEFITS PAYABLE  
Analysis of Benefits Payable by Type:-  
 2010/11 2009/10 
  £'000  £'000 
Retirement Pensions   90,317  86,016 

     
Commutation of pensions and      
    Lump Sum Retirement Benefits   28,734  26,536 
     
Lump Sum Death Benefits  2,694  2,549 
  121,745  115,101 
 
Analysis of Benefits Payable by Employing Body:- 
   
  2010/11  2009/10 
  £'000  £'000 
Scheduled & Designating Bodies  102,705                97,682 
Administering Authority             11,412  9,418 
Admission Bodies  7,628                  8,001 
 

 121,745             115,101 
 

7, PAYMENTS TO AND ON ACCOUNT OF LEAVERS  
              2010/11  2009/10 
Leavers £'000  £'000 
Refunds to members leaving service  22                       77  
Individual Cash Transfer Values to other schemes  9,072  14,541 
Bulk Cash Transfers -                         -   
 9,094  14,618 
There have been no bulk transfers during the year. 
 
 

Page 58



Printed on recycled paper 9

 
8, ADMINISTRATION EXPENSES  
Costs incurred in the management and administration of the Fund are set out below. 
 2010/11  2009/10 
 

£'000  £'000 
Administration and processing  1,638  1,680 
Actuarial fees  271  178 
Audit fees  47  71 
Legal and professional fees  -  1 
Central recharges from Administering Authority 423  410 
 2,379           2,340 

 
9, INVESTMENT EXPENSES  
Expenses incurred in the management of the Fund are set out below. 
  2010/11  2009/10 
  £'000  £'000 
Portfolio management  

 
6,840  6,469 

Global custody  
 

78  74 
Investment advisors  

 
174  171 

Performance measurement  
 

32  33 
Investment accounting 

 
15  22 

Investment Administration  
 

55  91 
  7,194                  6,860 
 
10, INVESTMENT INCOME  
 2010/11   2009/10  
  £'000    £'000  
Interest from fixed interest securities 6,350  4,135 
Dividends from equities 7,051  6,275 
Income from Index Linked securities 6,187  3,840 
Income from pooled investment vehicles 2,917  1,574 
Interest on cash deposits 146  172 
Other - Stock lending 12  18 
 22,663  16,014 

Page 59



Printed on recycled paper 10

Dividends from equities in the year to 31 march 2011 includes tax reclaims from former 
managers of £275,598 received in the year ending 31 March 2009 but not previously 
recognised as income in the accounts.  
 
The Fund has an arrangement with its custodian (BNY Mellon) to lend eligible securities 
from its portfolio to third parties in return for which the third parties pay fees to the fund. 
The third parties provide collateral to the Fund which is held during the period of the loan.  
This stock lending programme was introduced with effect from July 2004. The Fund may 
terminate any loan of securities by giving notice of not less than the standard settlement 
time for those securities.  
 
The value of the stock on loan as at 31 March 2011 was £43.67 million (31 March 2010 
£9.42m), comprising of £5.56m equities and £38.11m sovereign debt.  This was secured 
by collateral worth £45.21 million comprising OECD sovereign and supra national debt and 
equity index baskets from the FTSE 350 index. The Fund does not sell collateral unless 
there is a default by the owner of the collateral. 
 
11, CHANGE IN TOTAL NET ASSETS  
       

 
 

Change in Market Value of Investments  Change  
 Value at Purchases Sales In Market Value at 
 31/03/10 at Cost Proceeds Value 31/03/11 
 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 
Fixed Interest Securities 134,999 36,541 (20,446) 3,400 154,494 
Equities  241,265 117,633 (128,049) 16,147 246,996 
Index linked Securities  147,483 30,450 (24,322) 3,767 157,378 
Pooled Investments -      
- Property  102,713 85,169 (27,383) 11,553 172,052 
- Non Property  1,746,573 97,871 (108,188) 136,896 1,873,152 
Derivatives 152 1,922 (3,415) 1,824 483 
 2,373,185 369,586 (311,803) 173,587 2,604,555 
Cash Deposits 63,042 232,606 (244,154) (979) 50,515 
Net Purchases & Sales  602,192 (555,957) 46,235  
      
Change in Creditors, Debtors and Revenue. 

    
Investment Debtors and  
Creditors 3,412   (531) 2,881 
Total Investment Assets         2,439,639    2,657,951 
Adjustment for Revenue, 
Debtors & Creditors 18,949   (8,837) 10,112 
Less Net Revenue of Fund   (31,614)  
Total Net Assets 

2,458,588  177,861 2,668,063 
 
The Change in Market Value of investments comprises all gains and losses on Fund 
investments during the year, whether realised or unrealised. 
The Change in Market Value for cash deposits represents net losses on foreign 
currency deposits and foreign exchange transactions during the year. 

Page 60



Printed on recycled paper 11

Derivatives.  The purchases and sales of derivatives are shown at the values of the 
realised profits and losses of the net derivatives transactions. 
Investment Transaction Costs. The following transactions costs are included in the 
above: 
 Purchases Sales Other Total 

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 
Fees and Taxes 606 1 - 607 

Commission 159 152 3 314 
TOTAL 765 153 3 921 

 
12, INVESTMENT ASSETS  
Further analysis of the market value of investments as set out in the Net Assets Statement 
is given below:- 
 31 March 2011 31 March 2010 
UK Equities  £'000  £'000 
      Quoted 209,686  191,718  
      Pooled Investments 415,651  456,708  
      FTSE Futures 543 625,880 152 648,578 
Overseas Equities     
      Quoted 37,310  49,546  
      Pooled Investments 987,796 1,025,106 830,704 880,250 
UK Fixed Interest Gilts      
      Quoted 154,494  134,999  
      Pooled Investments 35,247 189,741 49,413 184,412 
UK Index Linked Gilts      
      Quoted  157,378 157,378 147,483 147,483 
Sterling Bonds (excluding Gilts)     
      Pooled Investments 138,079 138,079 124,427 124,427 
Non-Sterling Bonds     
      Pooled Investments 74,000 74,000 72,348 72,348 
Hedge Funds     
      Pooled Investments 222,379 222,379 212,973 212,973 

Property     

     Pooled Investments 172,052 172,052 102,713 102,713 

Cash Deposits      
      Sterling 49,672  52,627  
      Foreign Currencies 843 50,515 10,415 63,042 
 
     

Page 61



Printed on recycled paper 12

Investment Debtors/Creditors 
      Investment Income 3,264  3,231  
      Sales of Investments 1,485  919  
      Foreign Exchange Hedge (59)  -  
      Purchases of Investments (1,869) 2,821 (737) 3,413 
TOTAL INVESTMENT ASSETS   2,657,951  2,439,639 
 
 
DERIVATIVES ANALYSIS  31 March 2011  
“Over The Counter” £'000 
Forward Foreign Exchange Hedge :  Receivable in Sterling    3,774 
Forward Foreign Exchange Hedge :  Payable in Euros   (3,786) 
Forward Foreign Exchange Hedge :  Payable in Sterling       (132) 
Forward Foreign Exchange Hedge :  Receivable in Euros        133 
          (11) 
  
Forward Foreign Exchange Hedge :  Receivable in Sterling      9,523 
Forward Foreign Exchange Hedge :  Payable in U.S. Dollars     (9,571) 
           (48) 
           (59) 
  
There were no “Over The Counter” derivatives held as at 31 March 2010 
  
Exchange Traded Derivatives held at 31 March 2011:- 
Contract Type              Expiration                 Book Cost            Unrealised Gain 
                                                                           £’000                           £’000 
FTSE equity futures     June 2011                   15,228                              543 
 
Exchange Traded Derivatives held at 31 March 2010:- 
FTSE equity futures    June 2010                    20,887                              152 
 
A derivative is a financial contract between two parties, the value of which is determined 
by the underlying asset. Investment in derivatives may only be made if they contribute to a 
reduction of risks and facilitate efficient portfolio management. 
The UK Equity futures contracts are held to facilitate efficient portfolio management for a 
short term passively managed investment where the costs of investing directly in UK 
equities would be significant. 
Forward “over the counter” foreign exchange contracts are held by one of the investment 
managers to reduce the impact of fluctuations in the exchange rate between sterling and 

Page 62



Printed on recycled paper 13

the other currency. Other foreign exchange contracts are held by the fund to hedge the 
U.S dollar denominated share class of the Lyster Watson fund.  
 
The proportion of the market value of investment assets managed by each external 
manager and in house Treasury Management at the end of the financial year was:- 
 31 March 

2011  
31 March 

2010  
 £'000 %  £'000 %  
Blackrock 1,469,327 55.3 1,402,836 57.5 
Residual values held by former managers 24 0 

       
79  

            
0  

Jupiter Asset Management 109,295 4.1 
              

94,451 
            

3.9 
Genesis Investment Management 147,200 5.5 

              
130,211 

            
5.3 

Invesco Perpetual 169,742 6.4 
           

158,223 
            

6.5 
State Street Global Advisors 91,176 3.4 

              
85,675 3.5 

 
Partners Group 53,129 2.0 26,100 1.1 
Royal London Asset Management 131,992 5.0 122,185 

            
5.0 

TT International 132,073 5.0 
           

124,756 
            

5.1 
Man Investments 100,418 3.8 95,047 

            
3.9 

Gottex Asset Management 53,490 2.0 
              

51,280 
            

2.1 
Stenham Asset Management 11,665 0.4 

              
11,544 

            
0.5 

Signet Capital Management 47,225 1.8 
              

45,279 
            

1.9  
Lyster Watson Management 10,228 0.4 

              
9,823 

            
0.4  

Schroder Investment Management 120,511 4.5 76,798 3.1 
Bank of New York Mellon 1,882 0.1 5,352 0.2 
Treasury Management  8,574 0.3 - - 
TOTAL INVESTMENT ASSETS  2,657,951 100.0 

     
2,439,639 100.0 

 
Residual values held by former Managers Capital International, Threadneedle Pensions 
and Wellington Management International relate to reclaimable tax.  
 
 
 

Page 63



Printed on recycled paper 14

13, SINGLE INVESTMENTS OVER 5% OF ASSET CLASS 
The following investment holdings amounted to 5% or more of their asset class excluding 
pooled funds. If pooled funds were included the only holding to exceed 5% of its asset 
class would be the Index linked 2.5% July 2016 which would be 5.01% of its class. 
Therefore the percentage of asset class only relates to the assets held on a segregated 
basis. 
 
Fixed Interest Securities Value % of Asset Class 
UK Government 4.250% 07-JUN-2032 13,819,909 8.9% 
UK Government 4.750% 07-DEC-2038 13,801,303 8.9% 
UK Government 4.250% 07-DEC-2027 13,788,096 8.9% 
UK Government 4.750% 07-DEC-2030 13,288,963 8.6% 
UK Government 4.250% 07-DEC-2055 12,279,623 7.9% 
UK Government 4.250% 07-MAR-2036 12,048,891 7.8% 
UK Government 6.000% 07-DEC-2028 11,851,040 7.7% 
UK Government 4.250% 07-DEC-2046  10,883,067 7.0% 
UK Government 4.500% 07-DEC-2042  10,637,834 6.9% 
UK Government 4.250% 07-DEC-2049  9,992,587 6.5% 
UK Government 4.500% 09/07/2034  9,434,179 6.1% 
UK Government 4.250% 09/09/2039 8,736,240 5.7% 
UK Government 4.250% 12/07/2040 8,048,473 5.2% 
 
Index Linked Securities Value % of Asset Class 
UK Government 2.500% 26-JUL-2016 17,391,647 11.1% 
UK Government 2.500% 16-APR-2020  14,602,053 9.3% 
UK Government VAR RT 17-JUL-2024 13,276,979 8.4% 
UK Government 1.250% 22-NOV-2027 12,612,039 8.0% 
UK Government 1.875% 22-NOV-2022  11,698,426 7.4% 
UK Government 2.000% 26-JAN-2035 11,103,557 7.1% 
UK Government 1.250% 22-NOV-2055 10,751,199 6.8% 
UK Government 1.250% 22-NOV-2017  10,534,918 6.7% 
UK Government 1.250% 22-NOV-2032  10,288,052 6.5% 
UK Government 4.125% 22-JUL-2030 9,633,243 6.1% 
UK Government 1.125% 22-NOV-2037 9,242,996 5.9% 
 
UK Equities Value % of Asset Class 
VODAFONE GROUP 13,799,031 6.6% 
HSBC HLDGS ORD USD0.50 (UK) 10,854,552 5.2% 
   
Overseas Equities   
ROYAL DUTCH SHELL 'A' 5,734,441 15.4% 
XSTRATA COM STK  5,532,311 14.8% 
BAYER AG ORD NPV 3,071,731 8.2% 
WPP PLC ORD  2,082,094 5.6% 
 

Page 64



Printed on recycled paper 15

14, CURRENT ASSETS AND CURRENT LIABILITIES  
Provision has been made in the accounts for debtors and creditors known to be outstanding 
at 31 March 2011. Debtors and creditors included in the accounts are analysed below:- 
 31 March 2011 31 March 2010 
CURRENT ASSETS  £'000  £'000 
 Bath & North East Somerset Council -  10,027  
 Contributions Receivable :-      
 - Employers   7,466  7,267  
 - Members   2,963  2,985  
 Discretionary Early Retirement Costs  409  498  
 Other Debtors   710 11,548 372        21,149 
      CURRENT LIABILITIES     
 Management Fees   (728)  (393)  
 Lump Sum Retirement Benefits   (380)  (1,712)  
 Other Creditors   (328) (1,436) (95) (2,200) 
NET CURRENT ASSETS    10,112  18,949 
 
The 31 March 2010 debtor with Bath & North East Somerset Council represents monies 
held by the Administering Authority on which a commercial rate of interest was paid. 
From 1 April 2010 the Fund has managed its surplus cash separately from the Council, 
consequently this debtor no longer occurs. Surplus cash is now included within the Total 
Investment Assets.  
The Lump Sum Retirement Benefits creditor was lower at 31 March 2011 because longer 
notice was given to the Fund of the number of members taking early retirement following 
redundancy, than was given at 31 March 2010.  
 
Analysis of Debtors and Creditors by public sector bodies:-  
 31 March 2011 31 March 2010 
CURRENT ASSETS  £'000  £'000 
 Local Authorities 9,068  18,961  
 NHS Bodies 11  10  
 Other Public Bodies 1,580  1,674  
 Non Public Sector  889 11,548 504        21,149 
     
 CURRENT LIABILITIES     
Non Public Sector (1,436) (1,436) (2,200) (2,200) 
 NET CURRENT ASSETS    10,112  18,949 
There were no debtors or creditors of Central Government or public corporations and 
traded funds. 
 
15, CONTINGENT LIABILITIES  
There were no contingent liabilities as at 31 March 2011. (March 2010 = NIL). 
 

Page 65



Printed on recycled paper 16

16, ACTUARIAL PRESENT VALUE OF PROMISED RETIREMENT BENEFITS FOR THE 
PURPOSES OF IAS 26 
In compliance with IAS 26 the following statement has been prepared by the Fund’s 
actuary. 
IAS 26 requires the present value of the Fund’s promised retirement benefits to be 
disclosed, and for this purpose the actuarial assumptions and methodology used should 
be based on IAS 19 rather than the assumptions and methodology used for funding 
purposes. 
In order to assess the value of the benefits on this basis, we have used the same 
actuarial assumptions as those used for funding purposes, other than the discount rate 
where we have used a rate of 5.6% p.a. both before and after retirement rather than the 
rates as outlined in section 1.7.  We have also used valuation methodology in connection 
with ill-health and death benefits which is consistent with IAS 19.  On this basis, the 
value of the promised retirement benefits as at 31 March 2010 is £3,318 million. 
We have also carried out similar calculations as at the previous actuarial valuation date 
of 31 March 2007, using the same actuarial assumptions as those used for funding 
purposes at that date, other than the discount rate where we have used a rate of 5.4% 
p.a. both before and after retirement.  On this basis, the value for IAS 26 purposes of the 
Fund’s promised retirement benefits at that date was £2,962 million.  
The Net Assets available to meet this liability are currently £2,668 million. The triennial 
valuation of the Fund by the actuary sets contribution rates at the level required to 
recover the deficit. The assumptions required for the purposes of IAS 26 and those 
required for the triennial valuation are different, consequently the value of the liability in 
each case is not the same. 
17, TRANSFERS IN  
Transfers In during the year were all in relation to individuals. There were no group 
transfers in to the Fund during the year ending 31 March 2011. 
18, BENEFITS RECHARGED TO EMPLOYERS  
The Fund makes payments with regard to added year benefits awarded by the Employer 
to LGPS members, including related pension increases, and pension increases in respect 
of certain bodies with no pensionable employees in the Fund.  The Fund also pays a small 
number of other pension supplements. These are not funded by the Fund and are 
recharged in full. They are not included in the Fund Account or related notes. 
 
 2010/11  2009/10 
 £'000  £'000 
Benefits Paid and Recharged  6,025             6,131 
 
19, ADDITIONAL VOLUNTARY CONTRIBUTIONS (AVCs)                                  
Scheme members may make Additional Voluntary Contributions that are invested in 
insurance policies with The Equitable Life Assurance Society or Friends Life, the Fund's 
nominated AVC providers.  Additional Voluntary Contributions received from employees 
and paid to The Equitable Life Assurance Society during 2010/11 were £4,128 (2009/10 - 
£7,319).  Additional Voluntary Contributions received from employees and paid to 
Friends Life during 2010/11 were £516,160 (2009/10 - £527,655). 

Page 66



Printed on recycled paper 17

The total value of the assets invested, on a money purchase basis, with these AVC 
providers was:- 
 31 March 2011  31 March 2010 
 £'000  £'000 
Equitable Life    
With Profits Retirement Benefits  784  917 
Unit Linked Retirement Benefits  443               449  
Building Society Benefits  319               327  
 1,546                    1,693 
    
Death in Service Benefit 199  296 
    
Friends Life    
With Profits Retirement Benefits 173  263 
Unit Linked Retirement Benefits 2,307  3,227 
Cash Fund 277  482 
 2,757  3,972 
AVC investments are not included in the Fund’s financial statements. 
20, RELATED PARTIES 
Committee Member Related:- 
In 2010/11 £39,245 was charged to the Fund in respect of Allowances paid to the voting 
Members of the Avon Pension Fund Committee (£36,893 in 2009/10). Four voting 
members and three non voting members of the Avon Pension Fund Committee (including 
three B&NES Councillor Members) were members of the Local Government Pension 
Scheme during the financial year 2010/2011. (Five voting members and three non voting 
members in 2009/2010, including three B&NES Councillor Members) 
Independent Member Related:- 
Two Independent Members were paid allowances of £6,380 and £12,379 respectively 
during the year for their work in relation to the Pension Fund Committee and the 
Investment Panel.  They are also entitled to claim reasonable expenses. The Independent 
Members are not eligible to join the Local Government Pension Scheme. 
Employer Related:- 
During the year 2010/11 the Fund paid B&NES Council £246,209 for administrative 
services (£239,878 in 2009/10) and B&NES Council paid the Fund £6,091 for 
administrative services (£1,528 in 2009/10). Various Employers requiring IAS 19 
disclosures and other actuarial work paid the fund a total of £3,266 (£1,665 in 2009/10) for 
their services in compiling data for submission to the actuary.  
Officer and Manager Related:- 
The officers administering the Avon Pension Fund are all eligible to be members of the 
Avon Pension Fund. 
 
There are no other related party transactions except as already disclosed elsewhere. 
 
 
 
 

Page 67



Printed on recycled paper 18

 
 
 
21, OUTSTANDING COMMITMENTS 
As at the 31 March 2011 the Fund had outstanding commitments relating to investments 
in property that will be drawn down in tranches by the Investment Managers totalling 
£86,867,061. 
 
22, FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 
The net assets of the Fund are made up of the following categories of Financial Instruments: 
 31/03/2011 31/03/2010 
Financial Assets £’000 £’000 
Loans & Receivables          62,063              84,191  
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss      2,609,364         2,377,335  
Total Financial Assets      2,671,427         2,461,526  
   
Financial Liabilities   
Payables -          3,305  -            2,938  
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss -               59                    -   
Total Financial Liabilities -          3,364  -            2,938  
All investments are disclosed at fair value. Carrying value and fair value are therefore the 
same. The gains and losses recognised in the Fund Account in relation to financial 
instruments are made up as follows. 
 
Income , Expense, gains and Losses 
 

Loans & 
Receivables 

Financial 
assets at 
fair value 
through 
profit or 
loss 

Loans & 
Receivables 

Financial 
assets at 
fair value 
through 
profit or 
loss 

 2010/11 2009/10 
 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 
interest expense - - - - 
Losses on derecognition - -      2,321  - -      1,463  
reductions in fair value - -      4,788  - -    11,549  
fee expense - -         921 - -         831  
total expense in Fund Account - -      8,030  - -    13,843  
     
interest and dividend income         146       22,517        172       15,842  
gains on derecognition -      31,730  -      33,951  
increases in fair value -     148,966  - 

    
585,624  

total income in Fund Account         146      203,213        172  
    

635,417  
net gain/(loss) for the year         146      195,183        172  

    
621,574  

 
 
 

Page 68



Printed on recycled paper 19

 
 
23, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT DISCLOSURE 
As an investment fund, the Avon Pension Fund's objective is to generate positive 
investment returns for a given level of risk.  Therefore the Fund holds financial 
instruments such as securities (equities, bonds), collective investment schemes (pooled 
funds) and cash and cash equivalents. In addition debtors and creditors arise as a result 
of its operations.  The value of these financial instruments is reflected in the financial 
statements at their fair value. 
The main risks from the Fund's holding of financial instruments are market risk, credit 
risk and liquidity risk.  Market risk includes price risk, interest rate risk and currency risk. 
The Fund's investments are managed on behalf of the Fund by the appointed Investment 
Managers.  Each investment manager is required to invest the assets managed by them 
in accordance with the terms of their investment guidelines or pooled fund prospectus.  
The Avon Pension Fund Committee ("Committee") has determined that the investment 
management structure is appropriate and is in accordance with its investment strategy.  
The Committee regularly monitors each investment manager and its Investment 
Consultant advises on the nature of the investments made and associated risks. 
The Fund's investments are held by BNY Mellon Asset Servicing, who act as custodian 
on behalf of the Fund. 
Because the Fund adopts a long term investment strategy, the high level risks described 
below will not alter significantly during any one year unless there are significant strategic 
or tactical changes to the portfolio. 
(a) Market Risk 
Market risk represents the risk that the fair value of a financial instrument will fluctuate 
because of changes in market prices, interest rates or currencies. The Fund is exposed 
through its investments in equities, bonds and investment funds, to all these market 
risks.  The aim of the investment strategy is to manage and control market risk within 
acceptable parameters, while optimising the return from the investment portfolio. 
In general, market risk is managed through the diversification of the investments held by 
asset class, investment mandate guidelines and Investment Managers.  The risk arising 
from exposure to specific markets is limited by the strategic asset allocation, which is 
regularly monitored by the Committee. 
(a) (i) Market Price Risk 
Market price risk represents the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate 
caused by factors other than interest rate or foreign currency movements, whether those 
changes are caused by factors specific to the individual instrument, its issuer or factors 
affecting the market in general. 
Market price risk arises from uncertainty about the future value of the financial 
instruments that the Fund holds.  All investments present a risk of loss of capital, the 
maximum risk being determined by the fair value of the financial instruments. The 

Page 69



Printed on recycled paper 20

Investment Managers mitigate this risk through diversification in line with their own 
investment strategies and mandate guidelines. 
 
 
(a) (ii) Market Price Risk - Sensitivity Analysis 
 
The sensitivity of the Fund's investments to changes in market prices has been analysed 
using the volatility of return experienced by each investment portfolio during the year to 
31 March 2011. The volatility data has been provided by JLT Benefit Solutions and is 
broadly consistent with a one -standard deviation movement in the value of the assets.  
The analysis assumes that all other variables including interest rates and foreign 
currency exchange rates have a similar experience to that experienced for the year to 31 
March 2011. 
Movements in market prices could have increased or decreased the net assets valued at 
31 March 2011 by the amounts shown below. It should be noted that the likelihood of this 
risk materialising in normal circumstances is low by virtue of the diversification within the 
fund. 
                                                                                              
As at 31 March 2011 Value            

£'000 Volatility of 
return Increase 

£'000 Decrease 
£'000 

Blackrock 1,389,499   14% 195,919   (195,919)  
Blackrock No 2 Fund 79,828   7% 5,827   (5,827)  

Jupiter UK Equities 109,295   12% 13,225   (13,225)  
TT UK Equities 132,073   17% 22,452   (22,452)  

Invesco Global ex-UK Equities 169,742   15% 24,782   (24,782)  
State Street Europe Equities 32,846   20% 6,504   (6,504)  

State Street Pacific Rim Equities 58,330   13% 7,583   (7,583)  
Genesis Emerging Market Equities 147,200   15% 21,344   (21,344)  

RLAM Corporate Bonds 131,992   5% 7,128   (7,128)  
MAN Fund of Hedge Funds 100,418   6% 5,925   (5,925)  

Gottex Fund of Hedge Funds 53,490   2% 1,337   (1,337)  
Signet Fund of Hedge Funds 47,225   3% 1,417   (1,417)  

Stenham Fund of Hedge Funds 11,665   4% 443   (443)  
Lyster Watson Fund of Hedge Funds 10,228   9% 941   (941)  

Schroder Uk Property 120,511   2% 2,049   (2,049)  
Partners Overseas Property 53,129   4% 2,125   (2,125)  

Internal Cash 10,456   0% 21   (21)  
Deferred Assets (previous managers) 24    - - - 

Total 2,657,951   12% 319,002   (319,002)  
 
 
(a) (iii) Interest Rate Risk 
 
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value of a financial instrument will fluctuate 
because of changes in market interest rates which will affect the value of fixed interest and 

Page 70



Printed on recycled paper 21

index linked securities.   The amount of income receivable from cash balances or interest 
payable on overdrafts will be affected by fluctuations in interest rates. 
 
The Fund's exposure to interest rate movements on these investments at 31 March 2011 
are provided below.  Cash includes the cash deposits held against futures contracts. 
 

 31 March 2011 
 £'000 
Cash and Cash Equivalents 50,515 
Fixed Interest Assets 559,197 
Loans - 
Total 609,712 

 
(a) (iv) Interest Rate Risk - Sensitivity Analysis 
 
The sensitivity of the Fund's investments to changes in interest rates has been analysed 
by showing the affect on the fair value of the fixed income securities as at 31 March 2011 
of a 1% change in interest rates (or 100 basis points (bps)).  The analysis assumes that all 
other variables including foreign currency exchange rates have a similar experience to that 
experienced for the year to 31 March 2011. 
 
An increase or decrease of 1% in interest rates at the reporting date would have increased 
or decreased the net assets by the amount shown below. 
 

 Value            Change in net assets 
As at 31 March 2011 £'000 +100 bps -100 bps 
Cash and Cash Equivalents 50,515    -  - 
Fixed Interest 559,197   (69,620)  69,620   
Loans   -  -  - 
Total 609,712   (69,620)  69,620   

 
A 1% rise in interest rates will reduce the fair value of the relevant net assets and vice 
versa.  Changes in interest rates do not impact the fair value of cash balances but they 
will affect the interest income received. 
(a) (v) Foreign Currency Risk 
 
Foreign currency risk represents the risk that the fair value of financial instruments when 
expressed in Sterling, the Fund's base currency, will fluctuate because of changes in 
foreign exchange rates. The Fund is exposed to currency risk on investments 
denominated in a currency other than Sterling.  For a Sterling based investor, when 
Sterling weakens, the Sterling value of foreign currency denominated investments rises.  
As Sterling strengthens, the Sterling value of foreign currency denominated investments 
falls. 
The Fund's current policy is not to hedge its foreign currency exposure to mitigate the 
impact of movements in foreign exchange rates, except for the Fund of Hedge Funds.   
The Fund invests in the Fund of Hedge Funds' Sterling share classes.  This effectively 
eliminates currency gains and losses from the investment gains and losses.  The Fund 
implements the US Dollar Sterling hedge for the Lyster Watson Fund of Hedge Funds.  It 
should be noted that the Fund will implement active currency hedging over the currency 
exposure arising from its overseas equity portfolios from 2011/12. 

Page 71



Printed on recycled paper 22

Where an investment manager chooses to hedge against foreign currency movements 
forward foreign exchange contracts are used. 
The following tables summarise the Fund's exposure at 31 March 2011 to the US Dollar, 
Japanese Yen and Euro (expressed in sterling values) which are the main currency 
exposures within the portfolio.  The fair value of each exposure is based on the "look 
through" exposure of the pooled funds and is based on information provided by the 
investment managers, except for the global property funds where the share class of the 
funds held has been used.  The fund of hedge funds are not included in this analysis 
given the share classes held are hedged back to Sterling. 

As at 31 March 2011 US Dollar Euro Yen 
Assets held at Fair Value (£000s) 371,103 220,131 126,700 
FX Contracts (£’000s) -9,571 -3,653 0 
Net Currency Exposure 361,532 216,478 126,700 

 
(a) (vi) Currency Risk - Sensitivity Analysis 
 
The sensitivity of the Fund's investments to changes in foreign currency exchange rates 
has been analysed using the volatility experienced by each currency against Sterling 
during the year to 31 March 2011. The volatility data has been provided by JLT Benefit 
Solutions and is broadly consistent with a one -standard deviation movement in the 
currency.  The analysis assumes that all other variables including interest rates have a 
similar experience to that experienced for the year to 31 March 2011. 
 
A strengthening of Sterling against the various currencies by one standard deviation 
(expressed as a percentage) at 31 March 2011 would have decreased the net assets by 
the amount shown below and vice versa: 
 
    Change in net assets 

As at 31 March 2011 
Percentage 
Change 

Assets held at 
Fair Value                     
£'000 

+ 1 Standard 
Deviation 
£’000       

- 1 Standard 
Deviation 
£’000 

US Dollar 12% 361,532 (43,745)  43,745  
Euro 9% 216,478 (20,349)  20,349  
Yen 17% 126,700 (21,412)  21,412  
Total   (85,506)  85,506  
 
 
(b) Credit Risk 
 
Credit risk represents the risk that the counterparty to a financial instrument will fail to 
meet an obligation and cause the Fund to incur a financial loss.  This is often referred to 
as counterparty risk. 
The Fund is exposed to credit risk through its underlying investments (including cash 
balances) and the transactions it undertakes to manage its investments.  The careful 
selection and monitoring of counterparties including brokers, custodian and investment 
managers minimises credit risk that may occur though the failure to settle transactions in 
a timely manner. The Fund’s contractual exposure to credit risk is represented by the net 
payment or receipt that remains outstanding, and the cost of replacing the position in the 
event of a counterparty default. Bankruptcy or insolvency of the custodian may affect the 

Page 72



Printed on recycled paper 23

Fund’s access to its assets.  However, all assets held by the custodian are ring-fenced 
as “client assets” and therefore can not be claimed by creditors of the custodian.  The 
Fund manages its risk by monitoring the credit quality and financial position of the 
custodian. The investment managers' research process for selecting and monitoring 
securities or funds for investment mitigates the risk of fraud. 
The Fund’s bond portfolios have significant credit risk through their underlying 
investments.  This risk is managed through diversification across sovereign and 
corporate entities, credit quality and maturity of bonds. The market prices of bonds 
incorporate an assessment of credit quality in their valuation which reflects the probability 
of default (the yield of a bond will include a premium that will compensate for the risk of 
default).  However, it should be noted from historical data that the probability of default of 
investment grade bonds is 6.7% over a twenty year period (Source: Moody’s 1920-
2010).  This means that in a portfolio of a hundred investment grade bonds held for 
twenty years, seven would have defaulted by the end of the period. 
Another source of credit risk is the cash balances held to meet operational requirements 
or by the managers at their discretion.  Internally held cash is managed on the Fund’s 
behalf by the Council’s Treasury Management Team in line with the Fund’s Treasury 
Management Policy which sets out the permitted counterparties and limits.  The Fund 
and managers invest surplus cash held with the custodian in diversified money market 
funds. 
Through its securities lending activities, the Fund is exposed to the counterparty risk of 
the collateral provided by borrowers against the securities lent.  This risk is managed by 
restricting the collateral permitted to high grade sovereign debt and baskets of liquid 
equities. Cash collateral is not permitted. 
Foreign exchange contracts are subject to credit risk in relation to the counterparties of 
the contracts which are primarily banks.  The maximum credit exposure on foreign 
currency contracts is the full amount of the contractual settlement should the 
counterparty fail to meet it obligations to the Fund when it falls due. 
The fair market value of the financial assets represents the Fund’s exposure to credit risk 
in relation to those assets and is set out below.  For derivative positions the credit risk is 
equal to the net market value of positive (asset) derivative positions. 

 31 March 2011 
 £’000 
Equities 1,650,443 
Fixed Interest – Quoted 154,494 
Fixed Interest – Pooled 247,326 
Index Linked  - Quoted 157,378 
Fund of Hedge Funds 222,379 
Property 172,052 
Cash assets 50,515 
Derivatives FTSE Futures 543 
Forward Foreign Exchange hedge -59 
Investment Debtors/Creditors 2,880 
 2,657,951 

 
 

Page 73



Printed on recycled paper 24

The credit risk within the bond portfolios can be analysed using standard industry credit 
ratings and the analysis as at 31 March 2011 is set out below. 

 AAA AA A BBB BB Unrated 
Credit Analysis 31/03/2011 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 
UK Gilts 189,741  -  -  -  -  - 
UK Index Linked 157,378  -  -  -   -  -  
Overseas Government Bonds 39,886 33,966  -  -  -  - 
Corporate Bonds 16,228 13,511 49,556 36,724 5,436 16,895 
 403,233 47,477 49,556 36,724 5,436 16,895 
% of Fixed Interest Portfolios 72% 8% 9% 7% 1% 3% 

 
Through the UK Gilt and Index Linked portfolios the Fund has significant credit exposure 
to the UK Government. Unrated bonds are bonds that are not rated by any of the rating 
agencies; traditionally, unrated bonds benefit from security over the assets of the issuer. 
 
(c) Liquidity Risk 
 
Liquidity risk represents the risk that the Fund will not be able to meet its financial 
obligations as they fall due.   A substantial portion of the Fund's investments consist of 
readily realisable securities, in particular equities and fixed income investments, even 
though a significant proportion is held in pooled funds.  However, the main liability of the 
Fund is the benefits payable which fall due over a long period and the investment 
strategy reflects the long term nature of these liabilities.  Therefore the Fund is able to 
manage the liquidity risk that arises from its investments in less liquid asset classes such 
as property and fund of hedge funds which are subject to longer redemption periods and 
can not be considered as liquid as the other investments. The Fund maintains a cash 
balance to meet working requirements. 
The following table analyses the Fund's financial liabilities, grouped into relevant maturity 
dates. 

31/03/2011 
Carrying 
Amount 
£'000 

Less than 
12 Months 

£'000 
Greater than 
12 Months 

£'000 
Accounts Payable 3,305   3,305   -         
Benefits Payable 380   380   - 
Vested Benefits 3,318,000   3,318,000   - 
    
Derivative financial liabilities settled gross    
Inflows 29,200 29,200 - 
Outflows (28,717) (28,717) - 
 483 483 - 

 
Vested benefits are categorised as due within 12 months because any individual benefit 
could become due in that time. In reality these benefits will become due over the life 
times of the members. 
 

Page 74



Printed on recycled paper 25

(d) Fair Value Hierarchy 
The Fund is required to classify its investments using a fair value hierarchy that reflects 
the subjectivity of the inputs used in making an assessment of fair value. Fair value is the 
value at which the investments could be realised within a reasonable timeframe.  This 
hierarchy is not a measure of investment risk but a reflection of the ability to value the 
investments at fair value. The fair value hierarchy has the following levels: 
• Level 1 - easy to price securities; there is a liquid market for these securities. 
• Level 2 - moderately difficult to price; limited visible market parameters to use in the 
valuation e.g. use inputs derived from observable market data. 
• Level 3 - difficult to price; difficult to verify the parameters used in valuation e.g. use 
information not available in the market. 
The level in the fair value hierarchy will be determined by the lowest level of input that is 
appropriate for the investment.  This is particularly relevant for pooled funds where, for 
this exercise, the fund is classified as a single investment. 
The classification of financial instruments in the fair value hierarchy is subjective but the 
Fund has applied the same criteria consistently across its investments.  The financial 
instruments reported at fair value are classified in accordance with the following levels: 
Level 1 inputs - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active, liquid markets for an identical 
instrument.  These include active listed equities, exchange traded derivatives, 
government bonds.  A financial instrument is regarded as quoted in an active market if 
quoted prices are readily and regularly available from an exchange, dealer, broker, 
pricing service or regulatory agency and those prices represent regularly occurring 
market transactions. 
Therefore in the analysis below, Level 1 includes quoted equities and government bonds, 
which are liquid and readily realisable investments but excludes pooled funds that invest 
in these securities. 
Level 2 inputs - Valuation techniques used to price securities are based on observable 
inputs. This includes instruments valued using quoted market prices for similar 
instruments, quoted prices for similar instruments in markets that are less active, or other 
valuation techniques where all significant inputs are observable from market data. 
Therefore in the analysis below, Level 2 includes pooled funds where the net asset value 
of the pooled fund is derived from observable prices of the underlying securities.  The 
Fund's holding in these pooled funds can be realised at net asset value. 
Level 3 inputs - Valuation techniques using significant unobservable inputs for the 
valuation of financial instruments and where there is little market activity. These inputs 
require management judgement or estimation and include financial instruments that are 
valued based on unobservable adjustments or assumptions to reflect differences 
between instruments for which there is no active market. 
Therefore in the analysis below, Level 3 includes pooled funds such as the property 
funds and Fund of Hedge Funds where the net asset value is derived from unobservable 
inputs.  In addition, the Fund's holding in these pooled funds is not immediately 
realisable at the net asset value. 

Page 75



Printed on recycled paper 26

The following sets out the Fund's financial assets and liabilities (by class) measured at 
fair value according to the fair value hierarchy at 31 March 2011. 

 
Level 1 
£'000 

Level 2 
£'000 

Level 3 
£'000 

Total      
£'000 

UK Equities - Quoted 247,539   247,539 
Fixed Interest - Quoted 311,872   311,872 
Pooled Investment Vehicles  1,650,773  1,650,773 
Fund of Hedge Funds   222,379 222,379 
Property   172,052 172,052 
Cash  50,515   50,515 
Investment Debtors /Creditors 2,821   2,821 
 612,747 1,650,773 394,431 2,657,951 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
24, EMPLOYING BODIES 
As at 31 March 2011 the following employing bodies had contributing scheme members in 
the Avon Pension Fund: 
 
Scheduled Bodies  
Principal Councils and Service Providers  Education Establishments 
Avon Fire Brigade  Bath Spa University College   
Bath & North East Somerset Council   Bristol Cathedral Choir School  
Bristol City Council   Cabot Learning Federation  
North Somerset Council   City Academy Bristol   
South Gloucestershire Council   City of Bath College   
 City of Bristol College   
 Colston Girl’s School Academy  
 Filton College  
 Merchant’s Academy  
 Oasis Academy Brightstowe  
 Oasis Academy Bristol  
 Oldfield School Academy Trust  
 Midsomer Norton School Partnership   
 Norton Radstock College   
 St. Brendan's College   
 The Ridings Federation Winterbourne  
 The Ridings Federation Yate  
 University of the West of England  
 Weston College  
  
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 76



Printed on recycled paper 27

Designating Bodies   
Bath Tourism Plus Mangotsfield Parish Council  
Backwell Parish Council  Nailsea Town Council  
Bradley Stoke Town Council  Norton Radstock Town Council   
Charter Trustees of the City of Bath  Oldland Parish Council   
Clevedon Town Council Patchway Town Council    
Destination Bristol Paulton Parish Council   
Dodington Parish Council  Peasedown St John Parish Council 
Downend & Bromley Heath Parish Council  Portishead & North Weston Town Council    
Easton in Gordano Parish Council Saltford Parish Council 
Filton Town Council  Stoke Gifford Parish Council   
Frampton Cotterell Parish Council  Thornbury Town Council   
Hanham Parish Council Westerleigh Parish Council  
Hanham Abbots Parish Council  Weston Super Mare Town Council  
Keynsham Town Council  Whitchurch Parish Council  
Long Ashton Parish Council  Winterbourne Parish Council  
 Yatton Parish Council 
 Yate Town Council 
  
Admitted Bodies  
Active Community Engagement Ltd Mouchel Business Srvices Ltd (Nailsea IT)* 
Agilisys Northgate Information Solutions * 
Agincare Ltd. * Northgate Colston Girls School IT 
Aquaterra Leisure North Somerset Housing 
Aramark Ltd  * Off The Record Bath & Nrth East Somerset   
Ashley House Hostel  Prospect Services Ltd * 
BAM Construct UK Ltd (Henbury School) * Quadron Services* 
Bath &NE Somerset Racial Equality Council RM Data Solutions 
Bespoke Cleaning Services Ltd * Shaw Healthcare (North Somerset) Ltd*  
The Care Quality Commission  SITA Holdings UK Ltd. * 
Centre For Deaf People   Skanska (Cabot Learning Federation)* 
Churchill Contract Services Skanska Rashleigh Westerfoil  * 
Churchill Team Clean SLM Community Leisure * 
Clifton Suspension Bridge Trust   SLM Fitness and Health * 
Eden  Food  Services *  Sodexo Ltd 
English Landscapes* Somer Community Housing Trust   
Holburne Museum of Art   Somer Housing Group Ltd.  
ISS Mediclean (Bristol)* South Gloucestershire Leisure Trust *  
ISS Mediclean Cabot Learning Federation* Southern Brooks Community partnership   
Keir Facilities Services Southwest Grid for Learning Trust 
Liberata UK Limited  The Brandon Trust  * 
Learning Partnership West Ltd University of Bath   
Merlin Housing Society Ltd West of England Sports Trust  
Merlin Housing Society (SG) Woodspring Association for Blind People   
Mouchel * Yes Dining Ltd * 
Mouchel Business Services *  
  
*Transferee Admission Body: A body that provides, by means of contract, a service in a 
connection with the exercise of a function of a scheme employer. 
 

Page 77



Page 78

This page is intentionally left blank



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
A

nn
ua

l g
ov

er
na

nc
e 

re
po

rt
 

1
 A
n

n
u

al
 g

o
ve

rn
an

ce
 

re
p

o
rt

A
vo

n
 P

en
si

o
n

 F
u

n
d

 

A
u

d
it

 2
01

0/
11

 

Page 79



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
A

nn
ua

l g
ov

er
na

nc
e 

re
po

rt
 

2
 C

o
n

te
n

ts
K

ey
 m

es
sa

g
es

 
3

A
ud

it 
op

in
io

n 
an

d 
fin

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
 

3

B
ef

o
re

 I 
co

m
p

le
te

 m
y 

au
d

it
 

4

F
in

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
 

5

O
pi

ni
on

 o
n 

th
e 

fin
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

 
5

A
p

p
en

d
ix

 1
 –

 D
ra

ft
 a

u
d

it
 r

ep
o

rt
 

12

IN
D

E
P

E
N

D
E

N
T

 A
U

D
IT

O
R

’S
 R

E
P

O
R

T
 T

O
 T

H
E

 M
E

M
B

E
R

S
 O

F
 B

A
T

H
 A

N
D

 N
O

R
T

H
 E

A
S

T
 S

O
M

E
R

S
E

T
 

C
O

U
N

C
IL

 
16

O
pi

ni
on

 o
n 

ac
co

un
tin

g 
st

at
em

en
ts

 
16

A
p

p
en

d
ix

 2
 –

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
 t

o
 t

h
e 

d
ra

ft
 f

in
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

 
18

A
p

p
en

d
ix

 3
 –

 U
n

ad
ju

st
ed

 m
is

st
at

em
en

ts
 t

o
 t

h
e 

fi
n

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
 

19

A
p

p
en

d
ix

 4
 –

 G
lo

ss
ar

y 
20

 

T
ra

ff
ic

 li
g

h
t 

ex
p

la
n

at
io

n
 

R
ed

   
   

   
  A

m
be

r 
   

   
   

 G
re

en
 

Page 80



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
A

nn
ua

l g
ov

er
na

nc
e 

re
po

rt
 

3
 K

ey
 m

es
sa

g
es

 
T

h
is

 r
ep

o
rt

 s
u

m
m

ar
is

es
 t

h
e 

fi
n

d
in

g
s 

fr
o

m
 t

h
e 

20
10

/1
1 

au
d

it
 o

f 
th

e 
p

en
si

o
n

 f
u

n
d

 a
cc

o
u

n
ts

 w
h

ic
h

 
is

 s
u

b
st

an
ti

al
ly

 c
o

m
p

le
te

. 

O
u

r 
fi

n
d

in
g

s 

U
nq

ua
lif

ie
d 

au
di

t o
pi

ni
on

 
 

A
u

d
it

 o
p

in
io

n
 a

n
d

 f
in

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
 

I i
nt

en
d 

to
 is

su
e 

an
 u

nq
ua

lif
ie

d 
op

in
io

n 
on

 th
e 

A
vo

n 
pe

ns
io

n 
fu

nd
 

ac
co

un
ts

 in
cl

ud
ed

 in
 th

e 
fin

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
 o

f B
at

h 
an

d 
N

or
th

 E
as

t 
S

om
er

se
t C

ou
nc

il 
fo

r 
th

e 
ye

ar
 e

nd
in

g 
31

 M
ar

ch
 2

01
1.

 

  

Page 81



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
A

nn
ua

l g
ov

er
na

nc
e 

re
po

rt
 

4
 B

ef
o

re
 I 

co
m

p
le

te
 m

y 
au

d
it

 
 

 I c
o

n
fi

rm
 t

o
 y

o
u

 
M

y 
re

po
rt

 in
cl

ud
es

 o
nl

y 
m

at
te

rs
 o

f g
ov

er
na

nc
e 

in
te

re
st

 th
at

 h
av

e 
co

m
e 

to
 m

y 
at

te
nt

io
n 

in
 p

er
fo

rm
in

g 
m

y 
au

di
t. 

M
y 

au
di

t i
s 

no
t d

es
ig

ne
d 

to
 id

en
tif

y 
al

l m
at

te
rs

 th
at

 m
ig

ht
 b

e 
re

le
va

nt
 to

 y
ou

.  

 In
d

ep
en

d
en

ce

I c
an

 c
on

fir
m

 th
at

 I 
ha

ve
 c

om
pl

ie
d 

w
ith

 th
e 

A
ud

iti
ng

 P
ra

ct
ic

es
 B

oa
rd

's
 e

th
ic

al
 s

ta
nd

ar
ds

 fo
r 

au
di

to
rs

, i
nc

lu
di

ng
 

E
S

 1
 (

re
vi

se
d)

 -
 In

te
gr

ity
, O

bj
ec

tiv
ity

 a
nd

 In
de

pe
nd

en
ce

. I
 c

an
 a

ls
o 

co
nf

irm
 th

er
e 

w
er

e 
no

 r
el

at
io

ns
hi

ps
 

re
su

lti
ng

 in
 a

 th
re

at
 to

 in
de

pe
nd

en
ce

, o
bj

ec
tiv

ity
 a

nd
 in

te
gr

ity
.  

 T
he

 A
ud

it 
C

om
m

is
si

on
's

 A
ud

it 
P

ra
ct

ic
e 

ha
s 

no
t u

nd
er

ta
ke

n 
an

y 
no

n-
au

di
t w

or
k 

fo
r 

th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

du
rin

g 
20

10
/1

1.
 

 
 

I a
sk

 y
o

u
 t

o
 c

o
n

fi
rm

 t
o

 m
e 

I a
sk

 t
h

e 
co

rp
o

ra
te

 a
u

d
it

 c
o

m
m

it
te

e 
to

: 

!
 

ta
ke

 n
ot

e 
of

 th
e 

ad
ju

st
m

en
t t

o 
th

e 
fin

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
 w

hi
ch

 is
 s

et
 o

ut
 in

 th
is

 r
ep

or
t (

A
pp

en
di

x 
2)

; a
nd

  

!
 

ap
pr

ov
e 

th
e 

le
tte

r 
of

 r
ep

re
se

nt
at

io
n,

 p
ro

vi
de

d 
al

on
gs

id
e 

th
is

 r
ep

or
t, 

on
 b

eh
al

f o
f t

he
 C

ou
nc

il 
be

fo
re

 I 
is

su
e 

m
y 

op
in

io
n 

an
d 

co
nc

lu
si

on
. 

 

 

Page 82



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
A

nn
ua

l g
ov

er
na

nc
e 

re
po

rt
 

5
 F

in
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

 
 

 
O

p
in

io
n

 o
n

 t
h

e 
fi

n
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

 

S
ub

je
ct

 to
 s

at
is

fa
ct

or
y 

cl
ea

ra
nc

e 
of

 o
ut

st
an

di
ng

 m
at

te
rs

, I
 p

la
n 

to
 is

su
e 

an
 a

ud
it 

re
po

rt
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

an
 u

nq
ua

lif
ie

d 
op

in
io

n 
on

 th
e 

fin
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

 
ah

ea
d 

of
 m

y 
de

ad
lin

e 
of

 S
ep

te
m

be
r 

30
. A

pp
en

di
x 

1 
co

nt
ai

ns
 a

 c
op

y 
of

 m
y 

dr
af

t a
ud

it 
re

po
rt

.  
I i

de
nt

ifi
ed

 o
ne

 s
m

al
l e

rr
or

 r
el

at
in

g 
to

 th
e 

in
cl

us
io

n 
of

 a
 

de
fe

rr
ed

 c
ha

rg
e.

  T
he

 e
nt

ry
 w

as
 d

es
ig

ne
d 

to
 s

pr
ea

d 
th

e 
A

ct
ua

ria
l c

os
t o

f v
al

ui
ng

 th
e 

pe
ns

io
n 

fu
nd

 o
ve

r 
th

re
e 

fin
an

ci
al

 y
ea

rs
. T

hi
s 

pa
rt

ic
ul

ar
 e

nt
ry

 is
 

co
nt

ra
ry

 to
 th

e 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 o

f t
he

 C
od

e 
of

 P
ra

ct
ic

e 
on

 L
oc

al
 A

ut
ho

rit
y 

A
cc

ou
nt

in
g 

in
 th

e 
U

ni
te

d 
K

in
gd

om
 2

01
0/

11
 (

th
e 

ac
co

un
ts

 C
od

e)
 a

nd
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

re
m

ov
ed

.  
T

he
 c

os
t o

f t
he

 a
ct

ua
ria

l v
al

ua
tio

n 
£1

34
,0

00
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

ch
ar

ge
d 

to
 2

01
0/

11
. T

he
 a

cc
ou

nt
in

g 
ad

ju
st

m
en

t i
s 

se
t o

ut
 in

 A
pp

en
di

x 
2.

 

  

Page 83



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
A

nn
ua

l g
ov

er
na

nc
e 

re
po

rt
 

6
 F

in
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

 
T

h
e 

C
o

u
n

ci
l’s

 f
in

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
 a

n
d

 a
n

n
u

al
 g

o
ve

rn
an

ce
 s

ta
te

m
en

t 
ar

e 
im

p
o

rt
an

t 
m

ea
n

s 
b

y 
w

h
ic

h
 t

h
e 

C
o

u
n

ci
l a

cc
o

u
n

ts
 f

o
r 

it
s 

st
ew

ar
d

sh
ip

 o
f 

p
u

b
lic

 f
u

n
d

s.
 A

s 
C

o
u

n
ci

l m
em

b
er

s 
yo

u
 h

av
e 

fi
n

al
 r

es
p

o
n

si
b

ili
ty

 f
o

r 
th

es
e 

st
at

em
en

ts
. I

t 
is

 im
p

o
rt

an
t 

th
at

 y
o

u
 c

o
n

si
d

er
 m

y 
fi

n
d

in
g

s 
b

ef
o

re
 y

o
u

 
ad

o
p

t 
th

e 
fi

n
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

 a
n

d
 t

h
e 

an
n

u
al

 g
o

ve
rn

an
ce

 s
ta

te
m

en
t.

 

In
 p

la
nn

in
g 

m
y 

au
di

t I
 id

en
tif

ie
d 

sp
ec

ifi
c 

ris
ks

 a
nd

 a
re

as
 o

f j
ud

ge
m

en
t t

ha
t I

 h
av

e 
co

ns
id

er
ed

 a
s 

pa
rt

 o
f m

y 
au

di
t. 

K
ey

 a
u

d
it

 r
is

k 
an

d
 o

u
r 

fi
n

d
in

g
s 

K
ey

 a
u

d
it

 r
is

k 
F

in
d

in
g

A
vo

n 
pe

ns
io

n 
fu

nd
 h

as
 £

2b
n 

of
 u

ni
ts

 in
 u

nq
uo

te
d 

po
ol

ed
 

in
ve

st
m

en
t s

ec
ur

iti
es

. T
he

re
 is

 n
o 

di
re

ct
 m

ar
ke

t t
o 

in
de

pe
nd

en
tly

 c
he

ck
 th

e 
va

lu
at

io
n 

of
 th

es
e 

un
its

, a
lth

ou
gh

 
w

e 
un

de
rs

ta
nd

 th
e 

un
de

rly
in

g 
se

cu
rit

ie
s 

ar
e 

qu
ot

ed
. 

 

 I a
gr

ee
d 

th
e 

va
lu

e 
of

 a
ll 

m
at

er
ia

l i
nv

es
tm

en
t b

al
an

ce
s 

to
 fu

nd
 m

an
ag

er
’s

 r
ep

or
ts

 a
nd

 
cu

st
od

ia
n 

re
po

rt
s.

   

I r
ev

ie
w

ed
 a

nd
 p

la
ce

d 
re

lia
nc

e 
on

 A
A

F
01

 r
ep

or
ts

 fr
om

 th
e 

au
di

to
rs

 o
f t

he
 fu

nd
 

m
an

ag
er

s.
 A

A
F

01
 r

ep
or

ts
 a

re
 in

du
st

ry
 s

ta
nd

ar
d 

re
po

rt
s 

on
 th

e 
ef

fe
ct

iv
en

es
s 

of
 

in
te

rn
al

 c
on

tr
ol

 a
rr

an
ge

m
en

ts
 a

t f
un

d 
m

an
ge

rs
. 

 

A
ct

ua
ria

l V
al

ua
tio

n 

 

T
he

 d
is

cl
os

ur
es

 o
n 

th
e 

ac
tu

ar
ia

l v
al

ua
tio

n 
as

 a
t 3

1 
M

ar
ch

 2
01

0 
ag

re
ed

 to
 s

up
po

rt
in

g 
ev

id
en

ce
 fr

om
 th

e 
A

ct
ua

ry
. 

C
ha

ng
es

 to
 th

e 
ac

co
un

ts
 c

od
e 

pr
es

en
t r

is
ks

 th
e 

ac
co

un
ts

 
w

ill
 n

ot
 m

ee
t t

he
 r

eq
ui

re
m

en
ts

. 
A

 n
ot

e 
an

al
ys

in
g 

th
e 

fin
an

ci
al

 r
is

ks
 fa

ce
d 

by
 th

e 
pe

ns
io

n 
fu

nd
 is

 r
eq

ui
re

d 
th

is
 y

ea
r 

fo
r 

th
e 

fir
st

 ti
m

e.
  A

 n
ot

e 
w

as
 in

cl
ud

ed
 in

 th
e 

dr
af

t a
cc

ou
nt

s 
co

ve
rin

g 
th

e 
re

qu
ire

d 
he

ad
in

gs
 o

f m
ar

ke
t r

is
ks

, c
re

di
t r

is
ks

 a
nd

 li
qu

id
ity

 r
is

ks
. 

   

Page 84



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
A

nn
ua

l g
ov

er
na

nc
e 

re
po

rt
 

7
 F

in
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

 
S

ig
n

if
ic

an
t 

w
ea

kn
es

se
s 

in
 in

te
rn

al
 c

o
n

tr
o

l 

 M
y 

au
di

t i
nc

lu
de

s 
co

ns
id

er
at

io
n 

of
 y

ou
r 

fin
an

ci
al

 c
on

tr
ol

s.
  I

 d
id

 n
ot

 id
en

tif
y 

an
y 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 w

ea
kn

es
se

s 
in

 y
ou

r 
in

te
rn

al
 c

on
tr

ol
. I

 a
m

 n
ot

 e
xp

re
ss

in
g 

an
 

op
in

io
n 

on
 th

e 
ov

er
al

l e
ffe

ct
iv

en
es

s 
of

 in
te

rn
al

 c
on

tr
ol

.

Q
u

al
it

y 
o

f 
yo

u
r 

fi
n

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
 

 I c
on

si
de

r 
as

pe
ct

s 
of

 y
ou

r 
ac

co
un

tin
g 

pr
ac

tic
es

, a
cc

ou
nt

in
g 

po
lic

ie
s,

 a
cc

ou
nt

in
g 

es
tim

at
es

 a
nd

 fi
na

nc
ia

l s
ta

te
m

en
ts

 d
is

cl
os

ur
es

.  
T

he
se

 a
re

 th
e 

is
su

es
 I 

w
an

t t
o 

ra
is

e 
w

ith
 y

ou
. 

A
cc

o
u

n
ti

n
g

 p
ra

ct
ic

es
, p

o
lic

ie
s,

 e
st

im
at

es
 a

n
d

 f
in

an
ci

al
 d

is
cl

o
su

re
s 

Is
su

e
F

in
d

in
g

s 
an

d
 r

ec
o

m
m

en
d

at
io

n
s 

F
in

an
ci

al
 In

st
ru

m
en

t 
d

is
cl

o
su

re
s 

N
ot

es
 a

na
ly

si
ng

 th
e 

as
se

ts
 a

nd
 li

ab
ili

tie
s 

of
 th

e 
pe

ns
io

n 
fu

nd
 in

to
 th

e 
di

ffe
re

nt
 c

at
eg

or
ie

s 
of

 fi
na

nc
ia

l 
in

st
ru

m
en

ts
 a

re
 r

eq
ui

re
d 

to
 b

e 
in

cl
ud

ed
 fo

r 
th

e 
fir

st
 

tim
e 

th
is

 y
ea

r 
in

 th
e 

st
at

em
en

t o
f a

cc
ou

nt
s.

 

N
ot

es
 h

ad
 n

ot
 b

ee
n 

in
cl

ud
ed

. A
dd

iti
on

al
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
an

al
ys

in
g 

fin
an

ci
al

 in
st

ru
m

en
ts

 w
as

 
ad

de
d 

to
 c

om
pl

y 
w

ith
 th

e 
ac

co
un

tin
g 

co
de

. 

 

N
o

te
s 

to
 t

h
e 

ac
co

u
n

ts
  

T
he

se
 n

ee
d 

to
 r

ef
le

ct
 th

e 
cu

rr
en

t r
eq

ui
re

m
en

ts
 o

f t
he

 
ac

co
un

ts
 c

od
e 

an
d 

pr
ov

id
e 

fu
rt

he
r 

ex
pl

an
at

io
n 

of
 th

e 
m

ai
n 

st
at

em
en

ts
. 

A
dd

iti
on

al
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
w

as
 a

dd
ed

 to
 th

e 
no

te
s 

to
 th

e 
ac

co
un

ts
 to

 a
na

ly
se

 c
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
 

re
ce

iv
ab

le
 a

nd
 b

en
ef

its
 p

ay
ab

le
 b

y 
ad

m
in

is
te

rin
g 

au
th

or
ity

, s
ch

ed
ul

ed
 b

od
ie

s 
an

d 
ad

m
is

si
on

 
bo

di
es

. 

A
 n

um
be

r 
of

 m
in

or
 c

ha
ng

es
 w

er
e 

m
ad

e 
to

 th
e 

w
or

di
ng

 o
f a

 n
um

be
r 

of
 n

ot
es

 to
 th

e 
ac

co
un

ts
. 

F
or

 e
xa

m
pl

e 
to

 p
ro

vi
de

 m
or

e 
ex

pl
an

at
io

n 
of

 th
e 

de
riv

at
iv

e 
co

nt
ra

ct
s 

en
te

re
d 

in
 to

. 

A
cc

o
u

n
ti

n
g

 p
o

lic
ie

s 

R
ec

om
m

en
de

d 
ac

co
un

tin
g 

po
lic

ie
s 

ar
e 

se
t o

ut
 in

 th
e 

I a
gr

ee
d 

th
at

 a
dd

iti
on

al
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
be

 a
dd

ed
 to

 th
e 

ac
co

un
tin

g 
po

lic
ie

s 
no

te
. F

or
 e

xa
m

pl
e 

to
 

ex
pl

ai
n 

fu
rt

he
r 

th
e 

es
tim

at
io

n 
te

ch
ni

qu
es

 u
se

d 
in

 th
e 

pr
ep

ar
at

io
n 

of
 th

e 
ac

co
un

ts
.  

 

Page 85



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
A

nn
ua

l g
ov

er
na

nc
e 

re
po

rt
 

8
 

Is
su

e
F

in
d

in
g

s 
an

d
 r

ec
o

m
m

en
d

at
io

n
s 

ac
co

un
ts

 c
od

e.
  O

ffi
ce

rs
 ta

ilo
r 

th
em

 to
 r

ef
le

ct
 lo

ca
l 

ci
rc

um
st

an
ce

s.

Page 86



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
A

nn
ua

l g
ov

er
na

nc
e 

re
po

rt
 

9
 F

in
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

 
L

et
te

r 
o

f 
re

p
re

se
n

ta
ti

o
n

 

B
ef

or
e 

I i
ss

ue
 m

y 
op

in
io

n,
 a

ud
iti

ng
 s

ta
nd

ar
ds

 r
eq

ui
re

 m
e 

to
 a

sk
 y

ou
 a

nd
 m

an
ag

em
en

t f
or

 w
rit

te
n 

re
pr

es
en

ta
tio

ns
 a

bo
ut

 y
ou

r 
fin

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
 a

nd
 

go
ve

rn
an

ce
 a

rr
an

ge
m

en
ts

.  
T

he
re

 w
ill

 b
e 

on
e 

le
tte

r 
of

 r
ep

re
se

nt
at

io
n 

co
ve

rin
g 

th
e 

C
ou

nc
il’

s 
ac

co
un

ts
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

th
e 

pe
ns

io
n 

fu
nd

 a
cc

ou
nt

s.
  T

he
 fi

na
l 

le
tte

r 
m

ay
 in

cl
ud

e 
ad

di
tio

na
l r

eq
ui

re
m

en
ts

 a
s 

ne
ce

ss
ar

y 
re

la
tin

g 
to

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il.

  T
he

 d
ra

ft 
le

tte
r 

is
 in

cl
ud

ed
 b

el
ow

. 
 T

o:
 W

ay
ne

 R
ic

ka
rd

 

D
is

tr
ic

t A
ud

ito
r 

A
ud

it 
C

om
m

is
si

on
 

3-
4 

B
en

he
im

 C
ou

rt
 

M
at

fo
rd

 B
us

in
es

s 
P

ar
k 

Lu
st

le
ig

h 
C

lo
se

 

E
xe

te
r 

E
X

2 
8P

W
 

B
a
th

 a
n

d
 N

o
rt

h
 E

a
s
t 

S
o

m
e
rs

e
t 

C
o

u
n

ci
l 

- 
A

u
d

it
 f

o
r 

th
e
 y

e
a
r 

e
n

d
e
d

 3
1

 M
a
rc

h
 2

0
1

1
 

 
I c

on
fir

m
 to

 th
e 

be
st

 o
f m

y 
kn

ow
le

dg
e 

an
d 

be
lie

f, 
ha

vi
ng

 m
ad

e 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 e
nq

ui
rie

s 
of

 o
th

er
 o

ffi
ce

rs
 o

f B
at

h 
an

d 
N

or
th

 E
as

t S
om

er
se

t C
ou

nc
il,

 th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
re

pr
es

en
ta

tio
ns

 g
iv

en
 to

 y
ou

 in
 c

on
ne

ct
io

n 
w

ith
 y

ou
r 

au
di

t o
f t

he
 C

ou
nc

il’
s 

fin
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

 fo
r 

th
e 

ye
ar

 e
nd

ed
 3

1 
M

ar
ch

 2
01

1.
 A

ll 
re

pr
es

en
ta

tio
ns

 c
ov

er
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il’
s 

ac
co

un
ts

 a
nd

 P
en

si
on

 F
un

d 
ac

co
un

ts
 in

cl
ud

ed
 w

ith
in

 th
e 

fin
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

.

C
o

m
p

li
a
n

ce
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 a
u

th
o

ri
ti

e
s

Page 87



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
A

nn
ua

l g
ov

er
na

nc
e 

re
po

rt
 

10
 I h

av
e 

fu
lfi

lle
d 

m
y 

re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

y 
un

de
r 

th
e 

re
le

va
nt

 s
ta

tu
to

ry
 a

ut
ho

rit
ie

s 
fo

r 
pr

ep
ar

in
g 

th
e 

fin
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

 in
 a

cc
or

da
nc

e 
w

ith
 th

e 
C

od
e 

of
 P

ra
ct

ic
e 

fo
r 

Lo
ca

l A
ut

ho
rit

y 
A

cc
ou

nt
in

g 
in

 th
e 

U
ni

te
d 

K
in

gd
om

w
hi

ch
 g

iv
e 

a 
tr

ue
 a

nd
 fa

ir 
vi

ew
 o

f t
he

 fi
na

nc
ia

l p
os

iti
on

 a
nd

 fi
na

nc
ia

l p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 o
f t

he
 C

ou
nc

il ,
 

fo
r 

th
e 

co
m

pl
et

en
es

s 
of

 th
e 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

pr
ov

id
ed

 to
 y

ou
, a

nd
 fo

r 
m

ak
in

g 
ac

cu
ra

te
 r

ep
re

se
nt

at
io

ns
 to

 y
ou

. 

U
n

co
rr

e
c
te

d
 m

is
st

a
te

m
e
n

ts

T
he

 e
ffe

ct
s 

of
 u

nc
or

re
ct

ed
 fi

na
nc

ia
l s

ta
te

m
en

ts
 m

is
st

at
em

en
ts

 s
um

m
ar

is
ed

 in
 th

e 
at

ta
ch

ed
 s

ch
ed

ul
es

 a
re

 n
ot

 m
at

er
ia

l t
o 

th
e 

fin
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

, e
ith

er
 

in
di

vi
du

al
ly

 o
r 

in
 a

gg
re

ga
te

.  
 

S
u

p
p

o
rt

in
g

 r
e
co

rd
s
 

A
ll 

re
le

va
nt

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

an
d 

ac
ce

ss
 to

 p
er

so
ns

 w
ith

in
 th

e 
en

tit
y 

ha
s 

be
en

 m
ad

e 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

to
 y

ou
 fo

r 
th

e 
pu

rp
os

e 
of

 y
ou

r 
au

di
t, 

an
d 

al
l t

he
 tr

an
sa

ct
io

ns
 

un
de

rt
ak

en
 b

y 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il
ha

ve
 b

ee
n 

pr
op

er
ly

 r
ef

le
ct

ed
 a

nd
 r

ec
or

de
d 

in
 th

e 
fin

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
.  

In
te

rn
a
l 

co
n

tr
o

l 

I h
av

e 
co

m
m

un
ic

at
ed

 to
 y

ou
 a

ll 
de

fic
ie

nc
ie

s 
in

 in
te

rn
al

 c
on

tr
ol

 o
f w

hi
ch

 I 
am

 a
w

ar
e.

 

Ir
re

g
u

la
ri

ti
e
s 

I a
ck

no
w

le
dg

e 
m

y 
re

sp
on

si
bi

lit
y 

fo
r 

th
e 

de
si

gn
, i

m
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
an

d 
m

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 o

f i
nt

er
na

l c
on

tr
ol

 to
 p

re
ve

nt
 a

nd
 d

et
ec

t f
ra

ud
 o

r 
er

ro
r.

 

I a
ls

o 
co

nf
irm

 th
at

 I 
ha

ve
 d

is
cl

os
ed

: 

!
 

m
y 

kn
ow

le
dg

e 
of

 fr
au

d,
 o

r 
su

sp
ec

te
d 

fr
au

d,
 in

vo
lv

in
g 

ei
th

er
 m

an
ag

em
en

t, 
em

pl
oy

ee
s 

w
ho

 h
av

e 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 r
ol

es
 in

 in
te

rn
al

 c
on

tr
ol

 o
r 

ot
he

rs
 w

he
re

 
fr

au
d 

co
ul

d 
ha

ve
 a

 m
at

er
ia

l e
ffe

ct
 o

n 
th

e 
fin

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
;  

!
 

m
y 

kn
ow

le
dg

e 
of

 a
ny

 a
lle

ga
tio

ns
 o

f f
ra

ud
, o

r 
su

sp
ec

te
d 

fr
au

d,
 a

ffe
ct

in
g 

th
e 

en
tit

y’
s 

fin
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

 c
om

m
un

ic
at

ed
 b

y 
em

pl
oy

ee
s,

 fo
rm

er
 

em
pl

oy
ee

s,
 a

na
ly

st
s,

 r
eg

ul
at

or
s 

or
 o

th
er

s;
 a

nd
 

!
 

th
e 

re
su

lts
 o

f o
ur

 a
ss

es
sm

en
t o

f t
he

 r
is

k 
th

at
 th

e 
fin

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
 m

ay
 b

e 
m

at
er

ia
lly

 m
is

st
at

ed
 a

s 
a 

re
su

lt 
of

 fr
au

d.
 

L
a
w

, 
re

g
u

la
ti

o
n

s,
 c

o
n

tr
a
ct

u
a
l 
a
rr

a
n

g
e
m

e
n

ts
 a

n
d

 c
o

d
e
s 

o
f 

p
ra

ct
ic

e
 

I h
av

e 
di

sc
lo

se
d 

to
 y

ou
 a

ll 
kn

ow
n 

in
st

an
ce

s 
of

 n
on

-c
om

pl
ia

nc
e,

 o
r 

su
sp

ec
te

d 
no

n-
co

m
pl

ia
nc

e 
w

ith
 la

w
s,

 r
eg

ul
at

io
ns

 a
nd

 c
od

es
 o

f p
ra

ct
ic

e,
 w

ho
se

 
ef

fe
ct

s 
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

co
ns

id
er

ed
 w

he
n 

pr
ep

ar
in

g 
fin

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
. 

 T
ra

ns
ac

tio
ns

 a
nd

 e
ve

nt
s 

ha
ve

 b
ee

n 
ca

rr
ie

d 
ou

t i
n 

ac
co

rd
an

ce
 w

ith
 la

w
, r

eg
ul

at
io

n 
or

 o
th

er
 a

ut
ho

rit
y.

  T
he

 C
ou

nc
il

ha
s 

co
m

pl
ie

d 
w

ith
 a

ll 
as

pe
ct

s 
of

 
co

nt
ra

ct
ua

l a
rr

an
ge

m
en

ts
 th

at
 c

ou
ld

 h
av

e 
a 

m
at

er
ia

l e
ffe

ct
 o

n 
th

e 
fin

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
 in

 th
e 

ev
en

t o
f n

on
-c

om
pl

ia
nc

e.
  

Page 88



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
A

nn
ua

l g
ov

er
na

nc
e 

re
po

rt
 

11
 

A
ll 

kn
ow

n 
ac

tu
al

 o
r 

po
ss

ib
le

 li
tig

at
io

n 
an

d 
cl

ai
m

s,
 w

ho
se

 e
ffe

ct
s 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
co

ns
id

er
ed

 w
he

n 
pr

ep
ar

in
g 

th
e 

fin
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

, h
av

e 
be

en
 d

is
cl

os
ed

 
to

 th
e 

au
di

to
r 

an
d 

ac
co

un
te

d 
fo

r 
an

d 
di

sc
lo

se
d 

in
 a

cc
or

da
nc

e 
w

ith
 th

e 
ap

pl
ic

ab
le

 fi
na

nc
ia

l r
ep

or
tin

g 
fr

am
ew

or
k.

A
cc

o
u

n
ti

n
g

 e
st

im
a
te

s 
in

cl
u

d
in

g
 f

a
ir

 v
a
lu

e
s 

I c
on

fir
m

 th
e 

re
as

on
ab

le
ne

ss
 o

f t
he

 s
ig

ni
fic

an
t a

ss
um

pt
io

ns
 u

se
d 

in
 m

ak
in

g 
th

e 
ac

co
un

tin
g 

es
tim

at
es

, i
nc

lu
di

ng
 th

os
e 

m
ea

su
re

d 
at

 fa
ir 

va
lu

e.
  

R
e
la

te
d

 p
a
rt

y
 t

ra
n

sa
ct

io
n

s 

I c
on

fir
m

 th
at

 I 
ha

ve
 d

is
cl

os
ed

 th
e 

id
en

tit
y 

of
 B

at
h 

an
d 

N
or

th
 E

as
t S

om
er

se
t C

ou
nc

il’
s 

re
la

te
d 

pa
rt

ie
s 

an
d 

al
l t

he
 r

el
at

ed
 p

ar
ty

 r
el

at
io

ns
hi

ps
 a

nd
 

tr
an

sa
ct

io
ns

 o
f w

hi
ch

 I 
am

 a
w

ar
e.

  I
 h

av
e 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
ly

 a
cc

ou
nt

ed
 fo

r 
an

d 
di

sc
lo

se
d 

su
ch

 r
el

at
io

ns
hi

ps
 a

nd
 tr

an
sa

ct
io

ns
 in

 a
cc

or
da

nc
e 

w
ith

 th
e 

re
qu

ire
m

en
t o

f t
he

 fr
am

ew
or

k.
 

S
u

b
se

q
u

e
n

t 
e
v
e
n

ts

A
ll 

ev
en

ts
 s

ub
se

qu
en

t t
o 

th
e 

da
te

 o
f t

he
 fi

na
nc

ia
l s

ta
te

m
en

ts
, w

hi
ch

 w
ou

ld
 r

eq
ui

re
 a

dd
iti

on
al

 a
dj

us
tm

en
t o

r 
di

sc
lo

su
re

 in
 th

e 
fin

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
, h

av
e 

be
en

 a
dj

us
te

d 
or

 d
is

cl
os

ed
. 

S
ig

ne
d 

on
 b

eh
al

f o
f B

at
h 

an
d 

N
or

th
 E

as
t S

om
er

se
t C

ou
nc

il

I c
on

fir
m

 th
at

 th
is

 le
tte

r 
ha

s 
be

en
 d

is
cu

ss
ed

 a
nd

 a
gr

ee
d 

by
 th

e 
C

or
po

ra
te

 A
ud

it 
C

om
m

itt
ee

 o
n 

S
ep

te
m

be
r 

29
 2

01
1.

 

 S
ig

ne
d 

 N
am

e 

 P
os

iti
on

 

 D
at

e 

Page 89



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
A

nn
ua

l g
ov

er
na

nc
e 

re
po

rt
 

12
 A

p
p

en
d

ix
 1

 –
 D

ra
ft

 a
u

d
it

 r
ep

o
rt

 
IN

D
E

P
E

N
D

E
N

T
 A

U
D

IT
O

R
’S

 R
E

P
O

R
T

 T
O

 T
H

E
 M

E
M

B
E

R
S

 O
F

 B
A

T
H

 A
N

D
 N

O
R

T
H

 E
A

S
T

 
S

O
M

E
R

S
E

T
 C

O
U

N
C

IL
 

O
p

in
io

n
 o

n
 t

h
e 

A
u

th
o

ri
ty

 a
cc

o
u

n
ti

n
g

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

 

I h
av

e 
au

di
te

d 
th

e 
ac

co
un

tin
g 

st
at

em
en

ts
 o

f B
at

h 
an

d 
N

or
th

 E
as

t S
om

er
se

t C
ou

nc
il 

fo
r 

th
e 

ye
ar

 e
nd

ed
 3

1 
M

ar
ch

 2
01

1 
un

de
r 

th
e 

A
ud

it 
C

om
m

is
si

on
 A

ct
 

19
98

. T
he

 a
cc

ou
nt

in
g 

st
at

em
en

ts
 c

om
pr

is
e 

th
e 

M
ov

em
en

t i
n 

R
es

er
ve

s 
S

ta
te

m
en

t, 
th

e 
C

om
pr

eh
en

si
ve

 In
co

m
e 

an
d 

E
xp

en
di

tu
re

 S
ta

te
m

en
t, 

th
e 

B
al

an
ce

 S
he

et
, t

he
 C

as
h 

F
lo

w
 S

ta
te

m
en

t a
nd

 C
ol

le
ct

io
n 

F
un

d 
an

d 
th

e 
re

la
te

d 
no

te
s.

 T
he

se
 a

cc
ou

nt
in

g 
st

at
em

en
ts

 h
av

e 
be

en
 p

re
pa

re
d 

un
de

r 
th

e 
ac

co
un

tin
g 

po
lic

ie
s 

se
t o

ut
 in

 th
e 

S
ta

te
m

en
t o

f A
cc

ou
nt

in
g 

P
ol

ic
ie

s.
 

 T
hi

s 
re

po
rt

 is
 m

ad
e 

so
le

ly
 to

 th
e 

m
em

be
rs

 o
f B

at
h 

an
d 

N
or

th
 E

as
t S

om
er

se
t C

ou
nc

il 
in

 a
cc

or
da

nc
e 

w
ith

 P
ar

t I
I o

f t
he

 A
ud

it 
C

om
m

is
si

on
 A

ct
 1

99
8 

an
d 

fo
r 

no
 o

th
er

 p
ur

po
se

, a
s 

se
t o

ut
 in

 p
ar

ag
ra

ph
 4

8 
of

 th
e 

S
ta

te
m

en
t o

f R
es

po
ns

ib
ili

tie
s 

of
 A

ud
ito

rs
 a

nd
 A

ud
ite

d 
B

od
ie

s 
pu

bl
is

he
d 

by
 th

e 
A

ud
it 

C
om

m
is

si
on

 
in

 M
ar

ch
 2

01
0.

 
 R

es
p

ec
ti

ve
 r

es
p

o
n

si
b

ili
ti

es
 o

f 
th

e 
D

iv
is

io
n

al
 D

ir
ec

to
r 

F
in

an
ce

 a
n

d
 a

u
d

it
o

r 

A
s 

ex
pl

ai
ne

d 
m

or
e 

fu
lly

 in
 th

e 
S

ta
te

m
en

t o
f R

es
po

ns
ib

ili
tie

s 
fo

r 
th

e 
A

cc
ou

nt
s 

th
e 

D
iv

is
io

na
l D

ire
ct

or
 F

in
an

ce
 is

 r
es

po
ns

ib
le

 fo
r 

th
e 

pr
ep

ar
at

io
n 

of
 th

e 
A

ut
ho

rit
y’

s 
S

ta
te

m
en

t o
f A

cc
ou

nt
s 

in
 a

cc
or

da
nc

e 
w

ith
 p

ro
pe

r 
pr

ac
tic

es
 a

s 
se

t o
ut

 in
 th

e 
C

IP
F

A
/L

A
S

A
A

C
 C

od
e 

of
 P

ra
ct

ic
e 

on
 L

oc
al

 A
ut

ho
rit

y 
A

cc
ou

nt
in

g 
in

 th
e 

U
ni

te
d 

K
in

gd
om

. M
y 

re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

y 
is

 to
 a

ud
it 

th
e 

ac
co

un
tin

g 
st

at
em

en
ts

 in
 a

cc
or

da
nc

e 
w

ith
 a

pp
lic

ab
le

 la
w

 a
nd

 In
te

rn
at

io
na

l S
ta

nd
ar

ds
 o

n 
A

ud
iti

ng
 (

U
K

 a
nd

 Ir
el

an
d)

. T
ho

se
 s

ta
nd

ar
ds

 r
eq

ui
re

 m
e 

to
 c

om
pl

y 
w

ith
 th

e 
A

ud
iti

ng
 P

ra
ct

ic
es

 B
oa

rd
’s

 E
th

ic
al

 S
ta

nd
ar

ds
 fo

r 
A

ud
ito

rs
. 

 S
co

p
e 

o
f 

th
e 

au
d

it
 o

f 
th

e 
fi

n
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

 

A
n 

au
di

t i
nv

ol
ve

s 
ob

ta
in

in
g 

ev
id

en
ce

 a
bo

ut
 th

e 
am

ou
nt

s 
an

d 
di

sc
lo

su
re

s 
in

 th
e 

ac
co

un
tin

g 
st

at
em

en
ts

 s
uf

fic
ie

nt
 to

 g
iv

e 
re

as
on

ab
le

 a
ss

ur
an

ce
 th

at
 th

e 
ac

co
un

tin
g 

st
at

em
en

ts
 a

re
 fr

ee
 fr

om
 m

at
er

ia
l m

is
st

at
em

en
t, 

w
he

th
er

 c
au

se
d 

by
 fr

au
d 

or
 e

rr
or

. T
hi

s 
in

cl
ud

es
 a

n 
as

se
ss

m
en

t o
f: 

w
he

th
er

 th
e 

ac
co

un
tin

g 
po

lic
ie

s 
ar

e 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 to
 th

e 
A

ut
ho

rit
y’

s 
ci

rc
um

st
an

ce
s 

an
d 

ha
ve

 b
ee

n 
co

ns
is

te
nt

ly
 a

pp
lie

d 
an

d 
ad

eq
ua

te
ly

 d
is

cl
os

ed
; t

he
 r

ea
so

na
bl

en
es

s 
of

 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 a
cc

ou
nt

in
g 

es
tim

at
es

 m
ad

e 
by

 th
e 

A
ut

ho
rit

y;
 a

nd
 th

e 
ov

er
al

l p
re

se
nt

at
io

n 
of

 th
e 

ac
co

un
tin

g 
st

at
em

en
ts

. I
 r

ea
d 

al
l t

he
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
in

 th
e 

ex
pl

an
at

or
y 

fo
re

w
or

d 
to

 id
en

tif
y 

m
at

er
ia

l i
nc

on
si

st
en

ci
es

 w
ith

 th
e 

au
di

te
d 

fin
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

. I
f I

 b
ec

om
e 

aw
ar

e 
of

 a
ny

 a
pp

ar
en

t m
at

er
ia

l 
m

is
st

at
em

en
ts

 o
r 

in
co

ns
is

te
nc

ie
s 

I c
on

si
de

r 
th

e 
im

pl
ic

at
io

ns
 fo

r 
m

y 
re

po
rt

. 
 

Page 90



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
A

nn
ua

l g
ov

er
na

nc
e 

re
po

rt
 

13
 O

p
in

io
n

 o
n

 a
cc

o
u

n
ti

n
g

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

 

In
 m

y 
op

in
io

n 
th

e 
ac

co
un

tin
g 

st
at

em
en

ts
: 

! 
gi

ve
 a

 tr
ue

 a
nd

 fa
ir 

vi
ew

 o
f t

he
 s

ta
te

 o
f B

at
h 

an
d 

N
or

th
 E

as
t S

om
er

se
t C

ou
nc

il’
s 

af
fa

irs
 a

s 
at

 3
1 

M
ar

ch
 2

01
1 

an
d 

of
 it

s 
in

co
m

e 
an

d 
ex

pe
nd

itu
re

 
fo

r 
th

e 
ye

ar
 th

en
 e

nd
ed

; a
nd

 
! 

ha
ve

 b
ee

n 
pr

op
er

ly
 p

re
pa

re
d 

in
 a

cc
or

da
nc

e 
w

ith
 th

e 
C

IP
F

A
/L

A
S

A
A

C
 C

od
e 

of
 P

ra
ct

ic
e 

on
 L

oc
al

 A
ut

ho
rit

y 
A

cc
ou

nt
in

g 
in

 th
e 

U
ni

te
d 

K
in

gd
om

. 
 O

p
in

io
n

 o
n

 o
th

er
 m

at
te

rs
 

In
 m

y 
op

in
io

n,
 th

e 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
gi

ve
n 

in
 th

e 
ex

pl
an

at
or

y 
fo

re
w

or
d 

fo
r 

th
e 

fin
an

ci
al

 y
ea

r 
fo

r 
w

hi
ch

 th
e 

ac
co

un
tin

g 
st

at
em

en
ts

 a
re

 p
re

pa
re

d 
is

 c
on

si
st

en
t 

w
ith

 th
e 

ac
co

un
tin

g 
st

at
em

en
ts

. 
 M

at
te

rs
 o

n
 w

h
ic

h
 I 

re
p

o
rt

 b
y 

ex
ce

p
ti

o
n

 

I h
av

e 
no

th
in

g 
to

 r
ep

or
t i

n 
re

sp
ec

t o
f t

he
 g

ov
er

na
nc

e 
st

at
em

en
t o

n 
w

hi
ch

 I 
re

po
rt

 to
 y

ou
 if

, i
n 

m
y 

op
in

io
n 

th
e 

go
ve

rn
an

ce
 s

ta
te

m
en

t d
oe

s 
no

t r
ef

le
ct

 
co

m
pl

ia
nc

e 
w

ith
 ‘D

el
iv

er
in

g 
G

oo
d 

G
ov

er
na

nc
e 

in
 L

oc
al

 G
ov

er
nm

en
t: 

a 
F

ra
m

ew
or

k’
 p

ub
lis

he
d 

by
 C

IP
F

A
/S

O
LA

C
E

 in
 J

un
e 

20
07

. 
  O

p
in

io
n

 o
n

 t
h

e 
p

en
si

o
n

 f
u

n
d

 a
cc

o
u

n
ti

n
g

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

 

I h
av

e 
au

di
te

d 
th

e 
pe

ns
io

n 
fu

nd
 a

cc
ou

nt
in

g 
st

at
em

en
ts

 fo
r 

th
e 

ye
ar

 e
nd

ed
 3

1 
M

ar
ch

 2
01

1 
un

de
r 

th
e 

A
ud

it 
C

om
m

is
si

on
 A

ct
 1

99
8.

 T
he

 p
en

si
on

 fu
nd

 
ac

co
un

tin
g 

st
at

em
en

ts
 c

om
pr

is
e 

th
e 

F
un

d 
A

cc
ou

nt
, t

he
 N

et
 A

ss
et

s 
S

ta
te

m
en

t a
nd

 th
e 

re
la

te
d 

no
te

s.
 T

he
se

 a
cc

ou
nt

in
g 

st
at

em
en

ts
 h

av
e 

be
en

 p
re

pa
re

d 
un

de
r 

th
e 

ac
co

un
tin

g 
po

lic
ie

s 
se

t o
ut

 in
 th

e 
S

ta
te

m
en

t o
f A

cc
ou

nt
in

g 
P

ol
ic

ie
s.

 
 T

hi
s 

re
po

rt
 is

 m
ad

e 
so

le
ly

 to
 th

e 
m

em
be

rs
 o

f B
at

h 
an

d 
N

or
th

 E
as

t S
om

er
se

t C
ou

nc
il 

in
 a

cc
or

da
nc

e 
w

ith
 P

ar
t I

I o
f t

he
 A

ud
it 

C
om

m
is

si
on

 A
ct

 1
99

8 
an

d 
fo

r 
no

 o
th

er
 p

ur
po

se
, a

s 
se

t o
ut

 in
 p

ar
ag

ra
ph

 4
8 

of
 th

e 
S

ta
te

m
en

t o
f R

es
po

ns
ib

ili
tie

s 
of

 A
ud

ito
rs

 a
nd

 A
ud

ite
d 

B
od

ie
s 

pu
bl

is
he

d 
by

 th
e 

A
ud

it 
C

om
m

is
si

on
 

in
 M

ar
ch

 2
01

0.
 

 R
es

p
ec

ti
ve

 r
es

p
o

n
si

b
ili

ti
es

 o
f 

th
e 

D
iv

is
io

n
al

 D
ir

ec
to

r 
F

in
an

ce
 a

n
d

 a
u

d
it

o
r 

A
s 

ex
pl

ai
ne

d 
m

or
e 

fu
lly

 in
 th

e 
S

ta
te

m
en

t o
f R

es
po

ns
ib

ili
tie

s 
fo

r 
th

e 
A

cc
ou

nt
s,

 th
e 

D
iv

is
io

na
l D

ire
ct

or
 F

in
an

ce
  i

s 
re

sp
on

si
bl

e 
fo

r 
th

e 
pr

ep
ar

at
io

n 
of

 th
e 

pe
ns

io
n 

fu
nd

’s
 S

ta
te

m
en

t o
f A

cc
ou

nt
s 

in
 a

cc
or

da
nc

e 
w

ith
 p

ro
pe

r 
pr

ac
tic

es
 a

s 
se

t o
ut

 in
 th

e 
C

IP
F

A
/L

A
S

A
A

C
 C

od
e 

of
 P

ra
ct

ic
e 

on
 L

oc
al

 A
ut

ho
rit

y 
A

cc
ou

nt
in

g 
in

 th
e 

U
ni

te
d 

K
in

gd
om

. M
y 

re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

y 
is

 to
 a

ud
it 

th
e 

ac
co

un
tin

g 
st

at
em

en
ts

 in
 a

cc
or

da
nc

e 
w

ith
 a

pp
lic

ab
le

 la
w

 a
nd

 In
te

rn
at

io
na

l 
S

ta
nd

ar
ds

 o
n 

A
ud

iti
ng

 (
U

K
 a

nd
 Ir

el
an

d)
. T

ho
se

 s
ta

nd
ar

ds
 r

eq
ui

re
 m

e 
to

 c
om

pl
y 

w
ith

 th
e 

A
ud

iti
ng

 P
ra

ct
ic

es
 B

oa
rd

’s
 E

th
ic

al
 S

ta
nd

ar
ds

 fo
r 

A
ud

ito
rs

. 
 S

co
p

e 
o

f 
th

e 
au

d
it

 o
f 

th
e 

fi
n

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
 

A
n 

au
di

t i
nv

ol
ve

s 
ob

ta
in

in
g 

ev
id

en
ce

 a
bo

ut
 th

e 
am

ou
nt

s 
an

d 
di

sc
lo

su
re

s 
in

 th
e 

ac
co

un
tin

g 
st

at
em

en
ts

 s
uf

fic
ie

nt
 to

 g
iv

e 
re

as
on

ab
le

 a
ss

ur
an

ce
 th

at
 th

e 
ac

co
un

tin
g 

st
at

em
en

ts
 a

re
 fr

ee
 fr

om
 m

at
er

ia
l m

is
st

at
em

en
t, 

w
he

th
er

 c
au

se
d 

by
 fr

au
d 

or
 e

rr
or

. T
hi

s 
in

cl
ud

es
 a

n 
as

se
ss

m
en

t o
f: 

w
he

th
er

 th
e 

ac
co

un
tin

g 
po

lic
ie

s 
ar

e 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 to
 th

e 
fu

nd
’s

 c
irc

um
st

an
ce

s 
an

d 
ha

ve
 b

ee
n 

co
ns

is
te

nt
ly

 a
pp

lie
d 

an
d 

ad
eq

ua
te

ly
 d

is
cl

os
ed

; t
he

 r
ea

so
na

bl
en

es
s 

of
 s

ig
ni

fic
an

t 

Page 91



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
A

nn
ua

l g
ov

er
na

nc
e 

re
po

rt
 

14
 ac

co
un

tin
g 

es
tim

at
es

 m
ad

e 
by

 th
e 

fu
nd

; a
nd

 th
e 

ov
er

al
l p

re
se

nt
at

io
n 

of
 th

e 
ac

co
un

tin
g 

st
at

em
en

ts
. I

 r
ea

d 
al

l t
he

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

in
 th

e 
ex

pl
an

at
or

y 
fo

re
w

or
d 

an
d 

th
e 

an
nu

al
 r

ep
or

t t
o 

id
en

tif
y 

m
at

er
ia

l i
nc

on
si

st
en

ci
es

 w
ith

 th
e 

au
di

te
d 

ac
co

un
tin

g 
st

at
em

en
ts

. I
f I

 b
ec

om
e 

aw
ar

e 
of

 a
ny

 a
pp

ar
en

t m
at

er
ia

l 
m

is
st

at
em

en
ts

 o
r 

in
co

ns
is

te
nc

ie
s 

I c
on

si
de

r 
th

e 
im

pl
ic

at
io

ns
 fo

r 
m

y 
re

po
rt

. 
 O

p
in

io
n

 o
n

 a
cc

o
u

n
ti

n
g

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

 

In
 m

y 
op

in
io

n 
th

e 
pe

ns
io

n 
fu

nd
’s

 a
cc

ou
nt

in
g 

st
at

em
en

ts
: 

! 
gi

ve
 a

 tr
ue

 a
nd

 fa
ir 

vi
ew

 o
f t

he
 fi

na
nc

ia
l t

ra
ns

ac
tio

ns
 o

f t
he

 p
en

si
on

 fu
nd

 d
ur

in
g 

th
e 

ye
ar

 e
nd

ed
 3

1 
M

ar
ch

 2
01

1 
an

d 
th

e 
am

ou
nt

 a
nd

 d
is

po
si

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
fu

nd
’s

 a
ss

et
s 

an
d 

lia
bi

lit
ie

s 
as

 a
t 3

1 
M

ar
ch

 2
01

1;
 a

nd
 

! 
ha

ve
 b

ee
n 

pr
op

er
ly

 p
re

pa
re

d 
in

 a
cc

or
da

nc
e 

w
ith

 th
e 

C
IP

F
A

/L
A

S
A

A
C

 C
od

e 
of

 P
ra

ct
ic

e 
on

 L
oc

al
 A

ut
ho

rit
y 

A
cc

ou
nt

in
g 

in
 th

e 
U

ni
te

d 
K

in
gd

om
. 

 O
p

in
io

n
 o

n
 o

th
er

 m
at

te
rs

 

In
 m

y 
op

in
io

n,
 th

e 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
gi

ve
n 

in
 th

e 
ex

pl
an

at
or

y 
fo

re
w

or
d 

an
d 

th
e 

co
nt

en
t o

f t
he

 A
nn

ua
l R

ep
or

t f
or

 th
e 

fin
an

ci
al

 y
ea

r 
fo

r 
w

hi
ch

 th
e 

ac
co

un
tin

g 
st

at
em

en
ts

 a
re

 p
re

pa
re

d 
is

 c
on

si
st

en
t w

ith
 th

e 
ac

co
un

tin
g 

st
at

em
en

ts
. 

C
o

n
cl

u
si

o
n

 o
n

 A
u

th
o

ri
ty

’s
 a

rr
an

g
em

en
ts

 f
o

r 
se

cu
ri

n
g

 e
co

n
o

m
y,

 e
ff

ic
ie

n
cy

 a
n

d
 e

ff
ec

ti
ve

n
es

s 
in

 t
h

e 
u

se
 o

f 
re

so
u

rc
es

 

A
u

th
o

ri
ty

’s
 r

es
p

o
n

si
b

ili
ti

es
 T

he
 A

ut
ho

rit
y 

is
 r

es
po

ns
ib

le
 fo

r 
pu

tti
ng

 in
 p

la
ce

 p
ro

pe
r 

ar
ra

ng
em

en
ts

 to
 s

ec
ur

e 
ec

on
om

y,
 e

ffi
ci

en
cy

 a
nd

 e
ffe

ct
iv

en
es

s 
in

 it
s 

us
e 

of
 r

es
ou

rc
es

, t
o 

en
su

re
 

pr
op

er
 s

te
w

ar
ds

hi
p 

an
d 

go
ve

rn
an

ce
, a

nd
 to

 r
ev

ie
w

 r
eg

ul
ar

ly
 th

e 
ad

eq
ua

cy
 a

nd
 e

ffe
ct

iv
en

es
s 

of
 th

es
e 

ar
ra

ng
em

en
ts

. 
 A

u
d

it
o

r’
s 

re
sp

o
n

si
b

ili
ti

es
 

I a
m

 r
eq

ui
re

d 
un

de
r 

S
ec

tio
n 

5 
of

 th
e 

A
ud

it 
C

om
m

is
si

on
 A

ct
 1

99
8 

to
 s

at
is

fy
 m

ys
el

f t
ha

t t
he

 A
ut

ho
rit

y 
ha

s 
m

ad
e 

pr
op

er
 a

rr
an

ge
m

en
ts

 fo
r 

se
cu

rin
g 

ec
on

om
y,

 e
ffi

ci
en

cy
 a

nd
 e

ffe
ct

iv
en

es
s 

in
 it

s 
us

e 
of

 r
es

ou
rc

es
. T

he
 C

od
e 

of
 A

ud
it 

P
ra

ct
ic

e 
is

su
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

A
ud

it 
C

om
m

is
si

on
 r

eq
ui

re
s 

m
e 

to
 r

ep
or

t t
o 

yo
u 

m
y 

co
nc

lu
si

on
 r

el
at

in
g 

to
 p

ro
pe

r 
ar

ra
ng

em
en

ts
, h

av
in

g 
re

ga
rd

 to
 r

el
ev

an
t c

rit
er

ia
 s

pe
ci

fie
d 

by
 th

e 
A

ud
it 

C
om

m
is

si
on

. 
 I r

ep
or

t i
f s

ig
ni

fic
an

t m
at

te
rs

 h
av

e 
co

m
e 

to
 m

y 
at

te
nt

io
n 

w
hi

ch
 p

re
ve

nt
 m

e 
fr

om
 c

on
cl

ud
in

g 
th

at
 th

e 
A

ut
ho

rit
y 

ha
s 

pu
t i

n 
pl

ac
e 

pr
op

er
 a

rr
an

ge
m

en
ts

 fo
r 

se
cu

rin
g 

ec
on

om
y,

 e
ffi

ci
en

cy
 a

nd
 e

ffe
ct

iv
en

es
s 

in
 it

s 
us

e 
of

 r
es

ou
rc

es
. I

 a
m

 n
ot

 r
eq

ui
re

d 
to

 c
on

si
de

r,
 n

or
 h

av
e 

I c
on

si
de

re
d,

 w
he

th
er

 a
ll 

as
pe

ct
s 

of
 th

e 
A

ut
ho

rit
y’

s 
ar

ra
ng

em
en

ts
 fo

r 
se

cu
rin

g 
ec

on
om

y,
 e

ffi
ci

en
cy

 a
nd

 e
ffe

ct
iv

en
es

s 
in

 it
s 

us
e 

of
 r

es
ou

rc
es

 a
re

 o
pe

ra
tin

g 
ef

fe
ct

iv
el

y.
 

 B
as

is
 o

f 
co

n
cl

u
si

o
n

 

I h
av

e 
un

de
rt

ak
en

 m
y 

au
di

t i
n 

ac
co

rd
an

ce
 w

ith
 th

e 
C

od
e 

of
 A

ud
it 

P
ra

ct
ic

e,
 h

av
in

g 
re

ga
rd

 to
 th

e 
gu

id
an

ce
 o

n 
th

e 
sp

ec
ifi

ed
 c

rit
er

ia
, p

ub
lis

he
d 

by
 th

e 
A

ud
it 

C
om

m
is

si
on

 in
 O

ct
ob

er
 2

01
0,

 a
s 

to
 w

he
th

er
 th

e 
A

ut
ho

rit
y 

ha
s 

pr
op

er
 a

rr
an

ge
m

en
ts

 fo
r:

 
! 

se
cu

rin
g 

fin
an

ci
al

 r
es

ili
en

ce
; a

nd
 

! 
ch

al
le

ng
in

g 
ho

w
 it

 s
ec

ur
es

 e
co

no
m

y,
 e

ffi
ci

en
cy

 a
nd

 e
ffe

ct
iv

en
es

s.
 

 

Page 92



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
A

nn
ua

l g
ov

er
na

nc
e 

re
po

rt
 

15
 T

he
 A

ud
it 

C
om

m
is

si
on

 h
as

 d
et

er
m

in
ed

 th
es

e 
tw

o 
cr

ite
ria

 a
s 

th
os

e 
ne

ce
ss

ar
y 

fo
r 

m
e 

to
 c

on
si

de
r 

un
de

r 
th

e 
C

od
e 

of
 A

ud
it 

P
ra

ct
ic

e 
in

 s
at

is
fy

in
g 

m
ys

el
f 

w
he

th
er

 th
e 

A
ut

ho
rit

y 
pu

t i
n 

pl
ac

e 
pr

op
er

 a
rr

an
ge

m
en

ts
 fo

r 
se

cu
rin

g 
ec

on
om

y,
 e

ffi
ci

en
cy

 a
nd

 e
ffe

ct
iv

en
es

s 
in

 it
s 

us
e 

of
 r

es
ou

rc
es

 fo
r 

th
e 

ye
ar

 e
nd

ed
 3

1 
M

ar
ch

 2
01

1.
 

 I p
la

nn
ed

 m
y 

w
or

k 
in

 a
cc

or
da

nc
e 

w
ith

 th
e 

C
od

e 
of

 A
ud

it 
P

ra
ct

ic
e.

 B
as

ed
 o

n 
m

y 
ris

k 
as

se
ss

m
en

t, 
I u

nd
er

to
ok

 s
uc

h 
w

or
k 

as
 I 

co
ns

id
er

ed
 n

ec
es

sa
ry

 to
 

fo
rm

 a
 v

ie
w

 o
n 

w
he

th
er

, i
n 

al
l s

ig
ni

fic
an

t r
es

pe
ct

s,
 th

e 
A

ut
ho

rit
y 

ha
d 

pu
t i

n 
pl

ac
e 

pr
op

er
 a

rr
an

ge
m

en
ts

 to
 s

ec
ur

e 
ec

on
om

y,
 e

ffi
ci

en
cy

 a
nd

 e
ffe

ct
iv

en
es

s 
in

 it
s 

us
e 

of
 r

es
ou

rc
es

. 

C
o

n
cl

u
si

o
n

 O
n 

th
e 

ba
si

s 
of

 m
y 

w
or

k,
 h

av
in

g 
re

ga
rd

 to
 th

e 
gu

id
an

ce
 o

n 
th

e 
sp

ec
ifi

ed
 c

rit
er

ia
 p

ub
lis

he
d 

by
 th

e 
A

ud
it 

C
om

m
is

si
on

 in
 O

ct
ob

er
 2

01
0,

 I 
am

 s
at

is
fie

d 
th

at
, 

in
 a

ll 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 r
es

pe
ct

s,
 B

a
th

 a
n

d
 N

o
rt

h
 E

a
s
t 

S
o

m
e

rs
e

t 
C

o
u

n
c
il 

pu
t i

n 
pl

ac
e 

pr
op

er
 a

rr
an

ge
m

en
ts

 to
 s

ec
ur

e 
ec

on
om

y,
 e

ffi
ci

en
cy

 a
nd

 e
ffe

ct
iv

en
es

s 
in

 
its

 u
se

 o
f r

es
ou

rc
es

 fo
r 

th
e 

ye
ar

 e
nd

in
g 

31
 M

ar
ch

 2
01

1.
 

 C
er

ti
fi

ca
te

I c
er

tif
y 

th
at

 I 
ha

ve
 c

om
pl

et
ed

 th
e 

au
di

t o
f t

he
 a

cc
ou

nt
s 

of
 B

at
h 

an
d 

N
or

th
 E

as
t S

om
er

se
t C

ou
nc

il 
an

d 
A

vo
n 

P
en

si
on

 F
un

d 
in

 a
cc

or
da

nc
e 

w
ith

 th
e 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 o
f t

he
 A

ud
it 

C
om

m
is

si
on

 A
ct

 1
99

8 
an

d 
th

e 
C

od
e 

of
 A

ud
it 

P
ra

ct
ic

e 
is

su
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

A
ud

it 
C

om
m

is
si

on
. 

     W
ay

ne
 R

ic
ka

rd
 

D
is

tr
ic

t A
ud

ito
r 

 A
ud

it 
C

om
m

is
si

on
 

3-
4 

B
le

nh
ei

m
 C

ou
rt

 
M

at
fo

rd
 B

us
in

es
s 

P
ar

k 
Lu

st
le

ig
h 

C
lo

se
 

E
xe

te
r,

 E
X

2 
8P

W
 

  30
 S

ep
te

m
be

r 
20

11
 

  

Page 93



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
A

nn
ua

l g
ov

er
na

nc
e 

re
po

rt
 

16
  A

u
d

it
 R

ep
o

rt
 t

o
 g

o
 w

it
h

 t
h

e 
P

en
si

o
n

 F
u

n
d

 A
n

n
u

al
 R

ep
o

rt
 

IN
D

E
P

E
N

D
E

N
T

 A
U

D
IT

O
R

’S
 R

E
P

O
R

T
 T

O
 T

H
E

 M
E

M
B

E
R

S
 O

F
 B

A
T

H
 A

N
D

 N
O

R
T

H
 E

A
S

T
 S

O
M

E
R

S
E

T
 C

O
U

N
C

IL
 

O
p

in
io

n
 o

n
 t

h
e 

p
en

si
o

n
 f

u
n

d
 a

cc
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
 

I h
av

e 
au

di
te

d 
th

e 
pe

ns
io

n 
fu

nd
 a

cc
ou

nt
in

g 
st

at
em

en
ts

 fo
r 

th
e 

ye
ar

 e
nd

ed
 3

1 
M

ar
ch

 2
01

1 
un

de
r 

th
e 

A
ud

it 
C

om
m

is
si

on
 A

ct
 1

99
8.

 T
he

 p
en

si
on

 fu
nd

 
ac

co
un

tin
g 

st
at

em
en

ts
 c

om
pr

is
e 

th
e 

F
un

d 
A

cc
ou

nt
, t

he
 N

et
 A

ss
et

s 
S

ta
te

m
en

t a
nd

 th
e 

re
la

te
d 

no
te

s.
 T

he
se

 a
cc

ou
nt

in
g 

st
at

em
en

ts
 h

av
e 

be
en

 p
re

pa
re

d 
un

de
r 

th
e 

ac
co

un
tin

g 
po

lic
ie

s 
se

t o
ut

 in
 th

e 
S

ta
te

m
en

t o
f A

cc
ou

nt
in

g 
P

ol
ic

ie
s.

 

T
hi

s 
re

po
rt

 is
 m

ad
e 

so
le

ly
 to

 th
e 

m
em

be
rs

 o
f B

at
h 

an
d 

N
or

th
 E

as
t S

om
er

se
t C

ou
nc

il 
in

 a
cc

or
da

nc
e 

w
ith

 P
ar

t I
I o

f t
he

 A
ud

it 
C

om
m

is
si

on
 A

ct
 1

99
8 

an
d 

fo
r 

no
 o

th
er

 p
ur

po
se

, a
s 

se
t o

ut
 in

 p
ar

ag
ra

ph
 4

8 
of

 th
e 

S
ta

te
m

en
t o

f R
es

po
ns

ib
ili

tie
s 

of
 A

ud
ito

rs
 a

nd
 o

f A
ud

ite
d 

B
od

ie
s 

pu
bl

is
he

d 
by

 th
e 

A
ud

it 
C

om
m

is
si

on
 in

 M
ar

ch
 2

01
0.

 
 R

es
p

ec
ti

ve
 r

es
p

o
n

si
b

ili
ti

es
 o

f 
th

e 
D

iv
is

io
n

al
 D

ir
ec

to
r 

o
f 

F
in

an
ce

 a
n

d
 a

u
d

it
o

r 

A
s 

ex
pl

ai
ne

d 
m

or
e 

fu
lly

 in
 th

e 
S

ta
te

m
en

t o
f R

es
po

ns
ib

ili
tie

s 
fo

r 
th

e 
A

cc
ou

nt
s,

 th
e 

D
iv

is
io

na
l D

ire
ct

or
 F

in
an

ce
 is

 r
es

po
ns

ib
le

 fo
r 

th
e 

pr
ep

ar
at

io
n 

of
 th

e 
pe

ns
io

n 
fu

nd
’s

 S
ta

te
m

en
t o

f A
cc

ou
nt

s 
in

 a
cc

or
da

nc
e 

w
ith

 p
ro

pe
r 

pr
ac

tic
es

 a
s 

se
t o

ut
 in

 th
e 

C
IP

F
A

/L
A

S
A

A
C

 C
od

e 
of

 P
ra

ct
ic

e 
on

 L
oc

al
 A

ut
ho

rit
y 

A
cc

ou
nt

in
g 

in
 th

e 
U

ni
te

d 
K

in
gd

om
. M

y 
re

sp
on

si
bi

lit
y 

is
 to

 a
ud

it 
th

e 
ac

co
un

tin
g 

st
at

em
en

ts
 in

 a
cc

or
da

nc
e 

w
ith

 a
pp

lic
ab

le
 la

w
 a

nd
 In

te
rn

at
io

na
l 

S
ta

nd
ar

ds
 o

n 
A

ud
iti

ng
 (

U
K

 a
nd

 Ir
el

an
d)

. T
ho

se
 s

ta
nd

ar
ds

 r
eq

ui
re

 m
e 

to
 c

om
pl

y 
w

ith
 th

e 
A

ud
iti

ng
 P

ra
ct

ic
es

 B
oa

rd
’s

 E
th

ic
al

 S
ta

nd
ar

ds
 fo

r 
A

ud
ito

rs
.

S
co

p
e 

o
f 

th
e 

au
d

it
 o

f 
th

e 
fi

n
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

 

A
n 

au
di

t i
nv

ol
ve

s 
ob

ta
in

in
g 

ev
id

en
ce

 a
bo

ut
 th

e 
am

ou
nt

s 
an

d 
di

sc
lo

su
re

s 
in

 th
e 

ac
co

un
tin

g 
st

at
em

en
ts

 s
uf

fic
ie

nt
 to

 g
iv

e 
re

as
on

ab
le

 a
ss

ur
an

ce
 th

at
 th

e 
ac

co
un

tin
g 

st
at

em
en

ts
 a

re
 fr

ee
 fr

om
 m

at
er

ia
l m

is
st

at
em

en
t, 

w
he

th
er

 c
au

se
d 

by
 fr

au
d 

or
 e

rr
or

. T
hi

s 
in

cl
ud

es
 a

n 
as

se
ss

m
en

t o
f: 

w
he

th
er

 th
e 

ac
co

un
tin

g 
po

lic
ie

s 
ar

e 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 to
 th

e 
fu

nd
’s

 c
irc

um
st

an
ce

s 
an

d 
ha

ve
 b

ee
n 

co
ns

is
te

nt
ly

 a
pp

lie
d 

an
d 

ad
eq

ua
te

ly
 d

is
cl

os
ed

; t
he

 r
ea

so
na

bl
en

es
s 

of
 s

ig
ni

fic
an

t 
ac

co
un

tin
g 

es
tim

at
es

 m
ad

e 
by

 th
e 

fu
nd

; a
nd

 th
e 

ov
er

al
l p

re
se

nt
at

io
n 

of
 th

e 
ac

co
un

tin
g 

st
at

em
en

ts
. I

 r
ea

d 
al

l t
he

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

in
 th

e 
an

nu
al

 r
ep

or
t t

o 
id

en
tif

y 
m

at
er

ia
l i

nc
on

si
st

en
ci

es
 w

ith
 th

e 
au

di
te

d 
ac

co
un

tin
g 

st
at

em
en

ts
. I

f I
 b

ec
om

e 
aw

ar
e 

of
 a

ny
 a

pp
ar

en
t m

at
er

ia
l m

is
st

at
em

en
ts

 o
r 

in
co

ns
is

te
nc

ie
s 

I 
co

ns
id

er
 th

e 
im

pl
ic

at
io

ns
 fo

r 
m

y 
re

po
rt

. 

O
p

in
io

n
 o

n
 a

cc
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
 

In
 m

y 
op

in
io

n 
th

e 
pe

ns
io

n 
fu

nd
’s

 a
cc

ou
nt

in
g 

st
at

em
en

ts
: 

! 
gi

ve
 a

 tr
ue

 a
nd

 fa
ir 

vi
ew

 o
f t

he
 fi

na
nc

ia
l t

ra
ns

ac
tio

ns
 o

f t
he

 p
en

si
on

 fu
nd

 d
ur

in
g 

th
e 

ye
ar

 e
nd

ed
 3

1 
M

ar
ch

 2
01

1 
an

d 
th

e 
am

ou
nt

 a
nd

 d
is

po
si

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
fu

nd
’s

 a
ss

et
s 

an
d 

lia
bi

lit
ie

s 
as

 a
t 3

1 
M

ar
ch

 2
01

1;
 a

nd
 

! 
ha

ve
 b

ee
n 

pr
op

er
ly

 p
re

pa
re

d 
in

 a
cc

or
da

nc
e 

w
ith

 th
e 

C
IP

F
A

/L
A

S
A

A
C

 C
od

e 
of

 P
ra

ct
ic

e 
on

 L
oc

al
 A

ut
ho

rit
y 

A
cc

ou
nt

in
g 

in
 th

e 
U

ni
te

d 
K

in
gd

om
. 

Page 94



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
A

nn
ua

l g
ov

er
na

nc
e 

re
po

rt
 

17
 O

p
in

io
n

 o
n

 o
th

er
 m

at
te

rs
 

In
 m

y 
op

in
io

n,
 th

e 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
gi

ve
n 

in
 th

e 
an

nu
al

 r
ep

or
t f

or
 th

e 
fin

an
ci

al
 y

ea
r 

fo
r 

w
hi

ch
 th

e 
ac

co
un

tin
g 

st
at

em
en

ts
 a

re
 p

re
pa

re
d 

is
 c

on
si

st
en

t w
ith

 th
e 

ac
co

un
tin

g 
st

at
em

en
ts

. 
 M

at
te

rs
 o

n
 w

h
ic

h
 I 

re
p

o
rt

 b
y 

ex
ce

p
ti

o
n

 

I h
av

e 
no

th
in

g 
to

 r
ep

or
t i

n 
re

sp
ec

t o
f t

he
 g

ov
er

na
nc

e 
st

at
em

en
t o

n 
w

hi
ch

 I 
re

po
rt

 to
 y

ou
 if

, i
n 

m
y 

op
in

io
n 

th
e 

go
ve

rn
an

ce
 s

ta
te

m
en

t d
oe

s 
no

t r
ef

le
ct

 
co

m
pl

ia
nc

e 
w

ith
 th

e 
Lo

ca
l G

ov
er

nm
en

t P
en

si
on

 S
ch

em
e 

(A
dm

in
is

tr
at

io
n)

 R
eg

ul
at

io
ns

 2
00

8 
an

d 
re

la
te

d 
gu

id
an

ce
. 

     W
ay

ne
 R

ic
ka

rd
 

D
is

tr
ic

t A
ud

ito
r 

 A
ud

it 
C

om
m

is
si

on
 

3-
4 

B
le

nh
ei

m
 C

ou
rt

 
M

at
fo

rd
 B

us
in

es
s 

P
ar

k 
Lu

st
le

ig
h 

C
lo

se
 

E
xe

te
r,

 E
X

2 
8P

W
 

  30
 S

ep
te

m
be

r 
20

11
 

    

Page 95



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
A

nn
ua

l g
ov

er
na

nc
e 

re
po

rt
 

18
 A

p
p

en
d

ix
 2

 –
 A

m
en

d
m

en
ts

 t
o

 
th

e 
d

ra
ft

 f
in

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
 

I i
d

en
ti

fi
ed

 t
h

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g

 m
is

st
at

em
en

ts
 d

u
ri

n
g

 m
y 

au
d

it
 a

n
d

 m
an

ag
em

en
t 

h
av

e 
ad

ju
st

ed
 t

h
e 

fi
n

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
. I

 b
ri

n
g

 t
h

em
 t

o

yo
u

r 
at

te
n

ti
o

n
 t

o
 a

id
 y

o
u

 in
 f

u
lf

ill
in

g
 y

o
u

r 
g

o
ve

rn
an

ce
 r

es
p

o
n

si
b

ili
ti

es
. 

 

F
u

n
d

 A
cc

o
u

n
t 

N
et

 A
ss

et
s 

S
ta

te
m

en
t 

A
dj

us
te

d 
m

is
st

at
em

en
t 

N
at

ur
e 

of
 a

dj
us

tm
en

t 
D

r 
£0

00
s 

C
r 

£0
00

s 
D

r 
£0

00
s 

C
r 

£0
00

s 

A
 ‘d

ef
er

re
d 

ch
ar

ge
’ h

ad
 b

ee
n 

cr
ea

te
d 

in
 th

e 
ac

co
un

ts
. E

ffe
ct

iv
el

y 
th

e 
co

st
 o

f t
he

 tr
ie

nn
ia

l v
al

ua
tio

n 
w

as
 b

ei
ng

 c
ha

rg
ed

 to
 fu

tu
re

 y
ea

rs
 

ac
co

un
ts

. 

T
he

 a
cc

ou
nt

s 
co

de
 r

eq
ui

re
s 

th
is

 to
 

be
 w

rit
te

n 
of

f i
n 

th
e 

ye
ar

 it
 is

 
in

cu
rr

ed
. 

13
4 

 
 

13
4 

Page 96



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
A

nn
ua

l g
ov

er
na

nc
e 

re
po

rt
 

19
 A

p
p

en
d

ix
 3

 –
 U

n
ad

ju
st

ed
 

m
is

st
at

em
en

ts
 t

o
 t

h
e 

fi
n

an
ci

al
 

st
at

em
en

ts
T

h
er

e 
ar

e 
n

o
 u

n
co

rr
ec

te
d

 m
is

st
at

em
en

ts
 a

ri
si

n
g

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e 

20
10

/1
1 

au
d

it
.  

A
u

d
it

in
g

 s
ta

n
d

ar
d

s 
re

q
u

ir
e 

th
at

 I 
re

p
o

rt
 u

n
co

rr
ec

te
d

 
m

is
st

at
em

en
ts

 f
ro

m
 p

ri
o

r 
p

er
io

d
s 

an
d

 t
h

ei
r 

ef
fe

ct
 o

n
 t

h
is

 y
ea

r’
s 

st
at

em
en

ts
. T

h
e 

ef
fe

ct
 o

n
 2

01
0/

11
 is

 n
o

t 
m

at
er

ia
l. 

F
un

d 
ac

co
un

t 
N

et
 a

ss
et

 s
ta

te
m

en
t 

U
na

dj
us

te
d 

m
is

st
at

em
en

t 
N

at
ur

e 
of

 r
eq

ui
re

d 
ad

ju
st

m
en

t 
D

r 
£0

00
s 

C
r 

£0
00

s 
D

r 
£0

00
s 

C
r 

£0
00

s 

‘S
tr

ai
n 

on
 th

e 
fu

nd
’ c

os
ts

 n
ot

 
in

vo
ic

ed
 in

 2
00

9/
10

 
D

eb
to

rs
 w

er
e 

un
de

rs
ta

te
d 

an
d 

co
nt

rib
ut

io
ns

 r
ec

ei
va

bl
e 

w
er

e 
un

de
rs

ta
te

d 
by

 th
e 

sa
m

e 
am

ou
nt

 in
 

20
09

/1
0.

  A
dd

iti
on

al
 c

on
tr

ib
ut

io
ns

 w
ill

 
ha

ve
 b

ee
n 

di
sc

lo
se

d 
in

 th
e 

20
10

/1
1 

ac
co

un
ts

. 

 
1,

07
4 

1,
07

4 
 

E
rr

or
 o

n 
am

ou
nt

 d
ue

 fr
om

 B
&

N
E

S
 

C
ou

nc
il 

D
eb

to
rs

 w
er

e 
un

de
rs

ta
te

d 
an

d 
th

e 
fu

nd
 a

cc
ou

nt
 u

nd
er

st
at

ed
. T

he
 

am
ou

nt
s 

w
er

e 
di

sc
lo

se
d 

in
 2

01
0/

11
. 

 
15

2 
15

2 
 

 

Page 97



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
A

nn
ua

l g
ov

er
na

nc
e 

re
po

rt
 

20
 A

p
p

en
d

ix
 4

 –
 G

lo
ss

ar
y 

A
n

n
u

al
 g

o
ve

rn
an

ce
 s

ta
te

m
en

t

A
 s

ta
te

m
en

t o
f i

nt
er

na
l c

on
tr

ol
 p

re
pa

re
d 

by
 a

n 
au

di
te

d 
bo

dy
 a

nd
 p

ub
lis

he
d 

w
ith

 th
e 

fin
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

. 

 A
u

d
it

 c
lo

su
re

 c
er

ti
fi

ca
te

A
 c

er
tif

ic
at

e 
th

at
 I 

ha
ve

 c
om

pl
et

ed
 th

e 
au

di
t f

ol
lo

w
in

g 
st

at
ut

or
y 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

. T
hi

s 
m

ar
ks

 th
e 

po
in

t w
he

n 
I h

av
e 

co
m

pl
et

ed
 m

y 
re

sp
on

si
bi

lit
ie

s 
fo

r 
th

e 
au

di
t o

f t
he

 p
er

io
d 

co
ve

re
d 

by
 th

e 
fin

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
. 

 A
u

d
it

 o
p

in
io

n
  

O
n 

co
m

pl
et

io
n 

of
 th

e 
au

di
t o

f t
he

 fi
na

nc
ia

l s
ta

te
m

en
ts

, I
 m

us
t g

iv
e 

m
y 

op
in

io
n 

on
 th

e 
fin

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
, i

nc
lu

di
ng

:  
!

 
w

he
th

er
 th

ey
 g

iv
e 

a 
tr

ue
 a

nd
 fa

ir 
vi

ew
 o

f t
he

 fi
na

nc
ia

l p
os

iti
on

 o
f t

he
 a

ud
ite

d 
bo

dy
 a

nd
 it

s 
sp

en
di

ng
 a

nd
 in

co
m

e 
fo

r 
th

e 
ye

ar
 in

 q
ue

st
io

n;
 a

nd
  

!
 

w
he

th
er

 th
ey

 h
av

e 
be

en
 p

re
pa

re
d 

pr
op

er
ly

, f
ol

lo
w

in
g 

th
e 

re
le

va
nt

 a
cc

ou
nt

in
g 

ru
le

s.
   

 O
p

in
io

n
 

If 
I a

gr
ee

 th
at

 th
e 

fin
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

 g
iv

e 
a 

tr
ue

 a
nd

 fa
ir 

vi
ew

, I
 is

su
e 

an
 u

nq
ua

lif
ie

d 
op

in
io

n.
 I 

is
su

e 
a 

qu
al

ifi
ed

 o
pi

ni
on

 if
: 

!
 

I f
in

d 
th

e 
st

at
em

en
ts

 d
o 

no
t g

iv
e 

a 
tr

ue
 a

nd
 fa

ir 
vi

ew
; o

r 
!

 
I c

an
no

t c
on

fir
m

 th
at

 th
e 

st
at

em
en

ts
 g

iv
e 

a 
tr

ue
 a

nd
 fa

ir 
vi

ew
. 

     

Page 98



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
A

nn
ua

l g
ov

er
na

nc
e 

re
po

rt
 

21
 M

at
er

ia
lit

y 
an

d
 s

ig
n

if
ic

an
ce

 

T
he

 A
ud

iti
ng

 P
ra

ct
ic

es
 B

oa
rd

 (
A

P
B

) 
de

fin
es

 th
is

 c
on

ce
pt

 a
s 

‘a
n 

ex
pr

es
si

on
 o

f t
he

 r
el

at
iv

e 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nc

e 
or

 im
po

rt
an

ce
 o

f a
 p

ar
tic

ul
ar

 m
at

te
r 

fo
r 

th
e 

fin
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

 a
s 

a 
w

ho
le

. A
 m

at
te

r 
is

 m
at

er
ia

l i
f i

ts
 o

m
is

si
on

 w
ou

ld
 r

ea
so

na
bl

y 
in

flu
en

ce
 u

se
rs

 o
f t

he
 fi

na
nc

ia
l s

ta
te

m
en

ts
, s

uc
h 

as
 th

e 
ad

dr
es

se
es

 o
f t

he
 a

ud
ito

r’s
 r

ep
or

t; 
al

so
 a

 m
is

st
at

em
en

t i
s 

m
at

er
ia

l i
f i

t w
ou

ld
 h

av
e 

a 
si

m
ila

r 
in

flu
en

ce
. M

at
er

ia
lit

y 
m

ay
 a

ls
o 

be
 c

on
si

de
re

d 
fo

r 
an

y 
in

di
vi

du
al

 p
rim

ar
y 

st
at

em
en

t w
ith

in
 th

e 
fin

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
 o

r 
of

 in
di

vi
du

al
 it

em
s 

in
cl

ud
ed

 in
 th

em
. W

e 
ca

nn
ot

 d
ef

in
e 

m
at

er
ia

lit
y 

m
at

he
m

at
ic

al
ly

, a
s 

it 
ha

s 
bo

th
 n

um
er

ic
al

 a
nd

 n
on

-n
um

er
ic

al
 a

sp
ec

ts
’. 

 

T
he

 te
rm

 ‘m
at

er
ia

lit
y’

 a
pp

lie
s 

on
ly

 to
 th

e 
fin

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
. A

ud
ito

rs
 a

pp
oi

nt
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

C
om

m
is

si
on

 h
av

e 
re

sp
on

si
bi

lit
ie

s 
an

d 
du

tie
s 

un
de

r 
st

at
ut

e,
 a

s 
w

el
l a

s 
th

ei
r 

re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

y 
to

 g
iv

e 
an

 o
pi

ni
on

 o
n 

th
e 

fin
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

, w
hi

ch
 d

o 
no

t n
ec

es
sa

ril
y 

af
fe

ct
 th

ei
r 

op
in

io
n 

on
 th

e 
fin

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
.  

‘S
ig

ni
fic

an
ce

’ a
pp

lie
s 

to
 th

es
e 

w
id

er
 r

es
po

ns
ib

ili
tie

s 
an

d 
au

di
to

rs
 a

do
pt

 a
 le

ve
l o

f s
ig

ni
fic

an
ce

 th
at

 m
ay

 d
iff

er
 fr

om
 th

e 
m

at
er

ia
lit

y 
le

ve
l a

pp
lie

d 
to

 th
ei

r 
au

di
t i

n 
re

la
tio

n 
to

 th
e 

fin
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

. S
ig

ni
fic

an
ce

 h
as

 b
ot

h 
qu

al
ita

tiv
e 

an
d 

qu
an

tit
at

iv
e 

as
pe

ct
s.

  

 W
ea

kn
es

se
s 

in
 in

te
rn

al
 c

o
n

tr
o

l 

A
 w

ea
kn

es
s 

in
 in

te
rn

al
 c

on
tr

ol
 e

xi
st

s 
w

he
n:

  
!

 
a 

co
nt

ro
l i

s 
de

si
gn

ed
, s

et
 u

p 
or

 u
se

d 
in

 s
uc

h 
a 

w
ay

 th
at

 it
 is

 u
na

bl
e 

to
 p

re
ve

nt
, o

r 
de

te
ct

 a
nd

 c
or

re
ct

, m
is

st
at

em
en

ts
 in

 th
e 

fin
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

 
qu

ic
kl

y;
 o

r 
 

!
 

a 
co

nt
ro

l n
ec

es
sa

ry
 to

 p
re

ve
nt

, o
r 

de
te

ct
 a

nd
 c

or
re

ct
, m

is
st

at
em

en
ts

 in
 th

e 
fin

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
 q

ui
ck

ly
 is

 m
is

si
ng

.  

A
n 

im
po

rt
an

t w
ea

kn
es

s 
in

 in
te

rn
al

 c
on

tr
ol

 is
 a

 w
ea

kn
es

s,
 o

r 
a 

co
m

bi
na

tio
n 

of
 w

ea
kn

es
se

s 
th

at
, i

n 
m

y 
pr

of
es

si
on

al
 ju

dg
em

en
t, 

ar
e 

im
po

rt
an

t e
no

ug
h 

th
at

 I 
sh

ou
ld

 r
ep

or
t t

he
m

 to
 y

ou
. 

  

Page 99



  If 
yo

u 
re

qu
ire

 a
 c

op
y 

of
 th

is
 d

oc
um

en
t i

n 
an

 a
lte

rn
at

iv
e 

fo
rm

at
 o

r 
in

 a
 la

ng
ua

ge
 o

th
er

 th
an

 E
ng

lis
h,

 p
le

as
e 

ca
ll:

  
08

44
 7

98
 7

07
0 

©
 A

ud
it 

C
om

m
is

si
on

 2
01

1.
 

D
es

ig
n 

an
d 

pr
od

uc
tio

n 
by

 th
e 

A
ud

it 
C

om
m

is
si

on
 P

ub
lis

hi
ng

 T
ea

m
. 

Im
ag

e 
co

py
rig

ht
 ©

 A
ud

it 
C

om
m

is
si

on
. 

 T
he

 S
ta

te
m

en
t o

f R
es

po
ns

ib
ili

tie
s 

of
 A

ud
ito

rs
 a

nd
 A

ud
ite

d 
B

od
ie

s 
is

su
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

A
ud

it 
C

om
m

is
si

on
 e

xp
la

in
s 

th
e 

re
sp

ec
tiv

e 
re

sp
on

si
bi

lit
ie

s 
of

 a
ud

ito
rs

 
an

d 
of

 th
e 

au
di

te
d 

bo
dy

. R
ep

or
ts

 p
re

pa
re

d 
by

 a
pp

oi
nt

ed
 a

ud
ito

rs
 a

re
 a

dd
re

ss
ed

 to
 n

on
-e

xe
cu

tiv
e 

di
re

ct
or

s,
 m

em
be

rs
 o

r 
of

fic
er

s.
 T

he
y 

ar
e 

pr
ep

ar
ed

 fo
r 

th
e 

so
le

 u
se

 o
f t

he
 a

ud
ite

d 
bo

dy
. A

ud
ito

rs
 a

cc
ep

t n
o 

re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

y 
to

: 
!

 
an

y 
di

re
ct

or
/m

em
be

r 
or

 o
ffi

ce
r 

in
 th

ei
r 

in
di

vi
du

al
 c

ap
ac

ity
; o

r 
 

!
 

an
y 

th
ird

 p
ar

ty
.  

           

 
 w

w
w

.a
u

d
it

-c
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

.g
o

v.
u

k 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
S

ep
te

m
b

er
 2

01
1 

Page 100



Printed on recycled paper 1

  

Bath & North East Somerset Council 
 

MEETING: AVON PENSION FUND COMMITTEE 
MEETING 
DATE: 

23 September 2011 AGENDA  
ITEM 
NUMBER 

 

TITLE: ANNUAL REPORT 2010/11  
WARD: ALL 
AN OPEN PUBLIC ITEM 
List of attachments to this report:  
Appendix 1  - Avon Pension Fund Annual Report 2010/11 (draft) 
  
 
 
1 THE ISSUE 
1.1 The Avon Pension Fund Annual Report for 2010/11 has been drafted and is now 

formally presented to the Committee.  
1.2 The annual report is a statutory document and as such the Committee is asked to 

approve the draft report, on the basis that no substantive changes will be made to 
it following Committee approval.  

1.3 The external Auditor has reviewed the Annual Report as part of the Fund’s audit. 
1.4 The report will be published ahead of the deadline of 1 December 2011.  
 
 
2 RECOMMENDATION 
That the Committee  
2.1 approves the draft Avon Pension Fund Annual Report 2010/11 
2.2 notes the arrangements for distribution of the Avon Pension Fund Report 

2010/11 
 
 
 

 

 

Agenda Item 9

Page 101



Printed on recycled paper 2

3 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
3.1 The cost of producing the 2010/11 Annual Report of £2,500 is provided for in the 

budget.    
4 REPORT 
4.1 Under the Local Government Pension Scheme (Administration) Regulations 2008, 

the annual report has become a statutory document, with all funds required to 
publish a report annually by 1 December.  As this is before the next committee 
meeting, the Committee are asked to approve the 2010/11 report in draft form.  
No substantive changes are expected to be made following the Committee’s 
approval. 

4.2 The external auditor has reviewed the annual report as part of the audit. 
4.3 An electronic copy of the 2010/11 Annual Report will been sent to all employing 

bodies in the Avon Pension Fund (with a request that it is made available to their 
pension scheme members for reference purposes).  Hard copies will be available 
on request. 

6.2 Scheme members will be able to most easily access a copy of the Annual Report 
either via their employer, on the Avon Pension Fund website or at any of the 
clinics organised by the Fund. In addition, the next newsletters for members will 
include a synopsis of the Annual Report. 

5 RISK MANAGEMENT 
5.1 The Avon Pension Fund Committee is the formal decision-making body for the 

Fund.  As such it has responsibility to ensure adequate risk management 
processes are in place.  It discharges this responsibility by ensuring the Fund has 
an appropriate investment strategy and investment management structure in 
place that is regularly monitored.  In addition it monitors the benefits 
administration, the risk register and compliance with relevant investment, finance 
and administration regulations.  

6 EQUALITIES 
6.1 The Annual Report is available in alternative formats on request. 
7 CONSULTATION 
7.1 N/a 
8 ISSUES TO CONSIDER IN REACHING THE DECISION 
8.1 N/a. 
9 ADVICE SOUGHT 
9.1 The Council's Monitoring Officer (Council Solicitor) and Section 151 Officer 

(Divisional Director - Finance) have had the opportunity to input to this report and 
have cleared it for publication.  

 
Page 102



Printed on recycled paper 3

Contact person  Liz Feinstein, Investments Manager 01225 395306 
Background papers  
Please contact the report author if you need to access this report in an alternative 
format 
 

Page 103



Page 104

This page is intentionally left blank



AVON
PENSION

FUND

!"#$%&'$()#$%*+$,

!$$+-.%/'0#12
345463455

Page 105



Page 106



AVON PENSION FUND ANNUAL REPORT 2010/11 1

Contents

!"#$%#&'()'*+,"-#.+,'/0#+.1"#2!Page 2

*+30+$'"4'15+'6+%#2'Page 3

7"3+#8%8.+'9':%8%;+<+81'=1#-.1-#+2!Page 6

!-8&'7"3+#8%8.+2!Page 7

*0,>':%8%;+<+812!Page10

?+8,0"8,'@&<080,1#%10"8'*+A"#12!Page 12

B83+,1<+81'*+A"#12!Page 15

@.1-%#0%C'*+A"#1'9'!-8&08;'=1#%1+;)'=1%1+<+812!Page 23

=1%1+<+81'"4'15+'D"8,-C108;'@.1-%#)2!Page 24

E<AC")+#,F'D"81#0(-10"8'*%1+,2!Page 26

=1%1+<+81'"4'@.."-81,2!Page 29

=1%1+<+81'"4'*+,A"8,0(0C010+,2!Page 52

@-&01"#F,'*+A"#12!Page 53

G'6+%#'!08%8.0%C'=-<<%#)2!Page 55

?+8,0"8'B8.#+%,+2!Page 56

D"81%.1'H%<+,2!Page 57

@AA+8&0I2!Page 58

7C",,%#)'"4'J+#<,2!Page 59

Contents

Avon Pension Fund 
Annual Report 2010/11

J50,' )+%#F,' #+A"#1' 08.C-&+,' A5"1";#%A5,' .+C+(#%108;'
KHE=DL' M"#C&' N+#01%;+' ,01+,2' 08.C-&08;' O%15' %8&'
=1"8+5+8;+P'J50,' 15+<+'$%,',+C+.1+&' 1"'50;5C0;51' 15+'
!-8&F,' 08.#+%,+&' ."<<01<+81' 1"' ;C"(%C' +Q-01)' %8&'
A#"A+#1)'083+,1<+81,P

Page 107



AVON PENSION FUND ANNUAL REPORT 2010/112

Forward by Resources Director

B1' 5%,' (++8' %8"15+#' .5%CC+8;08;' )+%#' 4"#' 15+' !-8&' %,'
A-(C0.' ,+.1"#' A+8,0"8' ,.5+<+,' 08.C-&08;' 15+' R".%C'
7"3+#8<+81' ?+8,0"8' =.5+<+' SR7?=T' -8&+#$+81'
,0;80U.%81' A-(C0.' ,.#-108)' %,' %' #+,-C1' "4' 15+' N-11"8'
D"<<0,,0"8'*+30+$P
'
J5+'D"<<0,,0"8F,' #+A"#1'%&&#+,,08;' 15+',-,1%08%(0C01)'
%8&' %44"#&%(0C01)' "4' A-(C0.' ,+.1"#' A+8,0"8,' 5%,' (++8'
%..+A1+&'()'15+'7"3+#8<+81'(-1'$+',10CC'%$%01'&+U80103+'
A#"A",%C,'1"'(+'(#"-;51'4"#$%#&P'

J5+' &04U.-C1)' 4"#' 15+' R7?=' 0,' 15%1' <%8)' "4' 15+'
#+."<<+8&%10"8,'%#+'(%,+&'"8'15+'#+Q-0#+<+81,'"4'15+'
"15+#' -84-8&+&' A-(C0.' ,+.1"#' ,.5+<+,' %8&' 15+#+' 0,' %'
#0,>'15%1'15+',1#+8;15,'"4'15+'R7?='."-C&'(+'&0C-1+&'%,'%'
#+,-C1'"4'15+'+I+#.0,+P'B8'15+'<+%810<+'15+'!-8&'0,'A-1108;'
AC%8,'08'AC%.+'1"'<%8%;+'15+'+IA+.1+&'.5%8;+,'1"'15+'
R7?=2'%,'%8)'.5%8;+,'$0CC'8++&'1"'(+'."<<-80.%1+&'1"'
<+<(+#,'%8&'+<AC")+#,'%C0>+P'

J5+'!-8&'C%-8.5+&'01,'@&<080,1#%10"8'=1#%1+;)'08'VWXX2'
$015' 15+'%0<'"4' 0<A#"308;' 15+'Q-%C01)'%8&'+4U.0+8.)'"4'
15+',+#30.+'A#"30&+&'15#"-;5'<"#+'+44+.103+'A%#18+#,50A'
$"#>08;'$015' 15+'!-8&F,'+<AC")08;'("&0+,P'*"CC08;'"-1'
"4'150,',1#%1+;)'"3+#'15+'8+I1'4+$')+%#,'$0CC'(+'.#010.%C'1"'
<++108;'15+'.5%CC+8;+,'%5+%&P'

VWXWYXX' %C,"' ,%$' 15+' VWXW' 1#0+880%C' 3%C-%10"8' $50.5'
,+1,' 15+' ."81#0(-10"8' #%1+,' 4"#' 15+' 8+I1' 15#++' )+%#,P'
J50,' $%,' "(30"-,C)' &"8+' %;%08,1' %' &04U.-C1' 4-8&08;'
(%.>;#"-8&'4"#'"-#'+<AC")+#,'$50.5'4%.+'#+&-.10"8,'08'
(-&;+1,'"3+#'15+'4"#+,++%(C+'4-1-#+P'J5+'3%C-%10"8'1"">'

15+,+'.0#.-<,1%8.+,'081"'%.."-81'()'>++A08;'+<AC")+#'
."81#0(-10"8' #%1+,' ,1%(C+' $5+#+' A",,0(C+' (-1' $01508'
A%#%<+1+#,'15%1'$0CC'+8,-#+'15+'"8;"08;',"C3+8.)'"4'15+'
!-8&P

=08.+':%#.5'VWXX2',0;80U.%81'3"C%10C01)'5%,'#+1-#8+&' 1"'
;C"(%C'<%#>+1,'&-+'1"'4+%#,'"3+#';"3+#8<+81'&+(1'C+3+C,'
%8&'15+'#0,>'"4'#+.+,,0"8'08'15+'&+3+C"A+&'+."8"<0+,P'
J5+'!-8&'#+<%08,'30;0C%81'1"'15+,+'15#+%1,Z'5"$+3+#2'15+'
!-8&'5%,'%'C"8;'1+#<'083+,1<+81'A+#,A+.103+'%8&'5%,'%'
$+CC'&03+#,0U+&'A"#14"C0"'$50.5',5"-C&'5+CA'<080<0,+'15+'
0<A%.1'"4'8+;%103+'<%#>+1'#+1-#8,P
'
J5+':%)'VWXX'C".%C'+C+.10"8,'5%3+'#+,-C1+&'08'%'8-<(+#'
"4' <+<(+#,' C+%308;' 15+' D"<<011++2' 08.C-&08;' "-#'
D5%0#<%8' 4"#' 15+' C%,1' 4"-#' )+%#,2' D"-8.0CC"#' 7"#&"8'
M""&P'B'$"-C&'C0>+'1"'15%8>'%CC'"-#'D"<<011++'<+<(+#,'
4"#' 15+'3%C-%(C+' 08A-1' 15+)'5%3+'A#"30&+&'"3+#'15+' C%,1'
4+$')+%#,P'

J5+' ;"3+#8%8.+' ,1#-.1-#+' <+%8,' 15+' !-8&' #+1%08,'
,0;80U.%81'+IA+#10,+'%8&'+IA+#0+8.+'"3+#'150,'1#%8,010"8'
%8&' 15+' "4U.+#,' C"">' 4"#$%#&' 1"'$"#>08;'$015' 15+' 8+$'
D"<<011++'"3+#'15+'8+I1'4+$')+%#,P

!08%CC)' B' $"-C&' C0>+' 1"' 15%8>' %CC' 15+' ,1%44' 4"#' 15+0#'
."81#0(-10"8' 1"' &+C03+#08;' %' 50;5' ,1%8&%#&' "4' ,+#30.+'
15#"-;5"-1'15+')+%#P

Foward by Strategic Director

Andrew Pate
Director of Resources and Support Services

The Roman Baths, Bath, UK 

Rom
an Baths ©

 Bath Tourism
 Plus 

Page 108



AVON PENSION FUND ANNUAL REPORT 2010/11 3

Review of the Year

B8' :%#.5' VWXX2' 15+' B8&+A+8&+81'
?-(C0.' =+#30.+' ?+8,0"8' D"<<0,[
,0"82' C+&'()'R"#&'N-11"82' 0,,-+&' 01,'
U8%C'#+A"#1P'J5+'<",1',0;80U.%81'#+.[
"<<+8&%10"8,' 4"#' 15+' R7?=' $+#+'
%,'4"CC"$,\

]' #+AC%.08;'15+'U8%C',%C%#)',.5+<+'
$015' %' .%#++#' %3+#%;+' SD@*ET'
,.5+<+' $015' %88-%C' 08.#+%,+,'
C08>+&'1"'A%)'%$%#&,

]' (+8+U1,'%..#-+&'-A' 1"' 15+'&%1+'
"4'.5%8;+'1"'#+1%08''15+'U8%C',%C[
%#)'C08>'

]' #+1%0808;'15+'4-8&+&',1%1-,
]' ,0<0C%#'(+8+U1'4#%<+$"#>'%,'"15[

+#'A-(C0.',+.1"#',.5+<+,
]' A%#18+#,50A' $"#>08;' 1"' (+' +8[

."-#%;+&'1"'<080<0,+'.",1,

J5+';"3+#8<+81'5%,'%..+A1+&'R"#&'
N-11"8F,' #+."<<+8&%10"8,' %8&2'
,-(^+.1'1"'."8,-C1%10"8'"8'15+'&+1%0C,'
4"#'+%.5',.5+<+2'081+8&,'1"'A-(C0,5'
%'."8,-C1%10"8'&".-<+81'"8'01,'A#"[

A",%C,'4"#'15+'#+4"#<'"4'A-(C0.',+.1"#'
A+8,0"8,'08'15+'%-1-<8'"4'VWXXP'J5+'
%0<'0,'1"'5%3+'8+$',.5+<+,'08'AC%.+'
()'VWXGP

N"$+3+#2' 15+' ;"3+#8<+81' 5%,' %C,"'
%88"-8.+&'15%1' 4"#'%CC'A-(C0.',+.1"#'
A+8,0"8',.5+<+,2'+<AC")++'."81#0[
(-10"8,'$0CC'(+'08.#+%,+&'1"'%.50+3+'
,%308;,' +Q-03%C+81' 1"' %#"-8&' _`'
"4' ?+8,0"8%(C+' A%)' ()' VWXaYXGP'
!"CC"$08;' ,0;80U.%81' "AA",010"8'
4#"<' +<AC")+#,2' -80"8,' %8&' R7?='
4-8&,2' 15+' ;"3+#8<+81' %;#++&' 15%1'
15+',%308;,'1%#;+1'4"#'15+'R7?='$0CC'
(+' %.50+3+&' 15#"-;5' %' A%.>%;+' "4'
<+%,-#+,' 15%1'$0CC'8"1'(+' C0<01+&' 1"'
08.#+%,+,' 08' +<AC")++' ."81#0(-10"8'
#%1+,P'@1' 15+' 10<+'"4'$#0108;' 150,' #+[
30+$2' 15+'A#"A",+&'<+%,-#+,'5%3+'
8"1'(++8'%;#++&P

J5+' VWXW' 1#0+880%C' 3%C-%10"8' -,08;'
3%C-+,'%,'%1'_X':%#.5'VWXW',+1,'15+'
+<AC")+#' ."81#0(-10"8' #%1+,' 4"#' 15+'
15#++')+%#,'(+;08808;'X'@A#0C'VWXXP''

@1'_X':%#.5'VWXW2'15+'4-8&08;'C+3+C'
$%,'bV`'C+%308;'%'&+U.01'"4'Xb`'"#'
cGGV<P''J50,'."<A%#+,'1"'%'4-8&08;'
C+3+C'"4'b_`'08'VWWdP''B8'15+'+3+81'15+'
"-1."<+'$%,'<"#+'4%3"-#%(C+'15%8'
%810.0A%1+&'<%08C)' &-+' 1"' 15+'7"3[
+#8<+81F,' %88"-8.+<+81' 08' VWXW'
15%1' %CC' A-(C0.' ,+.1"#' A+8,0"8' A%)[
<+81,'$0CC'(+'C08>+&'1"'15+'D"8,-<[
+#'?#0.+'B8&+I'SD?BT'#%15+#'15%8'15+'
*+1%0C'?#0.+'B8&+I'S*?BT'08'15+'4-1-#+P''
@,'15+'D?B'5%,'50,1"#0.%CC)'(++8'C"$[
+#'15%8'15+'*?B2' 150,'.5%8;+'<+%81'
15%1' 15+' 08e%10"8' %,,-<A10"8' -,+&'
4"#'3%C-08;'15+'!-8&F,'C0%(0C010+,'$%,'

Stonehenge and Avebury, Wiltshire, UK

©
istockphoto.com

/credit

• Hutton Commission recommends Scheme changes
• 2010 funding level 82%
• Asset Value increases 7.8%

2010 Actuarial Valuation
Employer contribution rates 
stabilised in 2010 valuation

New Scheme expected by 2015

Review of the Year

Hutton Commission

Page 109



AVON PENSION FUND ANNUAL REPORT 2010/114

Review of the Year

C"$+#P''@,'%'#+,-C12'15+'&+1+#0"#%10"8'
08' 15+' 4-8&08;' C+3+C' $%,' C+,,' 15%8'
+IA+.1+&' %8&' 15+' !-8&' $%,' %(C+'
1"'<%081%08' ,1%(C+' +<AC")+#' ."81#0[
(-10"8'#%1+,'%1' 15+' 1"1%C'!-8&' C+3+CP''
J5+'VWXW' 3%C-%10"8' 0,' &0,.-,,+&' 08'
<"#+'&+1%0C'"8'A%;+'V_P

@1'15+'10<+'"4'$#0108;'150,'#+A"#12';C"[
(%C' <%#>+1,' %#+' "8.+' %;%08' +IA+[
#0+8.08;' ,0;80U.%81' 3"C%10C01)' &-+' 1"'
5+0;51+8+&'4+%#,'"4'%',"3+#+0;8'&+(1'
.#0,0,'%<0&'%',C"$08;'+."8"<0.'(%.>[
;#"-8&P'@,' %' #+,-C1' +Q-01)'<%#>+1,'
5%3+'4%CC+8'08'3%C-+'%8&'15+'4-8&08;'
C+3+C'$0CC' 5%3+' 4%CC+8' 4#"<' 15+' bV`'
C+3+C'.%C.-C%1+&'%1'_X':%#.5'VWXWP

@41+#' ,1+CC%#' 083+,1<+81' #+1-#8,' 08'
VWWfYXW2' 083+,1<+81' <%#>+1,' A+#[
4"#<+&'$+CC' 08'VWXWYXX2'%C(+01'<"#+'
<-1+&2'-8&+#A088+&'()' C"$' 081+#+,1'
#%1+,' %#"-8&' 15+' $"#C&' %8&' ;""&'
+%#808;,';#"$15'%,'."<A%80+,'."8[
108-+&'1"'#+."3+#'4#"<'15+'+."8"<0.'
,C"$&"$8'"4'VWWfP

E."8"<0.' ;#"$15' 5%,' #+<%08+&'
4#%;0C+' 08' <",1' "4' 15+' &+3+C"A+&'
$"#C&'%8&2'%,'%'#+,-C12'15+'K='!+&[
+#%C'*+,+#3+'5%,'."8108-+&'$015' 01,'
A#";#%<<+' 1"' 08^+.1' C0Q-0&01)' 081"'
15+'(%8>08;',),1+<P'J50,'08'1-#8'5%,'
C+41' 081+#+,1' #%1+,' %1' 50,1"#0.%CC)' C"$'
C+3+C,2'%,'.+81#%C'(%8>,'%#"-8&' 15+'
$"#C&' &+C%)' #%0,08;' "4U.0%C' 081+#+,1'
#%1+,'08'4+%#'"4',1%CC08;'15+'4#%;0C+'#+[
."3+#)P''

J5+' <%#>+1,' 5%3+' &+%C1' $015' %'
8-<(+#' "4' .#0,+,' &-#08;' 15+' )+%#P'
J5+' U,.%C' A#"(C+<,' 08' E-#"A+2'
.%-,+&' ()' +I.+,,03+' ;"3+#8<+81'
("##"$08;2' 5%3+' #+,-C1+&' 08' EK[C+&'
(%0C"-1,'"4'7#++.+2'B#+C%8&'%8&'?"#[
1-;%CP'J5+'+%#15Q-%>+2'1,-8%<0'%8&'
8-.C+%#' .#0,0,' 08' g%A%8' 1+<A"#%#0C)'
-8&+#<08+&' +Q-01)'<%#>+1,' (-1' 15+'
0<A%.1'"8'+."8"<0.';#"$15'5%,')+1'
1"'(+'%,.+#1%08+&P'R%,1C)2' 15+'-A#0,[
08;,' 08' 8"#15'@4#0.%' %8&' 15+':0&&C+'
E%,1'5%3+'.%-,+&'%',0;80U.%81' #0,+'
08' "0C' A#0.+,2' $50.5' 0,' "8+' #+%,"8'
$5)'08e%10"8'5%,'%;%08'."<+'1"'15+'
4"#+'%,'%'#0,>'1"'+."8"<0.',1%(0C01)P

@;%08,1' 150,' (%.>;#"-8&2' 15+' !-8&'
5%&'%' #+%,"8%(C+')+%#P'J5+'!-8&F,'

%,,+1,'#",+'cVWb<'"#'dPb`'1"'cVPhh'
(0CC0"8P'J5+'%,,+1'<0I'%1'15+')+%#'+8&'
$%,'h_`'08'+Q-010+,2'VX`'08'("8&,2'
b`' 08'5+&;+' 4-8&,2'd`' 08'A#"A+#1)'
%8&'X`'08'.%,5P''J5+'M:'R".%C'@-[
15"#01)'@3+#%;+'!-8&'*+1-#8'"4'$%,'
bPV`P

/-#08;'VWXWYXX'15+'!-8&'0<AC+<+81[
+&' 15+' .5%8;+,' 1"' 01,' 083+,1<+81'
,1#-.1-#+' 15%1' %#",+' 4#"<' 15+' ,1#%[
1+;0.'#+30+$'-8&+#1%>+8'08'VWWfYXWP'
!"CC"$08;' %' ."<A+10103+' 1+8&+#2'
=.5#"&+#,'@,,+1':%8%;+<+81' $%,'
%AA"081+&' 1"' <%8%;+' %' ;C"(%C' +Q[
-01)'A"#14"C0"'"4'.P'h`'"4'1"1%C'%,,+1,P''
B8' %&&010"82' 15+' %CC".%10"8' (+1$++8'
A%,,03+C)' <%8%;+&' Ki' %8&' "3+#[
,+%,'+Q-010+,'$%,'%C1+#+&' 08' 4%3"-#'
"4'"3+#,+%,'+Q-010+,'$5+#+' 01' 0,' 4+C1'
15+#+'%#+',-A+#0"#';#"$15'A#",A+.1,'
08' 15+' C"8;' 1+#<P' J5+' !-8&' %C,"'
%;#++&' 1"'5+&;+' 01,'.-##+8.)'+IA"[
,-#+'1"'#+&-.+'15+'0<A%.1'"4'.-##+8[
.)'e-.1-%10"8,'"8'15+'!-8&F,'#+1-#8'
"3+#'10<+P''

@' #+30+$' "4' 15+' 5+&;+' 4-8&' A"#14"[
C0"' 08' VWXX' ."8U#<+&' 15+' ,1#%1+;0.'
%CC".%10"8' "4' XW`' 1"' 5+&;+' 4-8&,'
%8&' #+."<<+8&+&' %' #+%CC".%10"8'
(+1$++8'15+'!-8&F,'!-8&'"4'N+&;+'
!-8&'<%8%;+#,P'J5+,+'.5%8;+,'$0CC'
(+'0<AC+<+81+&'08'VWXXP''J5+'!-8&F,'
1%#;+1' ,1#%1+;0.' %,,+1' %CC".%10"8' "4'
hW`'08'+Q-010+,2'VW`'08'("8&,2'XW`'
08'A#"A+#1)'%8&'XW`'08'5+&;+'4-8&,'
#+<%08,'-8.5%8;+&P

/-#08;'15+')+%#2'15+'!-8&'%AA"081+&'
%8' %;+81' 1"' <"801"#' 15+' +I+.-10"8'
"4'3"108;'#0;51,'()'B83+,1<+81':%8[
%;+#,' "8' (+5%C4' "4' 15+' !-8&2' $015'
15+' %0<' "4' 0<A#"308;' 1#%8,A%#+8.)'
%8&' #+A"#108;' 08' 150,' %#+%P'J50,'$0CC'
,1#+8;15+8' 15+' !-8&F,' ."<AC0%8.+'
$015'15+'8+$'!*D'=1+$%#&,50A'."&+'
S%',+1'"4'(+,1'A#%.10.+'A#08.0AC+,'4"#'
,5%#+5"C&+#'+8;%;+<+81'$015'."<[
A%80+,2' %8&' 15+' &0,.C",-#+' "4' ,-.5'
%.10301)TP' J5+' !-8&' 0,,-+&' %' ,1%1+[
<+81' "4' ."<AC0%8.+' $015' 15+' 8+$'
=1+$%#&,50A'D"&+'08'g%8-%#)'VWXXP

R+;0,C%10"8' 081#"&-.+&' 08' VWWb' +<[
A"$+#,' R?7=' 4-8&,' 1"' &+3+C"A' %8'
@&<080,1#%10"8'=1#%1+;)' 4"#' 15+'A-#[
A",+'"4'0<A#"308;'15+'%&<080,1#%103+'
A#".+,,+,'$01508' 15+0#' !-8&P'703+8'
15+' ."<AC+I01)' 15%1' %#0,+,' 4#"<' 15+'

<-C10[+<AC")+#' 8%1-#+' "4' 15+' !-8&2'
15+' @3"8' ?+8,0"8' !-8&' 5%,' 081#"[
&-.+&'%8'@&<080,1#%10"8'=1#%1+;)'+4[
4+.103+'4#"<'X'@A#0C'VWXXP''

J5+' A-#A",+' "4' 15+' ,1#%1+;)' 0,' 1"'
&+3+C"A' (+,1' A#%.10.+' 08' ,+#30.+'
&+C03+#)' 08' "#&+#' 4"#' 15+' !-8&' %8&'
,.5+<+' +<AC")+#,' 1"' <++1' 4-1-#+'
.5%CC+8;+,'<"#+'+4U.0+81C)P''J5+'4"[
.-,'"4'15+',1#%1+;)'0,\

]' 1"' 0<A#"3+'."<<-80.%10"8,'(+[
1$++8'15+'!-8&'%8&'+<AC")+#,

]' 08.#+%,+' 15+' -10C0,%10"8' "4'
1+.58"C";)' 4"#' .%A1-#08;' %8&'
A#".+,,08;'&%1%

]' A#"30&+' <"#+' 1#%0808;' 4"#' 08[
5"-,+' ,1%44' %8&' 4"#' +<AC")+#,F'
,1%44'&+%C08;'$015'A+8,0"8,

B81+;#%C'1"'15+'@&<080,1#%10"8'=1#%1+[
;)'%#+'15+'=+#30.+'R+3+C'@;#++<+81,'
(+1$++8' 15+' !-8&' %8&' 08&030&-%C'
+<AC")+#,P' J5+,+' %;#++<+81,' ,+1'
"-1' %;#++&' A+#4"#<%8.+' ,1%8&%#&,'
4"#'("15'A%#10+,'15%1'$0CC'(+'<"801"#+&'
08' "#&+#' 15%1' %8)' A#".+,,08;2' 1#%08[
08;'"#'."<<-80.%10"8'0,,-+,'.%8'(+'
#+,"C3+&P'B8'%&&010"82'15+'@3"8'?+8[
,0"8'!-8&'D"<<011++'$0CC'#+30+$'15+'
A+#4"#<%8.+' #+A"#1,' 1"' +8,-#+' 15+'
=1#%1+;)' 0,' (+08;' 0<AC+<+81+&' %8&'
15+' %&<080,1#%10"8' A#".+,,' 0,'$"#>[
08;'+4U.0+81C)P

/-#08;' 15+' )+%#2' 15+' ."%C010"8' ;"3[
+#8<+81'081#"&-.+&',+3+#%C'.5%8;+,'
15%1'%44+.1'15+'$%)'A+8,0"8',.5+<+,'
"A+#%1+P' J5+' <",1' 50;5[A#"UC+&' "4'
15+,+'$%,'15+'.5%8;+'08'15+'<+15"&'
()'$50.5'A+8,0"8,'08.#+%,+,'%#+'%,[
,+,,+&P'M015'+44+.1'4#"<'@A#0C'VWXX2'
%CC' &+4+##+&' A+8,0"8' (+8+U1,' %8&'
A+8,0"8,'08'A%)<+81'5%3+'15+0#'%8[
8-%C'08.#+%,+'C08>+&'1"'15+'D"8,-<[
+#'?#0.+' B8&+I' SD?BT' 08,1+%&' "4' 15+'
*+1%0C'?#0.+'B8&+I'S*?BTP'

J5+' 0<AC0.%10"8,' "4' 15+' .5%8;+' 1"'
D?B'$+#+' 4%#[#+%.508;' %,' 15+'7"3[
+#8<+81'@.1-%#)F,' /+A%#1<+81' 5%&'
1"' #+30,+' %CC' 4%.1"#' 1%(C+,' 15%1' 5%&'
(++8' (%,+&' $015' %,,-<A10"8,' "8'
A#",A+.103+'A+8,0"8'08.#+%,+,P'j%#0[
"-,' .%C.-C%10"8,' 08.C-&08;' 1#%8,4+#'
3%C-+,2' A+8,0"8' ,5%#08;' "8' &03"#.+'
%8&' 15+' A-#.5%,+' "4' @&&010"8%C'
*+;-C%#'D"81#0(-10"8,'S@*DF,T'$+#+'
%44+.1+&' ()' 15+' .5%8;+' %,' 15+' %8[
10.0A%1+&' #+&-.10"8' 08' 15+' .",1' "4'
A#"30&08;'A+8,0"8'(+8+U1,'5%&'1"'(+'
%.."-81+&'4"#P'

Administration Strategy

Investment Strategy

Scheme Regulations

Investment Markets 
& Fund Performance

Fund Assets rose 7.8% to 
£2.66 billion

Page 110



The  Swiss Alps, Switzerland

AVON PENSION FUND ANNUAL REPORT 2010/11 5

Review of the Year

K84"#1-8%1+C)'15+#+'$%,'%'."8,0&+#[
%(C+'&+C%)'(+4"#+'15+'#+30,+&'1%(C+,'
$+#+'0,,-+&2'%8&'08'#+,A+.1'"4'1#%8,[
4+#'3%C-+,'15+#+'$%,'%'A+#0"&'"4'(+[
1$++8'4"-#'%8&',0I'<"815,'08'$50.5'
15+'@3"8'?+8,0"8'!-8&'$%,'-8%(C+'
1"'A#".+,,'1#%8,4+#,'08'"#'"-1'"4'15+'
!-8&P'*+30,+&'4%.1"#,'4"#'.%C.-C%108;'
@*D'."81#0(-10"8,'$+#+',10CC'%$%01+&'
%1'15+'+8&'"4'15+')+%#P'

!"CC"$08;' #+,A"8,+,' 1"' 15+' N:'
J#+%,-#)' &0,.-,,0"8' A%A+#2' A+8[
,0"8' 1%I' #+C0+4'$%,' #+4"#<+&'$015' %'
#+&-.10"8' 08' 15+' @88-%C' @CC"$%8.+'
4#"<'cXGG2WWW'1"'cGW2WWW2'+44+.103+'
4#"<'@A#0C'VWXX2'%8&'15+'R04+10<+'@C[
C"$%8.+',+1'1"'#+&-.+'1"'cXPG'<0CC0"8'
15+' 4"CC"$08;'@A#0CP'@' ,<%CC' 8-<(+#'
"4',.5+<+'<+<(+#,'<%)'8"$'08.-#'
%'1%I'.5%#;+'04'15+0#'A+8,0"8'+8101C+[
<+81' 08.#+%,+,',-(,1%810%CC)' 08'"8+'
)+%#2' 4"#' +I%<AC+' 50;5' +%#8+#,' "#'
<+<(+#,' $015' C"8;' ,+#30.+' $5",+'
A%)'08.#+%,+,',-(,1%810%CC)'"3+#'15+'
)+%#P

@'&0,.-,,0"8'&".-<+81'$%,' 0,,-+&'
08' :%#.5' VWXX' 1"' #+30+$' 15+' !%0#'
/+%C' A"C0.)2' $015' #+,A"8,+,' 08301+&'
()' XG15' g-8+P' B4' !%0#' /+%C' $+#+' 1"'
(+'%("C0,5+&'01'."-C&'5%3+'%8'0<A%.1'
"8' A+8,0"8' A#"30,0"8' 4"#' +<AC")+#'
"-1,"-#.08;,' %8&' %C,"' A"1+810%CC)'

5%3+',+#0"-,'4-8&08;'0<AC0.%10"8,'4"#'
R7?='4-8&,'08'15+'4-1-#+P

/-#08;' 15+' )+%#' 15+' )+%#' 15+'D"<[
<011++'-8&+#1"">'%',+C4[%,,+,,<+81'
"4'15+'+44+.103+8+,,'"4'01,'"$8'&+.0[
,0"8[<%>08;' A#".+,,P'J5+' "-1."<+'
"4' 15+' %,,+,,<+81' ."8.C-&+&' 15%1'
15+'D"<<011++'<+<(+#,'5%3+'."8[
U&+8.+' 15%1' 15+' &+.0,0"8[<%>08;'
A#".+,,'+8%(C+,' 15+<'1"'+44+.103+C)'
&0,.5%#;+' 15+0#' #+,A"8,0(0C010+,P' B1'
%C,"'0&+810U+&'%#+%,'$5+#+'15+'A#".[
+,,' ."-C&' (+' 0<A#"3+&' %8&' %8' %.[
10"8' AC%8' 1"' %&&#+,,' 15+,+' 0,,-+,'
5%,'(++8'%;#++&2'08.C-&08;'%'4"#<%C'
1#%0808;'A#";#%<<+'S,++'A%;+,'d[f'
4"#'<"#+'&+1%0C,TP'

Fund Governance

©
istockphoto.com

/credit

Page 111



Council O"cers: 

Andrew Pate 
/0#+.1"#'"4'*+,"-#.+,'9'=-AA"#1'
=+#30.+, 

Tony Bartlett    
N+%&'"4'O-,08+,,'!08%8.+'9'?+8,0"8,

Liz Feinstein     
B83+,1<+81,':%8%;+# 

Steve McMillan   
?+8,0"8,':%8%;+#'

Vernon Hitchman   
="C0.01"#'1"'15+'D"-8.0C

AVON PENSION FUND ANNUAL REPORT 2010/116

Governance & Management Structure

Administering Authority:

O%15'9'H"#15'E%,1'="<+#,+1'D"-8.0C

Governance:

Members of the Avon Pension Fund 
Committee:

Councillor Gordon Wood (Chair)!
O%15'9'H"#15'E%,1'="<+#,+1'D"-8.0C

Councillor Tim Ball 
O%15'9'H"#15'E%,1'="<+#,+1'D"-8.0C

Councillor Gabriel Batt 
O%15'9'H"#15'E%,1'="<+#,+1'D"-8.0C

Councillor David Bellotti 
O%15'9'H"#15'E%,1'="<+#,+1'D"-8.0C

Ann Berresford 
B8&+A+8&+81':+<(+#

Councillor Mary Blatchford  
H"#15'="<+#,+1'D"-8.0C

Councillor Victor Clarke  
O%15'9'H"#15'E%,1'="<+#,+1'D"-8.0C

Tony Earnshaw  

Independent Investment Advisor: 

Councillor Mike Drew   
="-15'7C"-.+,1+#,50#+'D"-8.0C

Carolan Dobson   
B8&+A+8&+81':+<(+#' 

Councillor Tim Kent    
O#0,1"C'D01)'D"-8.0C

Bill Marshall  
K803+#,01)'"4'15+'M+,1'"4'E8;C%8&

Steve Paines 
K801+'15+'K80"8  

Non - Voting Members: 

Rowena Hayward 
7:O' 
Councillor Keith Kirwan 
?%#0,5'9'J"$8'D"-8.0C,

Richard Orton  
K80,"8

Paul Shiner 
K801+'15+'K80"8'

Investment Managers: 

Actuary: Investment Consultant:!Legal Advisors: 

Global Custodian: Bankers: AVC Providers: 

Governance & Management Structure as at 31 March 2011

Page 112



@,'%&<080,1+#08;'%-15"#01)2'O%15'%8&'
H"#15' E%,1' ="<+#,+1' D"-8.0C2' 5%,'
C+;%C' #+,A"8,0(0C01)' 4"#' 15+' A+8,0"8'
4-8&'%,',+1'"-1'08'15+'R".%C'7"3+#8[
<+81'?+8,0"8'=.5+<+'*+;-C%10"8,P''
J5+'D"-8.0C'&+C+;%1+,'01,'#+,A"8,0[
(0C01)' 4"#' %&<080,1+#08;' 15+' !-8&' 1"'
15+'@3"8'?+8,0"8'!-8&'D"<<011++2'
$50.5'0,'15+'4"#<%C'&+.0,0"8[<%>08;'
("&)'4"#'15+'!-8&P''J5+'1+#<,'"4'#+4[
+#+8.+' 4"#' 15+'@3"8' ?+8,0"8' !-8&'
D"<<011++'%#+'%,'4"CC"$,\

!"#$ %&'()*+,-$ .)-$ +-'/#0'&1&2&.&-'$
#3$ 4*.)$ *0%$ 5#+.)$ 6*'.$ 7#8-+'-.$
9#:0(&2$ &0$ &.'$ +#2-$*'$ 2-*%$*:.)#+&.;$
3#+$ .)-$ *%8&0&'.+*.&#0$ #3$ .)-$ <=#0$
>-0'&#0$?:0%@$")-'-$&0(2:%-$%-.-+A
8&0*.&#0$#3$&0=-'.8-0.$/#2&(;$#1B-(A
.&=-'C$ -0':+&0,$ *//+#/+&*.-$ &0=-'.A
8-0.$ 8*0*,-8-0.$ *++*0,-8-0.'$
*+-$ &0$ /2*(-$ &0(2:%&0,$ .)-$ *//#&0.A
8-0.$ #3$ &0=-'.8-0.$ 8*0*,-+'$ *0%$
8#0&.#+&0,$&0=-'.8-0.$/-+3#+8*0(-D$
(#88&''&#0&0,$ *(.:*+&*2$ =*2:*.&#0'$
&0$ *((#+%*0(-$ E&.)$ .)-$ /+#=&'&#0'$
#3$ .)-$ F#(*2$ G#=-+08-0.$ >-0'&#0$

7()-8-$ H-,:2*.&#0'D$ (#0'&%-+&0,$
+-I:-'.'$3+#8$#+,*0&'*.&#0'$E&')&0,$
.#$B#&0$.)-$?:0%$*'$*%8&..-%$1#%&-'D$
8*J&0,$ +-/+-'-0.*.&#0'$ .#$ G#=-+0A
8-0.$ *'$ *//+#/+&*.-$ (#0(-+0&0,$
*0;$/+#/#'-%$()*0,-'$.#$.)-$F#(*2$
G#=-+08-0.$>-0'&#0$7()-8-D$*0%$
*22$*'/-(.'$#3$1-0-K.$*%8&0&'.+*.&#0@$$
<.$*22$.&8-'C$.)-$9#88&..--$8:'.$%&'A
()*+,-$ &.'$ +-'/#0'&1&2&.;$ &0$ .)-$1-'.$
&0.-+-'.'$#3$.)-$<=#0$>-0'&#0$?:0%@L

J5+'D"<<011++',1#-.1-#+'0,',5"$8'08'

J%(C+'X'%("3+P

J5+' D"<<011++' <+<(+#,50A' %,' %1'
_X':%#.5'VWXX'0,',+1'"-1'"8'A%;+'hP''
J5+'D"<<011++'<++1,'4"#<%CC)'+%.5'
Q-%#1+#' %8&' %11+8&%8.+' %1' 15+,+'
<++108;,'&-#08;' 15+')+%#'$%,'b_`'
4"#' 15+' 3"108;' <+<(+#,' %8&' Gh`'
4"#' 15+'8"8[3"108;'<+<(+#,P' B8'%&[
&010"8'1"'15+'Q-%#1+#C)'<++108;,2'15+'
D"<<011++' 5+C&' 1$"' $"#>,5"A,' 08'
VWXWYXX' 1"' #+30+$' ,A+.0U.' 083+,1[
<+81'0,,-+,'08';#+%1+#'&+1%0CP'

AVON PENSION FUND ANNUAL REPORT 2010/11 7

Fund Governance

Table 1: Committee Structure

7#2)$8%9'9:'1(%
;53<=

G'+C+.1+&'<+<(+#,'4#"<'O%15'9'H"#15'E%,1'
="<+#,+1'D"-8.0C

V'08&+A+8&+81'<+<(+#,

_'+C+.1+&'<+<(+#,'8"<08%1+&'4#"<'15+'"15+#'M+,1'
"4'E8;C%8&'-801%#)'."-8.0C,

X'8"<08%1+&'4#"<'15+'N0;5+#Y!-#15+#'E&-.%10"8'
("&0+,

X'8"<08%1+&'4#"<'15+'J#%&+,'K80"8,

>#$?"#2)$8%9'9:'1(%
;@<=

X'8"<08%1+&'4#"<'15+'?%#0,5'D"-8.0C,

_'8"<08%1+&'4#"<'15+'J#%&+,'K80"8,

Avon Pension Fund 
Committee

Fund Governance

The Parthenon of Athens, Greece

©
istockphoto.com

/credit

• Training framework implemented

Page 113



703+8'15+',0k+'"4'15+'D"<<011++'%8&'
."<AC+I01)' "4' 083+,1<+81' 0,,-+,2'
15+#+' 0,'%8' B83+,1<+81'?%8+C'$50.5'
."8,0&+#,' 083+,1<+81' 0,,-+,' 08'
;#+%1+#'&+A15P'J5+'?%8+C'5%,'8"'&+C[
+;%1+&'A"$+#,2'%8&'.%8'"8C)'<%>+'
#+."<<+8&%10"8,'1"'15+'D"<<011++P

J5+'?%8+C'."8,0,1,'"4'-A'1"',0I'3"1[
08;'<+<(+#,'"4'15+'D"<<011++'%8&'
<++1,'%1'C+%,1'4"-#'10<+,'%')+%#P'J5+'
1+#<,'"4'#+4+#+8.+'4"#'15+'?%8+C'%#+\

!")-$+#2-$#3$.)-$<=#0$>-0'&#0$?:0%$
9#88&..--$M<>?9N$O0=-'.8-0.$>*0A
-2$')*22$1-$.#$(#0'&%-+C$&0$,+-*.-+$%-A
.*&2$ .)*0$ .)-$<>?9$ &'$ *12-C$8*..-+'$
+-2*.&0,$ .#$ .)-$8*0*,-8-0.$*0%$ &0A
=-'.8-0.$#3$ .)-$*''-.'$#3$ .)-$<=#0$
>-0'&#0$ ?:0%$ *0%$ .#$ *%=&'-$ .)-$
<>?9$#0$':()$8*..-+'@

<8#0,$#.)-+$.)&0,'C$.)-$>*0-2$')*22P
$
Q$ +-(#88-0%$ '.+*.-,&($ &0=-'.A

8-0.$#1B-(.&=-'C$/#2&(;$*0%$'.+*A
.-,&($*''-.$*22#(*.&#0

Q$ +-,:2*+2;$+-=&-E$&0$%-.*&2$*0%$*'A
'-''$ .)-$/-+3#+8*0(-$#3$ .)-$ &0A

=-'.8-0.$8*0*,-+'C$&0=-'.8-0.$
*%=&'#+'C$(:'.#%&*0$*0%$*(.:*+;

Q$ +-(#88-0%$ *//#&0.8-0.$ *0%$
.-+8&0*.&#0$ #3$ &0=-'.8-0.$ 8*0A
*,-+'$ *0%$ /+#3-''&#0*2$ '-+=&(-$
/+#=&%-+'$*'$+-I:&+-%

Q$ +-=&-E$ .)-$7.*.-8-0.$#3$ O0=-'.A
8-0.$ >+&0(&/2-'$ *0%$ ':18&.$ .#$
<>?9$3#+$*//+#=*2

Q$ 8*J-$ +-(#88-0%*.&#0'$ .#$ .)-$
<>?9$#0$8*..-+'$ +-2*.&0,$ .#$ &0A
=-'.8-0.$'.+*.-,;$*0%$8*0*,-A
8-0.$ *'$ .)-$ >*0-2$ (#0'&%-+'$
*//+#/+&*.-@$ ")&'$ E&22$ &0(2:%-$
&'':-'$#3$*$8#+-$:+,-0.$0*.:+-C$
E)-+-$ .)-$ =&-E$ #3$ .)-$ >*0-2$
E#:2%$ 1-$ .*J-0$ &0.#$ (#0'&%-+*A
.&#0@$ M")-$ 7-(.&#0$ RSR$ T3K(-+$
)*'$%-2-,*.-%$/#E-+'$+-,*+%&0,$
:+,-0.$*(.&#0'C$*0%$.)-'-$E#:2%$
1-$ -U-+(&'-%$ )*=&0,$ (#0':2.-%$
.)-$9)*&+$#3$.)-$>*0-2N@

Q$ +-=&-E$ *0;$ 2-,&'2*.&=-$ ()*0,-'$
E)&()$ )*=-$ &8/2&(*.&#0'$ 3#+$ &0A
=-'.8-0.$,#=-+0*0(-$*0%$8*J-$
+-(#88-0%*.&#0'$ .#$ .)-$ <>?9$
*'$*//+#/+&*.-@L$

/-#08;'15+')+%#'15+'?%8+C'5+C&'4"-#'
<++108;,'$5+#+'15+'%11+8&%8.+'"3+#'
15+' )+%#' $%,' fh`P' B8' %&&010"8' 15+'

?%8+C'5+C&'4"-#'$"#>,5"A,'%,'A%#1'"4'
%'A#";#%<<+'1"'#+30+$'+%.5'"4' 15+'
083+,1<+81'<%8%;+#,'"3+#'%'1$+C3+'
<"815'A+#0"&P'J5+'#+,1'"4' 15+,+'#+[
30+$,' $+#+' %.."<<"&%1+&' $01508'
15+'Q-%#1+#C)'<++108;,P'

J5+' %11+8&%8.+' #+."#&' 4"#' +%.5'
D"<<011++'<+<(+#'0,',+1'"-1'08'1%[
(C+'V'(+C"$P'

/-#08;' VWXW' 15+' 4#%<+$"#>' 4"#'
1#%0808;' $%,' 4"#<%C0,+&' 1"' +8,-#+'
D"<<011++'<+<(+#,F' >8"$C+&;+' 0,'
<%081%08+&'%1'%',%10,4%.1"#)'C+3+C'"8'
%8'"8;"08;'(%,0,' 08'"#&+#' 15%1' 15+)'
%#+' %(C+' 1"' &0,.5%#;+' 15+0#' #+,A"8[
,0(0C010+,'%,'#+Q-0#+&P''J5+'1#%0808;'0,'
(%,+&' "8'DB?!@F,' SD5%#1+#+&' B8,10[
1-1+'"4'?-(C0.'!08%8.+'%8&'@.."-81[
08;T' i8"$C+&;+' %8&' =>0CC,' !#%<+[
$"#>'4"#'R7?='4-8&,P''J50,'0&+810U+,'
,0I'%#+%,'"4'>8"$C+&;+'%,'4"CC"$,Z'

]' R+;%C'%8&';"3+#8%8.+'."81+I12
]' ?+8,0"8,'@-&0108;'%8&'@.."-81[

08;'=1%8&%#&,2'
]' ?#".-#+<+81' %8&' *+C%10"8,50A'

:%8%;+<+812'
]' B83+,1<+81' ?+#4"#<%8.+' %8&'

*0,>':%8%;+<+812'
]' !08%8.0%C' :%#>+1,' %8&' ?#"&-.1'

i8"$C+&;+2
]' @.1-%#0%C' :+15"&,2' =1%8&%#&,'

%8&'?#%.10.+,P''

:%8)'"4' 15+'%#+%,' 0&+810U+&'()' 15+'
4#%<+$"#>'%#+'."3+#+&'15#"-;5'&+[
1%0C+&'D"<<011++'#+A"#1,2'$"#>,5"A,'
%8&' A#+,+81%10"8,' ()' +IA+#1,P' !"#'
+I%<AC+2' %8' %88-%C' D"<<011++' #+[
A"#1',+1,'"-1' 15+';"3+#8%8.+',1#-.[
1-#+'%8&'#"C+'%8&'#+,A"8,0(0C010+,'"4'
D"<<011++'<+<(+#,2' %&30,"#,' %8&'
"4U.+#,Z' 083+,1<+81' A+#4"#<%8.+'
%8&' #0,>' 0,' #+30+$+&' %1' +%.5' Q-%#[
1+#C)'<++108;P''

B8' VWXWYXX' 1$"' D"<<011++' $"#>[
,5"A,'$+#+'5+C&P'L8+' 4".-,,+&'"8'
15+' VWXW' %.1-%#0%C' 3%C-%10"8' %8&'
!-8&08;' =1#%1+;)' =1%1+<+81P' J5+'
"15+#' #+30+$+&' 15+',1#%1+;0.'%CC".%[
10"8'1"'5+&;+'4-8&,'%8&'15+',1#-.1-#+'
"4'15+'5+&;+'4-8&'A"#14"C0"P''

:+<(+#,'%#+'+8."-#%;+&'1"'%11+8&'
,+<08%#,' %8&' ."84+#+8.+,' 1"' 08[

AVON PENSION FUND ANNUAL REPORT 2010/118

Fund Governance

A#99)22'' B$"'(29'$2%
&-$'.C''2)$8 D#1E(F#0

H-<(+#'"4':++108;,'&-#08;')+%# a V a

7#2)$8%C'9:'1(

D"-8.0CC"#'7"#&"8'M""&'SD5%0#T a X a

D"-8.0CC"#'J0<'O%CC a V HY@

D"-8.0CC"#'7%(#0+C'O%11 a V _

D"-8.0CC"#'/%30&'O+CC"110 a V a

@88'O+##+,4"#& a X a

D"-8.0CC"#':%#)'OC%1.54"#& a V a

D"-8.0CC"#'j0.'DC%#>+ a W HY@

D%#"C%8'/"(,"8 V X HY@

D"-8.0CC"#':0>+'/#+$ _ V HY@

D"-8.0CC"#'J0<'i+81 a W HY@

O0CC':%#,5%CC X X a

=1+3+'?%08+, V X HY@

>#$?"#2)$8%9'9:'1(

*"$+8%'N%)$%#& X W HY@

i+015'i0#$%8 V X HY@

*0.5%#&'L#1"8 a X HY@

?%-C'=508+# V X HY@

Table 2: Committee Attendance Record

Investment Panel

Members training framework 
established

Training

Page 114



AVON PENSION FUND ANNUAL REPORT 2010/11 9

Fund Governance

.#+%,+'15+0#'-8&+#,1%8&08;'"4'083+,1[
<+81,'%8&'$"#>,5"A,'%#+'"#;%80,+&'
1"' +IAC"#+'<"#+' ."<AC+I' 0,,-+,' 08'
;#+%1+#' &+1%0C' 15%8' 0,' A",,0(C+' %1' %'
D"<<011++'<++108;P

B8' %&&010"82' 15+' !-8&' #+Q-0#+,' %CC'
<+<(+#,'1"'-8&+#1%>+'4"#<%C'1#%08[
08;' %8&' &-#08;' 15+' )+%#' 8+$'D"<[
<011++'<+<(+#,' %11+8&+&' 15+' !-8[
&%<+81%C,'J#%0808;'D"-#,+,'"44+#+&'
()' 15+' R".%C' 7"3+#8<+81' ?+8,0"8'
D"<<011++P'

J5+' 1#%0808;' A#";#%<<+' 4"#' 15+'
D"<<011++'1"'(+'&+C03+#+&'"3+#'15+'
8+I1'Va'<"815,'$%,'%;#++&'08':%#.5'
VWXX2',-(^+.1'1"'1"A0.%C'0,,-+,'(+08;'
081#"&-.+&'%,'#+Q-0#+&P'

J5+' DB?!@' i8"$C+&;+' %8&' =>0CC,'
!#%<+$"#>' %C,"' %AAC0+,' 1"' 15+' "4[
U.+#,' #+,A"8,0(C+' 1"' 15+' 4-8&P' J5+'
4#%<+$"#>'%,,0,1,'08'%,,+,,08;'%8&'
0&+8104)08;' >+)' ."<A+1+8.0+,' %.[
.#",,' 15+' ,+#30.+' %#+%,P' J#%0808;'
8++&,'.%8'15+8'(+'08."#A"#%1+&'081"'
C+%#808;'%8&'&+3+C"A<+81'AC%8,'+8[
,-#08;' 15+' #+Q-0,01+' >8"$C+&;+'%8&'
,>0CC,'%#+'"(1%08+&P'@CC'A+8,0"8'4-8&'
,1%44' #+.0+3+' %8' %88-%C' %AA#%0,%C'
$5+#+'1#%0808;'AC%8,'%#+'%;#++&P

J5+'!-8&'0,'#+Q-0#+&'-8&+#'15+'#+;[
-C%10"8,' 1"' A-(C0,5' %' 7"3+#8%8.+'
D"<AC0%8.+' =1%1+<+81'$50.5' &+<[
"8,1#%1+,' 15+' +I1+81' 1"' $50.5' 15+'
!-8&' ."<AC0+,' $015' (+,1' A#%.10.+,'
08' A+8,0"8' 4-8&' ;"3+#8%8.+P' J5+'
!-8&F,' C%1+,1' ,1%1+<+812' %AA#"3+&'
()'15+'@3"8'?+8,0"8'!-8&'D"<<01[
1++'08'/+.+<(+#'VWWf2',5"$,'%'50;5'
C+3+C' "4' ."<AC0%8.+'$015' (+,1' A#%.[
10.+' %8&' 0,' ,-<<%#0,+&' 08' J%(C+' _'
(+C"$\

D"A0+,' "4' 15+' C%1+,1' 7"3+#8%8.+'
D"<AC0%8.+'=1%1+<+81'%AA#"3+&' 08'
/+.+<(+#'VWWf'.%8'(+'"(1%08+&'+0[
15+#' 4#"<' 15+'!-8&F,'$+(,01+'EEE@
*=#0/-0'&#03:0%@#+,@:J' "#' 4#"<'
*=#0V/-0'&#0W1*.)0-'@,#=@:J$

&1)$G)0.' A#90.)-$G'%(2-2+( A#99'$2

!"#$%&'&($)*+%,(+,%$ D"<AC0%81 J5+'&+.0,0"8[<%>08;',1#-.1-#+'0,'.C+%#C)'&+U8+&'

-$.%$*$&+'+/"& ?%#10%C'D"<AC0%8.+ J5+#+'0,'(#"%&'#+A#+,+81%10"8'"4'+<AC")+#,'%8&',.5+<+'<+<(+#,'
"8'15+'D"<<011++P'N"$+3+#'%&<0,,0"8'("&0+,'%#+'8"1'#+A#+,+81+&'
%,'01'0,'&04U.-C1'1"'5%3+'<+%808;4-C'#+A#+,+81%10"8'4#"<',-.5'%'
&03+#,+';#"-A'"4'+<AC")+#,P

0$1$(+/"&)2)%"1$)"3)1'4)
5$56$%*

D"<AC0%81 J5+'#"C+'%8&'#+,A"8,0(0C010+,'"4'%CC'<+<(+#,'%#+',+1'"-1'08'%'g"('
/+,.#0A10"8'%8&'.0#.-C%1+&'A#0"#'1"'%AA"081<+81,P

7"+/&8 D"<AC0%81 J5+#+'0,'%'.C+%#'A"C0.)'"8'3"108;'#0;51,'$50.5'5%3+'(++8'+I1+8&+&'
1"'+<AC")+#'%8&'<+<(+#'#+A#+,+81%103+,P

9%'/&/&8)2):'(/1/+4)+/5$)
2);<.$&*$*

D"<AC0%81 J5+#+'0,'%'.C+%#'A"C0.)'"8'1#%0808;P'J5+'!-8&'A%),'%CC'%AA#"3+&'
1#%0808;'."-#,+,'4"#'%CC'<+<(+#,P'J5+'1#%0808;'AC%8'#+e+.1,'15+'
8++&,'"4'15+'D"<<011++'%;+8&%P'

=$$+/&8* D"<AC0%81' !"#<%C'<++108;,'%#+'5+C&'Q-%#1+#C)'%8&'C%)'<+<(+#,'%#+'08.C-&+&'
08'15+'4"#<%C'%##%8;+<+81,P

>(($** D"<AC0%81 @CC'<+<(+#,'5%3+'+Q-%C'%..+,,'1"'<++108;'A%A+#,'%8&'%&30.+P

0(".$ D"<AC0%81 J5+'1+#<,'"4'#+4+#+8.+'08.C-&+'%CC'%,A+.1,'"4'(+8+U1,'%&<080,1#%10"8'
%8&'%&<0,,0"8,'1"'15+'!-8&P'J5+'D"<<011++'#+30+$,'15+'#0,>'
#+;0,1+#2'15+'081+#8%C'."81#"C'#+A"#1,'"4'>+)'_#&'A%#1)',-AAC0+#,'%8&'
%CC',1%1-1"#)'A"C0.)',1%1+<+81,P

?,61/(/+4 D"<AC0%81 @CC',1%1-1"#)'&".-<+81,'%#+'<%&+'%3%0C%(C+'1"'15+'A-(C0.P

Table 3: Governance Compliance

Governance Compliance 
Statement

Page 115



O%15'9'H"#15'E%,1'="<+#,+1'D"-8[
.0C'0,'#+,A"8,0(C+'4"#'15+'%&<080,1#%[
10"8'"4'15+'@3"8'?+8,0"8'!-8&P'J5+'
D"-8.0C' 5%,' &+C+;%1+&' 150,' #+,A"8[
,0(0C01)' 1"' 15+' @3"8' ?+8,0"8' !-8&'
D"<<011++'$50.5' 0,' #+,A"8,0(C+' 4"#'
15+' #0,>[<%8%;+<+81' A#".+,,' %8&'
."<AC0%8.+'$015'#+;-C%10"8,P
'''''''''''''''''''
B8' +,1%(C0,508;' 150,' ;"3+#8%8.+'
,1#-.1-#+2' 15+' D"-8.0C' 0,' ,%10,U+&'
15%1' 15+#+' %#+' %&+Q-%1+' #0,>[<%8[
%;+<+81' A#".+,,+,' 08' AC%.+' 1"' %&[
&#+,,' 15+' #0,>,' 4%.+&' ()' 15+' !-8&P'
J5+'.#+%10"8'"4'15+'B83+,1<+81'?%8[
+C'08'VWWf'5%,',1#+8;15+8+&'15+'#0,>[
<%8%;+<+81'A#".+,,'$015'#+;%#&'1"'
083+,1<+81'0,,-+,P'

J5+' !-8&F,' %AA#"%.5' 1"' #0,>[<%8[
%;+<+81' 0,' 1"' <%8%;+' #0,>' #%15+#'
15%8'+C0<08%1+'01'+810#+C)P'J5+'083+,1[
<+81'&+.0,0"8[<%>08;'A#".+,,2',-A[
A"#1+&'()'+IA+#1'%&30.+2'0,'&+,0;8+&'
1"'0&+8104)'083+,1<+81'#0,>,'%8&'%.1'08'
%'10<+C)'<%88+#'1"'+8,-#+'15%1'15+,+'
#0,>,'%#+'>+A1' 1"' 15+'<080<-<'8+.[
+,,%#)' 1"' %.50+3+' 15+' !-8&F,' C"8;'
1+#<'083+,1<+81'"(^+.103+,P'B81+#8%C'
."81#"C,'%8&'A#".+,,+,'%#+'08'AC%.+'
1"'<%8%;+' %&<080,1#%10"82' U8%8.0%C'
%8&'"15+#'"A+#%10"8%C'#0,>,P

J5+'D"<<011++'%88-%CC)'#+30+$,'15+'
!-8&F,'*0,>'*+;0,1+#'$50.5'0,'&#%$8'
-A'08'%.."#&%8.+'$015'O%15'9'H"#15'
E%,1' ="<+#,+1' D"-8.0CF,' #0,>' <%8[
%;+<+81'A"C0.)P'J5+' #+;0,1+#' 0&+810[
U+,'15+'>+)'#0,>,'15%1'15+'!-8&'0,'+I[
A",+&'1"'%8&2'5%308;'+3%C-%1+&'15+'
0<A%.1'"4'15+'#0,>'"8'15+'!-8&F,'"([
^+.103+,2',1%1+,'15+'%.10"8,'1%>+8'1"'
<010;%1+'%8&'+44+.103+C)'<%8%;+'15+'
#0,>P'J5+'D"-8.0CF,'B81+#8%C'@-&01'%8[
8-%CC)'%,,+,,'15+'A#".+,,+,'08'AC%.+'
$01508'15+'?+8,0"8'!-8&'08'"#&+#'1"'
A#"30&+'08&+A+8&+81'%,,-#%8.+'15%1'
%&+Q-%1+'."81#"C,'%#+'08'AC%.+P

J5+' D"<<011++' 0,' ,-(^+.1' 1"' 15+'
D"-8.0CF,' =1%8&08;' L#&+#,' %8&' U[
8%8.0%C' #+;-C%10"8,' %,' $+CC' %,' 15+'
D"&+'"4'D"8&-.1P'

B83+,1<+81,'()'15+0#'3+#)'8%1-#+'+I[
A",+'15+'!-8&'1"'3%#)08;'&+;#++,'"4'
#0,>P'J5+,+' 08.C-&+'<%#>+12' 081+#+,1'
#%1+2' 4"#+0;8'.-##+8.)2'.#+&01'%8&' C0[
Q-0&01)'#0,>,P'J5+'<%08'1""C'4"#'."8[
1#"CC08;'15+,+'083+,1<+81'#0,>,'0,'15+'
=1#%1+;0.' B83+,1<+81'?"C0.)P'L8+'"4'
15+'A#08.0A%C'$%),'08'$50.5'15+'!-8&'

<%8%;+,' #0,>' 0,' 15#"-;5' 15+' &03+#[
,0U.%10"8'"4'%,,+1,2' 15+'%AA#"%.5+,'
1"' 083+,1<+81' S4"#' +I%<AC+'A%,,03+'
083+,108;' "#' %.103+' 083+,108;T' %8&'
<%8%;+#,P'

J5+' A#"30,0"8' "4' +IA+#1' %&30.+' 0,'
.#-.0%C' 1"' 15+' &+.0,0"8[<%>08;' %8&'
#0,>' <%8%;+<+81[A#".+,,+,P' J5+'
!-8&' 5%,' %AA"081+&' gRJ' @.1-%#0+,'
%8&'D"8,-C1%81,'1"'A#"30&+'"8;"08;'
083+,1<+81'%&30.+P'J50,'$0CC' 08.C-&+'
%&30,08;'"8'<%8%;+#,F'A+#4"#<%8.+'
%,' $+CC' %,' ,1#%1+;0.' %&30.+P' J5+'
!-8&F,' %AA"081+&' %.1-%#)2' :+#.+#2'
A#"30&+,'%.1-%#0%C'%&30.+P'L15+#'+I[
A+#1' "#' ,A+.0%C0,1' %&30.+' S08.C-&08;'
1%I' %8&' C+;%C' %&30.+T' 0,' ."<<0,[
,0"8+&'%,'#+Q-0#+&P'

B8'%&&010"82'15+'D"<<011++F,'C+3+C'"4'
>8"$C+&;+' "4' 083+,1<+81,'<-,1' (+'
,-4U.0+81'4"#'%&30.+'1"'(+'.5%CC+8;+&'
%8&'-8&+#,1""&P'J"'4%.0C01%1+'150,2'15+'
!-8&'0,'."<<011+&'1"'15+'A#08.0AC+'"4'
1#%0808;' %8&' 15+' D"<<011++' <+<[
(+#,'%#+'#+Q-0#+&'1"'-8&+#1%>+'1#%08[
08;'08'"#&+#'1"'&0,.5%#;+'15+0#'&-10+,P'
@8'B8&+A+8&+81'B83+,1<+81'@&30,"#'
,-AA"#1,'15+'D"<<011++'%8&'B83+,1[
<+81'?%8+C'<+<(+#,P'J5+0#' #"C+' 0,'
1"'+8,-#+'15%1'%CC'15+'#+C+3%81'%&30.+'

AVON PENSION FUND ANNUAL REPORT 2010/1110

Risk Management

Investment Risks

Risk 
Management

Table 4: Key Risks

/)(E C-$-8'9'$2%-G2)#$

J5+'!-8&'4%0C,'1"'%.50+3+'083+,1<+81'#+1-#8,',-4U.0+81'
1"'<++1'01,'C0%(0C010+,P

=+1'%'!-8&[,A+.0U.'(+8.5<%#>'$50.5'&+1+#<08+,'
15+'%AA#"A#0%1+'#0,>'%&^-,1+&'#+1-#8',1#%1+;)'1"'<++1'
15+'C0%(0C010+,P'!-8&'A+#4"#<%8.+'%8&'4-8&08;'C+3+C'
<"801"#+&'+%.5'Q-%#1+#'()'D"<<011++'

B84"#<%10"8'=+.-#01)\'30#-,'%11%.>'&%<%;08;'&%1%'
.%-,08;'#+1#0+3%C'A#"(C+<,'%8&',+#30.+'4%0C-#+'0,,-+,

J5+'@&<080,1+#08;'@-15"#01)'<%081%08,'%',"C0&',),1+<,'
"4'."81#"C,'08.C-&08;'30#-,'.5+.>+#,'%8&'U#+$%CC'$50.5'
%#+'."8,1%81C)'<"801"#+&P

L4U.+,'%8&'Y"#',),1+<,'8"1'%..+,,0(C+P'B<AC0.%10"8,'
%#+'15%1'4%0C-#+'$"-C&'.%-,+'&0,#-A10"8'1"'(+8+U1,'
A#".+,,08;'%8&'&+C%)'(+8+U1'A%)<+81,'%8&'.#+%1+'
(%.>C";'"4'1%,>,P'

O-,08+,,'D"8108-01)'%8&'&0,%,1+#'#+."3+#)'A"C0.)'
%8&'AC%8,'%#+'08'AC%.+P'J5+,+'."8,0&+#'15+'&044+#+81'
,.+8%#0",'"4'(-0C&08;2'5%#&$%#+'%8&',),1+<,'8"1'(+08;'
%3%0C%(C+'%8&',A+.04)'15+'.0#.-<,1%8.+,'08'$50.5'
&0,%,1+#'#+."3+#)'<+%,-#+,'%#+'1#0;;+#+&P

H"8[."<AC0%8.+'$015'15+'/%1%'?#"1+.10"8'@.1P'
B<AC0.%10"8,'%#+'15%1'U8+,'."-C&'(+'0<A",+&2'#0,>'"4'
.#0<08%CY.030C'A#",+.-10"8,2'%&3+#,+'A-(C0.01)'%8&'&%1%'
A#".+,,08;'."-C&'(+',-,A+8&+&P

J5+'!-8&'0,'/?'#+;0,1+#+&'15#"-;5'15+'@&<080,1+#08;'
@-15"#01)P

D"8U&+810%C01)'@;#++<+81,'%#+'08'AC%.+'$015'150#&'
A%#10+,'"8'#+,1#0.10"8,'"8'-,+'"4'."8U&+810%C'<+<(+#'
&%1%P

R%.>'"4'."8108-01)'$01508'D"<<011++'$50.5'
%#0,+,'(+.%-,+'<",1'<+<(+#,'4%.+'#+[+C+.10"8'
,0<-C1%8+"-,C)P

@AA"081+&'1$"'08&+A+8&+81'<+<(+#,'1"'15+'D"<<011++'
S08&+A+8&+81'4#"<'15+'%&<080,1+#08;'%-15"#01)2',.5+<+'
+<AC")+#,'%8&'-80"8,TPage 116



AVON PENSION FUND ANNUAL REPORT 2010/11 11

Risk Management

5%,'(++8'A#+,+81+&'1"'15+'%8&'15%1'
%CC'15+'0,,-+,'5%3+'(++8'4-CC)'."8,0&[
+#+&'%8&'&+(%1+&'()'15+'D"<<011++'
%8&Y"#'?%8+CP
'
:-.5' "4' 15+' 083+,1<+81' <%8%;+[
<+81' A#".+,,' 0,' "-1,"-#.+&' 1"' 08[
3+,1<+81'<%8%;+#,' %8&' 15+' ;C"(%C'
.-,1"&0%8P' J50,' %##%8;+<+81' A#"[
30&+,' %' .C+%#' ,+;#+;%10"8' "4' &-10+,'
$01508' 15+' !-8&2' $015' 15+' 08[5"-,+'
B83+,1<+81,' 1+%<' .C",+C)' <"801"#[
08;'."<AC0%8.+'$015'#+;-C%10"8,'%8&'
<%8&%1+,P'J5+'#0,>,'"4'15+'_#&'A%#1)'
,-AAC0+#,'%#+'<"801"#+&'()'15+'!-8&'
%8&' 15+' B81+#8%C' D"81#"C' *+A"#1,'
"4' %CC' 15+' ,+#30.+' A#"30&+#,' %#+' #+[
30+$+&'%88-%CC)'()'15+'D"<<011++P''

J5+' D"<<011++' <"801"#,' ("15' 15+'
A+#4"#<%8.+' "4' 15+' !-8&' %8&' 15+'
<%8%;+#,' "8' %' Q-%#1+#C)' (%,0,P'
J5+' B83+,1<+81'?%8+C',-AA"#1,' 15+'
D"<<011++' ()' #+30+$08;' 08' ;#+%1+#'
&+1%0C' 15+' 083+,1<+81' <%8%;+#,F'
A+#4"#<%8.+'"8'%'#+;-C%#'(%,0,'%8&'
#%0,08;'%8)' 0,,-+,' 1"'D"<<011++P'@'
#"(-,1'<%8%;+#',+C+.10"8'A#".+,,'0,'
-8&+#1%>+8'08'$50.5'15+'#0,>,'"4'15+'
083+,1<+81'%AA#"%.52'%8&'15+#+4"#+'
15+'#0,>'15+'<%8%;+#'$0CC'A",+'1"'15+'
!-8&2'%#+'&+1+#<08+&'%1'15+'"-1,+1P'

J5+' !-8&08;' =1#%1+;)' =1%1+<+81'
,+1,'"-1'15+'4-8&08;',1#%1+;)'4"#'15+'
!-8&P' B1' 0,' #+30+$+&' %1' C+%,1' +3+#)'
15#++')+%#,'%,'01'4"#<,'15+'(%,0,'4"#'
15+'%.1-%#0%C'3%C-%10"8P'@'>+)'#0,>'4"#'
+<AC")+#,'0,'15%1'15+'+<AC")+#'."8[
1#0(-10"8'#%1+'0,'08."##+.1C)'.%C.-C%1+&'
&-+' 1"' 15+'<+<(+#,50A' 084"#<%10"8'
5+C&' ()' !-8&' 8"1' (+08;' %..-#%1+P'
J5+' !-8&' #+;-C%#C)' #+."8.0C+,' 15+'
<+<(+#,50A'&%1%'1"'0&+8104)'%8&'#+[
,"C3+'&%1%'Q-+#0+,'$015'+<AC")+#,P

J5+'A"1+810%C' 08,"C3+8.)'"4',.5+<+'
+<AC")+#,2' C+%308;' "-1,1%8&08;' C0[
%(0C010+,' 08'15+'!-8&2' 0,'%',0;80U.%81'
#0,>' 1"' 15+'!-8&'%8&'"15+#'+<AC")[
+#,P' J5+' !-8&' #+Q-0#+,' %CC' ("&0+,'
15%1'$0,5'1"'(+'%&<011+&'1"'15+'!-8&'
1"' (+' ;-%#%81++&' ()' %' ,.5+<+'
+<AC")+#S,T'"#'1"'A#"30&+'%'("8&'1"'
A#"1+.1' 15+'!-8&' 08' 15+'+3+81'"4' 08[
,"C3+8.)P'J5+'!-8&'<"801"#,'15+'U[
8%8.0%C',-,1%08%(0C01)'"4'15+',.5+<+'
+<AC")+#,' %8&' 1%>+,' 150,' 081"' %.[
."-81'08'15+'3%C-%10"8'+I+#.0,+P

="<+'%.1-%#0%C'#0,>,'.%8'(+'<010;%1[
+&' ()' 15+' 083+,1<+81' ,1#%1+;)P'J5+'

4-8&08;' %8&' 083+,1<+81' ,1#%1+;0+,'
4".-,' "8' 15+' +IA+.1+&' #+%C' #+1-#8,'
4#"<'15+'%,,+1,2' 15-,'<010;%108;'15+'
+44+.1' "4' 08e%10"8' $50.5' %44+.1,' 15+'
3%C-+'"4'15+'A+8,0"8'C0%(0C010+,P'B8'%&[
&010"8' 15+' %CC".%10"8' 1"' 08&+I[C08>+&'
("8&,'<010;%1+,',"<+'"4'15+'#0,>'"4'
08e%10"8'(+08;'50;5+#'15%8'+IA+.1+&P'

J5+'!-8&'"A+#%1+,'$01508'15+'D"-8[
.0CF,'U8%8.0%C'4#%<+$"#>P'J5+'!-8&F,'
(-&;+12'$50.5'0,',+1'%88-%CC)'%,'A%#1'
"4' 15+' 15#++[)+%#' 4"#$%#&' C"">08;'
=+#30.+' ?C%82' 0,' <"801"#+&' ()' 15+'
D"<<011++P' J5+' U8%8.0%C' %.."-81[
08;' ,),1+<' 0,' 081+;#%1+&' $015' 15+'
D"-8.0CF,'%8&'15+',+;#+;%10"8'"4'&-[
10+,'%8&'."81#"C' ,1#-.1-#+' 0,'%;#++&'
$015'%8&'%88-%CC)'#+30+$+&'()'B81+#[
8%C'@-&01P

@' >+)' U8%8.0%C' #0,>' 0,' 15+' 8"8[A%)[
<+81'"4'."81#0(-10"8,'()'+<AC")+#,P'
J5+' #+;-C%10"8,' A#"30&+' %' ,%8.10"8'
4"#'C%1+'A%)<+81,P'?#".+,,+,'%#+'08'
AC%.+' 1"' +8,-#+' 15%1' ."81#0(-10"8,'
%#+'#+."8.0C+&'#+;-C%#C)P

J5+'?+8,0"8'!-8&'"A+#%1+,'%',+A%[
#%1+' (%8>' %.."-81' 4#"<' 15+' D"-8[
.0CF,'1"'+8,-#+'1#%8,A%#+8.)'%8&'%.[
."-81%(0C01)' "4' 15+' !-8&F,' (%8>08;'
%##%8;+<+81,P'':%8%;+<+81'"4'15+'
!-8&F,' .%,5' (%C%8.+' 0,' &+C+;%1+&'
1"' 15+' D"-8.0CF,' J#+%,-#)' :%8%;+[
<+81'J+%<'$50.5'<%8%;+,'15+'.%,5'
,+A%#%1+C)' 4#"<'15+'D"-8.0CF,'.%,52'
08'C08+'$015'15+'!-8&F,'"$8'J#+%,-#)'
:%8%;+<+81'?"C0.)P'

J5+'%&<080,1#%10"8'#0,>,'#+C%1+'<%08[
C)'1"'15+'08%(0C01)'"4'15+'@&<080,1#%1"#'
1"'<++1'01,'"(C0;%10"8,'1"'%&<080,1+#'
15+'!-8&'%8&'A%)'(+8+U1,'%..-#%1+[
C)' %8&'"8' 10<+'%,'%;#++&'$015' +<[
AC")+#,' "#' -8&+#' ,1%1-1+P'J5+'<%08'
%#+%,' "4' #0,>,' %#+' 8"8[A%)<+81' "#'
C%1+'A%)<+81'"4'<+<(+#,F'(+8+U1,2'
08."##+.1' .%C.-C%10"8' "4' (+8+U1,2'
(#+%.5' "4' /%1%' ?#"1+.10"8' *+;-C%[
10"8,'"#'4%0C-#+'1"'."<AC)'$015'!#++[
&"<'"4'B84"#<%10"8'@.1'#+Q-+,1,'%8&'
/0,.C",-#+' "4' B84"#<%10"8' #+Q-0#+[
<+81,P'@CC'"4'15+'%("3+'."-C&'C+%&'1"'
%&3+#,+'A-(C0.01)2' C",,'"4' #+A-1%10"8'
%8&'-C10<%1+C)',1%1-1"#)'U8+,P'J5+,+'
%#+'%&&#+,,+&'08'15+'O-,08+,,'D"8[
108-01)'?C%8'%8&'<010;%1+&'08'15+'*0,>'

*+;0,1+#P

J5+' O-,08+,,' D"8108-01)' ?C%8' 0,' 08'
AC%.+'A#0<%#0C)'1"'&+%C'$015'l&0,%,1+#'
#+."3+#)m'%8&' 08.C-&+,'."8108;+8.)'
<+%,-#+,P'J5+'?C%8'0&+810U+,'.#010.%C'
%.103010+,' $5",+' 4%0C-#+' $"-C&' C+%&'
1"'%8'-8%..+A1%(C+' C",,'"4' ,+#30.+2'
&".-<+81,' %8&' ,+1,' "-1'<+%,-#+,'
1"'<080<0,+'15+'#0,>'"4'&0,#-A10"8'1"'
,+#30.+'%8&',A+.0U+,'$5%1'l1#0;;+#,m'
15+' ."8108;+8.)' <+%,-#+,' ."<08;'
081"'+44+.1P

@',-<<%#)'"4'15+'>+)'#0,>,'0&+810U+&'
08' 15+'A+8,0"8' 4-8&F,'*0,>'*+;0,1+#'
%#+',5"$8'08'J%(C+'a'"AA",01+P

Financial Risks 

Actuarial Risks

Risk Register

Business Continuity Plan 

Bene"ts Administration 
Risks 

Page 117



J5+'@3"8'?+8,0"8'!-8&'0,'%&<080,[
1+#+&'()'O%15'9'H"#15'E%,1'="<+#[
,+1' D"-8.0C' %8&' 15+' %&<080,1#%10"8'
"4' 15+'!-8&' 0,'-8&+#1%>+8' 08[5"-,+'
()' 15+'?+8,0"8,'/+A%#1<+81'"4' 15+'
D"-8.0CP'J5+'&+A%#1<+81'0,',AC01'081"'
15#++' ,+.10"8,\' B83+,1<+81' %8&'@.[
."-8108;2' O+8+U1,' @&<080,1#%10"8'
%8&'15+'=),1+<,'=-AA"#1'%8&'?%)[
<+81,' J+%<P' @' &+1%0C+&' L#;%80,%[
10"8'D5%#1' 0,' %3%0C%(C+' "8' 15+'@3"8'
?+8,0"8' !-8&' $+(,01+$ EEE@*=#0A
/-0'&#03:0%@#+,@:J$

E%.5' )+%#' 15+' A+8,0"8' !-8&' A#+[
A%#+,'%' #"CC08;'_[6+%#'=+#30.+'?C%8'
$50.5',+1,'"-1'15+'!-8&F,'"(^+.103+,'
08' 15+'<+&0-<[1+#<'%8&'#+30+$,' 01,'
A+#4"#<%8.+' 08' 15+' A#+30"-,' )+%#'
%;%08,1' 15+,+'"(^+.103+,P' B1' %C,"' 08[
.C-&+,' %' _[)+%#' U8%8.0%C' (-&;+1P'
J5+' =+#30.+' ?C%8' 0,' ,-(<011+&' 1"'
15+'@3"8'?+8,0"8'!-8&'D"<<011++'
+%.5' )+%#' 4"#' %AA#"3%C' %8&' 0,' A-([
C0,5+&'"8'15+'!-8&F,'$+(,01+P

*+.+81' C+;0,C%10"8' %CC"$+&' C".%C'
;"3+#8<+81' A+8,0"8' ,.5+<+,' 1"'
&#%$' -A' %' ?+8,0"8,'@&<080,1#%10"8'
=1#%1+;)' 4"#' 0<AC+<+81%10"82' %41+#'
%&+Q-%1+' +<AC")+#' ."8,-C1%10"8P'
!"CC"$08;' %' ."8,-C1%10"8' +I+#.0,+'
$015' +<AC")+#,2' 15+' =1#%1+;)' $%,'
%AA#"3+&' ()' 15+'D"<<011++' 08'/+[
.+<(+#' VWXW' %8&' .%<+' 081"' +44+.1'
4#"<'@A#0C'VWXXP'=0;80U.%81'.5%8;+,'
1"' 15+' R7?=' (+8+U1' ,1#-.1-#+' %#+'
+IA+.1+&'"3+#'15+'8+I1'_'1"'G')+%#,'
%8&'15+'=1#%1+;)'$0CC'(+'>+)'1"'A#+[
A%#08;'15+'!-8&'4"#'15+,+'.5%8;+,P

J5+'A#0<%#)'"(^+.103+'"4'15+'=1#%1+;)'
0,'4"#'15+'!-8&'%8&'<"#+'+<AC")+#,'
1"'$"#>' 1";+15+#'<"#+'+44+.103+C)' 08'
"#&+#'1"'<++1'4-1-#+'.5%CC+8;+,'%8&'
1"' ."8108-+' 1"' &+C03+#' %8' +I.+CC+81'
C+3+C' "4' ,+#30.+P' i+)' +C+<+81,' %#+'
15+'0<A#"3+<+81'"4'."<<-80.%10"8,'
(+1$++8' +<AC")+#,' %8&' 15+' !-8&2'
."<A#+5+8,03+' 1#%0808;' "4' ("15' 08[
5"-,+' ,1%44' %8&' 15+' A+8,0"8,' ,1%44'

%1' 15+' +<AC")+#,' %8&' -10C0,%10"8' "4'
1+.58"C";)' 1"' .%A1-#+' %8&' A#".+,,'
&%1%'.5%8;+,P'

J5+'=1#%1+;)' 08."#A"#%1+,' A+#4"#<[
%8.+' 1%#;+1,' 4"#'("15' 15+'!-8&'%8&'
+<AC")+#,' $50.5' %#+' ,+1' "-1' 08'
=+#30.+' R+3+C' @;#++<+81,' S=R@,TP'
R%#;+' %8&' <+&0-<[,0k+&' +<AC")[
+#,'%C#+%&)'5%3+'=R@,'08'AC%.+'%8&'
%,' A%#1' "4' 15+' =1#%1+;)' %CC' +<AC")[
+#,' $0CC' (+' %,>+&' 1"' ,0;8' %8' =R@P'
J5+,+' $0CC' 08.C-&+' .5%CC+8;08;' (-1'
%.50+3%(C+'1%#;+1,'%;%08,1'$50.5'15+'
A+#4"#<%8.+'"4' ("15' A%#10+,'$0CC' (+'
<"801"#+&P'*+,-C1,'$0CC'(+'A-(C0,5+&'
08'=1+$%#&,50A'*+A"#1,'$50.5'$0CC'(+'
."8,0&+#+&' %1' #+;-C%#' #+30+$'<++1[
08;,' $015' C%#;+' %8&' <+&0-<[,0k+&'
+<AC")+#,P' B8' %&&010"82' ,-<<%#)'
A+#4"#<%8.+'$0CC'(+'<"801"#+&'Q-%#[
1+#C)' ()' 15+' D"<<011++' "8.+' ,-4U[
.0+81'&%1%'5%,'(++8'."<A0C+&P

@3"8'?+8,0"8'!-8&'0,'"8+'"4'"8C)'%'
,<%CC'8-<(+#'"4'15+'ff'C".%C'%-15"#[
01)'A+8,0"8'4-8&,'1"'5%3+'1%>+8'%&[
3%81%;+'"4'150,'08010%103+2'%,'01'0,'."8[
,0&+#+&'%'301%C' 1""C' 04' 15+'!-8&' 0,' 1"'
,-..+,,4-CC)'&+%C'$015'15+'.5%CC+8;[
+,' "4' 15+' <",1' ,0;80U.%81' ,.5+<+'
.5%8;+,'08'15+'50,1"#)'"4'15+'R7?=P

B8'#+.+81')+%#,'%'8-<(+#'"4',0;80U[
.%81' 1+.580.%C' %&3%8.+<+81,' 5%3+'
(+."<+' %3%0C%(C+' $50.5' .%8' 0<[
A#"3+' 15+'&+C03+#)'"4' 15+',+#30.+' 1"'
<+<(+#,'%8&'+<AC")+#,P'J5+'!-8&'
0,'>++8'1"'%&"A1'15+,+'$5+#+3+#'A",[
,0(C+'1"'5+CA'0<A#"3+'%8&',1#+%<C08+'
01,',+#30.+'1"'<+<(+#,'%8&'+<AC")[
+#,P

/-#08;'15+')+%#'15+'!-8&'<%&+'15+'
4"CC"$08;',0;80U.%81'.5%8;+,\
'
H% &'$()#$(%!,9)$)(21-2)#$%I#J2?

K-1'=' -A&%1+&' 15+' N+)$""&'
,"41$%#+'1"'%'$+([(%,+&'3+#,0"8'
A#"30&08;'+%,0+#'%..+,,'$50.5'0,'
<"#+'-,+#[4#0+8&C)P

H% C'9:'1% I'.J?I'1")G'% ;CII<='
,$01.5+&' A#"30&+#,' 1"'N+)$""&'
15-,' A#"30&08;' %&&010"8%C' 4%[
.0C010+,' 4"#'<+<(+#,' 08.C-&08;' %'
A+8,0"8'(+8+U1'.%C.-C%1"#P'B8'%&[
&010"82'"8.+'#+;0,1+#+&'4"#':==2'

<+<(+#,'$0CC'(+'%(C+'1"'-A&%1+'
.+#1%08' (%,0.' A+#,"8%C' 084"#<%[
10"8'"8[C08+P

H% I'G+1'% 2K#?K-L% 0#12-.=' %'
1$"[$%)' A"#1%C' 4"#' &%1%' 1#%8,[
4+#' 4#"<' %8&' 1"' +<AC")+#,' $%,'
+,1%(C0,5+&P' J5+' !-8&' -,+,'
7C"(%C,.%A+' $50.5' A#"30&+,' %'
,0<AC+[1"[-,+' ,+.-#+' <+%8,'
"4' 1#%8,4+##08;' +8.#)A1+&' &%1%P''
J50,' 8+$' 4%.0C01)2' A"A-C%#' $015'
+<AC")+#,2'5%,',0;80U.%81C)' 0<[
A#"3+&'&%1%',+.-#01)'%8&'4-#15+#'
,1#+%<C08+&'A#".+,,+,P

M$-:.)$8%:#2F%9'9:'1(%-$,%'9?
0.#L'1(%2#%F-"'%-GG'((%2#%1'.'"-$2%
9'9:'1%)$J#19-2)#$%K)2F%2F'%-:).?
)2L% 2#% GF-$8'% #1% +0,-2'% 2F)(% #$?
.)$'% )$% -% G#$21#..',% '$")1#$9'$2%
)(% (''$%-(%-%9-N#1% -,"-$G'9'$2%
-(%)2%K)..%(0'',%+0%01#G'(()$8%-$,%
1'9#"'% 9-$+-.% 01#G'(()$8% '1?
1#1(O

M015' 150,' 08' <08&2' %8&' E<AC")+#'
=+C4[=+#30.+'<"&-C+'$%,'A-#.5%,+&'
4#"<'N+)$""&'&-#08;'15+')+%#P'L8.+'
#+;0,1+#+&2'+<AC")+#,'.%8'8"$'.%##)'
"-1' (%,0.' .%C.-C%10"8,' %8&' "(1%08'
A+8,0"8' .",1,' 0<<+&0%1+C)' 08,1+%&'
"4'5%308;' 1"' #+Q-+,1' 15+<' 4#"<' 15+'
!-8&P

@8' %&&010"8%C' 0<A"#1%81' 4%.0C01)' 08'
E=='$0CC'(+'%3%0C%(C+'4#"<'L.1"(+#P'
J50,'$0CC'%CC"$'+<AC")+#,' 1"'-A&%1+'
,1%#1+#,2' .5%8;+,' %8&' C+%3+#,' "8[
C08+' S08' %' !-8&[."81#"CC+&' +830#"8[
<+81T' 15-,' ,0;80U.%81C)' 0<A#"308;'
084"#<%10"8' e"$,' 1"' 15+' !-8&2' %,[
,0,108;' 08' ,1#+%<C0808;' A#".+,,+,'
%8&' 0<A#"308;' ,+#30.+' &+C03+#)' 1"'
<+<(+#,P'

J5+'!-8&'A-(C0,5+,'01,'D"<<-80.%[
10"8,'?"C0.)'"8'01,'$+(,01+P'J50,'8"$'
4"#<,' %8' 081+;#%C' A%#1' "4' 15+' ?+8[
,0"8,'@&<080,1#%10"8'=1#%1+;)P

J5+' !-8&' (+C0+3+,' 15%1' .C+%#' %8&'
<+%808;4-C' ."<<-80.%10"8' $015'
<+<(+#,'%8&'+<AC")+#,'0,'301%C'%8&'
01' -,+,' 3%#0"-,' <+&0%' 1"' %.50+3+'

AVON PENSION FUND ANNUAL REPORT 2010/1112

Pensions Administration

Technological Advances

Pensions 
Administration

• Administration Strategy Introduced
• Technological Developments

3-Year Service Plan 2010/13

Operational
Improvements

New Pensions Administration 
Strategy

Employer Self-service (ESS) 

Communications

Page 118



AVON PENSION FUND ANNUAL REPORT 2010/11 13

Pensions Administration

&'1J#19-$G'%B$,)G-2#1 PQ&A
I2-$,-1,
R-18'2

*+$,
-GF)'"',
-8-)$(2
2-18'2%S

AB&*!
G.+:

-"'1-8'

R+11+#'&+1%0C08;'1#%8,4+#'08'Q-"1+ XW'&%), ffP_` bGPh`

R+11+#'&+1%0C08;'1#%8,4+#'"-1'Q-"1+ XW'&%), fbPG` b_Pd`

?#".+,,'#+4-8&'%8&'0,,-+'A%)<+81'3"-.5+# G'&%), f_PG` fWPX`

R+11+#'8"104)08;'#+10#+<+81'(+8+U1'%<"-81'n''(2)9-2'( XW'&%), fbPW` fXPV`

R+11+#'8"104)08;'-G2+-.'#+10#+<+81'(+8+U1, G'&%), ffPb` f_PV`

R+11+#'%.>8"$C+&;08;'&+%15'"4'<+<(+# G'&%), dhPX` f_Pb`

R+11+#'8"104)08;'%<"-81'"4'&+A+8&%81F,'(+8+U1, G'&%), fGPd` fWPW`

D%C.-C%1+'%8&'8"104)'&+4+##+&'(+8+U1, XW'&%), fGPa` bWPh`

Table 5: Performance Indicators 2010-11

+44+.103+' ."<<-80.%10"8' 08.C-&[
08;'8+$,C+11+#,' 4"#'<+<(+#,' S@3"8'
?+8,0"8' H+$,T' %8&' %' ,+A%#%1+'
8+$,C+11+#' 4"#' A+8,0"8+#,' S%1-*'-TP'
B8'%&&010"82'+<AC")+#,'#+.+03+'#+;-[
C%#' +C+.1#"80.' 8+$,C+11+#,' %8&' -A[
&%1+,' 1"' >++A' 15+<' 084"#<+&' "4' %CC'
.5%8;+,'15%1'%44+.1'15+<P

J5+' !-8&F,' "(^+.103+' 0,' 1"' A#"30&+'
084"#<%10"8'+C+.1#"80.%CC)'$5+#+'%A[
A#"A#0%1+P'@,'%'A0C"12'15+'<",1'#+.+81'
."A)' "4' 15+' <+<(+#,F' 8+$,C+11+#'
$%,' ,+81' +C+.1#"80.%CC)' ()'"8+'+<[
AC")+#'1"'01,',1%44P'

J5+'!-8&' 0,' .-##+81C)'&+3+C"A08;'%'
,1#%1+;)'1"'08.#+%,+'01,'-,+'"4'+C+.[
1#"80.'&+C03+#)'4"#'("15';+8+#0.'084"#[
<%10"8' S,-.5' %,' <+<(+#' %8&' +<[
AC")+#' 8+$,C+11+#,T' %8&' 08&030&-%C'
084"#<%10"8'S,-.5'%,'@88-%C'O+8+U1'
=1%1+<+81,T' 08'%8'%AA#"A#0%1+C)',+[
.-#+' <%88+#' 08' C08+' $015' 15+' /0,[
.C",-#+' "4' B84"#<%10"8' *+;-C%10"8,'
VWXWP'B1'0,'%..+A1+&'15%1'%',0;80U.%81'
8-<(+#' "4' 15+'!-8&F,'<+<(+#,' &"'
8"1'5%3+'+<%0C'%..+,,'%1'15+0#'$"#>[
AC%.+'%8&' 15+)'.%8'"A1' 1"'."8108-+'

1"' #+.+03+' 084"#<%10"8' 08' %' A#081+&'
4"#<%1P'H"1$015,1%8&08;'150,2',0;80U[
.%81' 4-1-#+',%308;,'%#+'+IA+.1+&' 08'
#+&-.+&'A#08108;'%8&'A",1%;+'.",1,P

J5+'!-8&'5%,'5%&'01,'"$8'&+&0.%1+&'
A+8,0"8'$+(,01+' 4"#' "3+#' 1+8' )+%#,'
%8&'150,'0,'8"$'%'<%^"#',"-#.+'"4'08[
4"#<%10"8'4"#'<+<(+#,'%8&'+<AC")[
+#,P'J5+',01+'5%,',+A%#%1+',+.10"8,'
4"#' +%.5' .%1+;"#)' "4' <+<(+#,50A'
%8&'%C,"'"8+'4"#'+<AC")+#,P

J5+'$+(,01+' #+.+03+&'%8' 08.#+%,+&'
8-<(+#' "4' o501,F' 150,' )+%#' &+<"8[
,1#%108;' %8' 08.#+%,+&' 081+#+,1' 08'
A+8,0"8,' 4"CC"$08;'<+&0%' ."3+#%;+'
"4'15+'N-11"8'*+30+$'"4'A-(C0.',+.[
1"#'A+8,0"8,2'$50.5'5%,',0;80U.%81C)'
50;5C0;51+&'15+'A#"UC+'"4'A+8,0"8,P

J5+' 8+$' :+<(+#' %8&' E<AC")+#'
=+C4[=+#30.+' <"&-C+,' %#+' $+([
(%,+&' $50.5' 08.#+%,+,' 15+' -,+4-C[
8+,,'%8&'0<A"#1%8.+'"4'150,'<+&0%P

J5+' !-8&' AC%.+,' ."8,0&+#%(C+' 0<[
A"#1%8.+'"8'15+'4++&(%.>'01'#+.+03+,'
4#"<'<+<(+#,'"8'15+',+#30.+'A#"30&[
+&P'L(1%08+&'%1'A+8,0"8'.C080.,'%8&'
4#"<'#+10#++,2'150,'084"#<%10"8'0,'%8%[
C),+&'%8&2'$5+#+'%AA#"A#0%1+2'."<[
<+81,'%8&',-;;+,10"8,'%#+'-,+&'1"'
0<A#"3+',+#30.+'&+C03+#)P'J5+'!-8&'
%C,"'<%>+,'%'A"081'"4'#+;-C%#C)'A-([
C0,508;',%10,4%.10"8'#+,-C1,'(%.>'1"'01,'
<+<(+#,'08'15+'!-8&F,'8+$,C+11+#,P

J5+' !-8&' "44+#,' 1"' 5"C&' A+8,0"8'
.C080.,' 4"#' <+<(+#,' "4' %CC' +<AC")[
+#,2' 8"#<%CC)'%1' 15+0#' ,01+,2' %1' C+%,1'
"8.+' %' )+%#P' /-#08;' 15+' .%C+8&%#'
)+%#'VWXW2'XG'.C080.,'$+#+'5+C&'%8&'
_GW'<+<(+#,'$+#+',++8'"8'%8'08&0[
30&-%C' (%,0,P'J5+,+'<+<(+#,'$+#+'
%,>+&'1"'."<AC+1+',%10,4%.10"8'Q-+,[
10"88%0#+,'#%108;'15+'%&+Q-%.)'"4'15+'
!-8&F,' #+,A"8,+2' 15+' 5+CA4-C8+,,'
"4' 15+'!-8&F,',1%442' 15+',-01%(0C01)'"4'

Member Satisfaction

Website

Pension Clinics

Page 119



AVON PENSION FUND ANNUAL REPORT 2010/1114

Pension Administration

T'L%I2-JU$8%B$,)G-2#1( 3454 ;AB&*!
G.+:

-"'1-8'<

344V ;AB&*!
G.+:

-"'1-8'<

H-<(+#'"4',1%44'%&<080,1+#08;'15+'R7?=',.5+<+ XbPd XbPa

!-8&':+<(+#'Y'=1%44'#%10" a2Ghb S_2GWWT a2GWV S_2aWaT

@3+#%;+'8-<(+#'"4'.%,+,'&+%C1'$015'()'(+8+U1,',1%44 Vaa Vaa

Table 6: Key Sta#ng Indicators 2010-11

15+' C".%10"8'%8&' 15+'A#03%.)'%44"#&[
+&'15+<P''*%108;,'"4';""&Y+I.+CC+81'
#%8;+&' 4#"<' bG`' 4"#' 15+' 3+8-+' 1"'
XWW`' 4"#' 15+' 5+CA4-C8+,,2' $015' %8'
%3+#%;+' #%108;' "4' ;""&Y+I.+CC+81'
%.#",,'15+'("%#&'"4'fb`P

=5"#1C)' %41+#' #+10#+<+812' Q-+,10"8[
8%0#+,'%#+',+81'1"'<+<(+#,'4"#'4++&[
(%.>'"8'15+'Q-%C01)'%8&'10<+C08+,,'"4'
15+' ,+#30.+' 15+)' #+.+03+&' 4#"<' 15+'
!-8&'08'&+%C08;'$015'15+0#'#+10#+<+81P'
@8'"3+#%CC'#%108;'"4'fG`'%,';""&'"#'
+I.+CC+81'$%,'#+.+03+&'"8'15+'Q-%C01)'
"4'15+',+#30.+'A#"30&+&'()'15+'!-8&P
J5+'!-8&' #+.+03+&'8"' 4"#<%C' ."<[

AC%081,' %("-1' 01,' ,+#30.+' &-#08;' 15+'
)+%#P

J5+'!-8&'"A+#%1+,'%'/0,%;#++<+81'
?#".+&-#+2' 15+' 1+#<,' "4' $50.5' %#+'
&+U8+&' ()' ,1%1-1+P' J5+' ?#".+&-#+'
0,' -,+&' 08' .%,+,' $5+#+' %'<+<(+#'
&0,%;#++,'$015'15+'A+8,0"8'(+8+U1,'
5+Y,5+' 5%,' (++8' %$%#&+&2' "#' 0,' 08'
&0,%;#++<+81'$015'%'&+.0,0"8'<%&+'
()'50,Y5+#'+<AC")+#'15%1'%44+.1,'15+'
A+8,0"8'(+8+U1,'5+Y,5+'0,'%$%#&+&P'
J5+'?#".+&-#+'0,',5"$8'08'&+1%0C'"8'
15+'!-8&F,'$+(,01+P

/-#08;'15+')+%#'15+#+'$+#+'8"'=1%;+'
X' .%,+,' S%AA+%C,' %;%08,1' %' &+.0[
,0"8'"4' 15+'%&<080,1+#08;'%-15"#01)TP'
J5+#+' $+#+' 1$"' .%,+,' 08' A#";#+,,'
-8&+#'=1%;+'V'S4-#15+#'%AA+%C'$5+#+'
=1%;+'X'$%,'."<AC+1+&'()'15+'+<[
AC")+#TP

J5+' !-8&' A%#10.0A%1+,' 08' 15+' %8[
8-%C' DB?!@' ?+8,0"8,' @&<080,1#%[
10"8' O+8.5<%#>08;' DC-(P' J50,' &%1%'
0,'-,+&'1"'1%#;+1'%#+%,'4"#'0<A#"3+[
<+81' 08' 15+'=+#30.+'?C%82' 1"'-8&+#[
,1%8&'15+',A+.0U.',+#30.+'A#+,,-#+,'
15%1' 15+'@3"8' ?+8,0"8' !-8&' 4%.+,'
%8&'1"'"A+#%1+'%,'+4U.0+81C)'%8&'+4[
4+.103+C)'%,'A",,0(C+P

J%(C+' G' -,+,' &%1%' 4#"<' 15+' DB?!@'
O+8.5<%#>08;' DC-(' VWXX' *+A"#1'
$50.5' ."<A%#+,' 15+' &%1%' %8&' A+#[
4"#<%8.+'"4' C".%C'%-15"#01)'A+8,0"8'
4-8&,'08'15+'DC-('S"3+#'aW'"-1'"4'ff'
R7?='4-8&,TP'B1',5"$,'A+#4"#<%8.+'
%;%08,1'08&-,1#)',1%8&%#&'1%#;+1,P

B8' <",1' %#+%,' 15+' @3"8' ?+8,0"8'
!-8&' 5%,' +I.++&+&' 15+' 08&-,1#)'
,1%8&%#&' 1%#;+1,P' J5+' !-8&F,' "$8'
1%#;+1,'%#+'&+1+#<08+&'()'15+'=R@,'
01'5%,'08'AC%.+'$015'01,'C%#;+'1"'<+&0[
-<[,0k+&' +<AC")+#,2' ."3+#08;' "3+#'
fW`'"4'15+'%.103+'<+<(+#,P'B8'<%8)'
.%,+,' 15+,+' 1%#;+1,'%#+'<"#+'.5%C[
C+8;08;' 15%8' 15+' 08&-,1#)' ,1%8&%#&P'
*+;-C%#'=R@'<++108;,'%#+'5+C&'$015'
<+&0-<' 1"' C%#;+' +<AC")+#,' 1"' #+[
30+$'A+#4"#<%8.+P

J5+' !-8&' %C,"' A-(C0,5+,' %' D-,[
1"<+#'D5%#1+#'"8'15+'@3"8'?+8,0"8'
!-8&'$+(,01+P'J50,'08.C-&+,'1%#;+1,'
S08'$"#>08;' &%),T' 4"#' ."<AC+10"8' "4'
A#".+,,08;'"4'<+<(+#'(+8+U1,P

J5+' 1"1%C' 8-<(+#' "4' ,1%44' 08' 15+'
?+8,0"8' =+#30.+' %&<080,1+#08;' 15+'
R7?='$%,'_bPa' 08'VWXWYXX'S_bPG' 08'
VWWfYXWT' %8&2' "4' 15+,+2' XbPd' &+%C'
$015'A+8,0"8'(+8+U1,'%&<080,1#%10"8P

J%(C+'h'0,'%8'%8%C),0,'"4',1%44[(%,+&'
&%1%'4#"<'15+'DB?!@'O+8.5<%#>08;'
DC-(' VWXX' *+A"#1P' J50,' ,5"$,' 15+'
%3+#%;+' 8-<(+#' "4' A+8,0"8' <+<[
(+#,'&+%C1'$015'()'+%.5'"4' 15+'(+8[
+U1,' ,1%44' %8&' 15+' %3+#%;+' 8-<(+#'
"4'.%,+,'A#".+,,+&'A+#'<+<(+#'"4'
,1%44P

Complaints

Disagreements 
Procedure

(Formally known as the Internal 
Dispute Procedure)

Key Sta#ng Indicators

Retirements

Performance Comparison against 
other local authority funds – CIPFA 
Benchmarking

Performance Indicators

Page 120



AVON PENSION FUND ANNUAL REPORT 2010/11 15

Investment Report

The Taj Mahal, India

©
istockphoto.com

/credit

J5+'@3"8'?+8,0"8' !-8&' 0,' %' 4-8&[
+&' ,.5+<+' $50.5' <+%8,' 15%1' 15+'
."81#0(-10"8,' %8&' !-8&'<"80+,' 8"1'
.-##+81C)' 8++&+&' 1"' <++1' A+8,0"8'
%8&' (+8+U1' A%)<+81,' %#+' 083+,1+&'
%8&'15+'!-8&'#+.+03+,'08."<+'4#"<'
15+,+' 083+,1<+81,P' J5+' !-8&F,' "([
^+.103+'0,'1"'<++1'15+'4-1-#+'A+8,0"8'
A%)<+81,' "4' ("15' A%,1' %8&' .-##+81'
<+<(+#,P

J5+' R7?=' *+;-C%10"8,' A#"30&+' %'
4#%<+$"#>' 4"#' 15+' 083+,1<+81' ,1#%1[
+;)P' '@' $0&+' #%8;+' "4' 083+,1<+81,'
%#+' A+#<011+&' (-1' .+#1%08' C0<01,' %#+'
,+1'1"'+8,-#+'&03+#,0U.%10"8'%8&'#+[
&-.+'#0,>P''

J5+'C0<01,'#+C+3%81'1"'15+'!-8&'%#+\

]' 8"' <"#+' 15%8' VG`'<%)' (+' 08[
3+,1+&'08'-801'1#-,1,'<%8%;+&'()'
%8)'"8+'("&)Z'

]' 8"'<"#+' 15%8'XW`'"4' 15+'!-8&'
<%)'(+' 083+,1+&' 08'-8C0,1+&',+[
.-#010+,Z'

]' 8"'<"#+' 15%8'XW`'"4' 15+'!-8&'
<%)'(+' 083+,1+&' 08' %' ,08;C+' 08[
3+,1<+81'5"C&08;Z'

]' 8"'<"#+' 15%8'XW`'"4' 15+'!-8&'
<%)'(+'&+A",01+&'$015'%8)'"8+'
(%8>Z

]' C"%8,' 4#"<' 15+' !-8&' <%)' 8"1'
+I.++&'XW`'"4' 15+'3%C-+'"4' 15+'
!-8&Z

]' 8"' <"#+' 15%8' _G`'<%)' (+' 08[
3+,1+&' 08' %8)' "8+' 08,-#%8.+'
."81#%.1Z'

]' 8"'<"#+'15%8'G`''<%)'(+'083+,1[
+&'08'%8)',08;C+'A%#18+#,50AZ'

]' 083+,1<+81,'08'A%#18+#,50A,'<%)'
8"1' +I.++&' G`' "4' 15+' 3%C-+' "4'
15+'!-8&P'

J5+' =1%1+<+81' "4' B83+,1<+81' ?#08[
.0AC+,'S=B?T',+1,'"-1'15+'083+,1<+81'
A#08.0AC+,'"4' 15+'!-8&'%8&'5"$' 15+'

083+,1<+81,' %#+' <%8%;+&' 08' C08+'
$015' 15+' A#08.0AC+,P' i+)' +C+<+81,'
08.C-&+\' ,".0%C2' +830#"8<+81%C' %8&'
+150.%C' ."8,0&+#%10"8,Z' +I+#.0,+' "4'
3"108;' #0;51,Z' ,1".>' C+8&08;' A"C0.)Z'
%8&' ."<AC0%8.+' $015' 15+' :)8+#,'
A#08.0AC+,P

J5+'=B?'$%,'#+30,+&'&-#08;'15+')+%#'
1"'#+e+.1'15+'4"CC"$08;'.5%8;+,\

XP' @'4-#15+#'.5%8;+'08'15+',1#%1+;0.'
%,,+1' %CC".%10"8' 4#"<' Ki' +Q-0[
10+,'1"'L3+#,+%,'+Q-010+,

VP' J5+' %&"A10"8' "4' 15+' !08%8.0%C'
*+A"#108;' D"-8.0C' S!*DT' Ki'
=1+$%#&,50A'D"&+

_P' J5+'%AA"081<+81'"4':%804+,1' 1"'
<"801"#' 15+'!-8&F,'3"108;'%.103[
01)

J5+' .5%8;+,' 08' 15+' ,1#%1+;0.' %,,+1'
%CC".%10"8'%#+'+IAC%08+&'08',+.10"8'V'
['B83+,1<+81'=1#%1+;)P

Statement of Investment   
Principles

Investment Report

1. Investment Regulations

Investment Limits

• Asset Value increases 7.8%
• 3 year Investment return of 6.3% per annum
• New Management appointed

Page 121



AVON PENSION FUND ANNUAL REPORT 2010/1116

Investment Report

B8'g-C)'VWXW'15+'!*D'A-(C0,5+&'15+'
=1+$%#&,50A' D"&+2' %' ,+1' "4' (+,1[
A#%.10.+'A#08.0AC+,'15%1'%#+'081+8&+&'
1"' 4#%<+' ("15' ,5%#+5"C&+#' +8;%;+[
<+81' $015' ."<A%80+,2' %8&' 15+' &0,[
.C",-#+' "4' ,-.5' %.10301)P' J5+' !-8&'
A-(C0,5+&' %' ,1%1+<+81' &+,.#0(08;'
5"$'15+'A#08.0AC+,'"4'15+'D"&+'5%3+'
(++8' %AAC0+&' %8&' %8' +IAC%8%10"8'
$5+#+' +C+<+81,' "4' 15+' D"&+' 5%3+'
8"1'(++8'."<AC0+&'$015P

J5+' !-8&F,' #+.+81' %AA"081<+81' "4'
:%804+,12'%8'08&+A+8&+81'3"1+[<"8[
01"#08;',+#30.+'A#"30&+#2'$0CC'0<A#"3+'
15+' %8%C),0,' %8&' #+A"#108;' "4' 5"$'
15+' !-8&F,' B83+,1<+81' :%8%;+#,'
%#+'+I+.-108;'3"108;'#0;51,'"8'(+5%C4'
"4' 15+'!-8&P'J5+'3"108;'%.10301)'$0CC'
(+' #+A"#1+&' 1"'D"<<011++'Q-%#1+#C)'
%8&' %8' %88-%C' #+A"#1' $0CC' (+' A-([
C0,5+&P'J50,'$0CC',+#3+'1"',1#+8;15+8'
15+' !-8&F,' ."<AC0%8.+'$015' 15+' #+[
.+81C)' A-(C0,5+&' !*D' =1+$%#&,50A'

D"&+'$015'#+;%#&'1"'<"801"#08;'%8&'
&0,.C",-#+'"4'3"108;'%.10301)P

B8' %&&010"82' 15+' !-8&' 0,' %' <+<(+#'
"4'15+'R".%C'@-15"#01)'?+8,0"8'!-8&'
!"#-<' SR@?!!T2' %' ."CC%("#%103+'
("&)' $50.5' +I0,1,' 1"' ,+#3+' 15+' 08[
3+,1<+81'081+#+,1,'"4' C".%C'%-15"#01)'
A+8,0"8'4-8&,P' B8'A%#10.-C%#2'R@?!!'
,++>,'1"'<%I0<0,+'15+'08e-+8.+'15+'
4-8&,'5%3+'%,',5%#+5"C&+#,'15#"-;5'
."["#&08%108;' ,5%#+5"C&+#' %.1030,<'

5%MJJ'G2)"'%,'G)()#$?9-E)$8 A#90.)-$G'

DC+%#';"3+#8%8.+',1#-.1-#+'4"#'&+.0,0"8[<%>08;2',-AA"#1+&'()'+IA+#1'%&30,"#,'%8&'"4U.+#,'
$015'.C+%#'#+,A"8,0(0C010+, !

g"('&+,.#0A10"8,',+1108;'"-1'15+'#"C+'%8&'#+,A"8,0(0C010+,'"4'%CC'D"<<011++'<+<(+#, !

D"<<011++'<+<(+#,'-8&+#1%>+'1#%0808;'"8'"8;"08;'(%,0, !

@'4"#$%#&'C"">08;'15#++[)+%#'(-,08+,,'AC%8 !

3%A.'-1%W:N'G2)"'( A#90.)-$G'

DC+%#'083+,1<+81'"(^+.103+'%8&',1#%1+;)2'1%>08;'081"'%.."-81'15+'%.1-%#0%C'A",010"8'%8&'
0<A%.1'"8',.5+<+'+<AC")+#,'%8&'1%I'A%)+#,' !

@'.-,1"<0,+&'(+8.5<%#>'#+e+.108;'15+'!-8&F,'"$8'C0%(0C01)'A#"UC+ !

D"8,0&+#%10"8'"4'&044+#+81'%,,+1'.C%,,+,'%8&'15+0#'0<A%.1'"8'#+1-#8'%8&'#0,>' !

B8&030&-%C'A+#4"#<%8.+'1%#;+1,'4"#'15+'083+,1<+81'<%8%;+#,2'<"801"#+&'()'15+'D"<<011++ !

EIA+#1'%&30.+'$5+8'."8,0&+#08;'01,'083+,1<+81'"(^+.103+'%8&',1#%1+;) !

X%/)(E%-$,%P)-:).)2)'(% A#90.)-$G'

B83+,1<+81'"(^+.103+'%8&',1#%1+;)'#+e+.1,'15+',A+.0U.'C0%(0C01)'A#"UC+'"4'15+',.5+<+'
<+<(+#,' !

D"3+8%81'"4'15+'+<AC")+#'%8&'15+0#'%(0C01)'1"'A%)'."81#0(-10"8,'0,'1%>+8'081"'%.."-81 !

*0,>[<%8%;+<+81'A#".+,,'08'AC%.+'1"'+8,-#+'#0,>,'%#+'0&+810U+&'%8&'<010;%108;'%.10"8'0,'
1%>+8'$5+#+'A",,0(C+ !

@%&'1J#19-$G'%!(('((9'$2%% A#90.)-$G'

!-8&F,'A+#4"#<%8.+'<+%,-#+&'%;%08,1'083+,1<+81'"(^+.103+2''083+,1<+81'<%8%;+#,'
A+#4"#<%8.+'<+%,-#+&'%;%08,1'15+0#'(+8.5<%#>, !

D"81#%.1,'$015'%&30,"#,'%,,+,,+&'"8'%8'"8;"08;'(%,0, !

?+#4"#<%8.+'"4'&+.0,0"8[<%>08;'("&0+,'%,,+,,+&'()'+I1+#8%C'%-&01"#,' !

Y%/'(0#$():.'%WK$'1(F)0%%% A#90.)-$G'

:%8%;+#,'%&"A1'15+'B8,101-10"8%C'=5%#+5"C&+#,F'D"<<011++'=1%1+<+81'"4'?#08.0AC+,' !

?"C0.)'"8'#+,A"8,0(C+'"$8+#,50A'0,'08.C-&+&'08'=1%1+<+81'"4'B83+,1<+81'?#08.0AC+, !

Z%R1-$(0-1'$GL%-$,%/'0#12)$8%%% A#90.)-$G'

DC+%#'A"C0.)'1"'."<<-80.%1+'%8&'."8,-C1'$015'01,',.5+<+'<+<(+#,2'#+A#+,+81%103+,'%8&'
+<AC")+#,'%,'%AA#"A#0%1+P'' !

@CC'&".-<+81,'%8&',1%1+<+81,'<%&+'%3%0C%(C+2'%88-%C'#+A"#1'."81%08,'084"#<%10"8'%8&'&%1%'
#+C+3%81'1"'01,'<%8)2'&03+#,+',1%>+5"C&+#,P !

Table 7: How the Avon Pension Fund achieved compliance with the Myners Principles

Page 122



AVON PENSION FUND ANNUAL REPORT 2010/11 17

Investment Report

%<"8;,1'15+'A+8,0"8'4-8&,P

@,'A%#1'"4'15+'=B?2'%&<080,1+#08;'%-[
15"#010+,' %#+' #+Q-0#+&' 1"' ,1%1+' 5"$'
15+)'."<AC)'$015'15+':)8+#,'?#08.0[
AC+,'%8&'+IAC%08'$5+#+'15+)'&"'8"1'
."<AC)P

J5+'"#0;08%C':)8+#,'?#08.0AC+,'$+#+'
A-(C0,5+&'08'L.1"(+#'VWWX'4"CC"$08;'
%' ;"3+#8<+81' #+30+$' 08' #+,A"8,+'
1"' ."8.+#8,' 15%1' 15+' (+5%30"-#' "4'
083+,1<+81' 08,101-10"8,' $%,' &0,1"#1[
08;' +."8"<0.' &+.0,0"8[<%>08;' 1"'
15+'&+1#0<+81'"4' ,<%CC'%8&'<+&0-<'
,0k+&' +81+#A#0,+,P' J5+)' ,+1' "-1' XW'
083+,1<+81' A#08.0AC+,' ."&04)08;' %'
<"&+C'"4'(+,1'A#%.10.+'4"#'083+,1"#,P

!"CC"$08;'%'#+30+$'08'L.1"(+#'VWWb'
15+'J#+%,-#)'A-(C0,5+&'%'#+30,+&',+1'
"4'h'?#08.0AC+,'$015' 15+' 081+810"8'"4'
;0308;';#+%1+#'o08&-,1#)'"$8+#,50AF'"4'
15+'A#08.0AC+,'%8&'1"'AC%.+'15+'"8-,'
"8'1#-,1++,'"#'15+0#'+Q-03%C+81'1"'#+[
A"#1'15+0#'"$8'A#%.10.+,P'B1'0,'081+8&[
+&' 15%1'%',<%CC+#'8-<(+#'"4'50;5+#'
C+3+C' A#08.0AC+,' A#"30&+,' ;#+%1+#'
e+I0(0C01)'4"#'A+8,0"8',.5+<+,P

J5+'!-8&F,'.-##+81'."<AC0%8.+'$015'
15+':)8+#,F'A#08.0AC+,'5%,'(++8'-A[
&%1+&' 1"' #+e+.1' 15+' C%1+,1' ;-0&%8.+'
0,,-+&' ()' DB?!@' "8' %AAC)08;' 15+'
#+30,+&':)8+#,'?#08.0AC+,' 1"'R7?='
4-8&,2'%8&'0,',-<<%#0,+&'08'J%(C+'dP

J"' 4-#15+#' ,1#+8;15+8' 15+' C+3+C' "4'
."<AC0%8.+' 15+' !-8&' $0CC' (+' 0<[
AC+<+8108;' %' ' 1#%0808;' 4#%<+$"#>'
4"#' <+<(+#,' "3+#' 15+' 8+I1' 1$+C3+'

<"815,P

J5+'C%1+,1'=B?'$%,'%AA#"3+&'()'15+'
@3"8' ?+8,0"8' !-8&' D"<<011++' %1'
01,'<++108;'08':%#.5'VWXXP'@'."A)'"4'
15+',1%1+<+81'.%8'(+'"(1%08+&'+015+#'
4#"<'15+'$+(,01+'EEE@*=#0/-0'&#0A
3:0%@#+,@:J''"#'()'+<%0C'4#"<'*=#0V
/-0'&#0W1*.)0-'@,#=@:J

J5+' "(^+.103+' "4' 15+' B83+,1<+81'
=1#%1+;)' 0,' 1"' %.50+3+' 15+' 083+,1[
<+81'#+1-#8'#+Q-0#+&'()'15+'4-8&08;'
,1#%1+;)'08'"#&+#'1"'<++1'15+'!-8&F,'
C0%(0C010+,' "3+#' 10<+' %8&' 1"' #+."3+#'
%8)' 4-8&08;' &+U.01P' J5+' =1#%1+;)'
<-,1' A#"&-.+' 083+,1<+81' #+1-#8,'
15%1'$0CC'5+CA',1%(0C0,+'%8&'<080<0,+'
+<AC")+#' ."81#0(-10"8' #%1+,' 08' 15+'
C"8;' 1+#<' %,' $+CC' %,' #+e+.108;' 15+'
(%C%8.+' (+1$++8' <%I0<0,08;' #+[
1-#8,2' A#"1+.108;' %,,+1' 3%C-+,2' %8&'
<%1.508;' 15+' C0%(0C010+,' S1"'<080<0,+'
083+,1<+81'#0,>TP''

J5+' =1#%1+;)' #+e+.1,' 15+' !-8&F,'
%AA+101+' 4"#' #0,>' %8&' 01,' $0CC08;[
8+,,' 1"' %..+A1' ,5"#1' 1+#<' 3"C%10C[
01)'$01508' %' C"8;' 1+#<',1#%1+;)P'J5+'
!-8&'A-#,-+,'%'A"C0.)'"4'<%8%;08;'
#0,>' 15#"-;5'&03+#,0U.%10"8'()'%,,+1'
.C%,,'%8&'()'083+,1<+81'<%8%;+#,P''
J5+' @3"8' ?+8,0"8' !-8&' D"<<01[
1++' A+#0"&0.%CC)' #+30+$,' 01,' 083+,1[
<+81',1#%1+;)'08'"#&+#'1"'+8,-#+'15+'
=1#%1+;)' #+e+.1,' 15+'!-8&F,' C0%(0C01)'
A#"UC+P

!"CC"$08;'15+'&+.0,0"8'08'VWWf'1"'#+[
&-.+'15+'%CC".%10"8'1"'Ki'+Q-010+,'08'

4%3"-#'"4'"3+#,+%,'+Q-010+,'=.5#"&+#'
@,,+1' :%8%;+<+81' $%,' %AA"081+&'
1"'<%8%;+'%'7C"(%C'EQ-01)'A"#14"C0"'
$50.5'$%,'4-8&+&'08'@A#0C'VWXXP

/-#08;'15+')+%#2'15+'!-8&'#+30+$+&'
01,' %CC".%10"8' 1"' 5+&;+' 4-8&,2' ."8[
.C-&08;' 15%1' 15+' XW`' %CC".%10"8' #+[
<%08+&' %AA#"A#0%1+P' N"$+3+#2' 15+'
%CC".%10"8'"4'<"80+,'$01508'15+'A"#1[
4"C0"' (+1$++8' 15+' !-8&' "4' N+&;+'
!-8&' <%8%;+#,' $%,' %C1+#+&' 1"' #+[
e+.1' 15+'A#+4+##+&' 083+,1<+81',1#%1[
+;)'A#"UC+' 4"#' 15+'A"#14"C0"'%8&' 15+'
<%8%;+#,F'A+#4"#<%8.+P

J5+',1#%1+;0.'%,,+1'%CC".%10"8'%1'_X'
:%#.5'VWXX'%8&'%.1-%C'%,,+1'%CC".%[
10"8'%1'_X':%#.5'VWXX'%8&'15+'A#+30[
"-,')+%#' 0,',5"$8' 08'J%(C+'bP'H"1+'
15%1'%,'%1'_X':%#.5'VWXX2'15+'!-8&F,'
A#"A+#1)'083+,1<+81'<%8%;+#,'$+#+'
,10CC' 08' 15+' A#".+,,' "4' 083+,108;' 15+'
<"80+,' %CC".%1+&' 1"' A#"A+#1)2' %8&'
15+' 08.#+%,+&' ,1#%1+;0.' %CC".%10"8'
1"' "3+#,+%,' +Q-010+,' $%,' ,10CC' (+[
08;' 0<AC+<+81+&P' 'L8.+' 15+' ,$01.5'
(+1$++8'Ki'%8&'"3+#,+%,'+Q-010+,'
$%,' 0<AC+<+81+&' 08'@A#0C' VWXX' 15+'
%CC".%10"8' 1"' Ki' +Q-010+,' $%,' VW`'
%8&'"3+#,+%,'+Q-010+,'aVPd`P

J5+' !-8&F,' B83+,1<+81' =1#%1+;)' 0,'
0<AC+<+81+&'()'+I1+#8%C'083+,1<+81'
<%8%;+#,P'J5+'083+,1<+81'<%8%;+[
<+81' ,1#-.1-#+' %8&' 15+' %<"-81' "4'
%,,+1,' +%.5'<%8%;+#'<%8%;+,' "8'
(+5%C4' "4' 15+'!-8&'%,' %1' _X':%#.5'
VWXX'0,',+1'"-1'08'D5%#1'XP'/-#08;'15+'
)+%#' 15+' 4"CC"$08;' .5%8;+,' 1"' 15+'
B83+,1<+81' :%8%;+<+81' =1#-.1-#+'

!(('2%A.-(( I21-2'8)G%
!..#G-2)#$

X5%C-1GF%3455

!G2+-.%!..#G-2)#$%
X5%C-1GF%3455

!G2+-.%!..#G-2)#$%
X5%C-1GF%3454

Ki'EQ-010+, XbPW` VaPf` VbPV`

L3+#,+%,'EQ-010+, aVPW` _dPd` _GPX`

B8&+I[R08>+&'70C1, hPW` hPW` hPX`

!0I+&'B81+#+,1'70C1, hPW` dPV` dPh`

Ki'D"#A"#%1+'O"8&, GPW` GPV` GPX`

L3+#,+%,'!0I+&'B81+#+,1 _PW` VPb` _PW`

!-8&'"4'N+&;+'!-8&, XWPW` bP_` bPd`

?#"A+#1) XWPW` hPG` aPV`

=5"#1'1+#<'&+A",01,'Y'L15+# WPW` XPa` VPV`

Table 8: Strategic Asset Allocation and Actual Asset Allocation

Compliance with Myners 
Principles

Investment Management 
Structure

2. Investment Strategy

Strategic Asset Allocation

Page 123



$+#+'<%&+P

]' @,'%'#+,-C1'"4'15+'#+30+$'"4'5+&;+'
4-8&,' 15+' <%8&%1+' $015' R),1+#'
M%1,"8'$%,'1+#<08%1+&'%8&'15+'
%CC".%10"8'1"':@H'#+&-.+&'S1"'(+'
0<AC+<+81+&' 08' g-C)' VWXXT'$015'
15+'A#".++&,'1"'(+'083+,1+&'$015'
1$"'"4'15+'"15+#'!-8&'"4'N+&;+'
!-8&' <%8%;+#,2' =1+85%<' %8&'
=0;8+1P'

]' =.5#"&+#,' $+#+' %AA"081+&' 1"'
<%8%;+' %8' %.103+C)' 083+,1+&'
;C"(%C'+Q-01)'A"#14"C0"'"4'.Ph`'"4'
15+'!-8&F,'%,,+1,'$50.5'$0CC'(+'
4-8&+&'+%#C)'08'15+'VWXXYVWXV'U[
8%8.0%C')+%#P'!

!"CC"$08;' %' )+%#' .5%#%.1+#0,+&' ()'
#+."3+#08;'<%#>+1,'%8&'50;5'#+1-#8,2'
15+'"-1C"">'4"#'15+'."<08;')+%#'%1'_X'
:%#.5'VWXW'(%C%8.+&'1$"'."81#%,1[
08;',.+8%#0",\'15+'15#+%1'"4'%'&"-(C+['
&0A' #+.+,,0"8' 3+#,-,' 15+' C0>+C05""&'
"4' %' ."8108-+&' #+."3+#)P' B8' %.1-%C'
4%.12' 8+015+#' ,.+8%#0"' 5%,' ."<+' 1"'
A%,,P'B8,1+%&2'083+,1"#,'5%3+'4"-8&'
15+<,+C3+,'#+%.108;'1"'%'."8108-%CC)'
.5%8;08;' C%8&,.%A+' "4' ."8e0.108;'
+."8"<0.' 084"#<%10"8' %8&' <%#>+1'
,+810<+812'$015'<%8)'e-.1-%108;'(+[
1$++8'%'l#0,>["8m'"-1C"">2'$5+#+'08[

3+,1"#,',++>'%,,+1,'15%1'(+8+U1'4#"<'
%'#0,>'A#+<0-<',-.5'%,'+Q-010+,2'%8&'
%' l#0,>["44m' %AA#"%.5' $5+#+' 15+)'
,++>' ,%4+' 5%3+8,' ,-.5' %,' ("8&,'
%8&' +,.5+$' #0,>' %,,+1,P'M5+8' 15+'
+3+81,'"4':%#.5'VWXX'%#+'%&&+&[082'
S%' <"815' $50.5' ,%$' 15+' &+3%,1%1[
08;' +%#15Q-%>+' %8&' 1,-8%<0' 08' g%[
A%82' 15+' 1-#<"0C' 08' 15+':0&&C+'E%,1'
%8&' ."8.+#8,' "3+#' 15+' ?"#1-;-+,+'
+."8"<)'%8&'B#0,5'(%8>,T2'15+')+%#'
+8&,' %,' 01' (+;%82' $015' -8.+#1%081)'
15+'"3+##0&08;'.5%#%.1+#0,10.P

M50C,1'-8%(C+' 1"'<%1.5'15+'#+<%#>[
%(C+'#+1-#8,'"4'15+'A#+30"-,')+%#2'%CC'
%,,+1' .C%,,+,' &+C03+#+&' ,0;80U.%81'
A",0103+' #+1-#8,' "3+#' 15+' )+%#' $015'
15+' +I.+A10"8' "4' g%A%8+,+' +Q-010+,'
%8&'.%,5P'J5+'#+1-#8,'4"#'15+'08&030&[
-%C' %,,+1,' %8&'<%#>+1,' 08' VWXWYXX'
%#+',+1'"-1'08'D5%#1'V'%C"8;'$015'15+'
_')+%#'#+1-#8,'08',1+#C08;P

EQ-01)' <%#>+1,' A#"&-.+&' %' ,"C0&'
#+1-#8'"3+#' 15+')+%#'&+,A01+'%'A""#'
,+."8&' Q-%#1+#' "4' VWXW' $5+8' 15+'
#%CC)',-44+#+&'%'(#0+4',+1(%.>'&-+'1"'
%' ,C"$08;' 08' 15+' A%.+' "4' +."8"<0.'
#+."3+#)2' ."8.+#8,' "3+#' E-#"A+%8'
,"3+#+0;8' &+(1' %8&' A"C0.)' 10;51+8[
08;' 08' +<+#;08;' +."8"<0+,P' N"$[
+3+#2'(+11+#'15%8'+IA+.1+&'."#A"#%1+'
A#"U1,',%$'+Q-010+,'("-8.+'(%.>' 08'
15+' 4"CC"$08;' 1$"' Q-%#1+#,2' "8C)' 4"#'

15+'+3+81,'"4':%#.5'VWXX' 1"'5+#%C&'
%' #+1-#8' "4' -8.+#1%081)' 1"' &%<A+8'
15+' +Q-01)' <%#>+1' %,' 15+' U8%8.0%C'
)+%#' .%<+' 1"' %' .C",+P' Ki' +Q-010+,'
A+#4"#<+&' (#"%&C)' 08' C08+' $015' 15+'
"15+#' &+3+C"A+&' <%#>+1,2' &+C03+#[
08;' %' #+1-#8' "4' bPd`P' @,0%' ?%.0U.'
S+I.C-&08;' g%A%8T' #",+' X_PX`' "-1[
A+#4"#<08;'+<+#;08;'<%#>+1,'$50.5'
#",+' XXPf`2' $50C,1' g%A%8+,+' +Q-0[
10+,' $+#+' 15+' "8C)' %,,+1' .C%,,' 1"'
;+8+#%1+' 8+;%103+' #+1-#8,' "3+#' 15+'
XV'<"815,P

Ki' ;"3+#8<+81' ("8&,' 5%&' %' (+1[
1+#')+%#'08';+8+#%C'ShPf`'#+1-#8T'%,'
15+'+."8"<0.'-8.+#1%081)'<+%81'15+'
o,%4+' 5%3+8F' "4' ;"3+#8<+81' ("8&,'
(+.%<+'3%C-+&P'@C15"-;5'15+'50;5+#'
)0+C&,'"4'."#A"#%1+'("8&,'."8108-+&'
1"' %11#%.1' 083+,1"#,2' 15+)' $+#+' -8[
%(C+' 1"'<%1.5' 15+0#' 0<A#+,,03+'A+#[
4"#<%8.+' "4' 15+' A#+30"-,' )+%#' (-1'
,10CC'#+1-#8+&'h`'"3+#'15+')+%#P

Ki'?#"A+#1)2'5+&;+'4-8&,'%8&'."<[
<"&010+,' %CC' "-1A+#4"#<+&' +Q-010+,'
&+C03+#08;' #+1-#8,' "4' XVPX`2' XVPh`'
%8&' XhPX`' #+,A+.103+C)P' Ki' ?#"A[
+#1)'A",1+&'A",0103+'#+1-#8,' 08'+%.5'
Q-%#1+#' &-#08;' 15+' )+%#2' &#03+8' ()'
08.#+%,08;' 083+,1"#' 081+#+,1' (%,+&'
"8' 15+' (+C0+4' 15%1' 15+' Ki' A#"A+#1)'
<%#>+1' ("11"<+&' "-1' 08' <0&[VWWf2'
#%15+#' 15%8'%8)',0;80U.%81' 0<A#"3+[

AVON PENSION FUND ANNUAL REPORT 2010/1118

Investment Report

Chart 1: Strategic Asset Allocation by Manager 31 March 2011

3. Market Background

Page 124



AVON PENSION FUND ANNUAL REPORT 2010/11 19

Investment Report

<+81' 08' -8&+#C)08;' 4-8&%<+81%C,P'
N+&;+' 4-8&,' "-1A+#4"#<+&' 15+0#'
.%,5[(%,+&' (+8.5<%#>,' 4"#' %' ,+.[
"8&' ,-..+,,03+' )+%#' %8&' ."<[
<"&010+,' %.50+3+&' %' A",0103+' #+1-#8'
"8' 15+'(%.>'"4'%' ,1#"8;' #%CC)' 08'pX'
VWXX' %.#",,' %' (#"%&' ,A+.1#-<' "4'
."<<"&010+,P' L0C' A#0.+,' 08.#+%,+&''
,1+%&0C)'"3+#'15+')+%#'%8&';"C&'."8[
108-+&'1"'(+'3%C-+&'%1'#+."#&'50;5,2'
+8&08;' 15+' )+%#' %1' "3+#' qX2aWW' %8'
"-8.+P'

=1+#C08;' ."8108-+&' 01F,' %AA#+.0%[
10"8' 3+#,-,' 15+' K=' &"CC%#2' $50C,1' %'
U8%C[Q-%#1+#' &+A#+.0%10"8' %;%08,1'
15+'E-#"'#+1-#8+&'15+'cYr'+I.5%8;+'
#%1+'1"'C+3+C,',++8'%1'15+',1%#1'"4'15+'
)+%#P'L4U.0%C'081+#+,1'#%1+,'08'15+'K=2'
E-#"A+'%8&' 15+'Ki'5%3+' #+<%08+&'
%1' 50,1"#0.' C"$,' 08' %8' +44"#1' ()' 15+'
.+81#%C'(%8>,'1"',10<-C%1+'+."8"<0.'
;#"$15P' ' Ki' 08e%10"8' #+<%08+&' C"$'
4"#' 15+'<%^"#01)' "4' 15+' )+%#' (-1' +I[

A+#0+8.+&'%'#0,+'08'15+'U8%C'Q-%#1+#2'
#+e+.108;'50;5+#'j@J'%8&'#0,08;'4-+C'
.",1,' %C15"-;5' $%;+' A#+,,-#+,' #+[
<%08+&' ,-(&-+&P' J50,' %..+C+#%10"8'
08' Ki' 08e%10"8' %C"8;,0&+' ,<%CC+#'
#0,+,' 08' E-#"A+%8' %8&' K=' 08e%10"8'
#%1+,2' A#"<A1+&' <%8)' ."<<+81%[
1"#,'1"'.01+'15+'15#+%1'"4';C"(%C'08e%[
10"8' %,' %' >+)' #0,>' 4"#' VWXXYXVP' ' B8[
e%10"8' #%1+,' %#+' %C,"' 08.#+%,08;' 08'
<%8)' +<+#;08;'<%#>+1,' 4-+CC+&' ()'
$%;+,'%8&'50;5+#'08A-1'A#0.+,P'

@,'15+')+%#'-8&+#'#+30+$'.%<+'1"'%'
.C",+2':%#.5'A#"3+&'1"'(+'%'A%#10.-[
C%#)'1-#(-C+81'<"815P'EQ-010+,'.%<+'
-8&+#'A#+,,-#+'4#"<'."81%;0"8'."8[
.+#8,',-##"-8&08;'A"C010.%C'1-#<"0C'08'
15+' :0&&C+' E%,1P' *0,>' %,,+1,' 15+8'
,-44+#+&' %' 4-#15+#' &+.C08+' %41+#' 15+'
&+3%,1%108;'+%#15Q-%>+'%8&',-(,+[
Q-+81'1,-8%<0'501'g%A%8P'@,'4+%#,'"4'
%'8-.C+%#',A0CC'-84"C&+&'15+',01-%10"8'
&+1+#0"#%1+&'#%A0&C)P'

N"$+3+#2' &+,A01+' %' ,0;80U.%81' 4%CC'
08010%CC)2'."<<"&01)'%8&'+Q-01)'<%#[
>+1,2'U80,5+&'15+'<"815',1#"8;C)'%,'
083+,1"#,';%08+&'."8U&+8.+'15%1'15+'
8+.+,,%#)' #+(-0C&' 08' g%A%8' $"-C&'
C0>+C)'("",1'7/?';#"$15'%8&'8-.C+%#'
<+C1&"$8'$"-C&'(+'%3+#1+&P'D+81#%C'
(%8>'081+#3+810"8'1"',1%(0C0,+'15+'6+8'
%8&' 15+'KH[0<A",+&'8"[e)[k"8+' 08'
R0()%'("15'5+CA+&'#+&-.+'3"C%10C01)'08'
15+'<%#>+1,'()'15+'+8&'"4'15+'<"815P'

J5+' "-1C"">' 0,' 4"#' 15+' ;C"(%C' +."[
8"<0.'#+."3+#)'1"'."8108-+'(-1'%1'%'
,C"$+#' #%1+' 15%8' 08' 15+'A#+30"-,'XV'
<"815,P'K8.+#1%081)' #+<%08,' 08' 15+'
<%#>+1,2'+,A+.0%CC)'"3+#'15+'A+#0A5[
+#%C' E-#"A+%8' <%#>+1,P' N"$+3+#2'
150,'&0&'8"1'&+1+#'15+'EDO'4#"<',0;[
8%CC08;'%'#0,+' 08' 081+#+,1' #%1+,' 08'#+[
,A"8,+'1"'#0,08;'08e%10"8'%,'$+'+81+#'
VWXXYXVP

Chart 2: Market Performance by Asset Class (Return % p.a.)

!=JE'@CC,5%#+

!J=E'H"#15'@<+#0.%

!J=E'E-#"A+'S+I'KiT

!=JE'g%A%8

!J=E'@,0%'?%.0U.'S+I'g%A%8T

:=DB'E<+#;08;':%#>+1,

!J=E'Ki'70C1,'SsXG)#,T

!J=E'Ki'B8&+I[R08>+&'SsG)#,T

0O"II'=1+#C08;'H"8'70C1,'S%CC':%1,T

g?':"#;%8'H"8[Ki'7"31P'O"8&

N!*B'N+&;+'!-8&'B8&+I

B?/'Ki'?#"A+#1)

D%,5'd[&%)'RBOB/

X')+%#'*+1-#8'08'R".%C'D-##+8.)

X')+%#'*+1-#8'08'=1+#C08;

_')+%#'*+1-#8'08'=1+#C08;Page 125



!"CC"$08;' %' ,1#"8;' VWWfYXW' $5+#+'
15+' 3%C-+' "4' 15+' !-8&F,' %,,+1,' 08[
.#+%,+&' ()' _aPG`2' 08' VWXWYXX' 15+'
3%C-+'"4'15+'!-8&'#",+'()'cVWb'<0C[
C0"8' S"#'dPb`T' 1"'cVPhh'(0CC0"8'%1'_X'
:%#.5'VWXXP'J50,'$%,'&#03+8'()'A",[
0103+' #+1-#8,' %.#",,' %CC' %,,+1' .C%,,[
+,' %8&' A"#14"C0",2' 08' A%#10.-C%#' 15+'
+Q-01)'A"#14"C0",'%8&'A#"A+#1)P'L3+#'
15+'C%,1'_')+%#,'15+'!-8&F,'#+1-#8'0,'
hP_`'A+#'%88-<'4%CC08;'1"'aPd`'A+#'
%88-<'$5+8'30+$+&'"3+#'15+'C%,1'G'
)+%#,P' N"$+3+#2' "3+#' XW' )+%#,' 15+'
!-8&F,'#+1-#8'"4'_PG`'A+#'%88-<'0,'
(+C"$'15%1'#+Q-0#+&'1"'<%081%08',%1[
0,4%.1"#)'4-8&08;'C+3+C,P

J5+' C"8;[1+#<' A+#4"#<%8.+' "4' 15+'
!-8&'0,',5"$8'08'.5%#1'_'S15+'#+1-#8,'
%#+' %88-%C0,+&TP' ' J5+' !-8&' 5%,' %'
.-,1"<0,+&' (+8.5<%#>2' 15+' #+1-#8'
4"#' $50.5' 0,' 08.C-&+&' 08' 15+' .5%#1'
1";+15+#'$015' 15+' #+1-#8' "4' 15+'M:'
R".%C' @-15"#01)' !-8&' @3+#%;+' S15+'
%3+#%;+'C".%C'%-15"#01)'A+8,0"8'4-8&'
#+1-#8' %,' .%C.-C%1+&' ()' M:' D"<[
A%8)TP'

D"<A%#+&'1"'15+'M:'R".%C'@-15"#[
01)' !-8&'-803+#,+2' 15+'!-8&'-8&+#[
A+#4"#<+&' 15+' %3+#%;+' 4-8&' "3+#'
15+')+%#P''J50,'$%,'&-+'1"'15+'!-8&F,'
C"$+#'15%8'%3+#%;+'%CC".%10"8'1"'+Q[
-010+,' S+Q-010+,'A+#4"#<+&'A",0103+C)'
"3+#' 15+' )+%#T2' %8&' 15+' "3+#$+0;51'

A",010"8'08'5+&;+'4-8&,'S5+&;+'4-8&,'
C%;;+&'+Q-010+,'08'%(,"C-1+'#+1-#8,TP'

J5+' .-,1"<0,+&' (+8.5<%#>' S$50.5'
<+%,-#+,' 15+' #+C%103+' A+#4"#<%8.+'
"4' 15+' <%8%;+#,' 08' %;;#+;%1+T2'
,5"$,' 15%1' 15+' !-8&F,' <%8%;+#,'
08'%;;#+;%1+'<%1.5+&' 15+0#' ,A+.0U.'
08&+I'#+1-#8,'"3+#'15+')+%#P'g-A01+#2'
*")%C' R"8&"8' %8&' ?%#18+#,' 7#"-A'
08'A%#10.-C%#'5%&',1#"8;'#+C%103+'A+#[
4"#<%8.+,' $015' JJ' (+08;' 15+' <%08'
&+1#%.1"#P'M01508'15+'!-8&'"4'N+&;+'
!-8&' A"#14"C0"2' =0;8+1' %8&' 7"11+I'
%.50+3+&'15+0#'A+#4"#<%8.+'1%#;+1,P

D5%#1' a' ,5"$,' 15+' A+#4"#<%8.+'
"4' 15+' !-8&F,' +I1+#8%C' 083+,1<+81'
<%8%;+#,2'%;%08,1' 15+0#'(+8.5<%#>'
&-#08;'VWXWYXXP'J5+'!-8&'"4'N+&;+'
!-8&':%8%;+#,'5%3+'%'.%,5'(%,+&'
(+8.5<%#>' #%15+#' 15%8' %8' 08&+IP'
J5+' A+#4"#<%8.+' "4' ?%#18+#,' %8&'
=.5#"&+#,'#+e+.1,'15+'4%.1'15%1'15+)'
%#+' ,10CC' A%#1[$%)' 15#"-;5' 083+,108;'
15+0#'A"#14"C0",P'

J%(C+'f',-<<%#0,+,'15+'3"108;'%.103[
01)'-8&+#1%>+8'()' 15+'!-8&F,'+I1+#[
8%C'083+,1<+81'<%8%;+#,'08'#+,A+.1'
"4'15+'."<A%8)',5%#+,'15+)'5"C&'"8'
15+'!-8&F,'(+5%C4P'

J5+'XW'C%#;+,1'083+,1<+81'%8&'+Q-0[
1)'5"C&08;,'"4'15+'!-8&'%1'_X':%#.5'
VWXX'%#+',5"$8'08'15+'1%(C+,'XW'%8&'
XXP'

J5+'!-8&F,'.-,1"&0%8'0,'#+,A"8,0(C+'
4"#' 15+' ,%4+n>++A08;' "4' 15+' !-8&F,'
%,,+1,'%8&'%.1,'%,'15+'!-8&F,'(%8>2'
,+11C08;' 1#%8,%.10"8,' %8&' ."CC+.108;'
08."<+P' ' B8'%&&010"8' 15+)'A#"30&+'%'
#%8;+'"4' ,-AA"#1' ,+#30.+,' 08.C-&08;'
,1".>' C+8&08;' %8&' 083+,1<+81' %.[
."-8108;P

=08.+'@A#0C'VWWf''15+'!-8&'5%,'5%&'
%',+A%#%1+'(%8>'%.."-81'1"'0<A#"3+'
15+'1#%8,A%#+8.)'%8&'%.."-81%(0C01)'
"4'15+'!-8&F,'%8&'D"-8.0CF,'(%8>08;'
%##%8;+<+81,P''B8'%&&010"82'15+'!-8&'
5%,' %' ,+A%#%1+' J#+%,-#)' :%8%;+[
<+81' ?"C0.)' %,' %' #+,-C1' "4' #+;-C%[
10"8,' A#"50(0108;' 15+' ."[<08;C08;' "4'
15+' 083+,1<+81'.%,5'"4' 15+'A+8,0"8'
4-8&'%8&'D"-8.0CP'J5+'<%8%;+<+81'
"4' 15+' A+8,0"8' 4-8&F,' 083+,1<+81'
.%,5'0,',10CC'&+C+;%1+&'1"'15+'D"-8.0CP

AVON PENSION FUND ANNUAL REPORT 2010/1120

Investment Report

Chart 3:  Long Term Performance  

Investment Managers’  Voting 
Record

5. Largest Holdings

6. Investment Administration

*
+1
-#
8'
S`
'A
%T

@3"8'?+8,0"8'!-8&

D-,1"<0,+&'O+8.5<%#>

M:'R".%C'@-15"#01)'@3+#%;+

4. Investment Performance

Page 126



AVON PENSION FUND ANNUAL REPORT 2010/11 21

Investment Report

Chart 4: Performance by Manager 2010-11

@3"8'?+8,0"8'!-8&

O+8.5<%#> *+1-#8'S`'A%T

Juscelino Kubitschek bridge in Brasilia City the capital of Brazil

©
istockphoto.com

/credit

Page 127



AVON PENSION FUND ANNUAL REPORT 2010/1122

Investment Report

R#0%54%P-18'(2%[)1'G2%M\+)2L%]#.,)$8( S%#J%*+$,

j"&%4"8+'7#"-A cX_2dff2W_X WPGV`

N=OD cXW2bGa2GGV WPaX`

O7'7#"-A cf2hVb2XWf WP_h`

*0"'J081" cd2dhG2hVW WPVf`

O? cd2hb_2aaa WPVf`

*")%C'/-1.5'=5+CC cG2d_a2aaX WPVX`

J+,." cG2d__2Wff WPVX`

t,1#%1% cG2G_V2_XX WPVX`

O%#.C%), cG2VdV2bGV WPVW`

7C%I"=<015iC08+ ca2fVb2adh WPXb`

R#0%54%P-18'(2%B$"'(29'$2%]#.,)$8( S%#J%*+$,

@Q-0C%'R04+'Ki'EQ-01)'B8&+I'!-8&'SOC%.>*".>T caX_2_Gd2__VPVb XGPaf`

OC%.>*".>'M"#C&'B8&+I'!-8& cV_b2aGd2aXXPXX bPfa`

B83+,."'?+#1-%C'7C"(%C'+I'Ki'E85%8.+&'B8&+I'!-8& cXhf2daV2_GVPW_ hP_h`

7+8+,0,'E<+#;08;':%#>+1,'B83+,1<+81'!-8& cXad2VWW2aGfPVd GPGV`

*R??D'Ki'D"#A"#%1+'O"8&'!-8&'S*")%C'R"8&"8T cX_X2ffV2_XVPh_ aPfG`

OC%.>*".>'E-#"A+'+I[Ki'B8&+I'!-8& cXVf2hVV2aVVPG aPbh`

:=DB'EQ-01)'B8&+I'!-8&'O[K='SOC%.>*".>T cXXf2Vhh2W_fPaf aPad`

*:!'B83+,1<+81'=1#%1+;0+,'=?D'S:@HT cXWW2aVf2XWaPWd _Pdh`

@Q-0C%'R04+'L3+#,+%,'O"8&'B8&+I'!-8&'SOC%.>*".>T cd_2fff2dGhPfb VPdd`

:?!'?%.0U.'E85%8.+&'EQ-01)'B8&+I'!-8&'S==;@T cGb2__W2hbbPVV VPXf`

Table 10: Top 10 Largest Investment Holdings at 31 March 2011

Table 11: Top 10 Largest Investment Direct Equity Holdings at 31 March 2011

Table 9: Voting Summary 2010/2011

&'1G'$2-8'%#J%9''2)$8(%KF'1'=

C-$-8'1 >+9:'1%#J%
9''2)$8(%"#2',%

-2

7#2',%
'$2)1'.L%K)2F%
9-$-8'9'$2

C-,'%-%"#2'%
-8-)$(2%

9-$-8'9'$2

/'G#1,',%-$%
-:(2'$2)#$

OC%.>*".> _2XXX hV` __` a`

7+8+,0,'B83+,1<+81':%8%;+<+81 XX_ G_` __` Xa`

B83+,."'?+#A+1-%C hd GG` a_` V`

g-A01+#'@,,+1':%8%;+<+81 bV bd` XX` V`

=1%1+'=1#++1'7C"(%C'@&30,"#, d_b fV` d` X`

JJ'B81+#8%10"8%C Gd __` hd` W`

Page 128



B8'C08+'$015'15+'R7?='*+;-C%10"8,2'15+'!-8&F,'%.1-%#0%C'
A",010"8' 0,' #+30+$+&' +3+#)' 15#++' )+%#,' $015' 15+' C%1+,1'
1#0+880%C'3%C-%10"8'(%,+&'"8'<+<(+#,50A'&%1%'%8&'%,,+1'
3%C-+,' %,' %1' _X' :%#.5' VWXWP' J50,' 3%C-%10"8' ,+1,' 15+'
+<AC")+#'."81#0(-10"8' #%1+,' 4"#' 15+'A+#0"&' 4#"<'X'@A#0C'
VWXX'1"'_X':%#.5'VWXaP'

J5+'3%C-%10"8'A#"&-.+&'%'4-8&08;'C+3+C'"4'bV`'C+%308;'%'
&+U.01'"4'Xb`2'%',C0;51C)'C"$+#'4-8&08;'C+3+C'15%8'15+'b_`'
%1'15+'A#+30"-,'3%C-%10"8'08'VWWdP'N"$+3+#2'08'<"8+1%#)'
1+#<,'15+'&+U.01'5%,'08.#+%,+&'4#"<'caGf'<0CC0"8'08'VWWd'
1"' cGGV'<0CC0"8' 08' VWXWP'J50,' 08.#+%,+' 08' 15+' &+U.01' 0,'
&-+'1"' 083+,1<+81'#+1-#8,'(+08;'C+,,'15%8'15",+'$50.5'
$+#+' %,,-<+&' 08' 15+' A#+30"-,' 3%C-%10"8' %8&'%' #0,+' 08'
15+' C0%(0C010+,P' J50,' $%,' &-+' 1"' %' #0,+' 08' C"8;+301)' %8&'
%' #+&-.10"8' 08' 15+' )0+C&,' "8' 08&+I[C08>+&' ;0C1,' $50.5'
#+&-.+,'15+'&0,."-81'#%1+'-,+&'1"'3%C-+'4-1-#+'(+8+U1,P'

N"$+3+#2' 15+' &+1+#0"#%10"8' 08' 15+' 4-8&08;' C+3+C' $"-C&'
5%3+' (++8' 4%#'$"#,+' 5%&' 01' 8"1' (++8' 4"#' 15+' &+.0,0"8'
()'15+';"3+#8<+81'1"'C08>'A-(C0.',+.1"#'A+8,0"8'(+8+U1,'
1"' 15+' D"8,-<+#' ?#0.+' B8&+I' SD?BT' #%15+#' 15%8' 15+'
*+1%0C'?#0.+' B8&+I' S*?BT' 08' 15+' 4-1-#+P'@,' 15+'D?B' 5%,'
50,1"#0.%CC)'(++8'C"$+#'15%8'15+'*?B2'150,'.5%8;+'<+%81'
15%1'15+'08e%10"8'%,,-<A10"8'-,+&'4"#'3%C-08;'15+'!-8&F,'
C0%(0C010+,'$%,'C"$+#P''

J5+' VWXW' 3%C-%10"8' $%,' -8&+#1%>+8' %;%08,1' %' 3+#)'
.5%CC+8;08;' +830#"8<+81' 4"#' C".%C' %-15"#010+,' %8&'
A-(C0.',+.1"#'("&0+,P'703+8'150,'(%.>&#"A2'15+'!-8&08;'
=1#%1+;)'=1%1+<+81'4"#'15+'VWXW'3%C-%10"8'#+e+.1+&'15+'
8++&'1"'(%C%8.+'15+'C"8;[1+#<',"C3+8.)'"4'15+'!-8&'$015'
.%,5e"$' A#+,,-#+,' 4%.+&' ()' 15+' ,.5+<+' +<AC")+#,'
"3+#'15+'15#++')+%#'3%C-%10"8'A+#0"&P'

J5+' *+;-C%10"8,' A#"30&+' 15%1' 15+' !-8&08;' =1#%1+;)'
=1%1+<+81'<-,1'

]' +,1%(C0,5' %' .C+%#' %8&' 1#%8,A%#+81' 4-8&[,A+.0U.'
,1#%1+;)'$50.5'$0CC'0&+8104)'5"$'+<AC")+#,F'A+8,0"8'
C0%(0C010+,'%#+'(+,1'<+1';"08;'4"#$%#&Z

]' ,-AA"#1' 15+' #+;-C%1"#)' #+Q-0#+<+81' 1"' <%081%08'
%,' 8+%#C)' ."8,1%81' +<AC")+#' ."81#0(-10"8' #%1+,' %,'
A",,0(C+Z'%8&

]' 1%>+' %' A#-&+81' C"8;+#[1+#<' 30+$' "4' 4-8&08;' 15",+'
C0%(0C010+,P

K,08;'15+'e+I0(0C01)'A#"30&+&'$01508'150,'4#%<+$"#>2'15+'
!-8&'<%8%;+&'1"'>++A'+<AC")+#'#%1+,'S$5+8'+IA#+,,+&'
%,' %' A+#.+81%;+' "4' A+8,0"8%(C+' A%)T' ,1%(C+' $015' 15+'
VWWd'3%C-%10"8'"-1."<+P'N"$+3+#2' 08'"#&+#' 1"'%.50+3+'
,1%(0C01)2' 15+'A+#0"&'"3+#'$50.5' 15+'&+U.01' 0,' #+."3+#+&'

4#"<'+%.5'+<AC")+#'$%,'08.#+%,+&'1"'%'<%I0<-<'"4'_W'
)+%#,'4#"<'VW')+%#,'%1'15+'VWWd'3%C-%10"8P'L3+#%CC2'15+'
!-8&F,'&+U.01'#+."3+#)'A+#0"&'08.#+%,+&'4#"<'VW')+%#,'
1"' V_' )+%#,P' B8' %&&010"82' ;03+8' 15+'+IA+.1+&' #+&-.10"8'
08' A+8,0"8%(C+' A%)#"CC' "3+#' 15+' 8+I1' 15#++' )+%#,' 4"#'
<",1' "4' 15+' +<AC")08;' ("&0+,2' 15+' &+U.01' #+."3+#)'
."81#0(-10"8' S"#' A%,1' ,+#30.+' ."81#0(-10"8T2' $50.5' 5%,'
1#%&010"8%CC)' (++8' +IA#+,,+&' %,' %' A+#.+81%;+' "4' A%)2'
5%,'(++8'+IA#+,,+&'08'%88-%C'<"8+1%#)'%<"-81,P'J50,'
0,' 1"' +8,-#+' 15%1' 15+#+' 0,' 8"' ,0;80U.%81' -8&+#A%)<+81'
"4'&+U.01'#+."3+#)'."81#0(-10"8,',5"-C&'A%)#"CC,'."81#%.1P'

J5+'N-11"8'D"<<0,,0"8'#+A"#1+&'(%.>'&-#08;'15+')+%#'
"8' 15+' 4-1-#+' "4' 15+' A-(C0.' ,+.1"#' A+8,0"8' ,.5+<+,P'
@C15"-;5' C"8;[1+#<' ,-,1%08%(0C01)' $%,' 15+'<%08' 0,,-+2'
,5"#1' 1+#<' .",1' A#+,,-#+,' %C,"' 08e-+8.+&' 15+' #+A"#1F,'
."8.C-,0"8,P'@' 8-<(+#' "4' #+."<<+8&%10"8,' $+#+' A-1'
4"#$%#&'$50.5'15+';"3+#8<+81'5%3+'%..+A1+&'(-1'5%3+'
)+1'1"'%88"-8.+'5"$'15+)'$0CC'(+'0<AC+<+81+&P'

J5+' D"<<0,,0"8F,' <%08' #+."<<+8&%10"8' A#"A",+,'
15%1' U8%C' ,%C%#)' ,.5+<+,' %#+' .C",+&' $015' %..#-+&'
#0;51,'4-CC)'A#"1+.1+&'%8&'%CC'.-##+81'<+<(+#,'<"3+'1"'
%'D%#++#'@3+#%;+'*+[3%C-+&'E%#808;,' (%,+&' ,.5+<+'
S"#'%'D@*E',.5+<+T'4"#'4-1-#+',+#30.+P'D@*E',.5+<+,'
%#+' ."8,0&+#+&' 4%0#+#' 4"#' <+<(+#,' "8' C"$+#' ,%C%#0+,'
%8&' 15",+' 15%1' 5%3+' C+,,' .%#++#' A#";#+,,0"8'$5+#+%,'
U8%C' ,%C%#)' ,.5+<+,' 4%3"-#' 15",+' "8' 50;5+#' ,%C%#0+,'
%8&'15",+'A#"<"1+&'15#"-;5"-1'15+0#'.%#++#,P'N"$+3+#2'
15+#+'$%,'8"'#+."<<+8&%10"8'4#"<'15+'D"<<0,,0"8'"8'
15+' &+1%0C' "4' 15+' 8+$' ,1#-.1-#+2' ,-.5' %,' %..#-%C' #%1+,'
%8&' ."81#0(-10"8' C+3+C,P'J50,' &+.0,0"8' 5%,'(++8' C+41' 1"'
15+' ;"3+#8<+81Z' -C10<%1+C)' 15+' 8+$' ,.5+<+' ,1#-.1-#+'
$0CC' (+' &+,0;8+&' 1"'<++1' 15+' .",1' A%#%<+1+#,' ,+1' "-1'
()'15+';"3+#8<+81P'J5+#+'$+#+'"15+#'#+."<<+8&%10"8,'
08.C-&08;' C08>08;' 15+' 8"#<%C' #+10#+<+81' %;+' 1"' 15+'
=1%1+' ?+8,0"8' @;+' %8&' +,1%(C0,508;' %8' 08&+A+8&+81'
."<<0,,0"8' 1"' "3+#,++' A-(C0.' ,+.1"#' A+8,0"8,P' @,'
A#0<%#)' C+;0,C%10"8' 0,' +IA+.1+&' 1"' (+' #+Q-0#+&' 1"' (#08;'
08'15+'8+$'.5%8;+,2'01'0,'&"-(14-C'04'15+'8+$',.5+<+'$0CC'
(+'4-CC)'#+e+.1+&'08'15+'8+I1'1#0+880%C'3%C-%10"8'08'VWX_P

=+A%#%1+'1"'15+'N-11"8'#+A"#12'08'15+'VWXW'D"<A#+5+8,03+'
=A+8&08;'*+30+$' 15+';"3+#8<+81'%88"-8.+&' 15%1' 15+'
R7?='5%&'1"'%.50+3+',%308;,'"4'cfWW<'A+#')+%#'()'VWXG'
1"'(+'%.50+3+&'()'08.#+%,08;'+<AC")++'."81#0(-10"8,'()'
.P'_`'"4'A%)P'B8'g-C)'VWXX'15+';"3+#8<+81'%88"-8.+&'
15%1';03+8'15+'4-8&+&'8%1-#+'"4'15+'R7?=2'15+,+',%308;,'
."-C&'(+'%.50+3+&'15#"-;5'%'."<(08%10"8'"4'+<AC")++'
."81#0(-10"8' 08.#+%,+,' %8&' (+8+U1' .5%8;+,P' J5+'
/+A%#1<+81'4"#'D"<<-8010+,'%8&'R".%C'7"3+#8<+81'$0CC'
."8,-C1'$015' ,1%>+5"C&+#,'"3+#' 15+',-<<+#'%,' 1"'5"$'
15+,+',%308;,'$0CC'(+'#+%C0,+&P

@' ."A)' "4' 15+' !-8&08;' =1#%1+;)' =1%1+<+81' .%8' (+'
"(1%08+&'+015+#'4#"<'15+'$+(,01+'EEE@*=#0/-0'&#03:0%@
#+,@:J'"#'4#"<'*=#0V/-0'&#0W1*.)0-'@,#=@:J$

AVON PENSION FUND ANNUAL REPORT 2010/11 23

Actuarial Report and Funding Strategy Statement

Actuarial Report and Funding 
Strategy Statement

• 2010 funding level at 82%
• Stable employer contribution rates
• Hutton recommendations to alter 

scheme bene"ts

Page 129



J50,'0,'15+',1%1+<+81'#+Q-0#+&'-8&+#'*+;-C%10"8'_aSXTS&T'"4'J5+'R".%C'7"3+#8<+81'?+8,0"8'=.5+<+'S@&<080,1#%10"8T'
*+;-C%10"8,'VWWbP

@8'%.1-%#0%C'3%C-%10"8'"4'15+'@3"8'?+8,0"8'!-8&'$%,'.%##0+&'"-1'%,'%1'_X':%#.5'VWXW'1"'&+1+#<08+'15+'."81#0(-10"8'
#%1+,'$015'+44+.1'4#"<'X'@A#0C'VWXX'1"'_X':%#.5'VWXaP''J5+'#+,-C1,'"4'15+'3%C-%10"8'%#+'."81%08+&'08'"-#'#+A"#1'&%1+&'
_X':%#.5'VWXXP''

L8'15+'(%,0,'"4' 15+'%,,-<A10"8,'%&"A1+&2' 15+'3%C-%10"8'#+3+%C+&' 15%1' 15+'3%C-+'"4' 15+'!-8&F,'%,,+1,'"4'cV2aGf'
<0CC0"8'#+A#+,+81+&'bV`'"4'15+'!-8&08;'J%#;+1'"4'c_2WXX'<0CC0"8'%1'15+'3%C-%10"8'&%1+P''J5+'3%C-%10"8'%C,"',5"$+&'
15%1'%'."<<"8'#%1+'"4'."81#0(-10"8'"4'XXPb`'"4'A+8,0"8%(C+'A%)'A+#'%88-<'$%,'#+Q-0#+&'4#"<'+<AC")+#,P''J5+'
."<<"8'#%1+'0,'.%C.-C%1+&'%,'(+08;',-4U.0+812'1";+15+#'$015'."81#0(-10"8,'A%0&'()'<+<(+#,2'1"'<++1'%CC'C0%(0C010+,'
%#0,08;'08'#+,A+.1'"4',+#30.+'%41+#'15+'3%C-%10"8'&%1+P''

@&"A108;' 15+' ,%<+' <+15"&' %8&' %,,-<A10"8,' %,' -,+&' 4"#' %,,+,,08;' 15+' !-8&08;' J%#;+1' 15+' &+U.01' $"-C&' (+'
+C0<08%1+&'()'%8'%3+#%;+'%&&010"8%C'."81#0(-10"8'#%1+'"4'aPb`'"4'A+8,0"8%(C+'A%)'4"#'V_')+%#,P'J50,'$"-C&'0<AC)'%8'
%3+#%;+'+<AC")+#'."81#0(-10"8'#%1+'"4'XhPh`'"4'A+8,0"8%(C+'A%)'08'1"1%CP

B8'A#%.10.+2'+%.5'08&030&-%C'+<AC")+#F,'A",010"8'0,'%,,+,,+&',+A%#%1+C)'%8&'15+'."81#0(-10"8,'#+Q-0#+&'%#+',+1'"-1'08'
"-#'#+A"#1'&%1+&'_X':%#.5'VWXXP''B8'%&&010"8'1"'15+'.+#10U+&'."81#0(-10"8'#%1+,2'A%)<+81,'1"'."3+#'%&&010"8%C'C0%(0C010+,'
%#0,08;'4#"<'+%#C)'#+10#+<+81,'S"15+#'15%8'0CC[5+%C15'#+10#+<+81,T'$0CC'(+'<%&+'1"'15+'!-8&'()'15+'+<AC")+#,P

J5+'4-8&08;'AC%8'%&"A1+&' 08'%,,+,,08;'15+'."81#0(-10"8,' 4"#'+%.5' 08&030&-%C'+<AC")+#' 0,' 08'%.."#&%8.+'$015' 15+'
!-8&08;'=1#%1+;)'=1%1+<+81' S!==TP' ' B8'A%#10.-C%#2' 15+#+'$+#+'3%#0%10"8,' 08' 15+'%AA#"%.5'%&"A1+&' 08' ,+1108;' 15+'
!-8&08;'J%#;+1'4"#'.+#1%08'+<AC")+#,P''/044+#+81'%AA#"%.5+,'%&"A1+&'08'0<AC+<+8108;'."81#0(-10"8'08.#+%,+,'%8&'
&+U.01'#+."3+#)'A+#0"&,'%#+'%,'&+1+#<08+&'15#"-;5'15+'!=='."8,-C1%10"8'A#".+,,P'

AVON PENSION FUND ANNUAL REPORT 2010/1124

Statement of Consulting Actuary

Statement of Consulting 
Actuary

The Iguaçu Falls span the border between Argentina and Brazil

©
istockphoto.com

/credit

Page 130



@,' %' #+,-C1' "4' 15+' 3%C-%10"82' %' #+30,+&' *%1+,' %8&' @&^-,1<+81,' D+#10U.%1+' $%,' A#+A%#+&' 4"#' 15+' 15#++' )+%#,'
."<<+8.08;'X'@A#0C'VWXXP'J5+'#%1+,'A%)%(C+'()'15+'K801%#)'@-15"#010+,'$+#+'.+#10U+&'%,'4"CC"$,\[

*+2+1'%I'1")G'%/-2'%%;S%#J%0-L<%0.+(%.+90%(+9%;^<

VWXXYXV VWXVYX_ VWX_YXa

O#0,1"C'D01)'D"-8.0C XXPb`'AC-,'
cXV2VbX2fWW

XXPb`'AC-,'
cXV2b_a2hWW

XXPb`'AC-,'
cX_2aXV2VWW

O%15'9'H"#15'E%,1'="<+#,+1'D"-8.0C XVPV`'AC-,'
ca2Xah2hWW

XVPV`'AC-,'
ca2___2VWW

XVPV`'AC-,'
ca2GVb2VWW

H"#15'="<+#,+1'D"-8.0C XXPb`'AC-,'
ca2GWb2WWW

XXPb`'AC-,'
ca2dXW2WWW

XXPb`'AC-,'
ca2fVV2WWW

="-15'7C"-.+,1+#,50#+'D"-8.0C XXPf`'AC-,'
ca2hdd2WWW

XXPf`'AC-,'
ca2bbb2WWW

XXPf`'AC-,'
cG2XWb2WWW

J5+'3%C-%10"8'$%,'.%##0+&'"-1'-,08;'15+'A#"^+.1+&'-801'%.1-%#0%C'<+15"&'%8&'15+'<%08'%.1-%#0%C'%,,-<A10"8,'-,+&'
4"#'%,,+,,08;'15+'!-8&08;'J%#;+1'%8&'15+'."<<"8'."81#0(-10"8'#%1+'$+#+'%,'4"CC"$,\

*#1%0-(2%('1")G'%.)-:).)2)'( *#1%J+2+1'%('1")G'%.)-:).)2)'(

*%1+'"4'#+1-#8'"8'083+,1<+81,\

['A#+'#+10#+<+81 hPbG`'A+#'%88-< hPdG`'A+#'%88-<

['A",1'#+10#+<+81 GPd`'A+#'%88-< hPdG`'A+#'%88-<

*%1+'"4'A%)'08.#+%,+,\ aPG`'A+#'%88-< aPG`'A+#'%88-<

*%1+'"4'08.#+%,+,'08'A+8,0"8,'08'A%)<+81'S08'
+I.+,,'"4'7-%#%81++&':080<-<'?+8,0"8T\ _PW`'A+#'%88-< _PW`'A+#'%88-<

J5+'%,,+1,'$+#+'%,,+,,+&'%1'<%#>+1'3%C-+P

J5+'@&<080,1+#08;'@-15"#01)'&+1+#<08+&'15%1'.+#1%08'+<AC")+#,'$015'%'C+,,+#'U8%8.0%C'."3+8%81'S(%,+&'"8'.#01+#0%'
,+1'()' 15+'@&<080,1+#08;'@-15"#01)T'$"-C&'5%3+' 15+0#' ."81#0(-10"8' #+Q-0#+<+81'%,,+,,+&'$015' #+4+#+8.+' 1"'<"#+'
.%-10"-,'%.1-%#0%C'%,,-<A10"8,'(%,+&'"8'."#A"#%1+'("8&')0+C&,P'!-#15+#'&+1%0C,',-##"-8&08;'150,'%AA#"%.5'.%8'(+'
4"-8&'08'15+'!=='%C"8;'$015'4-CC'&+1%0C,'"4'15+'%,,-<A10"8,'%&"A1+&'(+08;',+1'"-1'08'"-#'%.1-%#0%C'3%C-%10"8'#+A"#1P

J5+'8+I1'1#0+880%C'%.1-%#0%C'3%C-%10"8'"4'15+'!-8&'0,'&-+'%,'%1'_X':%#.5'VWX_P''O%,+&'"8'15+'#+,-C1,'"4'150,'3%C-%10"82'
15+'."81#0(-10"8'#%1+,'A%)%(C+'()'15+'08&030&-%C'+<AC")+#,'$0CC'(+'#+30,+&'$015'+44+.1'4#"<'X'@A#0C'VWXaP

!G2+-1)-.%&1'('$2%7-.+'%#J%&1#9)(',%/'2)1'9'$2%_'$'U2(%J#1%2F'%&+10#('(%#J%B!I%3Z

B@='Vh'#+Q-0#+,'15+'A#+,+81'3%C-+'"4'15+'!-8&F,'A#"<0,+&'#+10#+<+81'(+8+U1,'1"'(+'&0,.C",+&2'%8&'4"#'150,'A-#A",+'
15+'%.1-%#0%C'%,,-<A10"8,'%8&'<+15"&"C";)'-,+&',5"-C&'(+'(%,+&'"8'B@='Xf'#%15+#' 15%8'15+'%,,-<A10"8,'%8&'
<+15"&"C";)'-,+&'4"#'4-8&08;'A-#A",+,P

B8'"#&+#'1"'%,,+,,'15+'3%C-+'"4'15+'(+8+U1,'"8'150,'(%,0,2'$+'5%3+'-,+&'15+',%<+'%.1-%#0%C'%,,-<A10"8,'%,'15",+'
-,+&'4"#'4-8&08;'A-#A",+,2'"15+#'15%8'15+'&0,."-81'#%1+'$5+#+'$+'5%3+'-,+&'%'#%1+'"4'GPh`'AP%P'("15'(+4"#+'%8&'
%41+#'#+10#+<+812'#%15+#'15%8'15+'#%1+,'%,'"-1C08+&'%("3+P''M+'5%3+'%C,"'-,+&'3%C-%10"8'<+15"&"C";)'08'."88+.10"8'
$015'0CC[5+%C15'%8&'&+%15'(+8+U1,'$50.5'0,'."8,0,1+81'$015'B@='XfP''L8'150,'(%,0,2'15+'3%C-+'"4'15+'A#"<0,+&'#+10#+<+81'
(+8+U1,'%,'%1'_X':%#.5'VWXW'0,'c_2_Xb'<0CC0"8P

M+'5%3+'%C,"'.%##0+&'"-1',0<0C%#'.%C.-C%10"8,'%,'%1'15+'A#+30"-,'%.1-%#0%C'3%C-%10"8'&%1+'"4'_X':%#.5'VWWd2'-,08;'
15+',%<+'%.1-%#0%C'%,,-<A10"8,'%,'15",+'-,+&'4"#'4-8&08;'A-#A",+,'%1'15%1'&%1+2'"15+#'15%8'15+'&0,."-81'#%1+'$5+#+'
$+'5%3+'-,+&'%'#%1+'"4'GPa`'AP%P'("15'(+4"#+'%8&'%41+#'#+10#+<+81P''L8'150,'(%,0,2'15+'3%C-+'4"#'B@='Vh'A-#A",+,'"4'
15+'!-8&F,'A#"<0,+&'#+10#+<+81'(+8+U1,'%1'15%1'&%1+'$%,'cV2fhV'<0CC0"8P'

AVON PENSION FUND ANNUAL REPORT 2010/11 25

Statement of Consulting Actuary

Paul Middleman
Fellow of the Institute of Actuaries, 
Mercer Limited, May 2011

Page 131



AVON PENSION FUND ANNUAL REPORT 2010/1126

Employer Contribution Rate

Employer Contribution Rates

&-12)G)0-2)$8%M90.#L'1( A#$21):+2)#$%/-2'(

`'-1%M$,',%X5(2%C-1GF 3455 3454

S S

IGF',+.',%_#,)'(

&1)$G)0-.%A#+$G).(%-$,%I'1")G'%&1#"),'1(

@3"8'!0#+'9'*+,.-+ XGPa XGPa

O%15'9'H"#15'E%,1'="<+#,+1'D"-8.0C XdPG XdPG

O#0,1"C'D01)'D"-8.0C XdPV XhP_

H"#15'="<+#,+1'D"-8.0C XbPh XdPd

="-15'7C"-.+,1+#,50#+'D"-8.0C XhPb XGPf

*+12F'1%a%])8F'1%M,+G-2)#$%M(2-:.)(F9'$2(

O%15'=A%'K803+#,01)'D"CC+;+ XGPf XGPf

D01)'"4'O%15'D"CC+;+ X_Pa X_PW

D01)'"4'O#0,1"C'D"CC+;+ XaPh XaPV

!0C1"8'D"CC+;+ XaP_ X_PX

H"#1"8'*%&,1".>'D"CC+;+ XaPW XVPf

=1P'O#+8&%8F,'D"CC+;+ X_Pb X_Pb

K803+#,01)'"4'15+'M+,1'"4'E8;C%8& XaPG XaPG

M+,1"8'D"CC+;+ XaPd XaPW

W2F'1%M,+G-2)#$%M(2-:.)(F9'$2(

O++.5+8'DC044'=.5""C''''''' XdPG XdPG

O#0,1"C'D%15+&#%C'D5"0#'=.5""C'@.%&+<) XXPd XXPd

D%("1'R+%#808;'!+&+#%10"8'"4'@.%&+<0+, XVPW XVPW

D01)'@.%&+<)'O#0,1"C XXPX XWPh

D"C,1"8'70#CF,'=.5""C'@.%&+<) XaPW XaPW

:+#.5%81F,'@.%&+<) X_Pd X_Pd

:0&,"<+#'H"#1"8'=.5""C'?%#18+#,50A XdPG XdPG

L%,0,'@.%&+<)'O#0;51,1"$+ XVPh XVPh

L%,0,'@.%&+<)'O#0,1"C X_PV X_PV

LC&U+C&'=.5""C'''''''''''''''' XdPG XdPG

J5+'*0&08;,'!+&+#%10"8'"4'@.%&+<0+,'M081+#("-#8+ X_PW X_PW

J5+'*0&08;,'!+&+#%10"8'"4'@.%&+<0+,'6%1+ XXPb XXPb

['()8$-2)$8%_#,)'(

O%15'J"-#0,<'?C-, XaPW XaPW

O%.>$+CC'?%#0,5'D"-8.0C XhPf XhPa

O#%&C+)'=1">+'J"$8'D"-8.0C XhPh XhPh

D5%#1+#'J#-,1++,'"4'15+'D01)'"4'O%15 XGPa X_Pb

DC+3+&"8'J"$8'D"-8.0C XaPW XaPW

/+,108%10"8'O#0,1"C XXPd XXP_Page 132



AVON PENSION FUND ANNUAL REPORT 2010/11 27

Employer Contribution Rate

&-12)G)0-2)$8%M90.#L'1( A#$21):+2)#$%/-2'(

`'-1%M$,',%X5(2%C-1GF 3455 3454

S S

/"&08;1"8'?%#0,5'D"-8.0C XaPb XaPb

/"$8+8&'%8&'O#"<C+)'N+%15'?%#0,5'D"-8.0C XWPb fPb

E%,1"8'08'7"#&%8"'?%#0,5'D"-8.0C XaPW XaPW

!0C1"8'J"$8'D"-8.0C fPh fPV

!#%<A1"8'D"11+#+CC'?%#0,5'D"-8.0C XhPh XaPW

N%85%<'?%#0,5'D"-8.0C _XPX VaPb

N%85%<'@(("1,'?%#0,5'D"-8.0C XaPW XaPW

i+)8,5%<'J"$8'D"-8.0C VWPW VWPW

R"8;'@,51"8'?%#0,5'D"-8.0C VaPh VaPh

:%8;"1,U+C&'*-#%C'?%#0,5'D"-8.0C XaP_ XaP_

H%0C,+%'J"$8'D"-8.0C XhPh XhPh

H"#1"8'*%&,1".>'J"$8'D"-8.0C VXP_ XfPh

LC&C%8&'?%#0,5'D"-8.0C XXPV XWPG

?%1.5$%)'J"$8'D"-8.0C XGPh XGPh

?%-C1"8'?%#0,5'D"-8.0C XhPW XaPX

?+%,+&"$8'=1'g"58'?%#0,5'D"-8.0C XaPW [

?"#10,5+%&'9'H"#15'M+,1"8'J"$8'D"-8.0C VXP_ XbPb

=%C14"#&'?%#0,5'D"-8.0C XGPW XaPW

=1">+'7044"#&'?%#0,5'D"-8.0C XfPX XdPf

J5"#8(-#)'J"$8'D"-8.0C VXPb VXPW

M+,1+#C+0;5'?%#0,5'D"-8.0C XVPG XVPG

M+,1"8'=-A+#':%#+'J"$8'D"-8.0C XXPW XWP_

M501.5-#.5'?%#0,5'D"-8.0C XWPG XWPG

M081+#("-#8+'?%#0,5'D"-8.0C XdPh XGPb

6%1+'J"$8'D"-8.0C XGPf XGPf

6%11"8'?%#0,5'D"-8.0C XaPW [

A#99+$)2L%!,9)(()#$%_#,)'(

@,5C+)'N"-,+'N",1+C XbPb XhPX

O%15'9'H"#15'E%,1'="<+#,+1'*%.0%C'EQ-%C01)'D"-8.0C XhPX XaPG

O#0,C08;1"8'H+0;5("-#5""&'D+81#+ fPV bPa

D+81#+'!"#'/+%4'?+"AC+ Xd`'u'cVh2_hW Xd`'u'cXh2XaW

DC041"8'=-,A+8,0"8'O#0&;+'J#-,1 XaPX X_PG

J5+'D%#+'p-%C01)'D"<<0,,0"8 XbPW XhPf

R+%#808;'?%#18+#,50A'M+,1'R0<01+&' XaPh XaPh

N"C(-#8+':-,+-<'"4'@#1 X_PG XXPh

:+#C08'N"-,08;'=".0+1)'S=7T XVPG XVPG

:+#C08'N"-,08;'=".0+1)'R1& XdPW XaPb

H"#15'="<+#,+1'N"-,08; XXP_ XWPb

L44'15+'*+."#&'O%15'9'H"#15'E%,1'="<+#,+1 XVPX XWPb

="<+#'D"<<-801)'N"-,08;'J#-,1 XGPW XGPW

="<+#'N"-,08;'7#"-A'R1& fPa fPaPage 133



AVON PENSION FUND ANNUAL REPORT 2010/1128

Employer Contribution Rate

&-12)G)0-2)$8%M90.#L'1( A#$21):+2)#$%/-2'(

`'-1%M$,',%X5(2%C-1GF 3455 3454

S S

="-15+#8'O#"">,'D"<<-801)'?%#18+#,50A XVPX XWPb

="-15$+,1'7#0&'4"#'R+%#808;'J#-,1 XVPW XVPW

K803+#,01)'"4'O%15 XaP_ XaP_

M+,1'"4'E8;C%8&'=A"#1'J#-,1 XaPh XaPh

j0,0"8'H"#15'="<+#,+1 VhPb VaPV

R1-$(J'1''(%!,9)22',%_#,)'(%;IG#0'<

@.103+'D"<<-801)'E8;%;+<+81'R1& XWPV XWPV

@;0C0,), XaP_ XaP_

@;08.%#+ XhPh XhPh

@Q-%1+##%'R+0,-#+'R1&P XWPG XWPG

@*@:@*i XaPa XaPa

O@:'D"8,1#-.1'Ki'R1&'S4"#'N+8(-#)'=.5""CT XGPa XGPa

O+,A">+'DC+%808; XhPG XhPG

D5-#.50CC'D"81#%.1'=+#30.+, XdPW XdPW

E&+8'!""&'=+#30.+,'SB8010%C'D%1+#08;T X_Pd X_Pd

E8;C0,5'R%8&,.%A+, XhPW XhPW

*:'/%1%'="C-10"8,'R1& VWPW VWPW

B==':+&0.C+%8 XXPf XXPf

B==':+&0.C+%8'SO#0,1"CT XVPh XVPh

i0+#'!%.0C010+,'=+#30.+, XaPh XaPh

R0(+#%1%'Ki'R1& XaP_ XaP_

:"-.5+C'O-,08+,,'=+#30.+,'R1& VWPG XbPh

:"-.5+C'O-,08+,,'=+#30.+,'R1&'SH%0C,+%'BJT XGPX XGPX

H"#15;%1+'D"C,1"8'70#C,'=.5""C'BJ XXPV [

H"#15;%1+'B84"#<%10"8'="C-10"8, fPX fPX

?#",A+.1'=+#30.+,'R1& X_Pd`'u'cXXf2XWW X_Pd`'u'cXXf2XWW

p-%&#"8'=+#30.+, X_Pd X_Pd

=5%$'N+%C15.%#+'SH"#15'="<+#,+1T'R1& VVPh VXPG

=BJ@'N"C&08;,'Ki'R1& XGPd`'u'cG_2dhW XGPd`'u'cG_2dhW

=>%8,>%'*%,5C+0;5'M,1+#4"0C fPG fPG

=R:'D"<<-801)'R+0,-#+ XWPf XWPf

=R:'!018+,,'9'N+%C15 bPd bPd

="&+I" XdPX XdPX

="-15'7C"-.+,1+#,50#+'R+0,-#+'J#-,1 bPG dPG

J+%<'DC+%8'R1& X_P_ X_P_

J5+'O#%8&"8'J#-,1 XdP_ XhPf

6+,'/0808;'R1& XVPV XVPV

Page 134



AVON PENSION FUND ANNUAL REPORT 2010/11 29

Statement of Accounts 2010/11

5O5' J5+'4"CC"$08;'."<A#0,+,'15+'
=1%1+<+81'"4'@.."-81,'4"#'15+'@3"8'
?+8,0"8'!-8&' SJ5+'!-8&TP'J5+'%.[
."-81,'."3+#'15+'U8%8.0%C')+%#'4#"<'
X'@A#0C'VWXW'1"'_X':%#.5'VWXXP'

5O3' J5+,+' %.."-81,' 5%3+' (++8'
A#+A%#+&' 08' %.."#&%8.+' $015' 15+'
D"&+' "4' ?#%.10.+' "8' R".%C' @-15"#[
01)' @.."-8108;' SoD"&+' "4' ?#%.10.+FT'
08' 15+'K801+&'i08;&"<'VWXW'(%,+&'
"8'B81+#8%10"8%C'!08%8.0%C'*+A"#108;'
=1%8&%#&,'%,'A-(C0,5+&'()'15+'D5%#[
1+#+&'B8,101-1+'"4'?-(C0.'!08%8.+'%8&'
@.."-81%8.)P' J5+' %.."-81,' 5%3+'
(++8'A#+A%#+&'"8'%8'%..#-%C,'(%,0,2'
+I.+A1'4"#'.+#1%08'1#%8,4+#'3%C-+,'%,'
&+,.#0(+&'%1'o=1%1+<+81'"4'@.."-81[
08;'?"C0.0+,F'n'01+<'VPGP''J5+)'&"'8"1'
1%>+'%.."-81'"4'C0%(0C010+,'1"'A%)'A+8[
,0"8,' %8&' "15+#' (+8+U1,' 08' 15+' 4-[
1-#+P'

5OX' J50,'0,'15+'U#,1')+%#'08'$50.5'
15+' %.."-81,' 5%3+' (++8' A#+A%#+&'
4"CC"$08;'B81+#8%10"8%C'!08%8.0%C'*+[
A"#108;'=1%8&%#&,'%,'#+Q-0#+&'()'15+'
D"&+'"4'?#%.10.+P'J5+#+'0,'8"'<%1+[
#0%C' &044+#+8.+' 08' 15+'H+1'@,,+1,' %,'
%1'X'@A#0C'VWWf'15%1'$"-C&'+44+.1'15+'
VWWfYXW' %.."-81,2' ,5"$8' 4"#' ."<[
A%#0,"8'$015'15+'VWXWYXX'%.."-81,P'

5O@' J5+'%.."-81,'%#+',+1'"-1' 08'
15+'4"CC"$08;'"#&+#\

I2-2'9'$2%#J%!GG#+$2)$8%&#.)G)'(%
$50.5'+IAC%08,' 15+'(%,0,'"4' 15+'U;[
-#+,'08'15+'%.."-81,P'

*+$,%!GG#+$2'$50.5'&0,.C",+,' 15+'
,0k+'%8&'8%1-#+'"4'U8%8.0%C'%&&010"8,'
1"' %8&' $015&#%$%C,' 4#"<' 15+' !-8&'
&-#08;' 15+' %.."-8108;' A+#0"&' %8&'
#+."8.0C+,'15+'<"3+<+81,'08'15+'8+1'
%,,+1,'1"'15+'!-8&'@.."-81P'

>'2% !(('2(% I2-2'9'$2' $50.5' &0,[
.C",+,'15+',0k+'%8&'&0,A",010"8'"4'15+'

8+1'%,,+1,'"4'15+'!-8&'%1'15+'+8&'"4'
15+'%.."-8108;'A+#0"&P
'
>#2'(% 2#% 2F'% !GG#+$2(' $50.5'
;03+,' ,-AA"#108;' &+1%0C' %8&' %8%C)[
,0,' ."8.+#808;' 15+' ."81+81,' "4' 15+'
%.."-81,2' 1";+15+#' $015' 084"#<%10"8'
"8'15+'+,1%(C0,5<+81'"4'15+'!-8&2'01,'
<+<(+#,50A'%8&'%.1-%#0%C'A",010"8P'

5OY' @,' #+Q-0#+&' ()' 15+' R".%C'
7"3+#8<+81'?+8,0"8'=.5+<+'*+;[
-C%10"8,'VWWb'%8'%.1-%#0%C'3%C-%10"8'
"4'15+'!-8&'$%,'.%##0+&'"-1'%,'%1'_X'
:%#.5'VWXWP' ' 'J5+'<%#>+1'3%C-+'"4'
15+' !-8&F,' %,,+1,' %1' 15+' 3%C-%10"8'
&%1+'$%,'cV2aGf'<0CC0"8P''J5+'@.1-[
%#)' +,10<%1+&' 15%1' 15+' 3%C-+' "4' 15+'
!-8&' $%,' ,-4U.0+81' 1"' <++1' bV`'
"4' 01,' +IA+.1+&' 4-1-#+' C0%(0C010+,' S"4'
c_2WXX<T'08'#+,A+.1'"4',+#30.+'."<[
AC+1+&'1"'_X':%#.5'VWXWP
''
5OZ' J5+' &+U.01' #+."3+#)' A+#0"&'
4"#'15+'!-8&'"3+#%CC'0,'V_')+%#,P'

5Ob' J5+'VWXW'%.1-%#0%C'3%C-%10"8'
$%,'.%##0+&'"-1'-,08;'15+'A#"^+.1+&'
-801' %.1-%#0%C' <+15"&P' ' J5+' <%08'
%,,-<A10"8,2'"8'15+'(%,0,'"4'$50.5'
+<AC")+#,F'."81#0(-10"8,'%#+',+12'%#+'
%,',+1'"-1'08'15+'1%(C+'(+C"$P

5Oc'' J5+' VWXW' 3%C-%10"8' ,+1' 15+'
+<AC")+#'."81#0(-10"8'#%1+,'+44+.103+'
4#"<'X'@A#0C'VWXXP''B8'A#+30"-,')+%#,'
15+' +<AC")+#' ."81#0(-10"8' #%1+' 5%,'
(++8'+IA#+,,+&'%,'%'A+#.+81%;+'"4'
A%)P''!"#'15+'VWXW'3%C-%10"82'&-+'1"'
&+.C0808;'A%)#"CC,2' 15+'&+U.01' #+."3[
+#)'A%)<+81'5%,'(++8'+IA#+,,+&'%,'
%' <"8+1%#)' %<"-81' A%)%(C+' %88-[
%CC)2'$5+#+%,'15+'4-1-#+',+#30.+'#%1+'
0,',10CC'+IA#+,,+&'%,'%'A+#.+81%;+'"4'
A%)P

5OV'' J5+' @.1-%#)' 5%,' +,10<%1+&'
15%1'15+'4-8&08;'C+3+C'%,'%1'_X':%#.5'
VWXX' 5%,' <%#;08%CC)' 08.#+%,+&' 1"'
b_`' 4#"<' bV`' %1' _X' :%#.5' VWXWP''
J5+'08.#+%,+'08'15+'%,,+1'3%C-+'+I[
.++&+&' 15+' #0,+' 08' C0%(0C010+,2' $50.5'
$%,'.%-,+&'()'15+'-8$08&08;'"4'15+'

&0,."-81'#%1+'()'"8+')+%#P

5O54'' J5+' !-8&F,' !-8&08;' =1#%1[
+;)'=1%1+<+81'.%8'(+'4"-8&'"8'15+'
!-8&F,' $+(,01+' EEE@*=#0/-0'&#0A
3:0%@#+,@:J' "#' ,-AAC0+&' "8' #+Q-+,1'
4#"<' R0k' !+08,1+082' B83+,1<+81,'
:%8%;+#P'

5O55'' J5+' !-8&F,' =1%1+<+81' "4'
B83+,1<+81' ?#08.0AC+,' %,' #+Q-0#+&'
()' 15+' R".%C' 7"3+#8<+81' ?+8,0"8'
=.5+<+' S:%8%;+<+81' %8&' B83+,1[
<+81' "4' !-8&,T' *+;-C%10"8,' VWWf'
.%8'(+'4"-8&'"8'15+'!-8&F,'$+(,01+'
EEE@*=#0/-0'&#03:0%@#+,@:J' "#'
,-AAC0+&' "8' #+Q-+,1' 4#"<' R0k' !+08[
,1+082'B83+,1<+81,':%8%;+#P'

3O5' EI.+A1' $5+#+' "15+#$0,+'
,1%1+&2'15+'%.."-81,'5%3+'(++8'A#+[
A%#+&'"8'%8'%..#-%C,'(%,0,2' 0P+P' 08[
."<+'%8&'+IA+8&01-#+'0,'#+.";80,+&'
%,'01'0,'+%#8+&'"#'08.-##+&2'8"1'%,'01'0,'
#+.+03+&'"#'A%0&P'J5+'%.."-81,'5%3+'
(++8'A#+A%#+&'"8'%' ;"08;' ."8.+#8'
(%,0,P'

3O3' B83+,1<+81,' %#+' ,5"$8' 08'
15+'%.."-81,'%1'<%#>+1'3%C-+2'$50.5'
5%,'(++8'&+1+#<08+&'%,'4"CC"$,\'

0P' p-"1+&' =+.-#010+,' 5%3+' (++8'
3%C-+&' %1' _X' :%#.5' VWXX' ()'
15+' !-8&F,' .-,1"&0%8' -,08;' 08[
1+#8%10"8%CC)' #+.";80,+&' A#0.08;'
,"-#.+,'S(0&[A#0.+'"#'oC%,1'1#%&+FT'
$5+#+'%'Q-"1%10"8'$%,'%3%0C%(C+'
"8'%'#+.";80,+&',1".>'+I.5%8;+'
"#' 15+' -8C0,1+&' ,+.-#010+,' <%#[
>+1P'K8Q-"1+&',+.-#010+,'%#+' 08[
.C-&+&'%1'4%0#'3%C-+'(%,+&'"8'15+'

Statement of 
Accounts 2010/11
Introduction

&-(2%I'1")G' *+2+1'%I'1")G'

*%1+'"4'/0,."-81 hPbG`'A+#'%88-<'SA#+'#+10#+<+81T
GPd`'A+#'%88-<'SA",1'#+10#+<+81T

hPdG`'A+#'%88-<

*%1+'"4'A+8,0"8%(C+'A%)'08e%10"8 aPG`'A+#'%88-< aPG`'A+#'%88-<

*%1+'"4'A#0.+'08e%10"8 _PW`'A+#'%88-< _PW`'A+#'%88-<

Actuarial Valuation
Statement of Investment 
Principles

Statement of 
Accounting Policies
Basis of Preparation

Investments

Page 135



AVON PENSION FUND ANNUAL REPORT 2010/1130

Statement of Accounts 2010/11

!-8&':%8%;+#,'3%C-%10"8PP
00P' !0I+&'081+#+,1',+.-#010+,'+I.C-&+'

081+#+,1'+%#8+&'(-1'8"1'A%0&'"3+#'
%1'15+')+%#'+8&2'$50.5'0,'08.C-&[
+&',+A%#%1+C)'$01508' 083+,1<+81'
&+(1"#,P

000P' ?""C+&' 083+,1<+81,' %#+' ,1%1+&'
%1' 15+0#' (0&' A#0.+' "#' %1' 15+' H+1'
@,,+1'j%C-+'Q-"1+&'()' 15+0#' #+[
,A+.103+'<%8%;+#,'%1'_X':%#.5'
VWXXP'

03P' !"#0+;8' .-##+8.)' 1#%8,%.10"8,'
%#+' #+."#&+&' %1' 15+' A#+3%0C08;'
#%1+' %1' 15+' &%1+' "4' 1#%8,%.10"8P'
B83+,1<+81,'5+C&'08'4"#+0;8'.-#[
#+8.0+,' %#+' ,5"$8' %1' <%#>+1'
3%C-+' 1#%8,C%1+&' 081"' ,1+#C08;' %1'
15+'+I.5%8;+' #%1+,' #-C08;'%,'%1'
_X':%#.5'VWXXP

3P' LA+8' 4-1-#+,' ."81#%.1,' %#+' 08[
.C-&+&' 08' 15+' 8+1' %,,+1' ,1%1+[
<+81' %1' 15+0#' 4%0#'<%#>+1' 3%C-+2'
$50.5' 0,' 15+'-8#+%C0,+&'A#"U1'"#'
C",,' %1' 15+' .-##+81' (0&' "#' "44+#'
<%#>+1'Q-"1+&'A#0.+'"4'15+'."8[
1#%.1P' J5+' %<"-81,' 08.C-&+&' 08'
15+'.5%8;+' 08'<%#>+1'3%C-+'%#+'
15+' #+%C0,+&' ;%08,' "#' C",,+,' "8'
.C",+&'4-1-#+,'."81#%.1,'%8&'15+'
-8#+%C0,+&' ;%08,' "#' C",,+,' "8'
"A+8'4-1-#+,'."81#%.1,P

30P' !"#$%#&' 4"#+0;8'+I.5%8;+'."8[
1#%.1,' "-1,1%8&08;' %1' 15+' )+%#'
+8&'%#+',1%1+&'%1'4%0#'3%C-+'$50.5'
0,'&+1+#<08+&'%,'15+';%08'"#'C",,'
15%1'$"-C&'%#0,+'04'15+'"-1,1%8&[
08;'."81#%.1'$%,'<%1.5+&'%1'15+'
)+%#'+8&'$015'%8'+Q-%C'%8&'"A[
A",01+'."81#%.1P'!"#+0;8'.-##+8[
.)' 1#%8,%.10"8,'%#+' #+."#&+&'%1'
15+'A#+3%0C08;'#%1+'%1'15+'&%1+'"4'
1#%8,%.10"8P

300P' @.Q-0,010"8'.",1,'"4'083+,1<+81,'
S+P;P' ,1%<A' &-1)' %8&' ."<<0,[
,0"8,T'%#+'1#+%1+&'%,'A%#1'"4'15+'
083+,1<+81'.",1P

3000P'B83+,1<+81' &+(1"#,' %8&' .#+&0[
1"#,'%1'15+')+%#'+8&'%#+'08.C-&+&'
08' 083+,1<+81'%,,+1,' 08'%.."#&[
%8.+' $015' 15+' DB?!@' ."&+' "4'
A#%.10.+' "8' C".%C' %-15"#01)' %.[
."-8108;P'

0IP' J5+' !-8&F,' ,-#AC-,' .%,5' 0,'
1#+%1+&'%,'%8'083+,1<+81'%,,+1P'
?#0"#'1"'X'@A#0C'VWXW'15+'!-8&F,'
,-#AC-,' .%,5' $%,'<%8%;+&' 1"[
;+15+#'$015' 15+' ,-#AC-,' .%,5'"4'
O9HE=' D"-8.0C2' ."8,+Q-+81C)'
150,' (%C%8.+' $%,' ,5"$8' %,' %'
&+(1"#' 08' 15+' !-8&F,' %.."-81,P'
=08.+' X' @A#0C' VWXW' 15+' !-8&F,'
,-#AC-,'.%,5'5%,'(++8'<%8%;+&'
,+A%#%1+C)' %8&' ."8,+Q-+81C)' 0,'
8"$' 1#+%1+&' %,' %8' 083+,1<+81'
%,,+1P

3OX' D"81#0(-10"8,' #+A#+,+81'
15",+' %<"-81,' #+.+03%(C+' 4#"<'
15+' +<AC")08;' ("&0+,' 08' #+,A+.1'
"4' 15+0#' "$8' %8&' 15+0#' A+8,0"8%(C+'
+<AC")++,F' ."81#0(-10"8,P' E<AC")[
+#,F' ."81#0(-10"8,' %#+' &+1+#<08+&'
()'15+'@.1-%#)'"8'15+'(%,0,'"4'1#0+8[
80%C'3%C-%10"8,'"4'15+'!-8&F,'%,,+1,'
%8&'C0%(0C010+,'%8&'1%>+'081"'%.."-81'
15+'!-8&08;'=1#%1+;)'=1%1+<+81',+1'
()' 15+' %&<080,1+#08;' %-15"#01)P'E<[
AC")++,F'."81#0(-10"8,'5%3+'(++8'08[
.C-&+&'%1'15+'#%1+,'A#+,.#0(+&'()'15+'
R".%C'7"3+#8<+81'?+8,0"8'=.5+<+'
SO+8+U1,2' :+<(+#,50A' %8&' D"81#0[
(-10"8,T'*+;-C%10"8,'VWWdP'

3O@' O+8+U1,' A%)%(C+' %8&' #+[
4-8&,' "4' ."81#0(-10"8,' 5%3+' (++8'
(#"-;51'081"'15+'%.."-81,'%,'15+)'4%CC'
&-+P

3OY' D%,5' J#%8,4+#' j%C-+,' %#+'
15",+',-<,'A%0&'1"'"#'#+.+03+&'4#"<'
"15+#' A+8,0"8' ,.5+<+,' %8&' #+C%1+'
1"' A#+30"-,' A+#0"&,' "4' A+8,0"8%(C+'
+<AC")<+81P'D%,5'J#%8,4+#'j%C-+,'
5%3+'(++8'08.C-&+&'08'15+'%.."-81,'
"8'15+'(%,0,'"4'15+'.5+Q-+'A%)<+81'
&%1+'"#' lO%15'9'H"#15'E%,1'="<+#[
,+1' D"-8.0C' .%,5' "4U.+' #+.+03+&m'
&%1+P'@..#-%C,'%#+'"8C)'<%&+'$5+8'
01'0,'.+#1%08'15%1'%'1#%8,4+#'0,'1"'1%>+'
AC%.+P'

3OZ' D5%#;+,' 4"#' ,AC01108;' A+8[
,0"8,'"8'&03"#.+'%#+'+015+#'083"0.+&'
1"'<+<(+#,'"#2'"8'#+Q-+,12'A%0&'"-1'
"4'4-1-#+'(+8+U1,P'B8'15+'.%,+'"4'A%)[
<+81'4#"<'4-1-#+'(+8+U1,'15+'.5%#;+'
%;%08,1' (+8+U1,' %8&' 08."<+' 1"' 15+'
!-8&'%#+' ("15'<%&+' 08' 15+' .-##+81'
)+%#P''

3Ob' /030&+8&,'%8&'081+#+,1'5%3+'
(++8'%.."-81+&' 4"#'"8'%8'%..#-%C,'
(%,0,P' ' B8."<+' "8' A""C+&' 083+,1[
<+81,'0,'%..-<-C%1+&'%8&'#+e+.1+&'
08'15+'3%C-%10"8'"4'15+'-801,P'

3Oc' J5+'R".%C'7"3+#8<+81'?+8[
,0"8' =.5+<+' S:%8%;+<+81' %8&'
B83+,1<+81' "4' !-8&,T' *+;-C%10"8,'
VWWf'A+#<01'O%15'9'H"#15'E%,1'="<[
+#,+1'D"-8.0C' 1"'.5%#;+'%&<080,1#%[
10"8'.",1,'1"'15+'!-8&P'@'A#"A"#10"8'
"4' #+C+3%81'D"-8.0C' .",1,'5%,'(++8'
.5%#;+&'1"'15+'!-8&'"8'15+'(%,0,'"4'
%.1-%C' 10<+',A+81'"8'?+8,0"8'!-8&'
(-,08+,,P'

3OV' J5+' 4++,' "4' 15+' !-8&F,' +I[
1+#8%C' 083+,1<+81' <%8%;+#,' #+e+.1'
15+0#' &044+#08;' <%8&%1+,P' !++,' %#+'
C08>+&' 1"' 15+' <%#>+1' 3%C-+' "4' 15+'
!-8&F,' 083+,1<+81,' %8&' 15+#+4"#+'
<%)'08.#+%,+'"#'#+&-.+'%,'15+'3%C-+'
"4'15+'083+,1<+81'.5%8;+,P':%8%;+[
<+81''4++,'%#+'#+.";80,+&'08'15+')+%#'
08'$50.5'15+'<%8%;+<+81'',+#30.+,'
%#+'A#"30&+&P'!++,'%#+'%C,"'A%)%(C+'
1"' 15+' !-8&F,' ;C"(%C' .-,1"&0%8' %8&'
"15+#'%&30,"#,P'

3O54' J5+'!-8&' 0,'%8'+I+<A1'%A[
A#"3+&' 4-8&'-8&+#' 15+' B8."<+'%8&'
D"#A"#%10"8'J%I+,'@.1' Xfbb' %8&' 0,'
15+#+4"#+'8"1'C0%(C+'1"'Ki'08."<+'1%I'
"8' 083+,1<+81' 08."<+' "#' ' 1"' .%A0[
1%C';%08,'1%IP'@,'O%15'9'H"#15'E%,1'
="<+#,+1'D"-8.0C'0,'15+'%&<080,1+#[
08;'%-15"#01)'4"#'15+'!-8&2'j@J'08A-1'
1%I' 0,' #+."3+#%(C+' "8' %CC' !-8&' %.[
103010+,' 08.C-&08;' +IA+8&01-#+' "8' 08[
3+,1<+81'+IA+8,+,P'!"#' 1%I%10"8'"4'
"3+#,+%,'083+,1<+81'08."<+'AC+%,+'
,++'8"1+'_'03P'08'15+'H"1+,'1"'15+'@.[
."-81,P'

3O55' E,10<%1+,' %#+' -,+&' 08' 15+'
3%C-%10"8' "4' -8Q-"1+&' 083+,1<+81,'
S,++'VPV0T'%8&'08'15+'%.1-%#0%C'3%C-%[
10"8'4"#'15+'A-#A",+,'"4'B@='Vh'S8"1+'
XhT' 08' $50.5' 15+' %.1-%#0%C' .%C.-C%[
10"8' "4' 15+' C0%(0C01)' 0,' ,-(^+.1' 1"' 15+'
A#"4+,,0"8%C'^-&;+<+81'"4'15+'!-8&'
@.1-%#)P

Contributions

Bene"ts, Refunds of 
Contributions and Cash 
Transfer Values 

Investment Income

Investment Management & 
Administration

Taxation

Use of Accounting 
Estimates

Page 136



AVON PENSION FUND ANNUAL REPORT 2010/11 31

Statement of Accounts 2010/11

Fund Account for Year Ended 
31 March 2011

H"1+, 3454655 VWWfYXW

A#$21):+2)#$(%-$,%_'$'U2( ^d444 cFWWW

D"81#0(-10"8,'*+.+03%(C+ a X_f2GXf X_a2hbX

J#%8,4+#,'B8 f2GdX Xa2f_a

L15+#'B8."<+ G Vd_ _hX

5@VeXZX Xaf2fdh

O+8+U1,'?%)%(C+ h XVX2daG XXG2XWX

?%)<+81,'1"'%8&'"8'%.."-81'"4'R+%3+#, d f2Wfa Xa2hXb

@&<080,1#%103+'EIA+8,+, b V2_df V2_aW

5XXe35c X_V2WGf

>'2%!,,)2)#$(%J1#9%,'-.)$8(%K)2F%9'9:'1( 5Ze5@Y Xd2fXd'

/'2+1$(%#$%B$"'(29'$2(

B83+,1<+81'B8."<+' XW VV2hh_ Xh2WXa'

?#"U1,'%8&'C",,+,'"8'&0,A",%C'"4'083+,1<+81,'%8&'
.5%8;+'08'3%C-+'"4'083+,1<+81,P XX Xdd2bhX hXV2a_G

B83+,1<+81':%8%;+<+81'EIA+8,+,' f Sd2XfaT Sh2bhWT

>'2%/'2+1$(%#$%B$"'(29'$2(% 5VXeXX4 hVX2Gbf

>'2%B$G1'-('%)$%2F'%$'2%-(('2(%-"-).-:.'%J#1%
:'$'U2(%,+1)$8%2F'%L'-1 34Ve@bY h_f2GWh

>'2%!(('2(%#J%2F'%*+$,%

!2%5%!01). 3e@YceYcc X2bXf2WbV

!2%X5%C-1GF 3eZZce4ZX V2aGb2Gbb

Page 137



AVON PENSION FUND ANNUAL REPORT 2010/1132

Statement of Accounts 2010/11

H"1+, X5%C-1GF%
3455

_X':%#.5'
VWXW

B>7MIRCM>R%!IIMRI ^d444 S cFWWW `

!0I+&[081+#+,1',+.-#010+,'\'?-(C0.'=+.1"# 5Y@e@V@ YOc X_a2fff GPG

EQ-010+, 3@ZeVVZ VOX VaX2VhG fPb

B8&+I[R08>+&',+.-#010+,'\'?-(C0.'=+.1"# 5YbeXbc YOV Xad2ab_ hPW

?""C+&'083+,1<+81'3+50.C+,'\['''''

?#"A+#1) K801'J#-,1, ZVeVXY 3OZ a_2hWb XPb

K8010,+&'B8,-#%8.+'?"C0.0+, @VecbY 5OV __2W_a XP_

L15+#':%8%;+&'!-8&, Y3e3@3 3O4 Vh2WdX XPX

?#"A+#1)'?""C+&'083+,1<+81'3+50.C+, 5b3e4Y3 XWV2dX_

H"8[?#"A+#1) K8010,+&'B8,-#%8.+'?"C0.0+, c@@e5V4 X5OZ bd_2WaW _GPG

L15+#':%8%;+&'!-8&, 5e43ceVZ3 XcOZ bd_2G__ _GPG

H"8[?#"A+#1)'?""C+&'083+,1<+81'3+50.C+, 5ecbXe5Y3 X2dah2Gd_

/+#03%103+'D"81#%.1,\'!J=E'!-1-#+, Y@3 4O4 XGV WPW

D%,5'&+A",01, Y4eY5Y 5OV h_2WaV VPG

L15+#'B83+,1<+81'(%C%8.+, @ebY4 4O3 a2XGW WPV

B>7MIRCM>R%PB!_BPBRBMI

/+#03%103+'."81#%.1,'S!"#+0;8'EI.5%8;+'5+&;+T ;YV< 4O4 W WPW

L15+#''B83+,1<+81'(%C%8.+, ;5ecZV< ;4O5< Sd_bT SWPWT

RWR!P%B>7MIRCM>R%!IIMRI XV 3eZYbeVY5 V2a_f2h_f

>'2%A+11'$2%!(('2(

D-##+81'@,,+1, Xa 55eY@c 4O@ VX2Xaf WPf

D-##+81'R0%(0C010+, Xa ;5e@XZ< ;4O5< SV2VWWT SWPXT

>'2%-(('2(%#J%2F'%(GF'9'%-"-).-:.'%2#%J+$,%
:'$'U2(%-2%2F'%0'1)#,%'$, 3eZZce4ZX 544 V2aGb2Gbb XWW

J5+'!-8&F,'U8%8.0%C',1%1+<+81,'&"'8"1'1%>+'%.."-81'"4'C0%(0C010+,'1"'A%)'A+8,0"8,'%8&'"15+#'(+8+U1,'%41+#'_X':%#.5'
VWXXP

Net Assets Statement 
at 31 March 2011

Page 138



AVON PENSION FUND ANNUAL REPORT 2010/11 33

Statement of Accounts 2010/11

Notes to Accounts - 
Year Ended 31 March 2011
1. General

J5+'!-8&'0,'%&<080,1+#+&'()'O%15'9'H"#15'E%,1'="<+#,+1'D"-8.0C'-8&+#'%##%8;+<+81,'<%&+'4"CC"$08;'15+'
%("C010"8'"4'15+'4"#<+#'@3"8'D"-81)'D"-8.0C'"8'_X':%#.5'XffhP'

J5+'!-8&'0,';"3+#8+&'()'15+'R".%C'7"3+#8<+81'?+8,0"8'=.5+<+'*+;-C%10"8,'VWWb'S%,'%<+8&+&TP':+<(+#,50A'
"4'15+'!-8&'0,'"A+8'1"'A+8,0"8%(C+'+<AC")++,'"4',.5+&-C+&'("&0+,'08'15+'4"#<+#'@3"8'D"-81)'%#+%2'1";+15+#'$015'
+C0;0(C+'+<AC")++,'"4'&+,0;8%108;'%&<0,,0"8'("&0+,P'@'C0,1'"4'+<AC")+#,'$015'."81#0(-108;',.5+<+'<+<(+#,'.%8'
(+'4"-8&'08'8"1+'VaP

E<AC")+#,F'."81#0(-10"8,'%#+'A%)%(C+'%1'15+'#%1+',A+.0U+&'4"#'+%.5'+<AC")08;'%-15"#01)'()'15+'!-8&F,'@.1-%#)P'
J5+'+<AC")++,F'."81#0(-10"8'#%1+'0,'A%)%(C+'08'%.."#&%8.+'$015'15+'R".%C'7"3+#8<+81'?+8,0"8'=.5+<+'
SO+8+U1,2':+<(+#,50A'%8&'D"81#0(-10"8,T'*+;-C%10"8,'VWWdP'

2. Membership

:+<(+#,50A'"4'15+'!-8&'%1'15+')+%#[+8&'$%,'%,'4"CC"$,\[

X5%C-1GF%3455 _X':%#.5'VWXW

E<AC")+&':+<(+#, XXec54 _a2bWW

?+8,0"8+#,' 33eY@5 ''''''''''''''VX2_X_'

:+<(+#,'+8101C+&'1"'/+4+##+&'O+8+U1,' 3ZecZc ''''''''''''''Va2Gaa'

RWR!P% cXe35V bW2hGd

3. Taxation

)O% 7-.+'%!,,',%R-f%
J5+'!-8&F,'%&<080,1+#08;'%-15"#01)'O%15'9'H"#15'E%,1'="<+#,+1'D"-8.0C'0,'#+0<(-#,+&'j@J'()'NP':P'*+3+8-+'
%8&'D-,1"<,'%8&'15+'%.."-81,'%#+',5"$8'+I.C-,03+'"4'j@JP'

))O% B$G#9'%R-f%
J5+'!-8&'0,'%'$5"CC)'+I+<A1'4-8&'%8&',"<+'Ki'08."<+'1%I'0,'#+."3+#%(C+'4#"<'N:''*+3+8-+'%8&'D-,1"<,P''
M5+#+'1%I'.%8'(+'#+.C%0<+&2'083+,1<+81'08."<+'08'15+'%.."-81,'0,',5"$8';#",,'"4'Ki'1%IP'

)))O% A-0)2-.%Q-)$(%R-f
H"'.%A01%C';%08,'1%I'0,'.5%#;+%(C+P

)"O% R-f-2)#$%#J%W"'1('-(%B$"'(29'$2%B$G#9''
J5+'!-8&'#+.+03+,'081+#+,1'"8'01,'"3+#,+%,';"3+#8<+81'("8&'A"#14"C0"';#",,2'(-1'%'3%#0+1)'"4'%##%8;+<+81,'
%AAC)'1"'15+'1%I%10"8'"4'081+#+,1'"8'."#A"#%1+'("8&,'%8&'&030&+8&,'"8'"3+#,+%,'+Q-010+,P

4. Contributions Receivable

D"81#0(-10"8,'#+.+03%(C+'%#+'%8%C),+&'(+C"$\[

3454655 VWWfYXW

M90.#L'1(d%$#19-.%G#$21):+2)#$( ^d444 cFWWW

=.5+&-C+&'O"&0+,' bYe534 dV2dah

@&<080,1+#08;'@-15"#01) 55eYZ4 XX2hab

@&<0,,0"8'O"&0+,' beYcb V@e3Zb d2Gha fX2fGb

Page 139



AVON PENSION FUND ANNUAL REPORT 2010/1134

Statement of Accounts 2010/11

M90.#L'1(d%G#$21):+2)#$(%?%!+89'$2-2)#$

=.5+&-C+&'O"&0+, @e33Z _2WaV

@&<080,1+#08;'@-15"#01) c3Y GWh

@&<0,,0"8'O"&0+, YY3 YeZ4X bXa' a2_hV

M90.#L'1(d%['UG)2%*+$,)$8

@&<080,1+#08;'@-15"#01) XY W

@&<0,,0"8'O"&0+, 5eVZX 5eVVc VaX VaX

C'9:'1(d%$#19-.%G#$21):+2)#$(%

=.5+&-C+&'O"&0+,' 3Ve4Z4 Vf2_Wh

@&<080,1+#08;'@-15"#01) @e3V3 a2Vdh

@&<0,,0"8'O"&0+,' XeYZc XZeV34 _2GfG _d2Xdd

C'9:'1(d%G#$21):+2)#$(%2#K-1,(%
-,,)2)#$-.%:'$'U2(

=.5+&-C+&'O"&0+,' Yb4 dba'

@&<080,1+#08;'@-15"#01) 53Z XXd

@&<0,,0"8'O"&0+,' XY bX5 aV' fa_'

R#2-. 5XVeY5V X_a2hbX

J5+':+<(+#,F'."81#0(-10"8,'1"$%#&,'%&&010"8%C'(+8+U1,'%("3+'#+A#+,+81'<+<(+#,F'A-#.5%,+'"4'%&&+&')+%#,'"#'
%&&010"8%C'(+8+U1,'-8&+#'15+'=.5+<+P'@-;<+81%10"8'."81#0(-10"8,'%#+'A%0&'()'+<AC")+#,'1"'<++1'15+'.",1'"4'+%#C)'
#+10#+<+81,P'/+U.01'4-8&08;'."81#0(-10"8,'5%3+'(++8'A%0&'()',"<+'+<AC")+#,'08'#+,A+.1'"4'15+'#+."3+#)'"4'15+0#'
&+U.01'#+C%108;'1"'A%,1',+#30.+P'

@'4-#15+#'4%.0C01)'0,'A#"30&+&'$5+#+()'<+<(+#,'.%8'<%>+'@&&010"8%C'j"C-81%#)'D"81#0(-10"8,2'"8'%'<"8+)'
A-#.5%,+'(%,0,2'$50.5'%#+'083+,1+&'08'08,-#%8.+'A"C0.0+,'$015'J5+'EQ-01%(C+'R04+'@,,-#%8.+'=".0+1)'"#'!#0+8&,'
R04+'"8'(+5%C4'"4'15+'08&030&-%C'<+<(+#,'."8.+#8+&P'J5+,+'."81#0(-10"8,'%#+'8"1'A%#1'"4'15+'?+8,0"8'!-8&'%8&'%#+'
8"1'15+#+4"#+'#+e+.1+&'08'15+'!-8&F,'%.."-81,P'@',1%1+<+81'"4'15+'3%C-+'"4'15+,+'083+,1<+81,'0,';03+8'08'H"1+'XfP'

3454655 VWWfYXW

^d444 cFWWW

*+."3+#0+,'4"#',+#30.+,'A#"30&+& 3Z3 _Gh

D",1'#+."3+#0+, 55 G

3bX _hX

o*+."3+#0+,'4"#',+#30.+,'A#"30&+&'#+4+#,'1"'%&<080,1#%103+'%8&'%.."-8108;',+#30.+,'A#"30&+&'1"'+<AC")08;'("&0+,P'
D",1'#+."3+#0+,'%#+'15+'#+."3+#)'"4'15+'.",1'"4'.%C.-C%108;'?+8,0"8'=5%#08;'"8'&03"#.+P

>&'14*/*)"3)@$&$A+*)?'4'61$)64)94.$BC

3454655 VWWfYXW

^d444 cFWWW

*+10#+<+81'?+8,0"8,' fW2_Xd bh2WXh

D"<<-1%10"8'"4'A+8,0"8,'%8&'R-<A'=-<'
*+10#+<+81'O+8+U1,' '''''Vb2d_a Vh2G_h'''''

R-<A'=-<'/+%15'O+8+U1,' V2hfa V2Gaf

535eb@Y XXG2XWX'

5. Other Income

6. Bene"ts Payable

Page 140



AVON PENSION FUND ANNUAL REPORT 2010/11 35

Statement of Accounts 2010/11

>&'14*/*)"3)@$&$A+*)?'4'61$)64);5.1"4/&8)@"D4BC

3454655 VWWfYXW

^d444 cFWWW

=.5+&-C+&'9'/+,0;8%108;'O"&0+,' 543eb4Y fd2hbV

@&<080,1+#08;'@-15"#01) 55e@53 f2aXb

@&<0,,0"8'O"&0+, beZ3c b2WWX

535eb@Y XXG2XWX'

3454655 VWWfYXW

P'-"'1( ^d444 cFWWW

*+4-8&,'1"'<+<(+#,'C+%308;',+#30.+' %%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%33% '''''''''''''''''''''dd'

B8&030&-%C'D%,5'J#%8,4+#'j%C-+,'1"'"15+#',.5+<+,' Ve4b3 Xa2GaX

O-C>'D%,5'J#%8,4+#, ?%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%% '''''''''''''''''''''''['''

Ve4V@ ''''''''''''''''Xa2hXb'

J5+#+'5%3+'(++8'8"'(-C>'1#%8,4+#,'&-#08;'15+')+%#P'

D",1,'08.-##+&'08'15+'<%8%;+<+81'%8&'%&<080,1#%10"8'"4'15+'!-8&'%#+',+1'"-1'(+C"$P

3454655 VWWfYXW

^d444 cFWWW
!,9)$)(21-2)#$%-$,%01#G'(()$8% 5eZXc '''''''''X2hbW'

!G2+-1)-.%J''(% %%%%%%%%%%%%%%%3b5% Xdb

!+,)2%J''(% %%%%%%%%%%%%%%%@b% '''''''''''''''dX'

P'8-.%-$,%01#J'(()#$-.%J''(% ? '''''''''''''''''X'

A'$21-.%1'GF-18'(%J1#9%!,9)$)(2'1)$8%!+2F#1)2L %%%%%%%%%%%%%@3X% '''''''''''''aXW'

3eXbV '''''''''V2_aW'

EIA+8,+,'08.-##+&'08'15+'<%8%;+<+81'"4'15+'!-8&'%#+',+1'"-1'(+C"$P

3454655 VWWfYXW

^d444 cFWWW

?"#14"C0"'<%8%;+<+81' Zec@4 h2ahf

7C"(%C'.-,1"&)' %%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%bc% '''''''''''''''''''da'

B83+,1<+81'%&30,"#,' %%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%5b@% '''''''''''''''''''''XdX'

?+#4"#<%8.+'<+%,-#+<+81' %%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%X3% '''''''''''''''''''''__'

B83+,1<+81'%.."-8108; %%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%5Y% '''''''''''''''''''''VV'

B83+,1<+81'@&<080,1#%10"8 %%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%YY% '''''''''''''''''''''fX'

be5V@ h2bhW

7. Payments to and on Account Leavers

8. Administration Expenses

9. Investment Expenses

Page 141



AVON PENSION FUND ANNUAL REPORT 2010/1136

Statement of Accounts 2010/11

3454655 VWWfYXW

^d444 cFWWW

B81+#+,1'4#"<'UI+&[081+#+,1',+.-#010+, ZeXY4 '''''''''''a2X_G''''

/030&+8&,'4#"<'+Q-010+, be4Y5 h2VdG

B8."<+'4#"<'B8&+I[R08>+&',+.-#010+,' Ze5cb _2baW

B8."<+'4#"<'A""C+&'083+,1<+81'3+50.C+, 3eV5b X2Gda

B81+#+,1'"8'.%,5'&+A",01, 5@Z XdV

L15+#'['=1".>'C+8&08; 53%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%% Xb

RWR!P% 33eZZX Xh2WXa

/030&+8&,'4#"<'+Q-010+,'08'15+')+%#'1"'_X':%#.5'VWXX'08.C-&+,'1%I'#+.C%0<,'4#"<'4"#<+#'<%8%;+#,'"4'cVdG2Gfb'
#+.+03+&'08'15+')+%#'+8&08;'_X':%#.5'VWWf'(-1'8"1'A#+30"-,C)'#+.";80,+&'%,'08."<+'08'15+'%.."-81,P

J5+'!-8&'5%,'%8'%##%8;+<+81'$015'01,'.-,1"&0%8'SOH6':+CC"8T'1"'C+8&'+C0;0(C+',+.-#010+,'4#"<'01,'A"#14"C0"'1"'150#&'
A%#10+,'08'#+1-#8'4"#'$50.5'15+'150#&'A%#10+,'A%)'4++,'1"'15+'4-8&P'J5+'150#&'A%#10+,'A#"30&+'."CC%1+#%C'1"'15+'!-8&'
$50.5'0,'5+C&'&-#08;'15+'A+#0"&'"4'15+'C"%8P'J50,',1".>'C+8&08;'A#";#%<<+'$%,'081#"&-.+&'$015'+44+.1'4#"<'g-C)'
VWWaP'J5+'!-8&'<%)'1+#<08%1+'%8)'C"%8'"4',+.-#010+,'()';0308;'8"10.+'"4'8"1'C+,,'15%8'15+',1%8&%#&',+11C+<+81'
10<+'4"#'15",+',+.-#010+,P'

J5+'3%C-+'"4'15+',1".>'"8'C"%8'%,'%1'_X':%#.5'VWXX'$%,'ca_Phd'<0CC0"8'S_X':%#.5'VWXW'cfPaV<T2'."<A#0,08;'"4'
cGPGh<'+Q-010+,'%8&'c_bPXX<',"3+#+0;8'&+(1P'J50,'$%,',+.-#+&'()'."CC%1+#%C'$"#15'caGPVX'<0CC0"8'."<A#0,08;'
LED/',"3+#+0;8'%8&',-A#%[8%10"8%C'&+(1'%8&'+Q-01)'08&+I'(%,>+1,'4#"<'15+'!J=E'_GW'08&+IP'J5+'!-8&'&"+,'8"1'
,+CC'."CC%1+#%C'-8C+,,'15+#+'0,'%'&+4%-C1'()'15+'"$8+#'"4'15+'."CC%1+#%CP

EF'&8$)/&)='%G$+)7'1,$)"3)H&#$*+5$&+*

j%C-+'%1
_XYW_YXW

?-#.5%,+,
%1'D",1

=%C+,
?#".++&,

D5%8;+'08
:%#>+1
j%C-+

7-.+'%-2
X564X655

cFWWW cFWWW cFWWW cFWWW ^d444

!0I+&[B81+#+,1'=+.-#010+, X_a2fff _h2GaX SVW2aahT _2aWW 5Y@e@V@

EQ-010+, VaX2VhG XXd2h__ SXVb2WafT Xh2Xad 3@ZeVVZ

B8&+I[R08>+&'=+.-#010+, Xad2ab_ _W2aGW SVa2_VVT _2dhd 5YbeXbc

?""C+&'B83+,1<+81,'[

['?#"A+#1) XWV2dX_ bG2Xhf SVd2_b_T XX2GG_ 5b3e4Y3

['H"8[?#"A+#1) X2dah2Gd_ fd2bdX SXWb2XbbT X_h2bfh 5ecbXe5Y3

/+#03%103+, XGV X2fVV S_2aXGT X2bVa @cX

V2_d_2XbG _hf2Gbh S_XX2bW_T Xd_2Gbd 3eZ4@eYYY

D%,5'/+A",01, h_2WaV V_V2hWh SVaa2XGaT SfdfT Y4eY5Y

H+1'?-#.5%,+,'9'=%C+, hWV2XfV SGGG2fGdT ah2V_G

EF'&8$)/&)E%$D/+"%*I)J$6+"%*)'&D)-$#$&,$

B83+,1<+81'/+(1"#,YD#+&01"#, _2aXV SG_XT 3ecc5

R#2-.%B$"'(29'$2%!(('2( V2a_f2h_f 3eZYbeVY5

@&^-,1<+81,'4"#'*+3+8-+2'
/+(1"#,'9'D#+&01"#, Xb2faf Sb2b_dT 54e553

R+,,'H+1'*+3+8-+'"4'!-8& S_X2hXaT

R#2-.%>'2%!(('2( V2aGb2Gbb 5bbecZ5 3eZZce4ZX

10. Investment Income

11. Change in Total Net Assets

Page 142



AVON PENSION FUND ANNUAL REPORT 2010/11 37

Statement of Accounts 2010/11

J5+'AF-$8'%)$%C-1E'2%7-.+''"4'083+,1<+81,'."<A#0,+,'%CC';%08,'%8&'C",,+,'"8'!-8&'083+,1<+81,'&-#08;'15+'
)+%#2'$5+15+#'#+%C0,+&'"#'-8#+%C0,+&P

J5+'AF-$8'%)$%C-1E'2%7-.+''4"#'.%,5'&+A",01,'#+A#+,+81,'8+1'C",,+,'"8'4"#+0;8'.-##+8.)'&+A",01,'%8&'4"#+0;8'
+I.5%8;+'1#%8,%.10"8,'&-#08;'15+')+%#P

['1)"-2)"'(O'J5+'A-#.5%,+,'%8&',%C+,'"4'&+#03%103+,'%#+',5"$8'%1'15+'3%C-+,'"4'15+'#+%C0,+&'A#"U1,'%8&'C",,+,'"4'
15+'8+1'&+#03%103+,'1#%8,%.10"8,P

B$"'(29'$2%R1-$(-G2)#$%A#(2(
J5+'4"CC"$08;'1#%8,%.10"8,'.",1,'%#+'08.C-&+&'08'15+'%("3+\

?-#.5%,+, =%C+, L15+# J"1%C

cFWWW cFWWW cFWWW cFWWW

!++,'%8&'J%I+, hWh X [ hWd

D"<<0,,0"8 XGf XGV _ _Xa

JLJ@R dhG XG_ _ fVX

!-#15+#'%8%C),0,'"4'15+'<%#>+1'3%C-+'"4'083+,1<+81,'%,',+1'"-1'08'15+'H+1'@,,+1,'=1%1+<+81'0,';03+8'(+C"$\[

X5%C-1GF%3455 _X':%#.5'VWXW

gT%M\+)2)'( ^d444 cFWWW

p-"1+& 34VeZcZ XfX2dXb

?""C+&'B83+,1<+81, @5YeZY5 aGh2dWb

!J=E'!-1-#+, Y@X Z3Yecc4 XGV hab2Gdb

W"'1('-(%M\+)2)'(

p-"1+& XbeX54 af2Gah

?""C+&'B83+,1<+81, VcbebVZ 5e43Ye54Z b_W2dWa bbW2VGW

gT%*)f',?B$2'1'(2%Q).2(

p-"1+& 5Y@e@V@ X_a2fff

?""C+&'B83+,1<+81, XYe3@b 5cVeb@5 af2aX_ Xba2aXV

gT%B$,'f?P)$E',%Q).2(

p-"1+& 5YbeXbc 5YbeXbc Xad2ab_ Xad2ab_

I2'1.)$8%_#$,(%;'fG.+,)$8%Q).2(<

?""C+&'B83+,1<+81, 5Xce4bV 5Xce4bV XVa2aVd XVa2aVd

>#$?I2'1.)$8%_#$,(

?""C+&'B83+,1<+81, b@e444 b@e444 dV2_ab dV2_ab

]',8'%*+$,(

?""C+&'B83+,1<+81, 333eXbV 333eXbV VXV2fd_ VXV2fd_

&1#0'12L

?""C+&'B83+,1<+81, 5b3e4Y3 5b3e4Y3 XWV2dX_ XWV2dX_

A-(F%['0#()2(

=1+#C08; @VeZb3 GV2hVd

!"#+0;8'D-##+8.0+, c@X Y4eY5Y '''''''''''XW2aXG' h_2WaV

12. Investment Assets

Page 143



AVON PENSION FUND ANNUAL REPORT 2010/1138

Statement of Accounts 2010/11

B$"'(29'$2%[':2#1(6A1',)2#1(

B83+,1<+81'B8."<+ Xe3Z@ _2V_X

=%C+,'"4'B83+,1<+81, %%%%%%%%5e@cY% fXf

!"#+0;8'EI.5%8;+'N+&;+ ;YV< [

?-#.5%,+,'"4'B83+,1<+81, ;5ecZV< 3ec35 Sd_dT _2aX_

RWR!P%B>7MIRCM>R%!IIMRI 3eZYbeVY5 V2a_f2h_f

[M/B7!RB7MI%!>!P`IBI% X5%C-1GF%3455

hW"'1%RF'%A#+$2'1i %^d444

!"#$%#&'!"#+0;8'EI.5%8;+'N+&;+'\'''''*+.+03%(C+'08'=1+#C08; '''_2dda

!"#$%#&'!"#+0;8'EI.5%8;+'N+&;+'\'''''?%)%(C+'08'E-#", S_2dbhT

!"#$%#&'!"#+0;8'EI.5%8;+'N+&;+'\'''''?%)%(C+'08'=1+#C08; SX_VT

!"#$%#&'!"#+0;8'EI.5%8;+'N+&;+'\'''''*+.+03%(C+'08'E-#", X__

;55<

!"#$%#&'!"#+0;8'EI.5%8;+'N+&;+'\'''''*+.+03%(C+'08'=1+#C08;' f2GV_

!"#$%#&'!"#+0;8'EI.5%8;+'N+&;+'\'''''?%)%(C+'08'KP=P'/"CC%#, Sf2GdXT

;@c<

;YV<

J5+#+'$+#+'8"'lL3+#'J5+'D"-81+#m'&+#03%103+,'5+C&'%,'%1'_X':%#.5'VWXW

;<(F'&8$)9%'D$D)J$%/#'+/#$*)F$1D)'+)KL)='%(F)MNLLBC

D"81%.1'J)A+ EIA0#%10"8 O"">'D",1'''''''''''' K8#+%C0,+&'7%08

cFWWW cFWWW

!J=E'EQ-01)'!-1-#+, g-8+'VWXX'''''''''''''''''''' XG2VVb'''''''''''''''''''''''''''''' Ga_

;<(F'&8$)9%'D$D)J$%/#'+/#$*)F$1D)'+)KL)='%(F)MNLNBC

!J=E'EQ-01)'!-1-#+, g-8+'VWXW'''''''''''''''''' VW2bbd'''''''''''''''''''''''''''''' XGV

@'&+#03%103+'0,'%'U8%8.0%C'."81#%.1'(+1$++8'1$"'A%#10+,2'15+'3%C-+'"4'$50.5'0,'&+1+#<08+&'()'15+'-8&+#C)08;'
%,,+1P'B83+,1<+81'08'&+#03%103+,'<%)'"8C)'(+'<%&+'04'15+)'."81#0(-1+'1"'%'#+&-.10"8'"4'#0,>,'%8&'4%.0C01%1+'+4U.0+81'
A"#14"C0"'<%8%;+<+81P

J5+'Ki'EQ-01)'4-1-#+,'."81#%.1,'%#+'5+C&'1"'4%.0C01%1+'+4U.0+81'A"#14"C0"'<%8%;+<+81'4"#'%',5"#1'1+#<'A%,,03+C)'
<%8%;+&'083+,1<+81'$5+#+'15+'.",1,'"4'083+,108;'&0#+.1C)'08'Ki'+Q-010+,'$"-C&'(+',0;80U.%81P

!"#$%#&'l"3+#'15+'."-81+#m'4"#+0;8'+I.5%8;+'."81#%.1,'%#+'5+C&'()'"8+'"4'15+'083+,1<+81'<%8%;+#,'1"'#+&-.+'
15+'0<A%.1'"4'e-.1-%10"8,'08'15+'+I.5%8;+'#%1+'(+1$++8',1+#C08;'%8&'15+'"15+#'.-##+8.)P'L15+#'4"#+0;8'+I.5%8;+'
."81#%.1,'%#+'5+C&'()'15+'!-8&'1"'5+&;+'15+'K='/"CC%#'&+<"8,1#%1+&',5%#+'.C%,,'"4'15+'R),1+#'M%1,"8'4-8&P

Page 144



AVON PENSION FUND ANNUAL REPORT 2010/11 39

Statement of Accounts 2010/11

J5+'A#"A"#10"8'"4'15+'<%#>+1'3%C-+'"4'083+,1<+81'%,,+1,'<%8%;+&'()'+%.5'+I1+#8%C'<%8%;+#'%8&'08[5"-,+'
J#+%,-#)':%8%;+<+81'%1'15+'+8&'"4'15+'U8%8.0%C')+%#'$%,\[

X5%C-1GF%3455 _X':%#.5'VWXW

^d444 S cFWWW `

OC%.>*".> 5e@ZVeX3b YYOX X2aWV2b_h GdPG

*+,0&-%C'3%C-+,'5+C&'()'4"#<+#':%8%;+#, 3@ 4O4% df' W'

g-A01+#'@,,+1':%8%;+<+81 54Ve3VY @O5 fa2aGX _Pf'

7+8+,0,'B83+,1<+81':%8%;+<+81 5@be344 YOY X_W2VXX GP_

B83+,."'?+#A+1-%C' 5ZVeb@3 ZO@% XGb2VV_ hPG'

=1%1+'=1#++1'7C"(%C'@&30,"#, V5e5bZ XO@ bG2hdG _PG'

?%#18+#,'7#"-A YXe53V 3O4 Vh2XWW' XPX'

*")%C'R"8&"8'@,,+1':%8%;+<+81 5X5eVV3 YO4% XVV2XbG GPW'

JJ'B81+#8%10"8%C 5X3e4bX YO4 XVa2dGh GPX

:@H'B83+,1<+81, 544e@5c XOc fG2Wad _Pf

7"11+I'@,,+1':%8%;+<+81 YXe@V4 3O4 GX2VbW VPX'

=1+85%<'@,,+1':%8%;+<+81 55eZZY 4O@% XX2Gaa WPG'

=0;8+1'D%A01%C':%8%;+<+81 @be33Y 5Oc aG2Vdf XPf

R),1+#'M%1,"8':%8%;+<+81 54e33c 4O@% f2bV_ WPa'

=.5#"&+#'B83+,1<+81':%8%;+<+81 534eY55 @OY dh2dfb _PX

O%8>'"4'H+$'6"#>':+CC"8 5ecc3 4O5 G2_GV WPV

J#+%,-#)':%8%;+<+81 ceYb@ 4OX [ WPV

RWR!P%B>7MIRCM>R%!IIMRI' 3eZYbeVY5 544O4% V2a_f2h_f XWWPW

*+,0&-%C'3%C-+,'5+C&'()'4"#<+#'<%8%;+#,'D%A01%C'B81+#8%10"8%C2'J5#+%&8++&C+'?+8,0"8,'%8&'M+CC08;1"8'
:%8%;+<+81'B81+#8%10"8%C'#+C%1+'1"'#+.C%0<%(C+'1%IP'

J5+'4"CC"$08;'083+,1<+81'5"C&08;,'%<"-81+&'1"'G`'"#'<"#+'"4'15+0#'%,,+1'.C%,,'+I.C-&08;'A""C+&'4-8&,P'B4'A""C+&'
4-8&,'$+#+'08.C-&+&'15+'"8C)'5"C&08;'1"'+I.++&'G`'"4'01,'%,,+1'.C%,,'$"-C&'(+'15+'B8&+I'C08>+&'VPG`'g-C)'VWXh'
$50.5'$"-C&'(+'GPWX`'"4'01,'.C%,,P'J5+'A+#.+81%;+'"4'%,,+1'.C%,,'"8C)'#+C%1+,'1"'15+'%,,+1,'5+C&'"8'%',+;#+;%1+&''
(%,0,P

*)f',?B$2'1'(2%I'G+1)2)'( 7-.+'%^d444 S%#J%!(('2%A.-((

Ki'7"3+#8<+81'aPVGW`'Wd[gKH[VW_V X_2bXf2fWf bPf`

Ki'7"3+#8<+81'aPdGW`'Wd[/ED[VW_b X_2bWX2_W_ bPf`

Ki'7"3+#8<+81'aPVGW`'Wd[/ED[VWVd X_2dbb2Wfh bPf`

Ki'7"3+#8<+81'aPdGW`'Wd[/ED[VW_W X_2Vbb2fh_ bPh`

Ki'7"3+#8<+81'aPVGW`'Wd[/ED[VWGG XV2Vdf2hV_ dPf`

Ki'7"3+#8<+81'aPVGW`'Wd[:@*[VW_h XV2Wab2bfX dPb`

Ki'7"3+#8<+81'hPWWW`'Wd[/ED[VWVb XX2bGX2WaW dPd`

Ki'7"3+#8<+81'aPVGW`'Wd[/ED[VWah' XW2bb_2Whd dPW`

Ki'7"3+#8<+81'aPGWW`'Wd[/ED[VWaV' XW2h_d2b_a hPf`

Ki'7"3+#8<+81'aPVGW`'Wd[/ED[VWaf' f2ffV2Gbd hPG`

Ki'7"3+#8<+81'aPGWW`'WfYWdYVW_a' f2a_a2Xdf hPX`

Ki'7"3+#8<+81'aPVGW`'WfYWfYVW_f b2d_h2VaW GPd`

Ki'7"3+#8<+81'aPVGW`'XVYWdYVWaW b2Wab2ad_ GPV`

13. Single Investments over 5% of Asset Class

Page 145



AVON PENSION FUND ANNUAL REPORT 2010/1140

Statement of Accounts 2010/11

B$,'f%P)$E',%I'G+1)2)'( 7-.+'%^d444 S%#J%!(('2%A.-((

Ki'7"3+#8<+81'VPGWW`'Vh[gKR[VWXh Xd2_fX2had XXPX`

Ki'7"3+#8<+81'VPGWW`'Xh[@?*[VWVW' Xa2hWV2WG_ fP_`

Ki'7"3+#8<+81'j@*'*J'Xd[gKR[VWVa X_2Vdh2fdf bPa`

Ki'7"3+#8<+81'XPVGW`'VV[HLj[VWVd XV2hXV2W_f bPW`

Ki'7"3+#8<+81'XPbdG`'VV[HLj[VWVV' XX2hfb2aVh dPa`

Ki'7"3+#8<+81'VPWWW`'Vh[g@H[VW_G XX2XW_2GGd dPX`

Ki'7"3+#8<+81'XPVGW`'VV[HLj[VWGG XW2dGX2Xff hPb`

Ki'7"3+#8<+81'XPVGW`'VV[HLj[VWXd' XW2G_a2fXb hPd`

Ki'7"3+#8<+81'XPVGW`'VV[HLj[VW_V' XW2Vbb2WGV hPG`

Ki'7"3+#8<+81'aPXVG`'VV[gKR[VW_W f2h__2Va_ hPX`

Ki'7"3+#8<+81'XPXVG`'VV[HLj[VW_d f2VaV2ffh GPf`

gT%M\+)2)'( 7-.+'%^d444 S%#J%!(('2%A.-((

j"&%4"8+'7#"-A X_2dff2W_X hPh`

N=OD'NC&;,'"#&'K=/WPGW'SKiT XW2bGa2GGV GPV`

W"'1('-(%M\+)2)'( 7-.+'%^d444 S%#J%!(('2%A.-((

*")%C'/-1.5'=5+CC'v@v G2d_a2aaX XGPa`

t,1#%1%'."<',1>' G2G_V2_XX XaPb`

O%)+#'%;'"#&'8A3 _2WdX2d_X bPV`

M??'AC.'"#& V2WbV2Wfa GPh`

?#"30,0"8'5%,'(++8'<%&+'08'15+'%.."-81,'4"#'&+(1"#,'%8&'.#+&01"#,'>8"$8'1"'(+'"-1,1%8&08;'%1'_X':%#.5'VWXXP'
/+(1"#,'%8&'.#+&01"#,'08.C-&+&'08'15+'%.."-81,'%#+'%8%C),+&'(+C"$\[

X5%C-1GF%3455 _X':%#.5'VWXW

Ag//M>R%!IIMRI ^d444 cFWWW

O%15'9'H"#15'E%,1'="<+#,+1'D"-8.0C ? XW2WVd

D"81#0(-10"8,'*+.+03%(C+''

'['E<AC")+#,'' be@ZZ d2Vhd

'[':+<(+#,'' 3eVZX V2fbG

'/0,.#+10"8%#)'E%#C)'*+10#+<+81'D",1,' @4V% afb

'L15+#'/+(1"#,'' b54 55eY@c _dV VX2Xaf

Ag//M>R%PB!_BPBRBMI''

:%8%;+<+81'!++,'' ;b3c< S_f_T

R-<A'=-<'*+10#+<+81'O+8+U1, ;Xc4< SX2dXVT

L15+#'D#+&01"#,'' ;X3c< ;5e@XZ< SfGT SV2VWWT

54e553 Xb2faf

14. Current Assets and Current Liabilities

Page 146



AVON PENSION FUND ANNUAL REPORT 2010/11 41

Statement of Accounts 2010/11

J5+'_X':%#.5'VWXW'&+(1"#'$015'O%15'9'H"#15'E%,1'="<+#,+1'D"-8.0C'#+A#+,+81,'<"80+,'5+C&'()'15+'@&<080,1+#[
08;'@-15"#01)'"8'$50.5'%'."<<+#.0%C'#%1+'"4'081+#+,1'$%,'A%0&P'!#"<'X'@A#0C'VWXW'15+'!-8&'5%,'<%8%;+&'01,',-#[
AC-,'.%,5',+A%#%1+C)'4#"<'15+'D"-8.0C2'."8,+Q-+81C)'150,'&+(1"#'8"'C"8;+#'"..-#,P'=-#AC-,'.%,5'0,'8"$'08.C-&+&'
$01508'15+'J"1%C'B83+,1<+81'@,,+1,P'

J5+'R-<A'=-<'*+10#+<+81'O+8+U1,'.#+&01"#'$%,'C"$+#'%1'_X':%#.5'VWXX'(+.%-,+'C"8;+#'8"10.+'$%,';03+8'1"'15+'
!-8&'"4'15+'8-<(+#'"4'<+<(+#,'1%>08;'+%#C)'#+10#+<+81'4"CC"$08;'#+&-8&%8.)2'15%8'$%,';03+8'%1'_X':%#.5'VWXWP'

>&'14*/*)"3)J$6+"%*)'&D)E%$D/+"%*)64).,61/()*$(+"%)6"D/$*BC)

X5%C-1GF%3455 _X':%#.5'VWXW

Ag//M>R%!IIMRI% ^d444 cFWWW

R".%C'@-15"#010+, Ve4Zc Xb2fhX

HN='O"&0+,'' 55 XW

L15+#'?-(C0.'O"&0+, 5eYc4% X2hda

H"8'?-(C0.'=+.1"# ccV 55eY@c GWa VX2Xaf

'Ag//M>R%PB!_BPBRBMI''''

H"8'?-(C0.'=+.1"#'' ;5e@XZ< ;5e@XZ< SV2VWWT SV2VWWT

HEJ'DK**EHJ'@==EJ=' 54e553 Xb2faf

J5+#+'$+#+'8"'&+(1"#,'"#'.#+&01"#,'"4'D+81#%C'7"3+#8<+81'"#'A-(C0.'."#A"#%10"8,'%8&'1#%&+&'4-8&,P'

J5+#+'$+#+'8"'."8108;+81'C0%(0C010+,'%,'%1'_X':%#.5'VWXXP'S:%#.5'VWXW'w'HBRTP'

B8'."<AC0%8.+'$015'B@='Vh'15+'4"CC"$08;',1%1+<+81'5%,'(++8'A#+A%#+&'()'15+'!-8&F,'%.1-%#)P

B@='Vh'#+Q-0#+,'15+'A#+,+81'3%C-+'"4'15+'!-8&F,'A#"<0,+&'#+10#+<+81'(+8+U1,'1"'(+'&0,.C",+&2'%8&'4"#'150,'A-#A",+'
15+'%.1-%#0%C'%,,-<A10"8,'%8&'<+15"&"C";)'-,+&',5"-C&'(+'(%,+&'"8'B@='Xf'#%15+#'15%8'15+'%,,-<A10"8,'%8&'
<+15"&"C";)'-,+&'4"#'4-8&08;'A-#A",+,P

B8'"#&+#'1"'%,,+,,'15+'3%C-+'"4'15+'(+8+U1,'"8'150,'(%,0,2'$+'5%3+'-,+&'15+',%<+'%.1-%#0%C'%,,-<A10"8,'%,'15",+'
-,+&'4"#'4-8&08;'A-#A",+,2'"15+#'15%8'15+'&0,."-81'#%1+'$5+#+'$+'5%3+'-,+&'%'#%1+'"4'GPh`'AP%P'("15'(+4"#+'%8&'
%41+#'#+10#+<+81'#%15+#'15%8'15+'#%1+,'%,'"-1C08+&'08',+.10"8'XPdP''M+'5%3+'%C,"'-,+&'3%C-%10"8'<+15"&"C";)'08'."8[
8+.10"8'$015'0CC[5+%C15'%8&'&+%15'(+8+U1,'$50.5'0,'."8,0,1+81'$015'B@='XfP''L8'150,'(%,0,2'15+'3%C-+'"4'15+'A#"<0,+&'
#+10#+<+81'(+8+U1,'%,'%1'_X':%#.5'VWXW'0,'c_2_Xb'<0CC0"8P

M+'5%3+'%C,"'.%##0+&'"-1',0<0C%#'.%C.-C%10"8,'%,'%1'15+'A#+30"-,'%.1-%#0%C'3%C-%10"8'&%1+'"4'_X':%#.5'VWWd2'-,[
08;'15+',%<+'%.1-%#0%C'%,,-<A10"8,'%,'15",+'-,+&'4"#'4-8&08;'A-#A",+,'%1'15%1'&%1+2'"15+#'15%8'15+'&0,."-81'#%1+'
$5+#+'$+'5%3+'-,+&'%'#%1+'"4'GPa`'AP%P'("15'(+4"#+'%8&'%41+#'#+10#+<+81P''L8'150,'(%,0,2'15+'3%C-+'4"#'B@='Vh'
A-#A",+,'"4'15+'!-8&F,'A#"<0,+&'#+10#+<+81'(+8+U1,'%1'15%1'&%1+'$%,'cV2fhV'<0CC0"8P'J5+'8+1'%,,+1,'%3%0C%(C+'1"'
<++1'150,'C0%(0C01)'%#+'.-##+81C)'cV2hhb'<0CC0"8P'J5+'1#0+880%C'3%C-%10"8'"4'15+'4-8&'()'15+'%.1-%#)',+1,'."81#0(-10"8'
#%1+,'%1'15+'C+3+C'#+Q-0#+&'1"'#+."3+#'15+'&+U.01P'J5+'%,,-<A10"8'#+Q-0#+&'4"#'15+'A-#A",+,'"4'B@='Vh'%8&'15",+'#+[
Q-0#+&'4"#'15+'1#0+880%C'3%C-%10"8'%#+'&044+#+812'."8,+Q-+81C)''15+'3%C-+'"4'15+'C0%(0C01)'08'+%.5'.%,+'0,'8"1'15+',%<+P'

J#%8,4+#,[B8'&-#08;'15+')+%#'$+#+'%CC'08'#+C%10"8'1"'08&030&-%C,P'J5+#+'$+#+'8"'1#%8,4+#,[08'1"'15+'!-8&'&-#08;'15+'
)+%#'+8&08;'_X':%#.5'VWXXP'

15. Contingent Liabilities

16. Actuarial Present Value of Promised 
Retirement Bene"ts for the Purposes 
of IAS 26

17. Transfers In

Page 147



AVON PENSION FUND ANNUAL REPORT 2010/1142

Statement of Accounts 2010/11

J5+'!-8&'<%>+,'A%)<+81,'$015'#+;%#&'1"'%&&+&')+%#'(+8+U1,'%$%#&+&'()'15+'E<AC")+#'1"'R7?='<+<(+#,2'
08.C-&08;'#+C%1+&'A+8,0"8'08.#+%,+,2'%8&'A+8,0"8'08.#+%,+,'08'#+,A+.1'"4'.+#1%08'("&0+,'$015'8"'A+8,0"8%(C+'+<[
AC")++,'08'15+'!-8&P'J5+'!-8&'%C,"'A%),'%',<%CC'8-<(+#'"4'"15+#'A+8,0"8',-AAC+<+81,P'J5+,+'%#+'8"1'4-8&+&'()'
15+'!-8&'%8&'%#+'#+.5%#;+&'08'4-CCP'J5+)'%#+'8"1'08.C-&+&'08'15+'!-8&'@.."-81'"#'#+C%1+&'8"1+,P

3454655 VWWfYXW

^d444 cFWWW

O+8+U1,'?%0&'%8&'*+.5%#;+&' Ze43Y h2X_X

=.5+<+'<+<(+#,'<%)'<%>+'@&&010"8%C'j"C-81%#)'D"81#0(-10"8,'15%1'%#+'083+,1+&'08'08,-#%8.+'A"C0.0+,'$015'J5+'
EQ-01%(C+'R04+'@,,-#%8.+'=".0+1)'"#'!#0+8&,'R04+2'15+'!-8&F,'8"<08%1+&'@jD'A#"30&+#,P''@&&010"8%C'j"C-81%#)'
D"81#0(-10"8,'#+.+03+&'4#"<'+<AC")++,'%8&'A%0&'1"'J5+'EQ-01%(C+'R04+'@,,-#%8.+'=".0+1)'&-#08;'VWXWYXX'$+#+'
ca2XVb'SVWWfYXW'['cd2_XfTP''@&&010"8%C'j"C-81%#)'D"81#0(-10"8,'#+.+03+&'4#"<'+<AC")++,'%8&'A%0&'1"'!#0+8&,'R04+'
&-#08;'VWXWYXX'$+#+'cGXh2XhW'SVWWfYXW'['cGVd2hGGTP

9F$)+"+'1)#'1,$)"3)+F$)'**$+*)/&#$*+$DI)"&)')5"&$4).,%(F'*$)6'*/*I)O/+F)+F$*$)>7E).%"#/D$%*)O'*BC)

X5%C-1GF%3455 _X':%#.5'VWXW

^d444 cFWWW

M\+)2-:.'%P)J'

M015[?#"U1,'*+10#+<+81'O+8+U1,' %%%%%%%%%%%%%%%bc@% fXd

K801[R08>+&'*+10#+<+81'O+8+U1,' %%%%%%%%%%%%%%%@@X% '''''''''''''''aaf'

O-0C&08;'=".0+1)'O+8+U1,' %%%%%%%%%%%%%X5V% '''''''''''''_Vd''

5eY@Z '''''''''X2hf_'

/+%15'08'=+#30.+'O+8+U1 5VV Vfh

*1)'$,(%P)J'

M015[?#"U1,'*+10#+<+81'O+8+U1, 5bX Vh_

K801[R08>+&'*+10#+<+81'O+8+U1, 3eX4b _2VVd

D%,5'!-8& 3bb abV

3ebYb _2fdV

@jD'083+,1<+81,'%#+'8"1'08.C-&+&'08'15+'!-8&F,'U8%8.0%C',1%1+<+81,P'

A#99)22''%C'9:'1%/'.-2',=?
B8'VWXWYXX'c_f2VaG'$%,'.5%#;+&'1"'15+'!-8&'08'#+,A+.1'"4'@CC"$%8.+,'A%0&'1"'15+'3"108;':+<(+#,'"4'15+'@3"8'
?+8,0"8'!-8&'D"<<011++'Sc_h2bf_'08'VWWfYXWTP'!"-#'3"108;'<+<(+#,'%8&'15#++'8"8[3"108;'<+<(+#,'"4'15+'
D"<<011++'S08.C-&08;'15#++'O9HE='D"-8.0CC"#':+<(+#,T'$+#+'<+<(+#,'"4'15+'R7?='&-#08;'15+'U8%8.0%C')+%#'
VWXWYVWXXP'S!03+'3"108;'<+<(+#,'%8&'15#++'8"8'3"108;'<+<(+#,'08'VWWfYVWXW2'08.C-&08;'15#++'O9HE='D"-8.0CC"#'
:+<(+#,T

B$,'0'$,'$2%C'9:'1%/'.-2',=?
J$"'B8&+A+8&+81':+<(+#,'$+#+'A%0&'%CC"$%8.+,'"4'ch2_bW'%8&'cXV2_df'#+,A+.103+C)'&-#08;'15+')+%#'4"#'15+0#'
$"#>'08'#+C%10"8'1"'15+'?+8,0"8'!-8&'D"<<011++'%8&'15+'B83+,1<+81'?%8+CP'J5+)'%#+'%C,"'+8101C+&'1"'.C%0<'
#+%,"8%(C+'+IA+8,+,P'J5+'B8&+A+8&+81':+<(+#,'%#+'8"1'+C0;0(C+'1"'^"08'15+'R7?=P

18. Bene"ts Recharged to Employers

19. Additional Voluntary 
Contributions (AVCs)

20. Related Parties

Page 148



AVON PENSION FUND ANNUAL REPORT 2010/11 43

Statement of Accounts 2010/11

M90.#L'1%/'.-2',=?
/-#08;'15+')+%#'VWXWYXX'15+'!-8&'A%0&'O9HE='D"-8.0C'cVah2VWf'4"#'%&<080,1#%103+',+#30.+,'ScV_f2bdb'08'
VWWfYXWT'%8&'O9HE='D"-8.0C'A%0&'15+'!-8&'ch2WfX'4"#'%&<080,1#%103+',+#30.+,'ScX2GVb'08'VWWfYXWTP'j%#0"-,'
E<AC")+#,'#+Q-0#08;'B@='Xf'&0,.C",-#+,'%8&'"15+#'%.1-%#0%C'$"#>'A%0&'15+'!-8&'%'1"1%C'"4'c_2Vhh'ScX2hhG'08'
VWWfYXWT'4"#'15+0#',+#30.+,'08'."<A0C08;'&%1%'4"#',-(<0,,0"8'1"'15+'%.1-%#)P

WJUG'1%-$,%C-$-8'1%/'.-2',=?
J5+'"4U.+#,'%&<080,1+#08;'15+'@3"8'?+8,0"8'!-8&'%#+'%CC'+C0;0(C+'1"'(+'<+<(+#,'"4'15+'@3"8'?+8,0"8'!-8&P

J5+#+'%#+'8"'"15+#'#+C%1+&'A%#1)'1#%8,%.10"8,'+I.+A1'%,'%C#+%&)'&0,.C",+&'+C,+$5+#+P'

@,'%1'15+'_X':%#.5'VWXX'15+'!-8&'5%&'"-1,1%8&08;'."<<01<+81,'#+C%108;'1"'083+,1<+81,'08'A#"A+#1)'15%1'$0CC'(+'
&#%$8'&"$8'08'1#%8.5+,'()'15+'B83+,1<+81':%8%;+#,'1"1%CC08;'cbh2bhd2WhXP

X5%C-1GF%3455 _X':%#.5'VWXW

*)$-$G)-.%!(('2( ^d444 cFWWW

R"%8,'9'*+.+03%(C+, Z3e4ZX ''''''''''''ba2XfX

!08%8.0%C'%,,+1,'%1'4%0#'3%C-+'15#"-;5'A#"U1'"#'C",, %%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%3eZ4VeXZ@%% V2_dd2__G'

R#2-.%*)$-$G)-.%!(('2( %%%%%3eZb5e@3b% V2ahX2GVh'

*)$-$G)-.%P)-:).)2)'(

?%)%(C+, XeX4Y% V2f_b'

!08%8.0%C'C0%(0C010+,'%1'4%0#'3%C-+'15#"-;5'A#"U1'"#'C",, YV% [

R#2-.%*)$-$G)-.%P)-:).)2)'( XeXZ@% V2f_b'

@CC'083+,1<+81,'%#+'&0,.C",+&'%1'4%0#'3%C-+P'D%##)08;'3%C-+'%8&'4%0#'3%C-+'%#+'15+#+4"#+'15+',%<+P'J5+';%08,'%8&'
C",,+,'#+.";80,+&'08'15+'!-8&'@.."-81'08'#+C%10"8'1"'U8%8.0%C'08,1#-<+81,'%#+'<%&+'-A'%,'4"CC"$,\

B$G#9'e%Mf0'$('e%8-)$(%-$,%P#(('(

P#-$(%a%
/'G')"-:.'(

*)$-$G)-.%-(('2(%
-2%J-)1%"-.+'%
2F1#+8F%01#U2%

#1%.#((

P#-$(%a%
/'G')"-:.'(

*)$-$G)-.%-(('2(%
-2%J-)1%"-.+'%
2F1#+8F%01#U2%

#1%.#((%

3454655 344V654

^d444 ^d444 ^d444 ^d444

B81+#+,1'+IA+8,+ ? [ [ [

R",,+,'"8'&+#+.";8010"8 ? V2_VX [ X2ah_'

*+&-.10"8,'08'4%0#'3%C-+ ? a2dbb' [ XX2Gaf'

!++'+IA+8,+ ? fVX [ b_X

R#2-.%'f0'$('%)$%*+$,%!GG#+$2 ? b2W_W [ X_2ba_'

B81+#+,1'%8&'&030&+8&'08."<+ 5@Z 33eY5b XdV XG2baV

7%08,'"8'&+#+.";8010"8 ? X5ebX4 [ __2fGX

B8.#+%,+,'08'4%0#'3%C-+ ? 5@ceVZZ [ GbG2hVa

R#2-.%)$G#9'%)$%*+$,%!GG#+$2 5@Z 34Xe35X XdV h_G2aXd'

>'2%8-)$6;.#((<%J#1%2F'%L'-1 5@Z 5VYe5cX% XdV hVX2Gda'

21. Outstanding Commitments

22. Financial Instruments

Page 149



AVON PENSION FUND ANNUAL REPORT 2010/1144

Statement of Accounts 2010/11

@,'%8'083+,1<+81'4-8&2'15+'@3"8'?+8,0"8'!-8&F,'"(^+.103+'0,'1"';+8+#%1+'A",0103+'083+,1<+81'#+1-#8,'4"#'%';03+8'
C+3+C'"4'#0,>P'J5+#+4"#+'15+'!-8&'5"C&,'U8%8.0%C'08,1#-<+81,',-.5'%,',+.-#010+,'S+Q-010+,2'("8&,T2'."CC+.103+'
083+,1<+81',.5+<+,'SA""C+&'4-8&,T'%8&'.%,5'%8&'.%,5'+Q-03%C+81,P'B8'%&&010"8'&+(1"#,'%8&'.#+&01"#,'%#0,+'%,'%'
#+,-C1'"4'01,'"A+#%10"8,P''J5+'3%C-+'"4'15+,+'U8%8.0%C'08,1#-<+81,'0,'#+e+.1+&'08'15+'U8%8.0%C',1%1+<+81,'%1'15+0#'4%0#'
3%C-+P

J5+'<%08'#0,>,'4#"<'15+'!-8&F,'5"C&08;'"4'U8%8.0%C'08,1#-<+81,'%#+'<%#>+1'#0,>2'.#+&01'#0,>'%8&'C0Q-0&01)'#0,>P''
:%#>+1'#0,>'08.C-&+,'A#0.+'#0,>2'081+#+,1'#%1+'#0,>'%8&'.-##+8.)'#0,>P

J5+'!-8&F,'083+,1<+81,'%#+'<%8%;+&'"8'(+5%C4'"4'15+'!-8&'()'15+'%AA"081+&'B83+,1<+81':%8%;+#,P'E%.5'
083+,1<+81'<%8%;+#'0,'#+Q-0#+&'1"'083+,1'15+'%,,+1,'<%8%;+&'()'15+<'08'%.."#&%8.+'$015'15+'1+#<,'"4'15+0#'
083+,1<+81';-0&+C08+,'"#'A""C+&'4-8&'A#",A+.1-,P'J5+'@3"8'?+8,0"8'!-8&'D"<<011++'SlD"<<011++mT'5%,'
&+1+#<08+&'15%1'15+'083+,1<+81'<%8%;+<+81',1#-.1-#+'0,'%AA#"A#0%1+'%8&'0,'08'%.."#&%8.+'$015'01,'083+,1<+81'
,1#%1+;)P''J5+'D"<<011++'#+;-C%#C)'<"801"#,'+%.5'083+,1<+81'<%8%;+#'%8&'01,'B83+,1<+81'D"8,-C1%81'%&30,+,'"8'
15+'8%1-#+'"4'15+'083+,1<+81,'<%&+'%8&'%,,".0%1+&'#0,>,P

J5+'!-8&F,'083+,1<+81,'%#+'5+C&'()'OH6':+CC"8'@,,+1'=+#30.08;2'$5"'%.1'%,'.-,1"&0%8'"8'(+5%C4'"4'15+'!-8&P

O+.%-,+'15+'!-8&'%&"A1,'%'C"8;[1+#<'083+,1<+81',1#%1+;)2'15+'50;5'C+3+C'#0,>,'&+,.#0(+&'(+C"$'$0CC'8"1'%C1+#'
,0;80U.%81C)'&-#08;'%8)'"8+')+%#'-8C+,,'15+#+'%#+',0;80U.%81',1#%1+;0.'"#'1%.10.%C'.5%8;+,'1"'15+'A"#14"C0"P'

:%#>+1'#0,>'#+A#+,+81,'15+'#0,>'15%1'15+'4%0#'3%C-+'"4'%'U8%8.0%C'08,1#-<+81'$0CC'e-.1-%1+'(+.%-,+'"4'.5%8;+,'08'
<%#>+1'A#0.+,2'081+#+,1'#%1+,'"#'.-##+8.0+,P'J5+'!-8&'0,'+IA",+&'15#"-;5'01,'083+,1<+81,'08'+Q-010+,2'("8&,'%8&'
083+,1<+81'4-8&,2'1"'%CC'15+,+'<%#>+1'#0,>,P'J5+'%0<'"4'15+'B83+,1<+81'=1#%1+;)'0,'1"'<%8%;+'%8&'."81#"C'<%#>+1'
#0,>'$01508'%..+A1%(C+'A%#%<+1+#,2'$50C+'"A10<0,08;'15+'#+1-#8'4#"<'15+'083+,1<+81'A"#14"C0"

B8';+8+#%C2'<%#>+1'#0,>'0,'<%8%;+&'15#"-;5'15+'&03+#,0U.%10"8'"4'15+'083+,1<+81,'5+C&'()'%,,+1'.C%,,2'083+,1<+81'
<%8&%1+';-0&+C08+,'%8&'B83+,1<+81':%8%;+#,P'J5+'#0,>'%#0,08;'4#"<'+IA",-#+'1"',A+.0U.'<%#>+1,'0,'C0<01+&'()'
15+',1#%1+;0.'%,,+1'%CC".%10"82'$50.5'0,'#+;-C%#C)'<"801"#+&'()'15+'D"<<011++P'

:%#>+1'A#0.+'#0,>'#+A#+,+81,'15+'#0,>'15%1'15+'3%C-+'"4'%'U8%8.0%C'08,1#-<+81'$0CC'e-.1-%1+'.%-,+&'()'4%.1"#,'"15+#'
15%8'081+#+,1'#%1+'"#'4"#+0;8'.-##+8.)'<"3+<+81,2'$5+15+#'15",+'.5%8;+,'%#+'.%-,+&'()'4%.1"#,',A+.0U.'1"'15+'
08&030&-%C'08,1#-<+812'01,'0,,-+#'"#'4%.1"#,'%44+.108;'15+'<%#>+1'08';+8+#%CP

:%#>+1'A#0.+'#0,>'%#0,+,'4#"<'-8.+#1%081)'%("-1'15+'4-1-#+'3%C-+'"4'15+'U8%8.0%C'08,1#-<+81,'15%1'15+'!-8&'5"C&,P''
@CC'083+,1<+81,'A#+,+81'%'#0,>'"4'C",,'"4'.%A01%C2'15+'<%I0<-<'#0,>'(+08;'&+1+#<08+&'()'15+'4%0#'3%C-+'"4'15+'
U8%8.0%C'08,1#-<+81,P'J5+'B83+,1<+81':%8%;+#,'<010;%1+'150,'#0,>'15#"-;5'&03+#,0U.%10"8'08'C08+'$015'15+0#'"$8'
083+,1<+81',1#%1+;0+,'%8&'<%8&%1+';-0&+C08+,P'

J5+',+8,010301)'"4'15+'!-8&F,'083+,1<+81,'1"'.5%8;+,'08'<%#>+1'A#0.+,'5%,'(++8'%8%C),+&'-,08;'15+'3"C%10C01)'"4'
#+1-#8'+IA+#0+8.+&'()'+%.5'083+,1<+81'A"#14"C0"'&-#08;'15+')+%#'1"'_X':%#.5'VWXXP'J5+'3"C%10C01)'&%1%'5%,'(++8'
A#"30&+&'()'gRJ'O+8+U1'="C-10"8,'%8&'0,'(#"%&C)'."8,0,1+81'$015'%'"8+[,1%8&%#&'&+30%10"8'<"3+<+81'08'15+'
3%C-+'"4'15+'%,,+1,P'J5+'%8%C),0,'%,,-<+,'15%1'%CC'"15+#'3%#0%(C+,'08.C-&08;'081+#+,1'#%1+,'%8&'4"#+0;8'.-##+8.)'
+I.5%8;+'#%1+,'5%3+'%',0<0C%#'+IA+#0+8.+'1"'15%1'+IA+#0+8.+&'4"#'15+')+%#'1"'_X':%#.5'VWXXP

:"3+<+81,'08'<%#>+1'A#0.+,'."-C&'5%3+'08.#+%,+&'"#'&+.#+%,+&'15+'8+1'%,,+1,'3%C-+&'%1'_X':%#.5'VWXX'()'15+'
%<"-81,',5"$8'(+C"$P'B1',5"-C&'(+'8"1+&'15%1'15+'C0>+C05""&'"4'150,'#0,>'<%1+#0%C0,08;'08'8"#<%C'.0#.-<,1%8.+,'0,'
C"$'()'30#1-+'"4'15+'&03+#,0U.%10"8'$01508'15+'4-8&P

(a) (ii) Market Price Risk - Sensitivity Analysis

(a) Market Risks

(a) (i) Market Price Risk

23. Financial Risk-Management Disclosure

Page 150



AVON PENSION FUND ANNUAL REPORT 2010/11 45

Statement of Accounts 2010/11

!(%-2%X5%C-1GF%3455 7-.+' 7#.-2).)2L%#J%
/'2+1$

B$G1'-(' ['G1'-('

^d444 S ^d444 ^d444

OC%.>*".> X2_bf2aff'' Xa` XfG2fXf'' SXfG2fXfT'

OC%.>*".>'H"'V'!-8& df2bVb'' d` G2bVd'' SG2bVdT'

g-A01+#'Ki'EQ-010+, XWf2VfG'' XV` X_2VVG'' SX_2VVGT'

JJ'Ki'EQ-010+, X_V2Wd_'' Xd` VV2aGV'' SVV2aGVT'

B83+,."'7C"(%C'+I[Ki'EQ-010+, Xhf2daV'' XG` Va2dbV'' SVa2dbVT'

=1%1+'=1#++1'E-#"A+'EQ-010+, _V2bah'' VW` h2GWa'' Sh2GWaT'

=1%1+'=1#++1'?%.0U.'*0<'EQ-010+, Gb2__W'' X_` d2Gb_'' Sd2Gb_T'

7+8+,0,'E<+#;08;':%#>+1'EQ-010+, Xad2VWW'' XG` VX2_aa'' SVX2_aaT'

*R@:'D"#A"#%1+'O"8&, X_X2ffV'' G` d2XVb'' Sd2XVbT'

:@H'!-8&'"4'N+&;+'!-8&, XWW2aXb'' h` G2fVG'' SG2fVGT'

7"11+I'!-8&'"4'N+&;+'!-8&, G_2afW'' V` X2__d'' SX2__dT'

=0;8+1'!-8&'"4'N+&;+'!-8&, ad2VVG'' _` X2aXd'' SX2aXdT'

=1+85%<'!-8&'"4'N+&;+'!-8&, XX2hhG'' a` aa_'' Saa_T'

R),1+#'M%1,"8'!-8&'"4'N+&;+'!-8&, XW2VVb'' f` faX'' SfaXT'

=.5#"&+#'K>'?#"A+#1) XVW2GXX'' V` V2Waf'' SV2WafT'

?%#18+#,'L3+#,+%,'?#"A+#1) G_2XVf'' a` V2XVG'' SV2XVGT'

B81+#8%C'D%,5 XW2aGh'' W` VX'' SVXT'

/+4+##+&'@,,+1,'SA#+30"-,'<%8%;+#,T Va'' '[ [ [

RWR!P' 3eZYbeVY5 53S X5Ve443%% ;X5Ve443<%

B81+#+,1'#%1+'#0,>'0,'15+'#0,>'15%1'15+'4%0#'3%C-+'"4'%'U8%8.0%C'08,1#-<+81'$0CC'e-.1-%1+'(+.%-,+'"4'.5%8;+,'08'<%#>+1'
081+#+,1'#%1+,'$50.5'$0CC'%44+.1'15+'3%C-+'"4'UI+&[081+#+,1'%8&'08&+I[C08>+&',+.-#010+,P'J5+'%<"-81'"4'08."<+'
#+.+03%(C+'4#"<'.%,5'(%C%8.+,'"#'081+#+,1'A%)%(C+'"8'"3+#&#%41,'$0CC'(+'%44+.1+&'()'e-.1-%10"8,'08'081+#+,1'#%1+,P

J5+'!-8&F,'+IA",-#+'1"'081+#+,1'#%1+'<"3+<+81,'"8'15+,+'083+,1<+81,'%1'_X':%#.5'VWXX'%#+'A#"30&+&'(+C"$P''
D%,5'08.C-&+,'15+'.%,5'&+A",01,'5+C&'%;%08,1'4-1-#+,'."81#%.1,P

X5%C-1GF%3455%?%^d444

D%,5'%8&'D%,5'EQ-03%C+81, GW2GXG

!0I+&[B81+#+,1'@,,+1, '''''''''''''''GGf2Xfd'

R"%8,' '''''''''''''''['

R#2-. %%%%%%%%%%%%%Z4Veb53%

J5+',+8,010301)'"4'15+'!-8&F,'083+,1<+81,'1"'.5%8;+,'08'081+#+,1'#%1+,'5%,'(++8'%8%C),+&'()',5"$08;'15+'%44+.1'"8'
15+'4%0#'3%C-+'"4'15+'UI+&[08."<+',+.-#010+,'%,'%1'_X':%#.5'VWXX'"4'%'X`'.5%8;+'08'081+#+,1'#%1+,'S"#'XWW'(%,0,'
A"081,'S(A,TTP'J5+'%8%C),0,'%,,-<+,'15%1'%CC'"15+#'3%#0%(C+,'08.C-&08;'4"#+0;8'.-##+8.)'+I.5%8;+'#%1+,'5%3+'%'
,0<0C%#'+IA+#0+8.+'1"'15%1'+IA+#0+8.+&'4"#'15+')+%#'1"'_X':%#.5'VWXXP

@8'08.#+%,+'"#'&+.#+%,+'"4'X`'08'081+#+,1'#%1+,'%1'15+'#+A"#108;'&%1+'$"-C&'5%3+'08.#+%,+&'"#'&+.#+%,+&'15+'8+1'
%,,+1,'()'15+'%<"-81',5"$8'(+C"$P

(a) (iii) Interest Rate Risk

(a) (iv) Interest Rate Risk - Sensitivity Analysis

Page 151



AVON PENSION FUND ANNUAL REPORT 2010/1146

Statement of Accounts 2010/11

7-.+' AF-$8'%)$%$'2%-(('2(

!(%-2%X5%C-1GF%3455 ^d444 j544%:0( ?544%:0(

D%,5'%8&'D%,5'EQ-03%C+81, GW2GXG'' [ [

!0I+&[B81+#+,1 GGf2Xfd' Shf2hVWT' hf2hVW''

R"%8, [ [ [

R#2-. Z4Veb53% ;ZVeZ34< ZVeZ34%

@'X`'#0,+'08'081+#+,1'#%1+,'$0CC'#+&-.+'15+'4%0#'3%C-+'"4'15+'#+C+3%81'8+1'%,,+1,'%8&'30.+'3+#,%P'D5%8;+,'08'081+#+,1'
#%1+,'&"'8"1'0<A%.1'15+'4%0#'3%C-+'"4'.%,5'(%C%8.+,'(-1'15+)'$0CC'%44+.1'15+'081+#+,1'08."<+'#+.+03+&P'

!"#+0;8'.-##+8.)'#0,>'#+A#+,+81,'15+'#0,>'15%1'15+'4%0#'3%C-+'"4'U8%8.0%C'08,1#-<+81,'$5+8'+IA#+,,+&'08'=1+#C08;2'
15+'!-8&F,'(%,+'.-##+8.)2'$0CC'e-.1-%1+'(+.%-,+'"4'.5%8;+,'08'4"#+0;8'+I.5%8;+'#%1+,P'J5+'!-8&'0,'+IA",+&'1"'
.-##+8.)'#0,>'"8'083+,1<+81,'&+8"<08%1+&'08'%'.-##+8.)'"15+#'15%8'=1+#C08;P'!"#'%'=1+#C08;[(%,+&'083+,1"#2'$5+8'
=1+#C08;'$+%>+8,2'15+'=1+#C08;'3%C-+'"4'4"#+0;8'.-##+8.)'&+8"<08%1+&'083+,1<+81,'#0,+,P'@,'=1+#C08;',1#+8;15+8,2'
15+'=1+#C08;'3%C-+'"4'4"#+0;8'.-##+8.)'&+8"<08%1+&'083+,1<+81,'4%CC,P

J5+'!-8&F,'.-##+81'A"C0.)'0,'8"1'1"'5+&;+'01,'4"#+0;8'.-##+8.)'+IA",-#+'1"'<010;%1+'15+'0<A%.1'"4'<"3+<+81,'08'
4"#+0;8'+I.5%8;+'#%1+,2'+I.+A1'4"#'15+'!-8&'"4'N+&;+'!-8&,P'J5+'!-8&'083+,1,'08'15+'!-8&'"4'N+&;+'!-8&,F'=1+#[
C08;',5%#+'.C%,,+,P'J50,'+44+.103+C)'+C0<08%1+,'.-##+8.)';%08,'%8&'C",,+,'4#"<'15+'083+,1<+81';%08,'%8&'C",,+,P''
J5+'!-8&'0<AC+<+81,'15+'K='/"CC%#'=1+#C08;'5+&;+'4"#'15+'R),1+#'M%1,"8'!-8&'"4'N+&;+'!-8&,P'B1',5"-C&'(+'
8"1+&'15%1'15+'!-8&'$0CC'0<AC+<+81'%.103+'.-##+8.)'5+&;08;'"3+#'15+'.-##+8.)'+IA",-#+'%#0,08;'4#"<'01,'"3+#,+%,'
+Q-01)'A"#14"C0",'4#"<'VWXXYXVP

M5+#+'%8'083+,1<+81'<%8%;+#'.5"",+,'1"'5+&;+'%;%08,1'4"#+0;8'.-##+8.)'<"3+<+81,2'4"#$%#&'4"#+0;8'+I.5%8;+'
."81#%.1,'%#+'-,+&P

J5+'4"CC"$08;'1%(C+,',-<<%#0,+'15+'!-8&F,'+IA",-#+'%1'_X':%#.5'VWXX'1"'15+'K='/"CC%#2'g%A%8+,+'6+8'%8&'E-#"'
S+IA#+,,+&'08'=1+#C08;'3%C-+,T'$50.5'%#+'15+'<%08'.-##+8.)'+IA",-#+,'$01508'15+'A"#14"C0"P''J5+'4%0#'3%C-+'"4'+%.5'
+IA",-#+'0,'(%,+&'"8'15+'lC"">'15#"-;5m'+IA",-#+'"4'15+'A""C+&'4-8&,'%8&'0,'(%,+&'"8'084"#<%10"8'A#"30&+&'()'
15+'083+,1<+81'<%8%;+#,2'+I.+A1'4"#'15+';C"(%C'A#"A+#1)'4-8&,'$5+#+'15+',5%#+'.C%,,'"4'15+'4-8&,'5+C&'5%,'(++8'
-,+&P'J5+'!-8&'"4'N+&;+'!-8&,'%#+'8"1'08.C-&+&'08'150,'%8%C),0,';03+8'15+',5%#+'.C%,,+,'5+C&'%#+'5+&;+&'(%.>'
1"'=1+#C08;P

!(%-2%X5%C-1GF%3455 gI%[#..-1 M+1# `'$

@,,+1,'5+C&'%1'!%0#'j%C-+'ScWWW,T _dX2XW_ VVW2X_X XVh2dWW

!t'D"81#%.1,'ScFWWW,T [f2GdX [_2hG_ W

>'2%A+11'$GL%Mf0#(+1' XZ5eYX3 35Ze@bc 53Zeb44

J5+',+8,010301)'"4'15+'!-8&F,'083+,1<+81,'1"'.5%8;+,'08'4"#+0;8'.-##+8.)'+I.5%8;+'#%1+,'5%,'(++8'%8%C),+&'-,08;'
15+'3"C%10C01)'+IA+#0+8.+&'()'+%.5'.-##+8.)'%;%08,1'=1+#C08;'&-#08;'15+')+%#'1"'_X':%#.5'VWXXP'J5+'3"C%10C01)'&%1%'
5%,'(++8'A#"30&+&'()'gRJ'O+8+U1'="C-10"8,'%8&'0,'(#"%&C)'."8,0,1+81'$015'%'"8+[,1%8&%#&'&+30%10"8'<"3+<+81'08'
15+'.-##+8.)P'J5+'%8%C),0,'%,,-<+,'15%1'%CC'"15+#'3%#0%(C+,'08.C-&08;'081+#+,1'#%1+,'5%3+'%',0<0C%#'+IA+#0+8.+'1"'
15%1'+IA+#0+8.+&'4"#'15+')+%#'1"'_X':%#.5'VWXXP

@',1#+8;15+808;'"4'=1+#C08;'%;%08,1'15+'3%#0"-,'.-##+8.0+,'()'"8+',1%8&%#&[&+30%10"8'S+IA#+,,+&'%,'%'A+#.+81%;+T'
%1'_X':%#.5'VWXX'$"-C&'5%3+'&+.#+%,+&'15+'8+1'%,,+1,'()'15+'%<"-81',5"$8'(+C"$'%8&'30.+'3+#,%\

(a) (vi) Currency Risk - Sensitivity Analysis

(a) (v) Foreign Currency Risk

Page 152



AF-$8'%)$%$'2%-(('2(

!(%-2%X5%C-1GF%3455 &'1G'$2-8'%
AF-$8'

!(('2(%F'.,%-2%
*-)1%7-.+'%

j%5%I2-$,-1,%
['")-2)#$

?%5%I2-$,-1,%
['")-2)#$

S ^d444 ^d444 ^d444

K='/"CC%# XV` _hX2G_V Sa_2daGT' a_2daG'

E-#" f` VXh2adb SVW2_afT' VW2_af'

6+8 Xd` XVh2dWW SVX2aXVT' VX2aXV'

J"1%C ;cYeY4Z<%% cYeY4Z%

D#+&01'#0,>'#+A#+,+81,'15+'#0,>'15%1'15+'."-81+#A%#1)'1"'%'U8%8.0%C'08,1#-<+81'$0CC'4%0C'1"'<++1'%8'"(C0;%10"8'%8&'
.%-,+'15+'!-8&'1"'08.-#'%'U8%8.0%C'C",,P''J50,'0,'"41+8'#+4+##+&'1"'%,'."-81+#A%#1)'#0,>P

J5+'!-8&'0,'+IA",+&'1"'.#+&01'#0,>'15#"-;5'01,'-8&+#C)08;'083+,1<+81,'S08.C-&08;'.%,5'(%C%8.+,T'%8&'15+'
1#%8,%.10"8,'01'-8&+#1%>+,'1"'<%8%;+'01,'083+,1<+81,P'J5+'.%#+4-C',+C+.10"8'%8&'<"801"#08;'"4'."-81+#A%#10+,'
08.C-&08;'(#">+#,2'.-,1"&0%8'%8&'083+,1<+81'<%8%;+#,'<080<0,+,'.#+&01'#0,>'15%1'<%)'"..-#'15"-;5'15+'4%0C-#+'1"'
,+11C+'1#%8,%.10"8,'08'%'10<+C)'<%88+#P'J5+'!-8&F,'."81#%.1-%C'+IA",-#+'1"'.#+&01'#0,>'0,'#+A#+,+81+&'()'15+'8+1'
A%)<+81'"#'#+.+0A1'15%1'#+<%08,'"-1,1%8&08;2'%8&'15+'.",1'"4'#+AC%.08;'15+'A",010"8'08'15+'+3+81'"4'%'."-81+#A%#1)'
&+4%-C1P'O%8>#-A1.)'"#'08,"C3+8.)'"4'15+'.-,1"&0%8'<%)'%44+.1'15+'!-8&F,'%..+,,'1"'01,'%,,+1,P'N"$+3+#2'%CC'%,,+1,'
5+C&'()'15+'.-,1"&0%8'%#+'#08;[4+8.+&'%,'l.C0+81'%,,+1,m'%8&'15+#+4"#+'.%8'8"1'(+'.C%0<+&'()'.#+&01"#,'"4'15+'
.-,1"&0%8P'J5+'!-8&'<%8%;+,'01,'#0,>'()'<"801"#08;'15+'.#+&01'Q-%C01)'%8&'U8%8.0%C'A",010"8'"4'15+'.-,1"&0%8P'J5+'
083+,1<+81'<%8%;+#,F'#+,+%#.5'A#".+,,'4"#',+C+.108;'%8&'<"801"#08;',+.-#010+,'"#'4-8&,'4"#'083+,1<+81'<010;%1+,'
15+'#0,>'"4'4#%-&P

J5+'!-8&F,'("8&'A"#14"C0",'5%3+',0;80U.%81'.#+&01'#0,>'15#"-;5'15+0#'-8&+#C)08;'083+,1<+81,P'J50,'#0,>'0,'<%8%;+&'
15#"-;5'&03+#,0U.%10"8'%.#",,',"3+#+0;8'%8&'."#A"#%1+'+81010+,2'.#+&01'Q-%C01)'%8&'<%1-#01)'"4'("8&,P'J5+'<%#>+1'
A#0.+,'"4'("8&,'08."#A"#%1+'%8'%,,+,,<+81'"4'.#+&01'Q-%C01)'08'15+0#'3%C-%10"8'$50.5'#+e+.1,'15+'A#"(%(0C01)'"4'
&+4%-C1'S15+')0+C&'"4'%'("8&'$0CC'08.C-&+'%'A#+<0-<'15%1'$0CC'."<A+8,%1+'4"#'15+'#0,>'"4'&+4%-C1TP'N"$+3+#2'01',5"-C&'
(+'8"1+&'4#"<'50,1"#0.%C'&%1%'15%1'15+'A#"(%(0C01)'"4'&+4%-C1'"4'083+,1<+81';#%&+'("8&,'0,'hPd`'"3+#'%'1$+81)')+%#'
A+#0"&'S="-#.+\':""&)F,'XfVW[VWXWTP'J50,'<+%8,'15%1'08'%'A"#14"C0"'"4'%'5-8&#+&'083+,1<+81';#%&+'("8&,'5+C&'4"#'
1$+81)')+%#,2',+3+8'$"-C&'5%3+'&+4%-C1+&'()'15+'+8&'"4'15+'A+#0"&P

@8"15+#',"-#.+'"4'.#+&01'#0,>'0,'15+'.%,5'(%C%8.+,'5+C&'1"'<++1'"A+#%10"8%C'#+Q-0#+<+81,'"#'()'15+'<%8%;+#,'%1'
15+0#'&0,.#+10"8P'B81+#8%CC)'5+C&'.%,5'0,'<%8%;+&'"8'15+'!-8&F,'(+5%C4'()'15+'D"-8.0CF,'J#+%,-#)':%8%;+<+81'
J+%<'08'C08+'$015'15+'!-8&F,'J#+%,-#)':%8%;+<+81'?"C0.)'$50.5',+1,'"-1'15+'A+#<011+&'."-81+#A%#10+,'%8&'C0<01,P''
J5+'!-8&'%8&'<%8%;+#,'083+,1',-#AC-,'.%,5'5+C&'$015'15+'.-,1"&0%8'08'&03+#,0U+&'<"8+)'<%#>+1'4-8&,P

J5#"-;5'01,',+.-#010+,'C+8&08;'%.103010+,2'15+'!-8&'0,'+IA",+&'1"'15+'."-81+#A%#1)'#0,>'"4'15+'."CC%1+#%C'A#"30&+&'
()'("##"$+#,'%;%08,1'15+',+.-#010+,'C+81P'J50,'#0,>'0,'<%8%;+&'()'#+,1#0.108;'15+'."CC%1+#%C'A+#<011+&'1"'50;5';#%&+'
,"3+#+0;8'&+(1'%8&'(%,>+1,'"4'C0Q-0&'+Q-010+,P'D%,5'."CC%1+#%C'0,'8"1'A+#<011+&P
!"#+0;8'+I.5%8;+'."81#%.1,'%#+',-(^+.1'1"'.#+&01'#0,>'08'#+C%10"8'1"'15+'."-81+#A%#10+,'"4'15+'."81#%.1,'$50.5'%#+'
A#0<%#0C)'(%8>,P'J5+'<%I0<-<'.#+&01'+IA",-#+'"8'4"#+0;8'.-##+8.)'."81#%.1,'0,'15+'4-CC'%<"-81'"4'15+'."81#%.1-%C'
,+11C+<+81',5"-C&'15+'."-81+#A%#1)'4%0C'1"'<++1'01'"(C0;%10"8,'1"'15+'!-8&'$5+8'01'4%CC,'&-+P

J5+'4%0#'<%#>+1'3%C-+'"4'15+'U8%8.0%C'%,,+1,'#+A#+,+81,'15+'!-8&F,'+IA",-#+'1"'.#+&01'#0,>'08'#+C%10"8'1"'15",+'
%,,+1,'%8&'0,',+1'"-1'(+C"$P'!"#'&+#03%103+'A",010"8,'15+'.#+&01'#0,>'0,'+Q-%C'1"'15+'8+1'<%#>+1'3%C-+'"4'A",0103+'
S%,,+1T'&+#03%103+'A",010"8,P

AVON PENSION FUND ANNUAL REPORT 2010/11 47

Statement of Accounts 2010/11

(b) Credit Risk

Page 153



AVON PENSION FUND ANNUAL REPORT 2010/1148

Statement of Accounts 2010/11

X5%C-1GF%3455

^d444

EQ-010+, X2hGW2aa_

!0I+&[B81+#+,1'n'p-"1+&' '''''''''''''''XGa2afa'

!0I+&[B81+#+,1'n'?""C+& '''''''''''''''Vad2_Vh'

B8&+I[R08>+&''['p-"1+& XGd2_db

!-8&'"4'N+&;+'!-8&, VVV2_df

?#"A+#1) XdV2WGV

D%,5'%,,+1, GW2GXG

/+#03%103+,'!J=E'!-1-#+, Ga_

!"#$%#&'!"#+0;8'EI.5%8;+'5+&;+ [Gf

B83+,1<+81'/+(1"#,YD#+&01"#, '''''''''''''V2bbW'

3eZYbeVY5

J5+'.#+&01'#0,>'$01508'15+'("8&'A"#14"C0",'.%8'(+'%8%C),+&'-,08;',1%8&%#&'08&-,1#)'.#+&01'#%108;,'%8&'15+'%8%C),0,'
%,'%1'_X':%#.5'VWXX'0,',+1'"-1'(+C"$P

A1',)2%!$-.L()(%X564X63455 !!! !! ! ___ __ g>/!RM[

cFWWW cFWWW cFWWW cFWWW ^d444 ^d444

Ki'70C1, Xbf2daX [ [ [ [ [

Ki'B8&+I[R08>+& XGd2_db [ [ [ [ [

L3+#,+%,'7"3+#8<+81'O"8&, _f2bbh __2fhh [ [ [ [

D"#A"#%1+'O"8&, Xh2VVb X_2GXX af2GGh _h2dVa G2a_h Xh2bfG

aW_2V__ ad2add af2GGh _h2dVa G2a_h Xh2bfG

`'"4'!0I+&[B81+#+,1'?"#14"C0", dV` b` f` d` X` _`

J5#"-;5'15+'Ki'70C1'%8&'B8&+I'R08>+&'A"#14"C0",'15+'!-8&'5%,',0;80U.%81'.#+&01'+IA",-#+'1"'15+'Ki'7"3+#8<+81P'
K8#%1+&'("8&,'%#+'("8&,'15%1'%#+'8"1'#%1+&'()'%8)'"4'15+'#%108;'%;+8.0+,Z'1#%&010"8%CC)2'-8#%1+&'("8&,'(+8+U1'
4#"<',+.-#01)'"3+#'15+'%,,+1,'"4'15+'0,,-+#P'

R0Q-0&01)'#0,>'#+A#+,+81,'15+'#0,>'15%1'15+'!-8&'$0CC'8"1'(+'%(C+'1"'<++1'01,'U8%8.0%C'"(C0;%10"8,'%,'15+)'4%CC'&-+P'
@',-(,1%810%C'A"#10"8'"4'15+'!-8&F,'083+,1<+81,'."8,0,1'"4'#+%&0C)'#+%C0,%(C+',+.-#010+,2'08'A%#10.-C%#'+Q-010+,'%8&'
UI+&[08."<+'083+,1<+81,2'+3+8'15"-;5'%',0;80U.%81'A#"A"#10"8'0,'5+C&'08'A""C+&'4-8&,P'N"$+3+#2'15+'<%08'C0%(0C01)'
"4'15+'!-8&'0,'15+'(+8+U1,'A%)%(C+'$50.5'4%CC'&-+'"3+#'%'C"8;'A+#0"&'%8&'15+'083+,1<+81',1#%1+;)'#+e+.1,'15+'
C"8;[1+#<'8%1-#+'"4'15+,+'C0%(0C010+,P'J5+#+4"#+'15+'!-8&'0,'%(C+'1"'<%8%;+'15+'C0Q-0&01)'#0,>'15%1'%#0,+,'4#"<'01,'
083+,1<+81,'08'C+,,'C0Q-0&'%,,+1'.C%,,+,',-.5'%,'A#"A+#1)'%8&'!-8&'"4'N+&;+'!-8&,'$50.5'%#+',-(^+.1'1"'C"8;+#'
#+&+<A10"8'A+#0"&,'%8&'.%8'8"1'(+'."8,0&+#+&'%,'C0Q-0&'%,'15+'"15+#'083+,1<+81,P'J5+'!-8&'<%081%08,'%'.%,5'
(%C%8.+'1"'<++1'$"#>08;'#+Q-0#+<+81,P

J5+'4"CC"$08;'1%(C+'%8%C),+,'15+'!-8&F,'U8%8.0%C'C0%(0C010+,2';#"-A+&'081"'#+C+3%81'<%1-#01)'&%1+,P

A-11L)$8%!9#+$2 P'((%2F-$%53%
C#$2F(

Q1'-2'1%2F-$%53%
C#$2F(

!(%-2%X5%C-1GF%3455 ^d444 ^d444 ^d444

@.."-81,'?%)%(C+ _2_WG'' _2_WG'' [

O+8+U1,'?%)%(C+ _bW' _bW [

j+,1+&'O+8+U1, _2_Xb2WWW' _2_Xb2WWW [

['1)"-2)"'%U$-$G)-.%.)-:).)2)'(%('22.',%81#(( [

B8e"$, Vf2VWW Vf2VWW [

L-1e"$, SVb2dXdT SVb2dXdT [

@cX @cX ?

(c) Liquidity Risk

Page 154



AVON PENSION FUND ANNUAL REPORT 2010/11 49

Statement of Accounts 2010/11

(d) Fair Value Hierarchy

j+,1+&'(+8+U1,'%#+'.%1+;"#0,+&'%,'&-+'$01508'XV'<"815,'(+.%-,+'%8)'08&030&-%C'(+8+U1'."-C&'(+."<+'&-+'08'15%1'
10<+P'B8'#+%C01)'15+,+'(+8+U1,'$0CC'(+."<+'&-+'"3+#'15+'C04+'10<+,'"4'15+'<+<(+#,P'

J5+'!-8&'0,'#+Q-0#+&'1"'.C%,,04)'01,'083+,1<+81,'-,08;'%'4%0#'3%C-+'50+#%#.5)'15%1'#+e+.1,'15+',-(^+.10301)'"4'15+'
08A-1,'-,+&'08'<%>08;'%8'%,,+,,<+81'"4'4%0#'3%C-+P'!%0#'3%C-+'0,'15+'3%C-+'%1'$50.5'15+'083+,1<+81,'."-C&'(+'
#+%C0,+&'$01508'%'#+%,"8%(C+'10<+4#%<+P''J50,'50+#%#.5)'0,'8"1'%'<+%,-#+'"4'083+,1<+81'#0,>'(-1'%'#+e+.10"8'"4'15+'
%(0C01)'1"'3%C-+'15+'083+,1<+81,'%1'4%0#'3%C-+P'J5+'4%0#'3%C-+'50+#%#.5)'5%,'15+'4"CC"$08;'C+3+C,\

]' R+3+C'X'['+%,)'1"'A#0.+',+.-#010+,Z'15+#+'0,'%'C0Q-0&'<%#>+1'4"#'15+,+',+.-#010+,P
]' R+3+C'V'['<"&+#%1+C)'&04U.-C1'1"'A#0.+Z'C0<01+&'30,0(C+'<%#>+1'A%#%<+1+#,'1"'-,+'08'15+'3%C-%10"8'+P;P'-,+'08A-1,'

&+#03+&'4#"<'"(,+#3%(C+'<%#>+1'&%1%P
]' R+3+C'_'['&04U.-C1'1"'A#0.+Z'&04U.-C1'1"'3+#04)'15+'A%#%<+1+#,'-,+&'08'3%C-%10"8'+P;P'-,+'084"#<%10"8'8"1'%3%0C%(C+'

08'15+'<%#>+1P

J5+'C+3+C'08'15+'4%0#'3%C-+'50+#%#.5)'$0CC'(+'&+1+#<08+&'()'15+'C"$+,1'C+3+C'"4'08A-1'15%1'0,'%AA#"A#0%1+'4"#'15+'
083+,1<+81P''J50,'0,'A%#10.-C%#C)'#+C+3%81'4"#'A""C+&'4-8&,'$5+#+2'4"#'150,'+I+#.0,+2'15+'4-8&'0,'.C%,,0U+&'%,'%',08;C+'
083+,1<+81P

J5+'.C%,,0U.%10"8'"4'U8%8.0%C'08,1#-<+81,'08'15+'4%0#'3%C-+'50+#%#.5)'0,',-(^+.103+'(-1'15+'!-8&'5%,'%AAC0+&'15+'
,%<+'.#01+#0%'."8,0,1+81C)'%.#",,'01,'083+,1<+81,P''J5+'U8%8.0%C'08,1#-<+81,'#+A"#1+&'%1'4%0#'3%C-+'%#+'.C%,,0U+&'08'
%.."#&%8.+'$015'15+'4"CC"$08;'C+3+C,\

P'"'.%5%)$0+2('['p-"1+&'A#0.+,'S-8%&^-,1+&T'08'%.103+2'C0Q-0&'<%#>+1,'4"#'%8'0&+810.%C'08,1#-<+81P''J5+,+'08.C-&+'
%.103+'C0,1+&'+Q-010+,2'+I.5%8;+'1#%&+&'&+#03%103+,2';"3+#8<+81'("8&,P''@'U8%8.0%C'08,1#-<+81'0,'#+;%#&+&'%,'
Q-"1+&'08'%8'%.103+'<%#>+1'04'Q-"1+&'A#0.+,'%#+'#+%&0C)'%8&'#+;-C%#C)'%3%0C%(C+'4#"<'%8'+I.5%8;+2'&+%C+#2'(#">+#2'
A#0.08;',+#30.+'"#'#+;-C%1"#)'%;+8.)'%8&'15",+'A#0.+,'#+A#+,+81'#+;-C%#C)'"..-##08;'<%#>+1'1#%8,%.10"8,P

J5+#+4"#+'08'15+'%8%C),0,'(+C"$2'R+3+C'X'08.C-&+,'Q-"1+&'+Q-010+,'%8&';"3+#8<+81'("8&,2'$50.5'%#+'C0Q-0&'%8&'
#+%&0C)'#+%C0,%(C+'083+,1<+81,'(-1'+I.C-&+,'A""C+&'4-8&,'15%1'083+,1'08'15+,+',+.-#010+,P

P'"'.%3%)$0+2('['j%C-%10"8'1+.580Q-+,'-,+&'1"'A#0.+',+.-#010+,'%#+'(%,+&'"8'"(,+#3%(C+'08A-1,P'J50,'08.C-&+,'
08,1#-<+81,'3%C-+&'-,08;'Q-"1+&'<%#>+1'A#0.+,'4"#',0<0C%#'08,1#-<+81,2'Q-"1+&'A#0.+,'4"#',0<0C%#'08,1#-<+81,'08'
<%#>+1,'15%1'%#+'C+,,'%.103+2'"#'"15+#'3%C-%10"8'1+.580Q-+,'$5+#+'%CC',0;80U.%81'08A-1,'%#+'"(,+#3%(C+'4#"<'<%#>+1'
&%1%P

J5+#+4"#+'08'15+'%8%C),0,'(+C"$2'R+3+C'V'08.C-&+,'A""C+&'4-8&,'$5+#+'15+'8+1'%,,+1'3%C-+'"4'15+'A""C+&'4-8&'0,'
&+#03+&'4#"<'"(,+#3%(C+'A#0.+,'"4'15+'-8&+#C)08;',+.-#010+,P''J5+'!-8&F,'5"C&08;'08'15+,+'A""C+&'4-8&,'.%8'(+'
#+%C0,+&'%1'8+1'%,,+1'3%C-+P

P'"'.%X%)$0+2(%['j%C-%10"8'1+.580Q-+,'-,08;',0;80U.%81'-8"(,+#3%(C+'08A-1,'4"#'15+'3%C-%10"8'"4'U8%8.0%C'
08,1#-<+81,'%8&'$5+#+'15+#+'0,'C011C+'<%#>+1'%.10301)P'J5+,+'08A-1,'#+Q-0#+'<%8%;+<+81'^-&;+<+81'"#'+,10<%10"8'
%8&'08.C-&+'U8%8.0%C'08,1#-<+81,'15%1'%#+'3%C-+&'(%,+&'"8'-8"(,+#3%(C+'%&^-,1<+81,'"#'%,,-<A10"8,'1"'#+e+.1'
&044+#+8.+,'(+1$++8'08,1#-<+81,'4"#'$50.5'15+#+'0,'8"'%.103+'<%#>+1P

J5+#+4"#+'08'15+'%8%C),0,'(+C"$2'R+3+C'_'08.C-&+,'A""C+&'4-8&,',-.5'%,'15+'A#"A+#1)'4-8&,'%8&'!-8&'"4'N+&;+'
!-8&,'$5+#+'15+'8+1'%,,+1'3%C-+'0,'&+#03+&'4#"<'-8"(,+#3%(C+'08A-1,P'B8'%&&010"82'15+'!-8&F,'5"C&08;'08'15+,+'
A""C+&'4-8&,'0,'8"1'0<<+&0%1+C)'#+%C0,%(C+'%1'15+'8+1'%,,+1'3%C-+P

Page 155



AVON PENSION FUND ANNUAL REPORT 2010/1150

Statement of Accounts 2010/11

J5+'4"CC"$08;',+1,'"-1'15+'!-8&F,'U8%8.0%C'%,,+1,'%8&'C0%(0C010+,'S()'.C%,,T'<+%,-#+&'%1'4%0#'3%C-+'%.."#&08;'1"'15+'
4%0#'3%C-+'50+#%#.5)'%1'_X':%#.5'VWXXP

P'"'.%5% P'"'.%3% P'"'.%X% R#2-.%

^d444 ^d444 ^d444 ^d444

Ki'EQ-010+,'['p-"1+& Vad2G_f Vad2G_f

!0I+&[B81+#+,1'['p-"1+& _XX2bdV _XX2bdV

?""C+&'B83+,1<+81'j+50.C+, X2hGW2dd_ X2hGW2dd_

!-8&'"4'N+&;+'!-8&, VVV2_df VVV2_df

?#"A+#1) XdV2WGV XdV2WGV

D%,5 GW2GXG GW2GXG

B83+,1<+81'/+(1"#,'YD#+&01"#, V2bVX V2bVX

Z53eb@b 5eZY4ebbX XV@e@X5 3eZYbeVY5

@,'%1'_X':%#.5'VWXX'15+'4"CC"$08;'+<AC")08;'("&0+,'5%&'."81#0(-108;',.5+<+'<+<(+#,'08'15+'@3"8'?+8,0"8'
!-8&\

IGF',+.',%_#,)'(

&1)$G)0-.%A#+$G).(%-$,%I'1")G'%&1#"),'1(%

@3"8'!0#+'O#0;%&+'

O%15'9'H"#15'E%,1'="<+#,+1'D"-8.0C''

O#0,1"C'D01)'D"-8.0C''

H"#15'="<+#,+1'D"-8.0C''

="-15'7C"-.+,1+#,50#+'D"-8.0C''

M,+G-2)#$%M(2-:.)(F9'$2(

O%15'=A%'K803+#,01)'D"CC+;+' L%,0,'@.%&+<)'O#0,1"C

O#0,1"C'D%15+&#%C'D5"0#'=.5""C LC&U+C&'=.5""C'@.%&+<)'J#-,1

D%("1'R+%#808;'!+&+#%10"8 :0&,"<+#'H"#1"8'=.5""C'?%#18+#,50A'

D01)'@.%&+<)'O#0,1"C'' H"#1"8'*%&,1".>'D"CC+;+'

D01)'"4'O%15'D"CC+;+'' =1P'O#+8&%8v,'D"CC+;+'

D01)'"4'O#0,1"C'D"CC+;+'' J5+'*0&08;,'!+&+#%10"8'M081+#("-#8+

D"C,1"8'70#CF,'=.5""C'@.%&+<) J5+'*0&08;,'!+&+#%10"8'6%1+

!0C1"8'D"CC+;+ K803+#,01)'"4'15+'M+,1'"4'E8;C%8&

:+#.5%81F,'@.%&+<) M+,1"8'D"CC+;+'

L%,0,'@.%&+<)'O#0;51,1"$+

['()8$-2)$8%_#,)'(%

O%15'J"-#0,<'?C-, H%0C,+%'J"$8'D"-8.0C'

O%.>$+CC'?%#0,5'D"-8.0C' H"#1"8'*%&,1".>'J"$8'D"-8.0C''

O#%&C+)'=1">+'J"$8'D"-8.0C' LC&C%8&'?%#0,5'D"-8.0C''

D5%#1+#'J#-,1++,'"4'15+'D01)'"4'O%15' ?%1.5$%)'J"$8'D"-8.0C'''

DC+3+&"8'J"$8'D"-8.0C ?%-C1"8'?%#0,5'D"-8.0C''

/+,108%10"8'O#0,1"C ?+%,+&"$8'=1'g"58'?%#0,5'D"-8.0C

/"&08;1"8'?%#0,5'D"-8.0C' ?"#10,5+%&'9'H"#15'M+,1"8'J"$8'D"-8.0C'''

/"$8+8&'9'O#"<C+)'N+%15'?%#0,5'D"-8.0C' =%C14"#&'?%#0,5'D"-8.0C

24. Employing Bodies

Page 156



AVON PENSION FUND ANNUAL REPORT 2010/11 51

The Statement of Responsibilities for the Avon Pension Fund

E%,1"8'08'7"#&%8"'?%#0,5'D"-8.0C =1">+'7044"#&'?%#0,5'D"-8.0C''

!0C1"8'J"$8'D"-8.0C' J5"#8(-#)'J"$8'D"-8.0C''

!#%<A1"8'D"11+#+CC'?%#0,5'D"-8.0C' M+,1+#C+0;5'?%#0,5'D"-8.0C'

N%85%<'?%#0,5'D"-8.0C M+,1"8'=-A+#':%#+'J"$8'D"-8.0C'

N%85%<'@(("1,'?%#0,5'D"-8.0C' M501.5-#.5'?%#0,5'D"-8.0C'

i+)8,5%<'J"$8'D"-8.0C' M081+#("-#8+'?%#0,5'D"-8.0C'

R"8;'@,51"8'?%#0,5'D"-8.0C' 6%11"8'?%#0,5'D"-8.0C

:%8;"1,U+C&'?%#0,5'D"-8.0C 6%1+'J"$8'D"-8.0C

!,9)(()#$%_#,)'(%

@.103+'D"<<-801)'E8;%;+<+81'R1& :"-.5+C'O-,08+,,'=#30.+,'R1&'SH%0C,+%'BJTx

@;0C0,), H"#15;%1+'B84"#<%10"8'="C-10"8,'x

@;08.%#+'R1&P'x H"#15;%1+'D"C,1"8'70#C,'=.5""C'BJ

@Q-%1+##%'R+0,-#+ H"#15'="<+#,+1'N"-,08;

@#%<%#>'R1&''x L44'J5+'*+."#&'O%15'9'H#15'E%,1'="<+#,+1''

@,5C+)'N"-,+'N",1+C' ?#",A+.1'=+#30.+,'R1&'x

O@:'D"8,1#-.1'Ki'R1&'SN+8(-#)'=.5""CT'x p-%&#"8'=+#30.+,x

O%15'9HE'="<+#,+1'*%.0%C'EQ-%C01)'D"-8.0C *:'/%1%'="C-10"8,

O+,A">+'DC+%808;'=+#30.+,'R1&'x =5%$'N+%C15.%#+'SH"#15'="<+#,+1T'R1&x'

J5+'D%#+'p-%C01)'D"<<0,,0"8' =BJ@'N"C&08;,'Ki'R1&P'x

D+81#+'!"#'/+%4'?+"AC+'' =>%8,>%'SD%("1'R+%#808;'!+&+#%10"8Tx

D5-#.50CC'D"81#%.1'=+#30.+, =>%8,>%'*%,5C+0;5'M+,1+#4"0C''x

D5-#.50CC'J+%<'DC+%8 =R:'D"<<-801)'R+0,-#+'x

DC041"8'=-,A+8,0"8'O#0&;+'J#-,1'' =R:'!018+,,'%8&'N+%C15'x

E&+8''!""&''=+#30.+,'x' ="&+I"'R1&

E8;C0,5'R%8&,.%A+,x ="<+#'D"<<-801)'N"-,08;'J#-,1''

N"C(-#8+':-,+-<'"4'@#1'' ="<+#'N"-,08;'7#"-A'R1&P'

B==':+&0.C+%8'SO#0,1"CTx ="-15'7C"-.+,1+#,50#+'R+0,-#+'J#-,1'x'

B==':+&0.C+%8'D%("1'R+%#808;'!+&+#%10"8x ="-15+#8'O#"">,'D"<<-801)'A%#18+#,50A''

i+0#'!%.0C010+,'=+#30.+, ="-15$+,1'7#0&'4"#'R+%#808;'J#-,1

R0(+#%1%'Ki'R0<01+&' J5+'O#%8&"8'J#-,1''x

R+%#808;'?%#18+#,50A'M+,1'R1& K803+#,01)'"4'O%15'

:+#C08'N"-,08;'=".0+1)'R1& M+,1'"4'E8;C%8&'=A"#1,'J#-,1

:+#C08'N"-,08;'=".0+1)'S=7T M""&,A#08;'@,,".0%10"8'4"#'OC08&'?+"AC+''

:"-.5+C'x 6+,'/0808;'R1&'x

:"-.5+C'O-,08+,,'=+#30.+,'x

xJ#%8,4+#++'@&<0,,0"8'O"&)\'@'("&)'15%1'A#"30&+,2'()'<+%8,'"4'."81#%.12'%',+#30.+'08'%'."88+.10"8'$015'15+'
+I+#.0,+'"4'%'4-8.10"8'"4'%',.5+<+'+<AC")+#P

Page 157



AVON PENSION FUND ANNUAL REPORT 2010/1152

The Statement of Responsibilities for the Avon Pension Fund

J5+'D"-8.0C'0,'#+Q-0#+&'1"\

]' :%>+' %##%8;+<+81,' 4"#' 15+'
A#"A+#' %&<080,1#%10"8' "4' 15+'
U8%8.0%C' %44%0#,' "4' 15+' @3"8'
?+8,0"8' !-8&' %8&' 1"' ,+.-#+'
15%1' "8+' "4' 01,' "4U.+#,' 5%,'
15+' #+,A"8,0(0C01)' 4"#' 15+'
%&<080,1#%10"8' "4' 15",+' %44%0#,P'
J5+' D"-8.0C' 5%,' <%&+' 15+'
/030,0"8%C' /0#+.1"#' "4' !08%8.+'
#+,A"8,0(C+' 4"#' U8%8.0%C'
%&<080,1#%10"8P

]' :%8%;+' 01,' %44%0#,' 1"' ,+.-#+'
+."8"<0.2'+4U.0+81'%8&'+44+.103+'
-,+'"4'#+,"-#.+,'%8&',%4+;-%#&'
01,'%,,+1,P

]' @AA#"3+' 15+' ,1%1+<+81' "4'
%.."-81,'4"#'15+')+%#

J5+' /030,0"8%C' /0#+.1"#' "4' !08%8.+'
0,'#+,A"8,0(C+'4"#'15+'A#+A%#%10"8'"4''
15+'@3"8'?+8,0"8'!-8&F,'=1%1+<+81'
"4' @.."-81,' 08' %.."#&%8.+' $015'
A#"A+#' A#%.10.+,' %,' ,+1' "-1' 08' 15+'
DB?!@YR@=@@D' D"&+' "4' ?#%.10.+'
"8'R".%C'@-15"#01)'@.."-8108;'08'15+'
K801+&'i08;&"<P

B8' A#+A%#08;' 150,' =1%1+<+81' "4'
@.."-81,2' 15+'/030,0"8%C'/0#+.1"#'"4'
!08%8.+'5%,\

]' ,+C+.1+&' ,-01%(C+' %.."-8108;'
A"C0.0+,' %8&' 15+8' %AAC0+&' 15+<'
."8,0,1+81C)Z

]' <%&+' ^-&;+<+81,' $50.5' $+#+'
#+%,"8%(C+'%8&'A#-&+81Z

]' ."<AC0+&' $015' 15+' D"&+' "4'
?#%.10.+P

J5+' /030,0"8%C' /0#+.1"#' "4' !08%8.+'
5%,'%C,"\

]' i+A1' A#"A+#' %8&' -A[1"[&%1+'
%.."-8108;'#+."#&,Z

]' J%>+8' #+%,"8%(C+' ,1+A,' 4"#' 15+'
A#+3+810"8' %8&' &+1+.10"8' "4'
4#%-&'%8&'"15+#'0##+;-C%#010+,P'

B' 5+#+()' .+#104)' 15%1' 150,' ,1%1+<+81'
"4' %.."-81,' A#+,+81,' %' 1#-+' %8&'
4%0#' 30+$' "4' 15+' U8%8.0%C' A",010"8'
"4' 15+' @3"8' ?+8,0"8' !-8&' %1' 15+'
%.."-8108;'&%1+'%8&'15+'08."<+'%8&'
+IA+8&01-#+' 4"#' 15+' )+%#' +8&+&' _X'
:%#.5'VWXXP

9/5)-/(F$&*
/030,0"8%C'/0#+.1"#'"4'!08%8.+
S=XGX'L4U.+#T
=+A1+<(+#'VWXX

J5+'%-&01"#,'"4'C".%C'%-15"#010+,'%#+'
%AA"081+&'()'15+'@-&01'D"<<0,,0"8'
-8&+#' ,+.10"8' V' "4' 15+' @-&01'
D"<<0,,0"8' @.1' Xffb' 1"' %-&01' 15+'
%.."-81,' "4' %' C".%C' %-15"#01)' %,' %'
$5"C+2'08.C-&08;'15+'%.."-81,'"4'15+'
C".%C'%-15"#01)F,'A+8,0"8'4-8&P

J5+' %-&01' "A080"8' "8' 15+' @3"8'
?+8,0"8'!-8&'A#"30&+&'()'15+'@-&01'
D"<<0,,0"8'.%8'(+' 4"-8&'"8'A%;+'
G_P'

Sukhothai, Thailand

©
istockphoto.com

/credit

Bath & North East Somerset 
Council’s responsibilities

The Statement of 
Responsibilities for 
the Avon Pension 
Fund Account

Divisional Director of Finance 
responsibilities

Statement of the Divisional 
Director of Finance

Audit Opinion on the Accounts of  
the Avon Pension Fund

Page 158



B' 5%3+' %-&01+&' 15+' A+8,0"8' 4-8&'
%.."-8108;' ,1%1+<+81,' 4"#' 15+' )+%#'
+8&+&' _X' :%#.5' VWXX' -8&+#' 15+'
@-&01' D"<<0,,0"8' @.1' XffbP' J5+'
A+8,0"8'4-8&'%.."-8108;',1%1+<+81,'
."<A#0,+'15+'!-8&'@.."-812'15+'H+1'
@,,+1,' =1%1+<+81' %8&' 15+' #+C%1+&'
8"1+,P'J5+,+'%.."-8108;',1%1+<+81,'
5%3+' (++8' A#+A%#+&' -8&+#' 15+'
%.."-8108;' A"C0.0+,' ,+1' "-1' 08' 15+'
=1%1+<+81'"4'@.."-8108;'?"C0.0+,P

J50,' #+A"#1' 0,' <%&+' ,"C+C)' 1"' 15+'
<+<(+#,' "4' O%15' %8&' H"#15' E%,1'
="<+#,+1' D"-8.0C' 08' %.."#&%8.+'
$015'?%#1'BB'"4'15+'@-&01'D"<<0,,0"8'
@.1'Xffb'%8&'4"#'8"'"15+#'A-#A",+2'
%,' ,+1' "-1' 08' A%#%;#%A5' ab' "4' 15+'
=1%1+<+81' "4' *+,A"8,0(0C010+,' "4'
@-&01"#,' %8&' "4' @-&01+&' O"&0+,'

A-(C0,5+&'()' 15+'@-&01'D"<<0,,0"8'
08':%#.5'VWXWP

@,' +IAC%08+&' <"#+' 4-CC)' 08' 15+'
=1%1+<+81' "4' *+,A"8,0(0C010+,' 4"#'
15+'@.."-81,2'15+'/030,0"8%C'/0#+.1"#'
!08%8.+' 0,' #+,A"8,0(C+' 4"#' 15+'
A#+A%#%10"8' "4' 15+' A+8,0"8' 4-8&F,'
=1%1+<+81'"4'@.."-81,'08'%.."#&%8.+'
$015'A#"A+#'A#%.10.+,'%,',+1'"-1'08'15+'
DB?!@YR@=@@D' D"&+' "4' ?#%.10.+'
"8'R".%C'@-15"#01)'@.."-8108;'08'15+'
K801+&'i08;&"<P':)'#+,A"8,0(0C01)'0,'
1"' %-&01' 15+' %.."-8108;' ,1%1+<+81,'
08' %.."#&%8.+' $015' %AAC0.%(C+' C%$'
%8&' B81+#8%10"8%C' =1%8&%#&,' "8'
@-&0108;' SKi' %8&' B#+C%8&TP' J5",+'
,1%8&%#&,' #+Q-0#+' <+' 1"' ."<AC)'
$015' 15+'@-&0108;' ?#%.10.+,' O"%#&F,'
E150.%C'=1%8&%#&,'4"#'@-&01"#,P

@8'%-&01'083"C3+,'"(1%0808;'+30&+8.+'
%("-1' 15+'%<"-81,'%8&'&0,.C",-#+,'
08' 15+' %.."-8108;' ,1%1+<+81,'

,-4U.0+81' 1"' ;03+' #+%,"8%(C+'
%,,-#%8.+' 15%1' 15+' %.."-8108;'
,1%1+<+81,' %#+' 4#++' 4#"<' <%1+#0%C'
<0,,1%1+<+812' $5+15+#' .%-,+&'
()' 4#%-&' "#' +##"#P' J50,' 08.C-&+,'
%8' %,,+,,<+81' "4\' $5+15+#' 15+'
%.."-8108;' A"C0.0+,' %#+' %AA#"A#0%1+'
1"' 15+' 4-8&F,' .0#.-<,1%8.+,' %8&'
5%3+' (++8' ."8,0,1+81C)' %AAC0+&'
%8&' %&+Q-%1+C)' &0,.C",+&Z' 15+'
#+%,"8%(C+8+,,' "4' ,0;80U.%81'
%.."-8108;' +,10<%1+,' <%&+' ()' 15+'
4-8&Z'%8&'15+'"3+#%CC'A#+,+81%10"8'"4'
15+'%.."-8108;',1%1+<+81,P'B'#+%&'%CC'
15+' 084"#<%10"8' 08' 15+'%88-%C'#+A"#1'
1"' 0&+8104)' <%1+#0%C' 08."8,0,1+8.0+,'
$015' 15+' %-&01+&' %.."-8108;'
,1%1+<+81,P'B4'B'(+."<+'%$%#+'"4'%8)'
%AA%#+81' <%1+#0%C' <0,,1%1+<+81,'
"#' 08."8,0,1+8.0+,' B' ."8,0&+#' 15+'
0<AC0.%10"8,'4"#'<)'#+A"#1P

B8' <)' "A080"8' 15+' A+8,0"8' 4-8&F,'
%.."-8108;',1%1+<+81,\

]' ;03+'%' 1#-+'%8&' 4%0#' 30+$'"4' 15+'
U8%8.0%C' 1#%8,%.10"8,' "4' 15+'
A+8,0"8' 4-8&' &-#08;' 15+' )+%#'
+8&+&' _X' :%#.5' VWXX' %8&' 15+'

The Sydney Opera House, Australia

©
istockphoto.com

/credit
AVON PENSION FUND ANNUAL REPORT 2010/11 53

Auditors Report 

Independent auditor’s 
report to the Members 
of Bath & North East 
Somerset Council

Opinion on the pension fund 
accounting statements

Auditors Report

Respective responsibilities of the 
Divisional Director of Finance 
and Auditor

Scope of the audit of the 
"nancial statements

Opinion on accounting 
statements

Page 159



AVON PENSION FUND ANNUAL REPORT 2010/1154

Auditors Report

%<"-81' %8&' &0,A",010"8' "4' 15+'
4-8&F,'%,,+1,'%8&'C0%(0C010+,'%,'%1'
_X':%#.5'VWXXZ'%8&

]' 5%3+' (++8' A#"A+#C)' A#+A%#+&'
08' %.."#&%8.+' $015' 15+' DB?!@Y
R@=@@D' D"&+' "4' ?#%.10.+' "8'
R".%C' @-15"#01)' @.."-8108;' 08'
15+'K801+&'i08;&"<P

B8' <)' "A080"82' 15+' 084"#<%10"8'
;03+8' 08' 15+' %88-%C' #+A"#1' 4"#'
15+' U8%8.0%C' )+%#' 4"#' $50.5' 15+'
%.."-8108;',1%1+<+81,'%#+'A#+A%#+&'
0,' ."8,0,1+81' $015' 15+' %.."-8108;'
,1%1+<+81,P

B'5%3+'8"1508;'1"'#+A"#1'08'#+,A+.1'"4'
15+';"3+#8%8.+',1%1+<+81'"8'$50.5'
B' #+A"#1' 1"')"-' 042' 08'<)'"A080"8' 15+'
;"3+#8%8.+' ,1%1+<+81' &"+,' 8"1'
#+e+.1' ."<AC0%8.+' $015' 15+' R".%C'
7"3+#8<+81' ?+8,0"8' =.5+<+'
S@&<080,1#%10"8T' *+;-C%10"8,' VWWb'
%8&'#+C%1+&';-0&%8.+P

D-L$'%/)GE-1,

/0,1#0.1'@-&01"#

@-&01'D"<<0,,0"8
_['a'OC+85+0<'D"-#1
:%14"#&'O-,08+,,'?%#>
R-,1C+0;5'DC",+
EI+1+#
EtV'b?M

_W'=+A1+<(+#'VWXX

Matters on which I report by 
exception

Opinion on other matters

Machu Picchu, Peru

©
istockphoto.com

/credit

Page 160



`'-1%M$,',%X5%C-1GF 344b 344c 344V 3454 3455

/'"'$+'%!GG#+$2 ^d9 ^d9 ^d9 ^d9 ^d9

B$G#9'

H+1'D"81#0(-10"8, XWGPX XXVPa XVGP_ X_aPd X_fPG

B83+,1<+81'B8."<+ aaPV _VPh XfPf XhPW VVPh

H+1'D%,5'J#%8,4+# GPd GPG aPb WP_ WPG

5YYO4 5Y4OY 5Y4O4 5Y5O4 5Z3OZ

Mf0'$,)2+1'

?+8,0"8'9'O+8+U1, bbPX fGPW XWGPV XXGPX XVXPd

B83+,1<+81':%8%;+<+81'EIA+8,+, aP_ aPb GPW hPf dPV

@&<080,1#%10"8'D",1, XPb XPb VPW XPf VPX

V@O3 545OZ 553O3 53XOV 5X5O4

=-#AC-,'4"#'15+'6+%# hWPb abPf _dPb VdPX _XPh

*+3%C-%10"8'"4'B83+,1<+81, dfPd SGGPWT S_fhPaT hXVPa XddPf

D5%8;+'08'!-8&'j%C-+ 5@4OY ;ZO5< ;XYcOZ< ZXVOY 34VOY

J"1%C'!-8&'j%C-+ 3e5cXOc 3e5bbOb 5ec5VO5 3e@YcOZ 3eZZcO5

Statue of liberty, New York, United States of America

©
istockphoto.com

/credit

Five Year Summary 
of Financial 
Statistics

AVON PENSION FUND ANNUAL REPORT 2010/11 55

Five Year Summary of Financial Statistics

Page 161



AVON PENSION FUND ANNUAL REPORT 2010/1156

Pension Increase

B8.#+%,+,' 08' A+8,0"8,' S+I.C-&08;'
15+' =1%1+' 7-%#%81++&' :080<-<'
?+8,0"8T' %#+' 8"$' (%,+&' "8'
15+' .5%8;+' 08' 15+' A-(C0,5+&'
D"8,-<+#' ?#0.+' B8&+I' SD?BT' 4"#'
15+' XV' <"815,' 1"' _W' =+A1+<(+#'
"4'15+'A#+30"-,')+%#P'?#0"#'1"'@A#0C'
VWXX2' %8)' 08.#+%,+,' $+#+' (%,+&'
"8' 15+' .5%8;+' 1"' 15+' A-(C0,5+&'
*+1%0C'?#0.+'B8&+I'S*?BTP'?+8,0"8,'
%$%#&+&'%41+#'15+'&%1+'"4'15+'C%,1'
08.#+%,+' #+.+03+' %8' %AA"#10"8+&'
08.#+%,+' #+C%1+&' 1"' 15+' &%1+' 15+'
A+8,0"8'(+;%8P

@CC' A+8,0"8,' %#+' ,-(^+.1' 1"' 15+'
08.#+%,+' $015' 15+' +I.+A10"8' "4'
15",+' A+8,0"8,' %$%#&+&' 4"#' 8"8'
0CC[5+%C15' #+10#+<+81,' $5+#+' 15+'
#+.0A0+81' 0,' -8&+#' 15+' %;+' "4' GG'
)+%#,P'J5+,+'A+8,0"8,'%#+',-(^+.1'
1"' 15+' %..#-+&' 08.#+%,+' #%1+'
A%)%(C+' 4#"<' 15+' #+.0A0+81F,' GG15'
(0#15&%)P'

J%(C+'@',5"$,'15+'#%1+'"4'08.#+%,+,'
15%1' 5%3+' %AAC0+&' &-#08;' 15+' C%,1'
1+8')+%#,P

J5+' !-8&' 0,' #+,A"8,0(C+' 4"#'
08.#+%,+,' 08' 15+' =1%1+' 7-%#%81++&'
:080<-<' ?+8,0"8' %..#-+&' ,08.+'
@A#0C'Xfbb'-A'1"'%'<%I0<-<'"4'_`'
A+#'%88-<'S"#'15+'#%1+'"4'08e%10"8'04'
C+,,TP'@8)'08.#+%,+'%("3+'_`'0,'15+'
#+,A"8,0(0C01)'"4'15+'=1%1+P'

J5+' 08.#+%,+,' ,5"$8' %("3+' %C,"'
%AAC)'1"'&+4+##+&'A+8,0"8,P

Pension Increase

`'-1%_'8)$)$8%!01). /-2'%#J%B$G1'-('%S

VWWV XPd

VWW_ XPd

VWWa VPb

VWWG _PX

VWWh VPd

VWWd _Ph

VWWb _Pf

VWWf GPW

VWXW WPW

VWXX _PX

Yosemite National Park, California, United States of America

©
istockphoto.com

/credit

Page 162



Nara, Japan 

©
istockphoto.com

/credit

Contact Names

!"#' 4-#15+#' 084"#<%10"8' "8' 0,,-+,'
#+C%108;' 1"' 15+' !-8&F,' B83+,1<+81,'
%8&'15+'@.."-81,'AC+%,+'."81%.1\

C-12)$%&F)..)0(
?+8,0"8'!-8&'@.."-81%81

P)k%*')$(2')$
B83+,1<+81,':%8%;+#

B4' )"-' 5%3+' %8)' Q-+#0+,' "8' 15+'
(+8+U1,' "#' %&<080,1#%10"8' "4' 15+'
@3"8'?+8,0"8'!-8&'AC+%,+'."81%.1\

I2'"'%CGC)..-$
?+8,0"8,':%8%;+#

L#')"-'.%8'$#01+'1"'-,'%1\

!"#$%&'$()#$%*+$,
*.##1%X%I#+2F
/)"'1(),'e%R'90.'%I21''2e
T'L$(F-9e
_IX5%5P!

R'.=%%%4533Y%@bb444%
*-f=%%4533Y%XVY3Yc

@C1+#8%103+C)2'+<%0C'-,'%1'
*=#0V/-0'&#0W1*.)0-'@,#=@:J

!-#15+#';+8+#%C'084"#<%10"8'
#+;%#&08;'15+'@3"8'?+8,0"8'!-8&'
.%8'(+'4"-8&'%1\'
EEE@*=#0/-0'&#03:0%@#+,@:J

AVON PENSION FUND ANNUAL REPORT 2010/11 57

Contact Names

Page 163



AVON PENSION FUND ANNUAL REPORT 2010/1158

Appendix

@3"8'?+8,0"8'!-8&'0,'A%#1'"4'15+'R".%C'7"3+#8<+81'
?+8,0"8' =.5+<+' SR7?=T' $50.5' 0,' %&<080,1+#+&' 08'
%.."#&%8.+' $015' 15+' R7?=' *+;-C%10"8,' $50.5' %#+'
=1%1-1"#)'B8,1#-<+81,'%AA#"3+&'()'?%#C0%<+81P

J5+'(+8+401,'"4'D"-8.0CC"#':+<(+#,'."<+'-8&+#'15+'
R7?='*+;-C%10"8,'Xffd'S%,'%<+8&+&TP

J5+'(+8+401,'"4'%CC'"15+#'%.103+'<+<(+#,'."<+'-8&+#'
15+'8+$'R7?='*+;-C%10"8,2'$50.5'<%08C)'.%<+'081"'
+44+.1'"8'X'@A#0C'VWWbP'J5+,+'%#+\'
]' R7?=' SO+8+401,2' :+<(+#,50A' 9' D"81#0(-10"8,T'

*+;-C%10"8,'VWWd
]' R7?='S@&<080,1#%10"8T'*+;-C%10"8,'VWWb
]' R7?='SJ#%8,010"8%C'?#"30,0"8,T'*+;-C%10"8,'VWWb

J5+'R7?='*+;-C%10"8,' .%8'(+' 30+$+&'"8C08+'5+#+\'
)../PXX.&8-2&0-@2,-@,#=@:JX

J5+'#+;-C%10"8,',A+.04)'15+'A+8,0"8'%8&'"15+#'(+8+401,'
A%)%(C+' %8&' 40I' 15+' #%1+' "4' <+<(+#' ."81#0(-10"8,P'
E<AC")+#'."81#0(-10"8,'%#+',+1'+3+#)'15#++')+%#,'()'
15+'%.1-%#0%C'3%C-%10"8P

J5+'@3"8'?+8,0"8'!-8&'."3+#,'15+'"C&'@3"8'D"-81)'
D"-8.0C' %#+%' %8&' "8' #+"#;%80,%10"8' 08' Xffh2' O%15'
9' H"#15' E%,1' ="<+#,+1' D"-8.0C' $+#+' ,+C+.1+&' 1"'
%&<080,1+#'15+'!-8&'"8'(+5%C4'"4'%CC'15+'A%#10.0A%108;'
+<AC")+#,P

J5+'@3"8'?+8,0"8'!-8&'D"<<011++2' %,'%&30,+&'()'
15+'=1#%1+;0.'/0#+.1"#'n'*+,"-#.+,2'0,'#+,A"8,0(C+'4"#'
15+' !-8&F,' 083+,1<+81'<%8%;+<+81' %##%8;+<+81,P'
J5+' D"<<011++' ,+1,' 15+' "3+#%CC' 083+,1<+81' A"C0.)'
%8&' <"801"#,' 15+' A+#4"#<%8.+' "4' 15+' 083+,1<+81'
<%8%;+#,P

J5+' !-8&' 5%,' <+<(+#,' 4#"<' "3+#' XXW' +<AC")+#,'
$50.5'%#+'.C%,,+&'%,'o,.5+&-C+&'("&0+,F2'o&+,0;8%108;'
("&0+,F' "#' o%&<0,,0"8' ("&0+,FP' J5+)' %#+' C0,1+&' "8'
A%;+,' GW[GXP' =.5+&-C+&' ("&0+,' %#+' &+408+&' 08' 15+'
*+;-C%10"8,' %8&' 15+0#' +<AC")++,' 5%3+' %' ,1%1-1"#)'
#0;51'1"'A%#10.0A%1+'08'15+'R7?P'@&<0,,0"8'("&0+,'4%CC'
081"'1$"'.%1+;"#0+,'n'15",+'$5"'%AAC)'1"' ^"08'"8'%8'
%-1"8"<"-,'(%,0,'%8&'15",+'$5"'%#+'+8101C+&'1"'^"08'
%,'A%#1'"4'%'O+,1'j%C-+'%##%8;+<+81'$015'%8'+I0,108;'
4-8&' +<AC")+#Z' 08' +%.5' .%,+2' 15+)' <-,1' ,%10,4)'
,A+.040.'.#01+#0%',+1'"-1'08'15+'*+;-C%10"8,P

!#"<' X' @A#0C' VWWb2' <",1' %.103+' <+<(+#,' A%)'
."81#0(-10"8,'"4'(+1$++8'GPG'%8&'dPG`'"4'A+8,0"8%(C+'
A%)'&+A+8&08;'"8'15+0#'A%)'(%8&P'
D"-8.0CC"#'<+<(+#,'A%)'A+8,0"8'."81#0(-10"8,'%1'15+'
#%1+'"4'h`'"4'A+8,0"8%(C+'A%)P

J5+' +<AC")+#' ."81#0(-10"8' #%1+,' %#+' %,,+,,+&'
+3+#)' 15#++' )+%#,' 4"CC"$08;' %8' %.1-%#0%C' 3%C-%10"8P'
@' C0,1' "4' A%#10.0A%108;' +<AC")+#,' 1";+15+#' $015' 15+0#'
."81#0(-10"8'#%1+,'0,',5"$8'"8'A%;+,'Vh[VbP

J5+'R7?='A#"30&+,',0;8040.%81'(+8+401,'1"'<+<(+#,P'
J5+'4"CC"$08;',-<<%#)'0,'A#"30&+&'%,'%8'0CC-,1#%103+'
;-0&+'"8C)'%8&'0,'8"1'081+8&+&'1"';03+'4-CC'&+1%0C,'"4'%CC'
15+'(+8+401,'A#"30&+&'"#'%CC'"4'15+',A+.040.'."8&010"8,'
15%1'<-,1'(+'<+1'(+4"#+'(+8+401,'.%8'(+'"(1%08+&P

]' @88-%C' ?+8,0"8P' J5+' R7?=' 0,' &+408+&' (+8+401'
,.5+<+P' J5+' A+8,0"8,' "4' <",1' <+<(+#,' %#+'
(%,+&' "8' XYbW15' "4' 408%C' A+8,0"8%(C+' A%)' 4"#'
+%.5' )+%#' "4' <+<(+#,50A' -810C' _X' :%#.5' VWWb'
%8&' XYhW15' "4' 408%C' A+8,0"8%(C+' A%)' 4"#' +%.5'
)+%#'"4'<+<(+#,50A' 15+#+%41+#P'J5+'A+8,0"8,'"4'
D"-8.0CC"#':+<(+#,'%#+'(%,+&'"8'XYbW15'"4'15+0#'
.%#++#'%3+#%;+'A%)'4"#'+%.5')+%#'"4'<+<(+#,50AP

]' ?+8,0"8,'B8.#+%,+'L#&+#,'<%&+'-8&+#'15+'=".0%C'
=+.-#01)'?+8,0"8'@.1'XfdG'A#"30&+' 4"#'A+8,0"8,'
1"'(+'%,,+,,+&'08'C08+'$015'%8'08&+I',A+.040+&'()'
15+' ;"3+#8<+81P'N0,1"#0.%CC)' 150,'$%,' 15+'*+1%0C'
?#0.+' B8&+I'(-1' 4#"<'@A#0C'VWXX' 15+';"3+#8<+81'
.5%8;+&'15+'08&+I'1"'15+'D"8,-<+#'?#0.+'B8&+IP'
J5+' 08.#+%,+,' 0<AC+<+81+&' "3+#' 15+' C%,1' 1+8'
)+%#,'%#+',5"$8'"8'A%;+'GhP

]' R-<A' =-<' *+10#+<+81' 7#%81P' B8' %&&010"8' 1"' %8'
%88-%C' A+8,0"82' <",1' R7?=' <+<(+#,' #+.+03+'
%' 1%I[4#++' oC-<A' ,-<' #+10#+<+81' ;#%81F' "4' 15#++'
10<+,' %88-%C' A+8,0"8' "8'<+<(+#,50A' -A' 1"' _X'
:%#.5' VWWbP'@1' #+10#+<+812' %' <+<(+#' $0CC' %C,"'
(+' %(C+' 1"' ;03+' -A' A%#1' "4' 15+0#' %88-%C' A+8,0"8'
1"' A#"30&+' %8' %&&010"8%C' C-<A' ,-<P' E%.5' cX' "4'
%88-%C' A+8,0"8' ;03+8' -A' $0CC' (-)' cXV' "4' C-<A'
,-<P' J5+' C-<A' ,-<' "4' D"-8.0CC"#' :+<(+#,' 0,'
(%,+&'"8'_YbW15'"4'15+0#'.%#++#'%3+#%;+'A%)2'%C,"'
$015'15+'"A10"8'"4';0308;'-A'A%#1'"4'15+0#'A+8,0"8'
1"'A#"30&+'%&&010"8%C'C-<A',-<'%,'%("3+P

]' /+4+##+&' O+8+401,P' :+<(+#,' $5"' C+%3+' 15+0#'
+<AC")<+81' "#' "A1' "-1' "4' 15+' R7?=' $015'
<+<(+#,50A' "4' _' <"815,' "#' <"#+2' "#' $015' C+,,'
15%8'_'<"815,'<+<(+#,50A'(-1'5%3+'1#%8,4+##+&'
,+#30.+' 082'%#+'+8101C+&' 1"'/+4+##+&'O+8+401,'%8&'
$0CC'5%3+'15+0#'(+8+401,'A#+,+#3+&'08'15+'!-8&'-810C'
#+10#+<+81'"#'15+)'.%8'(+'1#%8,4+##+&'1"'%8"15+#'
%AA#"3+&'A+8,0"8'%##%8;+<+81P

]' *+4-8&'"4'D"81#0(-10"8,P'@'#+4-8&'"4'."81#0(-10"8,'
$0CC'(+'A%0&' 1"'<+<(+#,'$5"' C+%3+'+<AC")<+81'
$015' C+,,' 15%8' _'<"815,'<+<(+#,50A2' A#"30&+&'
15+)' 5%3+' 8"1' 1#%8,4+##+&' 08' %8)' %&&010"8%C'
<+<(+#,50AP

]' /+%15'O+8+401,P'M5+8'%'<+<(+#'&0+,'08',+#30.+2'
%' C-<A' ,-<' &+%15' ;#%81' 0,' A%)%(C+P' !"#' <",1'
@.103+':+<(+#,2' 150,' 0,' 15+' +Q-03%C+81' "4' 15#++'
10<+,'15+'<+<(+#F,'408%C')+%#F,'A+8,0"8%(C+'A%)P'
!"#'D"-8.0CC"#':+<(+#,2'150,'0,'15+'+Q-03%C+81'1"'
1$0.+'15+'<+<(+#F,'.%#++#'%3+#%;+'A%)P

R+;%C'=A"-,+,'%8&'D030C'?%#18+#,'%#+'%C,"'+8101C+&'1"'
#+.+03+'%'=-#303"#F,'?+8,0"8'(%,+&'"8'15+'<+<(+#F,'
=.5+<+' :+<(+#,50A' %1' 15+' &%1+' "4' &+%15P' @.103+'
:+<(+#,' 4#"<' X' @A#0C' VWWb' $5"' %#+' 8"1' <%##0+&'
"#' 08' %' .030C' A%#18+#,50A' <%)' 8"<08%1+' %8' +C0;0(C+'
."5%(0108;' A%#18+#' 1"' #+.+03+' %' =-#303"#F,' ?+8,0"8'
,-(^+.1' 1"' .+#1%08' Q-%C04)08;' ."8&010"8,P' D"-8.0CC"#'
:+<(+#,' .%88"1' 8"<08%1+' %' ."5%(0108;' A%#18+#' 1"'
#+.+03+'%'=-#303"#F,'?+8,0"8P

How the Local Government Pension Scheme Works

Appendix
Local Goverment Pension Scheme

Contributions

Bene"ts

Page 164



AVON PENSION FUND ANNUAL REPORT 2010/11 59

Glossary

J5+'A+#.+81%;+'"4'U8%C',%C%#)'$50.5'
0,'A%)%(C+'%,'A+8,0"8'4"#'+%.5')+%#'
"4' ,+#30.+' %..#-+&P' !"#' +I%<AC+2'
-8&+#' 15+' 8+$' ,.5+<+' +44+.103+'
4#"<' X' @A#0C' VWWb2' +%.5' )+%#' "4'
,+#30.+'$0CC' ;+8+#%1+'XYhW15'"4' U8%C'
,%C%#)P'

@8' 08&+A+8&+81' ."8,-C1%81' $5"'
%&30,+,' 15+' !-8&' %8&' #+30+$,' 15+'
U8%8.0%C'A",010"8'"4' 15+'!-8&'+3+#)'
15#++' )+%#,P' J5+' %.1-%#)' A#"&-.+,'
%' #+A"#12' >8"$8' %,' 15+' %.1-%#0%C'
3%C-%10"8' #+A"#12' $50.5' ."<A%#+,'
15+' !-8&F,' %,,+1,'$015' 01,' C0%(0C010+,'
%8&'A#+,.#0(+,'15+'#%1+,'%1'$50.5'15+'
+<AC")08;'("&0+,'<-,1'."81#0(-1+P'

@8' 083+,1<+81' ,1#%1+;)' $5+#+()'
15+' <%8%;+#' &+30%1+,' 4#"<' %8'
08&+I' "#' (+8.5<%#>' 15#"-;5' ,1".>'
,+C+.10"8' "#' %,,+1' %CC".%10"8' 08'
"#&+#'1"';+8+#%1+'%'#%1+'"4'#+1-#8'08'
+I.+,,' "4' 15+' 08&+I' "#' (+8.5<%#>P'

@' .030C' A%#18+#,50A' 0,' %' #+C%10"8,50A'
(+1$++8'1$"'A+"AC+'"4'15+',%<+',+I'
$50.5' 0,' 4"#<+&'$5+8' 15+)' #+;0,1+#'
%,'.030C'A%#18+#,'"4'+%.5'"15+#P'

=0<0C%#'1"'*?B2'D?B'0,'%8'%C1+#8%103+'
<+%,-#+' "4' 08e%10"8' %C,"' (%,+&' "8'
15+' .5%8;+' 08' 15+' A#0.+' "4' %' UI+&'
(%,>+1' "4' ;""&,' %8&' ,+#30.+,P'J5+'
&044+#+8.+'(+1$++8'D?B' %8&'*?B' 0,'
15%1'D?B'+I.C-&+,',"<+'01+<,'-,+&'
08' *?B' ,-.5' %,' <"#1;%;+' 081+#+,1'
A%)<+81,' %8&' D"-8.0C' J%I2' %8&'
08.C-&+,'"15+#'01+<,'8"1'-,+&'08'*?BP

O"&0+,2'$50.5'+015+#'5%3+',-4U.0+81'
C08>,'$015'%'=.5+<+'+<AC")+#2'%8&'
A#"30&+,' %' A-(C0.' ,+#30.+' 08' 15+'
K801+&' i08;&"<' "15+#$0,+' 15%8'
4"#' 15+' A-#A",+,' "4' ;%08' "#' %#+'
%AA#"3+&'()' 15+'=+.#+1%#)'"4'=1%1+'
4"#' 15+' A-#A",+,' "4' %&<0,,0"8' 1"'
15+'=.5+<+Z'%'("&)2'"15+#'15%8'15+'

;"3+#8"#,'"#'<%8%;+#,'"4'%'3"C-81%#)'
,.5""C2' 1"' 15+' 4-8&,' "4' $50.5' %'
=.5+<+'+<AC")+#'."81#0(-1+,P'=-.5'
%' ("&)' .%8' (+."<+' %' <+<(+#' "4'
15+' @3"8' ?+8,0"8' !-8&' ,-(^+.1'
1"' ?+8,0"8' D"<<011++' %AA#"3%CP'

!0I+&' 081+#+,1' ,+.-#010+,' %8&'
08&+I[C08>+&' ,+.-#010+,' 0,,-+&' ()'
."<A%80+,' #+;0,1+#+&' +015+#' 08' 15+'
KPiP' "#' "3+#,+%,P' J5+)' #+A#+,+81'
oC"%8,F' 1"' 15+' ."<A%80+,'$50.5' %#+'
#+A%)%(C+' "8' %' ,1%1+&' 4-1-#+' &%1+'
S4"#'&+U8010"8,'"4'lUI+&'081+#+,1m'%8&'
l08&+I[C08>+&m' ,++' o!0I+&' B81+#+,1'
7"3+#8<+81'=+.-#010+,F'%8&' oB8&+I[
C08>+&' 7"3+#8<+81' =+.-#010+,FTP'
B8' 15+' %88-%C' %.."-81,2' 15+,+' %#+'
08.C-&+&' 08' o=1+#C08;' O"8&,F' %8&'
oH"8[=1+#C08;'O"8&,FP

@'.-,1"<0,+&'(+8.5<%#>'#+e+.1,'15+'
%,,+1'<0I'&+1+#<08+&'()' 15+'!-8&P'
B1' 0,' +IA#+,,+&' 08' 1+#<,' "4' %,,+1'
A#"A"#10"8,'%8&'<%#>+1'08&0.+,'S+P;P'
aG`' Ki' EQ-010+,' 083+,1+&' 08' 15+'
!J=E[@.1-%#0+,' @CC' =5%#+' B8&+ITP'
L8' 150,' (%,0,' %' (+8.5<%#>' #+1-#8'
.%8'(+'.%C.-C%1+&P'J5+',0;80U.%8.+'
"4'%'.-,1"<0,+&'(+8.5<%#>'0,'15%1'01'
#+A#+,+81,'l8"#<%C'4-8&'A"C0.)mP'

J5+' A+8,0"8' (+8+U1' A%)%(C+' 4#"<'
H"#<%C' *+10#+<+81' @;+' S"#' +%#C0+#'
04' 15+' *-C+' "4' bG' 0,' ,%10,U+&T' 1"'
%' <+<(+#' "4' 15+' !-8&' $5"' 5%,'
.+%,+&' 1"' ."81#0(-1+' %,' %' #+,-C1'
"4' C+%308;' +<AC")<+81' "#' "A108;'
"-1' "4' 15+' A+8,0"8' ,.5+<+' (+4"#+'
#+10#+<+81'%;+P'

@'("&)2'C0,1+&'08'?%#1'V'"4'=.5+&-C+'
V' "4' 15+' R7?=' S@&<080,1#%10"8T'
*+;-C%10"8,2'$5",+'+<AC")++,'.%8'
"8C)'(+'+C0;0(C+'4"#'<+<(+#,50A'"4'15+'
=.5+<+2'04'&+,0;8%1+&'()'15%1'("&)P'

K810C'X'@A#0C'VWWd2'+<AC")+#,'."-C&'
%$%#&'%8'%&&010"8%C'A+#0"&'"4',+#30.+'
-8&+#' &0,.#+10"8%#)' #+;-C%10"8,' -A'
1"' %' <%I0<-<' "4' XW' %&&+&' )+%#,P'
=08.+' 150,' &%1+2' 150,' A#"30,0"8' 5%,'

(++8' $015&#%$8P' E<AC")+#,' $5"'
5%3+'%$%#&+&'%&&010"8%C',+#30.+'%#+'
#+.5%#;+&' 4"#' %8)' A%)<+81,' <%&+'
08'#+,A+.1'"4'15+<'+I+#.0,08;',-.5'%'
&0,.#+10"8P'

L#&08%#)',5%#+,'08'Ki'%8&'L3+#,+%,'
."<A%80+,' 1#%&+&' "8' %' #+.";80,+&'
,1".>' +I.5%8;+P' =5%#+5"C&+#,'
5%3+'%8'081+#+,1'08'15+'A#"U1,'"4'15+'
."<A%8)'%8&'%#+'+8101C+&'1"'3"1+'%1'
,5%#+5"C&+#,F'<++108;,P'

@' A+8,0"8' ,.5+<+' 15%1' A#"30&+,'
%' A+8,0"8' %8&' 08' ,"<+' .%,+,' %'
C-<A' ,-<' (+8+U1' .%C.-C%1+&' %,' %'
A#"A"#10"8'"4'%'<+<(+#F,'A%)'08'15+0#'
C%,1')+%#'"4'<+<(+#,50A'&+A+8&08;'
"8'15+' C+8;15'"4'<+<(+#,50A' 08' 15+'
,.5+<+P'

B83+,1<+81,' 08' ;"3+#8<+81' ,1".>,2'
$50.5' ;-%#%81++' %' UI+&' #%1+' "4'
081+#+,1P'B83+,1<+81,'08';"3+#8<+81'
,1".>,' #+A#+,+81' oC"%8,F' 1"'
7"3+#8<+81'$50.5'%#+'#+A%)%(C+'"8'
%',1%1+&'4-1-#+'&%1+P'

L15+#$0,+' >8"$8' %,' l%(,"C-1+'
#+1-#8' 4-8&,F2' 15+,+' 4-8&,' 5%3+'
%,' 15+0#' "(^+.103+' %' A+#4"#<%8.+'
1%#;+1'+IA#+,,+&'%,'%'<%#;08'%("3+'
15+' #+1-#8' $50.5' .%8' (+' %.50+3+&'
"8' .%,5' &+A",01,P' J5+' %&3%81%;+'
"4' 15+,+' 4-8&,' 0,' 15%1' 15+)' ,5"-C&'
%.50+3+'%'A",0103+'#+1-#8'+3+8'04'15+'
,1".>'<%#>+1'4%CC,P'

j"108;' <+<(+#,' "4' 15+' @3"8'
?+8,0"8' !-8&' D"<<011++' $5"' %#+'
8"1' ."-8.0CC"#,' %8&' $5"' 5%3+' 8"'
A"C010.%C'%11%.5<+81,P'J5+#+'%#+'1$"'
,-.5' <+<(+#,' "8' 15+' ."<<011++2'
%AA"081+&'A#08.0A%CC)'(+.%-,+'"4'15+'
U8%8.0%CY083+,1<+81'+IA+#10,+'$50.5'
15+)'5%3+'%.Q-0#+&'08'15+'."-#,+'"4'
15+0#'A#"4+,,0"8%C'.%#++#,P

B1' 0,' ."83+80+81' 1"' #+4+#' 1"' 15+,+'
<+<(+#,'%,'l08&+A+8&+81'1#-,1++,m'
+3+8'15"-;5'15+)'%#+'8"1'1#-,1++,'08'
15+' ,1#0.1' C+;%C' ,+8,+' S15+' ?+8,0"8'
!-8&' 0,' 8"1' ."8,101-1+&' %,' %' 1#-,1TP'

Actuary

Glossary
Accrual Rate

Active Investing

Civil Partnership

Consumer Price Index (CPI)

Community Admission 
Bodies

Corporate Bonds

Customised Benchmark

Deferred Pension

Designating Body

Discretionary 
Compensatory Added 
Years

Equities

Final Salary Scheme

Fixed Interest Government 
Securities

Hedge Funds

Independent Trustees

[1-J2%R#%:'%/'0.-G',

Page 165



AVON PENSION FUND ANNUAL REPORT 2010/11 60

Glossary

@&<080,1#%10"8'"4' 15+'@3"8'?+8,0"8'
!-8&' 0,' %' ,1%1-1"#)' #+,A"8,0(0C01)'
"4' O%15' 9' H"#15' E%,1' ="<+#,+1'
D"-8.0C'%8&'15+'@3"8'?+8,0"8'!-8&'
D"<<011++'5%,'(++8'+,1%(C0,5+&'()'
15+'D"-8.0C'1"'&0,.5%#;+'150,'4-8.10"8'
"8'01,'(+5%C4P'J5+'3"108;'<+<(+#,'"4'
15+' D"<<011++' A+#4"#<' %' #"C+' 15%1'
0,' ,0<0C%#' 1"' 15%1' "4' 1#-,1++,' 08' 15+'
A#03%1+',+.1"#'08'15%1'15+)'%.1'08'15+'
081+#+,1,'"4'15+'!-8&F,',1%>+5"C&+#,F'
#%15+#'15%8'15+'D"-8.0C'01,+C4P

B83+,1<+81,'08';"3+#8<+81',1".>,'SKi'
%8&'"3+#,+%,T'$5+#+'("15'15+'%88-%C'
081+#+,1' A%)<+81' %8&' 15+' .%A01%C'
,-<' #+A%)%(C+' ()' 15+' ;"3+#8<+81'
%#+' %&^-,1+&' 1"' %CC"$' 4"#' 08e%10"8P'
B83+,1<+81,' 08' ;"3+#8<+81' ,1".>,'
#+A#+,+81' oC"%8,F' 1"' 15+' ;"3+#8<+81'
$50.5'%#+'#+A%)%(C+'"8'%',1%1+&'4-1-#+'
&%1+P

J5+' A#0.+' %1' $50.5' %8' 083+,1<+81'
.%8' (+' ("-;51' "#' ,"C&' %1' %' ;03+8'
&%1+P'

@' ,+1' "4' #+."<<+8&%10"8,' #+C%108;'
1"' 15+' 083+,1<+81' "4' A+8,0"8' 4-8&,'
$50.5' $+#+' A#+A%#+&' ()' ?%-C'
:)8+#,'08'VWWX'%1'15+'#+Q-+,1'"4'15+'
D5%8.+CC"#' "4' 15+' EI.5+Q-+#' %8&'
$50.5'$+#+',-(,+Q-+81C)'+8&"#,+&'
()' 7"3+#8<+81P' J5+0#' ,0;80U.%8.+'
0,' 15%1' A+8,0"8' 4-8&,' %#+' +IA+.1+&'
1"' 4"CC"$' 15+,+'A#08.0AC+,'"#2' 04' 15+)'
&"'8"12'A#"30&+'%8'+IAC%8%10"8'%,'1"'
$5)'15+)'5%3+'&+.0&+&'8"1'1"'&"',"P'

="<+"8+' )"-' 5%3+' 8"<08%1+&' 1"'
#+.+03+' %' ,-#303"#F,' A+8,0"8' 08' 15+'
+3+81' "4' )"-#' &+%15P' J5+' 8"<08++'
<-,1'(+',"<+"8+')"-'%#+'C0308;'$015'
%,'04')"-'%#+'<%##0+&'"#'%#+'08'%'.030C'
A%#18+#,50A2' %8&' )"-#' #+C%10"8,50A'
5%,' 1"'<++1' .+#1%08' ."8&010"8,' C%0&'
&"$8'()'15+'R7?=P'J5+'8"<08%10"8'
<-,1'(+',-(<011+&'"8'%'oH"<08%10"8'
"4'%'D"5%(0108;'?%#18+#F'4"#<P

@;+' hG' 4"#' ("15' <+8' %8&' $"<+8'

(-1' .+#1%08' A#"1+.1+&' <+<(+#,'
$5",+'%;+'%8&'<+<(+#,50A2'$5+8'
."<(08+&2'1"1%C'bG'"#'<"#+'.%8'#+10#+'
%1' %8)' 10<+' 4#"<' %;+' hW' $015"-1'
%.1-%#0%C'#+&-.10"8'S,++'*-C+'"4'bGTP

@8'083+,1<+81',1#%1+;)'$5+#+()'15+'
<%8%;+#'#+AC0.%1+,'%8'08&+I'08'"#&+#'
1"' ;+8+#%1+' %' #%1+' "4' #+1-#8' 08' C08+'
$015' 15+' 08&+IP' J5+' <%8%;+#' 5%,'
8"' &0,.#+10"8' "3+#' ,1".>' ,+C+.10"8'
$01508'15+'08&+IP'B4'01'0,'%'<-C10[%,,+1'
A"#14"C0"2' 15+' %,,+1' A#"A"#10"8,' %#+'
A#+,.#0(+&'$01508'15+'<%8&%1+P'

?""C+&' !-8&,' %#+' 4-8&,' $50.5'
<%8%;+' 15+' 083+,1<+81,' "4' <"#+'
15%8' "8+' 083+,1"#' "8' %' ."CC+.103+'
(%,0,P' E%.5' 083+,1"#' 0,' %CC".%1+&'
-801,'$50.5'%#+' #+3%C-+&'%1' #+;-C%#'
081+#3%C,P' B8."<+' 4#"<' 15+,+'
083+,1<+81,' 0,'8"#<%CC)' #+1-#8+&' 1"'
15+' A""C+&' 4-8&' %8&' 08.#+%,+,' 15+'
3%C-+' "4' 15+' -801,P' J5+,+' 08.C-&+'
:%8%;+&'!-8&,'$50.5'%#+'%'4"#<'"4'
-801' 1#-,1'$5+#+()' 15+'!-8&'<%>+,'
A%)<+81,' -8&+#' %8' 08,-#%8.+'
A"C0.)' %8&' 0,' %CC".%1+&' -801,' 08' %8'
B83+,1<+81'!-8&'()'$%)'"4'(+8+U1,P'
B8'.+#1%08'.0#.-<,1%8.+,'150,'4"#<'"4'
-801' 1#-,1' .%8' 5%3+' 1%I' %&3%81%;+,'
."<A%#+&' $015' %' ."83+810"8%C' -801'
1#-,1P

@' <+%,-#+' "4' 15+' ;+8+#%C' C+3+C' "4'
08e%10"8' (%,+&' "8' 15+' .5%8;+' 08'
15+'A#0.+'"4'%'UI+&'(%,>+1'"4';""&,'
%8&',+#30.+,2',-.5'%,'4""&2'+8+#;)2'
A+1#"C2' 1#%3+CC08;' .",1,2' <"#1;%;+'
081+#+,1'A%)<+81,'%8&'D"-8.0C'J%IP'

=+1'-A'-8&+#' 15+'Xffd'*+;-C%10"8,'
1"' &+1+#<08+' $5+15+#' (+8+U1,' %#+'
,-(^+.1' 1"' %8)' %.1-%#0%C' #+&-.10"8'
$5+#+' %' <+<(+#' +C+.1,' 1"' #+.+03+'
(+8+U1,'(+4"#+'%;+'hGP

B4'15+',-<'"4'15+'<+<(+#F,'%;+'%8&'
=.5+<+'<+<(+#,50A2'("15'08'$5"C+'
)+%#,2'0,'bG'"#'<"#+'15+8'15+'(+8+U1,'
$+#+'A%)%(C+'-8#+&-.+&P

N"$+3+#2'150,'#-C+'$%,'#+<"3+&'4#"<'
15+' *+;-C%10"8,' 08' VWWh' %8&' &"+,'
8"1'%AAC)'1"'8+$'=.5+<+'<+<(+#,'

4#"<' X' L.1"(+#' VWWhP' :+<(+#,' 08'
15+'R7?='(+4"#+'150,'&%1+'<%)'5%3+'
%.Q-0#+&' .+#1%08' A#"1+.10"8,' 15%1'
%AAC)'08'#+,A+.1'"4'150,'#-C+P

J5+'#-C+'"4'bG'&"+,'8"1'%AAC)'$5+#+'
15+'<+<(+#'0,'#+10#+&'"8';#"-8&,'"4'
#+&-8&%8.)2' +4U.0+8.)' "#' 0CC' 5+%C152'
$5+#+' (+8+U1,' %#+' A%0&' $015"-1'
#+&-.10"8P

@'("&)2' 15%1'A#"30&+,2'()'<+%8,'"4'
%' ."81#%.12' %' ,+#30.+' 08' ."88+.10"8'
$015' 15+' +I+#.0,+' "4' %' 4-8.10"8' "4'
%' =.5+<+' +<AC")+#2' .%8' (+."<+'
%8' %&<011+&' ("&)' $01508' 15+' @3"8'
?+8,0"8' !-8&P' J5+' =.5+<+'
E<AC")+#' 1#%8,4+#08;2' <-,1' %.1' %,'
;-%#%81"#'4"#',-.5'("&0+,P'

N"C&08;,'08'."<A%80+,'$50.5'&"'8"1'
4"#<'A%#1'"4'15+'<%08',1".>'<%#>+1P'
J5+)'<%)'(+'&+3+C"A08;'."<A%80+,'
"#',<%CC+#'."<A%80+,'$5",+',5%#+,'
%#+' 8"1' 4#+Q-+81C)' 1#%&+&P' K8C0,1+&'
,+.-#010+,'%#+'-,-%CC)'C+,,'C0Q-0&'15%8'
15",+' 1#%&+&' 08' 15+' <%08' <%#>+1,P'

J5+'%3+#%;+'C".%C'%-15"#01)'A+8,0"8'
4-8&'083+,1<+81'#+1-#8'%,'.%C.-C%1+&'
()'J5+'M:'D"<A%8)P'J5+'-803+#,+'
."<A#0,+,' %AA#"I0<%1+C)' XWW' C".%C'
%-15"#01)'4-8&,P

Indexed-Linked 
Government Securities

Market Value

Myners Principles

Nominated Co-habiting 
Partner

Normal Retirement Age

Passive Investing 
(Indexation)

Pooled Funds

Retail Price Index (RPI)

Rule of 85

Scope Bodies (Transferee 
Admission Body)

Unlisted Securities

WM Local Authority Average

[1-J2%R#%:'%/'0.-G',

Page 166



Printed on recycled paper 1 

 

Bath & North East Somerset Council 
 

MEETING: Avon Pension Fund Committee 
MEETING 
DATE: 

23 SEPTEMBER 2011 AGENDA 
ITEM 
NUMBER  

TITLE: Application for The Park to be admitted to the Avon Pension Fund as 
a Community Admission Body 

WARD: ALL 
AN OPEN PUBLIC ITEM  
List of attachments to this report: 
Appendix 1:   Local Government Pension Scheme (Administration) Regulations 2008:  
   regulation 5 
Appendix 2:   Bristol City Council: Proposed admission body   
 

 
1 THE ISSUE 
1.1 Under regulation 5 of the Local Government Pension Scheme 

(Administration) Regulations 2008 [LGPS (Admin) Regs 2008], an 
administering authority may make an admission agreement with a 
community admission body. 

1.2 An application to become a community admission body of the Avon Pension 
Fund has been received from Bristol City Council on behalf of The Park.   

 
2 RECOMMENDATION 
The Pension Committee is asked to agree that: 
2.1 The Park is allowed entry into the Avon Pension Fund as a Community 

Admission Body with Bristol City Council acting as guarantor, subject 
to the condition set out in paragraph 4.5. 

Agenda Item 10

Page 167



Printed on recycled paper 2 

3 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
3.1 In allowing any community admission body to join the fund there is always a 

need to consider the financial risk which such a body may present. This is 
because it may at some point either become insolvent or, if it ceases to 
operate, may have insufficient resources to meet any outstanding pension 
liability.    

3.2 The way in which this risk can be minimised or, in most cases, eliminated is 
for the pension liabilities of the community admission body to be guaranteed 
by another (more substantial) Scheme Employer, who will normally be the 
principal funder. At its meeting on 2 March 2007 the Committee accordingly 
made the following policy decision: 
“that the existing policy relating to the conditions of admittance for 
Community Admission Bodies be amended to allow a Community Admission 
Body to join the Avon Pension Fund subject to the total potential liability 
being fully underwritten by the transferring employer or, where the 
transferring employer will not give a guarantee for future employees joining 
after the date of transfer, the Community Admission Body would be 
accepted for transferred employees only – on a Closed Scheme basis. 
New employees would however be allowed to join the Scheme if the 
Community Admission Body entered into a permanent bond (subject to 
annual review and adjustment) to indemnify the Fund against any potential 
losses for employees admitted after the transfer date.” 
This decision was taken in the context of staff being transferred from a 
unitary authority to a Housing Association. In other circumstances a bond 
may not be a viable option and in any event would not protect the Fund to 
the same degree as a guarantee.  
In the case of The Park, Bristol City Council is the “transferring employer”. 
However, there will be other cases where applications are received from 
bodies who are independent of a Scheme Employer except that they 
depend for their existence on funding from a Scheme Employer. In applying 
the policy the Committee should be aware of this and therefore allow for the 
principal funder to supply the guarantee.    

3.3 The LGPS (Administration) Regulations provides some support for the 
Committee’s policy. Regulation 5, paragraph 4, states “where, at the date 
that an admission agreement is made with a body mentioned in Regulation 
5, paragraph 2 (b), the contributions paid to the body by one or more 
Scheme employers equal in total 50% or less of the total amount it receives 
from all sources, it must be a term of the admission agreement that the 
Scheme employer paying contributions (or, if more than one pays 
contributions, all of them) guarantees the liability of the body to pay all 
amounts due from it under these Regulations or the Benefits Regulations”. 

3.4 So far as The Park is concerned, Bristol City Council has agreed to 
guarantee any pension liabilities not funded by the body itself.   

Page 168



Printed on recycled paper 3 

4 THE REPORT 
4.1 No Community Admission Body can join the Fund without the Committee’s 

approval. 
4.2 The Park is being set up to take over the provision of services from Bristol 

City Council [see Appendix 2]. The Park is applying for Community 
Admission Body status in the Avon Pension Fund in order to preserve the 
pension rights of the staff who will be transferring.  

4.3 As already indicated, Bristol City Council will act as guarantor. It has yet to 
be decided whether the admission agreement will be on a “closed” or “open” 
basis. 

4.4 The number of potential transferring scheme members is 12. 
4.5 Bristol City Council has yet to approve the establishment of this body.  

However, it is their intention to have it operative from 1 November 2011. 
Given this situation, approval for admission to the Fund should only be given 
subject to an appropriate decision, including the commitment to a 
satisfactory guarantee, being taken by a meeting of Bristol City Council’s 
cabinet on 29 September 2011 (see Appendix 2). If this does not occur, the 
Committee’s approval will be withdrawn and Bristol City Council will have to 
re-apply on behalf of the body.  

5 RISK MANAGEMENT 
5.1 In line with the Avon Pension Fund Committee’s policy, officers have 

ensured that this application is supported by a guarantee. 
6 EQUALITIES 

6.1 There are no direct equality implications from this process. 
7 CONSULTATION 
7.1 No consultation is appropriate. 
8 ADVICE SOUGHT 
8.1 The Council's Monitoring Officer (Council Solicitor) and Section 151 Officer 

(Divisional Director - Finance) have had the opportunity to input to this report 
and have cleared it for publication. 

Contact person  Liz Feinstein, Investments Manager  x 5306 
Background 
papers 

 

Please contact the report author if you need to access this report in an 
alternative format 
 

Page 169



Page 170

This page is intentionally left blank



Printed on recycled paper 1 

Applications for 3 Community Bodies   Appendix 1 

 

Regulation 5 Local Government Pension Scheme (Administration) Regulations 
2008 

Employees of non-Scheme employers: community admission bodies 
5.—(1) Subject to the requirements of this regulation and regulation 7, an 
administering authority may make an admission agreement with any community 
admission body. 

(2) The following are community admission bodies— 

(a)a body, other than the governors or managers of a voluntary school (within the 
meaning of the School Standards and Framework Act 1998, which provides a public 
service in the United Kingdom otherwise than for the purposes of gain and which 
either— 

(i)has sufficient links with a Scheme employer for the body and the Scheme 
employer to be regarded as having a community of interest (whether because the 
operations of the body are dependent on the operations of the Scheme employer or 
otherwise), or 

(ii)is approved by the Secretary of State for the purposes of admission to the 
Scheme; 

(b)a body, other than the governors or managers of a voluntary school, to the funds 
of which a Scheme employer contributes; 

(c)a body representative of— 

(i)local authorities, 

(ii)local authorities and officers of local authorities, 

(iii)officers of local authorities where it is formed for the purpose of 
consultation on the common interests of local authorities and the discussion of 
matters relating to local government, or 

Page 171



Printed on recycled paper 2 

(iv)Scheme employers; 

 (f)a company for the time being subject to the influence of a local authority (within 
the meaning of section 69 of the Local Government and Housing Act 1989 
(companies subject to local authority influence)); and 

(g)a company for the time being subject to the influence of a body listed in Part 1 of 
Schedule 2 (other than a local authority). 

(3) An approval under paragraph (2)(a)(ii) may be subject to such conditions as the 
Secretary of State thinks fit and she may withdraw an approval at any time if such 
conditions are not met. 

(4) Where, at the date that an admission agreement is made with a body mentioned 
in paragraph (2)(b), the contributions paid to the body by one or more Scheme 
employers equal in total 50% or less of the total amount it receives from all sources, 
it must be a term of the admission agreement that the Scheme employer paying 
contributions (or, if more than one pays contributions, all of them) guarantees the 
liability of the body to pay all amounts due from it under these Regulations or the 
Benefits Regulations. 

(5) In paragraph (2)(c) “local authorities" and (f) “local authority" includes the Greater 
London Authority. 

(6) For the purpose of determining whether a company is subject to the influence of 
a body as mentioned in paragraph (2)(g), section 69 of the Local Government and 
Housing Act 1989 shall have effect as if references in that section to a local authority 
were references to the body. 

 

Page 172



Appendix 2  
 
Background note on The Park’s application for admission to the LGPS 
as a community admission body (provided by Bristol City Council) 
 
Subject : The Park governance options 
 
• Name of the organisation: The Park Community Centre Limited 

 
• Service to be provided: 

 
Education and training 
Education and training forms a major part of the centre’s work, 
including: 
• 14-16 vocational programme for up to 100 full time students and 

others part time up to a similar number. 
• 16-19 full time vocational programme for about 50 students. 
• Part time courses for adults with more of a leisure focus. Also 

offered are activities for adults with learning difficulties. 
 

Sports 
The sports centre is well provided with sport facilities including a fitness 
suite and sports hall. The sports staff run a varied programme catering 
for different ages and both sexes. Their work has an underpinning 
health theme. 
 
Arts 
A range of activities for adults and young people are delivered by and 
from The Park. Performing Arts are a particular strength offering 
spacious provision for rehearsal and performance. The Park also 
makes excellent use of its pottery and sculpture areas. 
 
Small business start ups 
The core team make spaces available for business incubation and 
provide support to those embarking on this route. However the 
businesses then provide services to the community as varied as 
hairdressing, horticulture and car valeting. 
 
Facilities Hire 
The core team runs a facilities hire service, renting out specialised and 
general purpose spaces. The activities which take place form part of 
the indirect services offered. 
 
Community Events 
The calendar includes a number of (one off) community events which 
help build greater cohesion and “community spirit”. These include car 
boot sales, fetes, sponsored events, shows and competitions. 

 
Indirect Services 
These consist of the delivery by tenants and others who rent spaces at 
The Park, some are traded activities such as tattooing others offer 

Page 173



learning and progression support such as the Learning Communities 
Team.  

 
• Company Limited by Guarantee (with charitable status) 

 
• Number of expected staff transferring: 12 

 
• If The Park enters into a closed admission agreement Bristol City 

Council will act as the guarantor for pension liabilities. If The 
Park’s admission agreement is an open arrangement Bristol City 
Council will also act as a guarantor for pension liabilities in 
relation to both existing and new members.  

 
It is anticipated that Bristol City Council’s cabinet will consider the proposed 
transfer of establishment of The Park, at their cabinet meeting on the 
29/09/2011. The recommendation to this cabinet meeting will be that: 
 
• Approval be given to the establishment of an arm's length organisation 

so that valued local services can be securely retained and developed 
(see above), with a view to Bristol City Council employees transferring 
to the new organisation from 1st November 2011 

 
• An admission agreement with the Avon Pension Fund should be 

established to provide pension protection to the employees transferring 
to The Park from Bristol City Council under the TUPE regulations.   

 
• Bristol City Council will act as the guarantor for pension liabilities in 

relation to this agreement.  
 
 
 
 

Page 174



Printed on recycled paper 1 

 

Bath & North East Somerset Council 
 

MEETING: Avon Pension Fund Committee 
MEETING 
DATE: 

23 SEPTEMBER 2011 AGENDA 
ITEM 
NUMBER  

TITLE: Application for South West Academies Limited to be admitted to the 
Avon Pension Fund as a Community Admission Body 

WARD: ALL 
AN OPEN PUBLIC ITEM  
List of attachments to this report: 
Appendix 1:   Local Government Pension Scheme (Administration) Regulations 2008:  
   regulation 5 
 

 
1 THE ISSUE 
1.1 Under regulation 5 of the Local Government Pension Scheme 

(Administration) Regulations 2008 [LGPS (Admin) Regs 2008], an 
administering authority may make an admission agreement with a 
community admission body. 

1.2 An application to become a community admission body of the Avon Pension 
Fund has been received from South West Academies Limited.   

 
2 RECOMMENDATION 
The Pension Committee is asked to agree that: 
2.1 South West Academies Limited is allowed entry into the Avon Pension 

Fund as a Community Admission Body subject to City Academy and 
Colston Girls’ School acting as “joint and several” guarantors. 

Agenda Item 11

Page 175



Printed on recycled paper 2 

3 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
3.1 In allowing any community admission body to join the fund there is always a 

need to consider the financial risk which such a body may present. This is 
because it may at some point either become insolvent or, if it ceases to 
operate, may have insufficient resources to meet any outstanding pension 
liability.    

3.2 The way in which this risk can be minimised or, in most cases, eliminated is 
for the pension liabilities of the community admission body to be guaranteed 
by another (more substantial) Scheme Employer, who will normally be the 
principal funder. At its meeting on 2 March 2007 the Committee accordingly 
made the following policy decision: 
“that the existing policy relating to the conditions of admittance for 
Community Admission Bodies be amended to allow a Community Admission 
Body to join the Avon Pension Fund subject to the total potential liability 
being fully underwritten by the transferring employer or, where the 
transferring employer will not give a guarantee for future employees joining 
after the date of transfer, the Community Admission Body would be 
accepted for transferred employees only – on a Closed Scheme basis. 
New employees would however be allowed to join the Scheme if the 
Community Admission Body entered into a permanent bond (subject to 
annual review and adjustment) to indemnify the Fund against any potential 
losses for employees admitted after the transfer date.” 
This decision was taken in the context of staff being transferred from a 
unitary authority to a Housing Association. In other circumstances a bond 
may not be a viable option and in any event would not protect the Fund to 
the same degree as a guarantee.  
In the case of South West Academies, City Academy and Colston Girls’ 
School are the “transferring employers”. However, there will be other cases 
where applications are received from bodies who are independent of a 
Scheme Employer except that they depend for their existence on funding 
from a Scheme Employer. In applying the policy the Committee should be 
aware of this and therefore allow for the principal funder to supply the 
guarantee.    

3.3 The LGPS (Administration) Regulations provides some support for the 
Committee’s policy. Regulation 5, paragraph 4, states “where, at the date 
that an admission agreement is made with a body mentioned in Regulation 
5, paragraph 2 (b), the contributions paid to the body by one or more 
Scheme employers equal in total 50% or less of the total amount it receives 
from all sources, it must be a term of the admission agreement that the 
Scheme employer paying contributions (or, if more than one pays 
contributions, all of them) guarantees the liability of the body to pay all 
amounts due from it under these Regulations or the Benefits Regulations”. 

3.4 City Academy and Colstons Girls’ School have each agreed to guarantee 
any pension liabilities not funded by the body itself. The guarantee will be on 
a “joint and several basis”.  

Page 176



Printed on recycled paper 3 

4 THE REPORT 
4.1 No Community Admission Body can join the Fund without the Committee’s 

approval. 
4.2 South West Academies Limited has been set up to provide financial services 

to academies in the South West region. It is applying for Community 
Admission Body status in the Avon Pension Fund in order to preserve the 
pension rights of two staff who will be transferring from City Academy and 
one from Colston Girls’ School. However, it is also looking beyond this initial 
requirement (see paragraph 4.4). 

4.3 South West Academies Limited is a company limited by guarantee and a 
“not for profit” organisation. It has five shareholders with equal 
shareholdings: Bristol Cathedral Choir School, City Academy, Colston Girls’ 
School, Merchants Academy and Merchants Venturers. There is no intention 
to add to membership.   

4.4 The admission agreement will be “open”, given that the company expects to 
increase the number of academies for whom it provides a service in the 
future and is conscious of the need to attract the right staff.  

4.5 South West Academies Limited is eligible to join the Fund as a Community 
Admission Body under Regulation 5 (2) (i), viz. “(it) has sufficient links with a 
Scheme employer for the body and the Scheme employer to be regarded as 
having a community of interest (whether because the operations of the body 
are dependent on the operations of the Scheme employer or otherwise)”.  

5 RISK MANAGEMENT 
5.1 In line with the Avon Pension Fund Committee’s policy, officers have 

ensured that this application is supported by a guarantee. 
6 EQUALITIES 
6.1 There are no direct equality implications from this process 
7 CONSULTATION 
7.1 No consultation is appropriate. 
8 ADVICE SOUGHT 
8.1 The Council's Monitoring Officer (Council Solicitor) and Section 151 Officer 

(Divisional Director - Finance) have had the opportunity to input to this report 
and have cleared it for publication. 

Contact person  Liz Feinstein, Investments Manager  x 5306 
Background papers  
Please contact the report author if you need to access this report in an 
alternative format 

Page 177



Printed on recycled paper 4 

 

Page 178



Printed on recycled paper 1 

Applications for 3 Community Bodies   Appendix 1 

 

Regulation 5 Local Government Pension Scheme (Administration) Regulations 
2008 

Employees of non-Scheme employers: community admission bodies 
5.—(1) Subject to the requirements of this regulation and regulation 7, an 
administering authority may make an admission agreement with any community 
admission body. 

(2) The following are community admission bodies— 

(a)a body, other than the governors or managers of a voluntary school (within the 
meaning of the School Standards and Framework Act 1998, which provides a public 
service in the United Kingdom otherwise than for the purposes of gain and which 
either— 

(i)has sufficient links with a Scheme employer for the body and the Scheme 
employer to be regarded as having a community of interest (whether because the 
operations of the body are dependent on the operations of the Scheme employer or 
otherwise), or 

(ii)is approved by the Secretary of State for the purposes of admission to the 
Scheme; 

(b)a body, other than the governors or managers of a voluntary school, to the funds 
of which a Scheme employer contributes; 

(c)a body representative of— 

(i)local authorities, 

(ii)local authorities and officers of local authorities, 

(iii)officers of local authorities where it is formed for the purpose of 
consultation on the common interests of local authorities and the discussion of 
matters relating to local government, or 

Page 179



Printed on recycled paper 2 

(iv)Scheme employers; 

 (f)a company for the time being subject to the influence of a local authority (within 
the meaning of section 69 of the Local Government and Housing Act 1989 
(companies subject to local authority influence)); and 

(g)a company for the time being subject to the influence of a body listed in Part 1 of 
Schedule 2 (other than a local authority). 

(3) An approval under paragraph (2)(a)(ii) may be subject to such conditions as the 
Secretary of State thinks fit and she may withdraw an approval at any time if such 
conditions are not met. 

(4) Where, at the date that an admission agreement is made with a body mentioned 
in paragraph (2)(b), the contributions paid to the body by one or more Scheme 
employers equal in total 50% or less of the total amount it receives from all sources, 
it must be a term of the admission agreement that the Scheme employer paying 
contributions (or, if more than one pays contributions, all of them) guarantees the 
liability of the body to pay all amounts due from it under these Regulations or the 
Benefits Regulations. 

(5) In paragraph (2)(c) “local authorities" and (f) “local authority" includes the Greater 
London Authority. 

(6) For the purpose of determining whether a company is subject to the influence of 
a body as mentioned in paragraph (2)(g), section 69 of the Local Government and 
Housing Act 1989 shall have effect as if references in that section to a local authority 
were references to the body. 

 

Page 180



 1

 
 

Bath & North East Somerset Council 
 

MEETING: AVON PENSION FUND COMMITTEE AGENDA 
ITEM 
NUMBER  

MEETING 
DATE: 

23SEPTEMBER 2011 

TITLE: PENSIONS ADMINISTRATION  STRATEGY: UPDATE REPORT  
WARD: ‘ALL’                          
  AN OPEN PUBLIC ITEM 
List of attachments to this report:   
Appendix 1NewService Level Agreement (“SLA”) 
 
Appendix 2  Performance Criteria for joint delivery to members (Appendix 1 of SLA) 
 
Appendix 3 Format of Stewardship Report for Employers (Annex 3 of Pensions 

Administration Strategy Statement) 
 
Appendix 4 Summary of Employers Responses & roll out of self service facilities  
 

 
 
THE ISSUE 

1.1 The purpose of this report is to update the Committee on the progress in taking 
forward the required actions following the Pensions Administration Strategy coming 
into effect from1st April 2011: namely the progress made by Officers in signing 
Service Level Agreements with all employers; establishing training requirements of 
employers’ staff and agreeing delivery; establishing electronic data transmission by 
employers. In addition the Committee also requested details of Officers progress 
towards electronic delivery of information to members. 

1.2 This information is set out in Appendix 1 to 3.  
 
 
2. RECOMMENDATION 
That the Committee notes: 

2.1 The current position on the actions in 1.1 above and the Officers reported proposals to progress 
these. 

 
 
 

Agenda Item 13

Page 181



 2

. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
3.1Electronic delivery of information to the Fund is expected to reduce the amount of 

resource required to process inputs and outputs and result in savings. At this stage 
however it is too early to assess an actual amount. 

3.2Electronic delivery to members could result in tangible future savings on postage and 
printing. The amount will depend on the level of take up over and above those already 
registered for Member Self Service. At this stage therefore as above it is too early to 
assess an actual amount. 

4. Background 
The Committee were advised at the last meeting that the Avon Pension Fund had put in place a 

Pensions Administration Strategy “the Strategy” from April 2011. Under this there are a number 
of actions and the Committee has asked for an update on these, namely: 
� Performance Reporting (4.1.1) 
� Employers’ Staff Training (4.1.2) 
� Electronic submission of member data change information by employers to the Fund (4.1.3) 
� Electronic deliveryby the Fund of general and personal information to Scheme 

members(4.1.4 )  
 
 
4.1.SERVICE LEVEL AGREEMENTS (“SLAs”) 
 
Although the larger and medium sized employers (numbering 11) already have SLAs in place, a 
more concise version has been produced with revised performance targets for both the Fund and 
employers. A copy of the new SLA is attached as Appendix 1.All 112 employers in the Fund are 
expected to sign their own SLA. Bristol City Council acted as employer responsible for reviewing 
and signing offthe new“standard” SLA and thiswas rolled out to all employers in July 2011.  It is 
intended that meetings will take place with the larger employers to review/agree the standard SLA 
and amend it if necessary to reflect that employer’s specific circumstances.  
 
These meetings are scheduled to be held over the next quarter. To date 25 employers (mainly 
smaller ones) have signed and returned signed copies of the new SLA without query or comment. 
 
4.2PERFORMANCE REPORTING – STEWARDSHIP REPORTS 
 
Appendix 1 of the SLAsets out the Performance criteria for specified actions for both the employer 
and the Fund. Regular Stewardship Reports on major items namely startersand retirements will be 
produced and provided to each employer. For most this is expected to be quarterly (See Appendix 
2 for agreed actions to be monitored and Appendix 3 for the proposed Stewardship Report 
format). A Summaryreport will be submitted to the Committee each quarter so that they are aware 
of the level of performance by the Fund and employers. It is expected that this will be an Exempt 
Appendix as it will contain information which could be regarded as commercially  sensitive as some 
employers (where outsourcing has occurred are commercial for profit bodies.) 
 
4.3 STAFF TRAINING - EMPLOYERS AND AVON PENSION FUND 
It is recognised in the Administration Strategy thatadministration of the Fund is a joint process 
between the Fund and Scheme employers and that staff of both the Fund and Scheme employers 
need to receive on-going adequate training to ensure their competence in operating the pension 
administration process for delivery of an excellent service for Scheme members. 
 
4.3.1 Employers 
There is therefore an on-going commitment to provide adequate training to employers’ staff to 
enable them to be proficient in performing their part of the pension administration process. It was 
felt appropriate to allow employers to advise the Fund of specific areas where they felt that their 
staff need specific training. A questionnaire was sent to all employers in May (with a reminder in 

Page 182



 3

June) 2011.Encouragingly, over two thirds of employers have responded and their responses are 
currently being analysed, following which a comprehensive targetedtraining programme will be 
drawn up for employers’ staff. This is expected to commence in November 2011. Training will be 
either site visits to employers or group sessions in Keynsham, depending on employer staff 
numbers. 
 
4.3.2 Avon Pensions Staff 
The Fund’s own staffreceive appropriate on-going on-the-job training as necessary. All have 
Personal development plans and all staff are given the opportunity and are encouraged to study for 
external professional qualifications which will improve their own and the Fund’s professionalism.    
 
4.4ELECTRONIC DELIVERY OF MEMBER DATA CHANGESBY EMPLOYERS 
 
As part of the Administration Strategy and incorporated into the SLA,all employers will be signed 
up to electronic delivery of member data changes namely, joiners, changes and leavers by 1 April 
2012 (larger and medium employers) and 1 October 2012 (smaller employers).  
 
There are two alternative methods of delivery available to employers. The more appropriatemethod 
will depend on size and activity level of employment: 
 
� BULK update basis 
   Although a number of the larger/medium employers are doing this already they are achieving 
this by manual input into an Excel spreadsheet which leaves room for human error. Larger 
employers are expected to provide monthly bulk updates from data downloads from their 
payroll primary source information.  This is the way the largest employer Bristol City Council 
currently operates and has been doing so for five years and this works very efficiently.   

 
   A series of meeting over the next few months are scheduled with the other 3 unitary 
authorities to help them achieve this. A very positive meeting has already taken place with 
North Somerset Council and it looks promising that it will have produced a test model by late 
October 2011. 

 
  Once electronic delivery becomes “the norm” it is possible that those employers still submitted 
on paper will be charged additional administration fees for causing the Fund disproportionate 
work in comparison to other Scheme employers. It is therefore in these employers’ interest to 
put in place the necessary payroll or management reports to enable extract of bulk data in an 
electronic format for submission, even if this means additional cost in the short–term, as in the 
long-term this will avoid such additional charges from the Fund. Employers are advised in the 
Strategy document to “invest to save.”   

 
� INDIVIDUAL On-line Updating basis 
Employer Self Service (“ESS”) (web-based browser software from Heywood (the main 
software supplier to the Fund)which the Fund purchased this year is the alternative method 
that employers can use to deliver member data change information electronically. ESS has 
been made available to all employers in August 2011. Currently read only, this facility will be 
upgraded from late October 2011 (following a new Heywood release) to allow registered 
employers to perform on-line updating (in a controlled environment) forindividual 
memberchanges. This method is most suitable for smaller employers (over a hundred) and 
those medium-sized employers with low levels of member change activity.  
 

5.ELECTRONIC DELIVERY OF INFORMATION TO SCHEME MEMBERS      
5.1. OBJECTIVE: Although not specifically part of the Pensions Administration Strategy, the 

Fund’s objective is to provide information electronically to members whereverpossible 
and where appropriate. This initiative if successful should provide significant future 
savings on printing and postage.As a pilot, the most recent copy of the Fund’s active 
members’ Newsletter was successfully sent electronically by one Scheme employer 
to allits staff.  

 
Page 183



 4

5.2 STRATEGY TO IMPLEMENT: The Fund is therefore currently developing a strategy to 
increase its use of electronic delivery for both general information (such as member and 
employer Newsletters) and for individual personal communications (such as members’ 
Annual Benefit Statements) which contain sensitive personal and confidential information. 
It is recognised that a high level of security will be needed for members to access 
individual personal information(see Member Self Service below). 
 
5.3The Disclosure of Information Regulations 2010: An important development relating 
to this is the new Disclosure Regulations in 2010. Thesespecify that electronic delivery 
meets legal requirements equally as well as mailed hard copy. This clears the way for the 
Fund to move forward on electronic delivery of all its communications. 
 
In order for the Fund to achieve this, the legislation requiresit to tell members on that it 
proposes to move to using electronic means of delivery, if this is by default. This will take 
place by inclusion of the notification in scheduled sendings to members over the next 9 
months or so. It is therefore expected that by summer 2012, as many as 60% of the 
membership could be receiving all general and personal information electronically. It is 
however appreciated that for some employers a significant percentage of their 
membership do not have e-mail access at their workplace.Following a straw poll of 
employers last year, this could be as high as 40% for some and they will be able toopt to 
continue to receive information by post in a PRINTED FORMAT by completing a 
simple tear off return slip (post-paid) on any of the three occasions.  
 
5.4 MEMBER SELF SERVICE(“MSS”), which members can register for, will be the main 
conduit for electronic “delivery” as it provides fully secure access for members to their own 
information held on the Avon Pension Fund database. Currently over 1,500 members (5% 
of active members) have already signed up for this and the Fund is vigorously promoting 
this in a variety of ways such as payslips, Newsletters and at pension clinics.  Although it is 
possible to store members’ e-mail addresses on their computerised record, Officers wish 
to avoid this as the on-going maintenance of this on over 30,000 separate member records 
would create significant extra work possibly requiring additionalstaff resource reducing 
potential cost savings. 
 
Appendix 4 contains a Summary of Employers Responses & roll out of Self Service 
facilities.  

 
 
6.RISK MANAGEMENT 
6.1 The Avon Pension Fund Committee is the formal decision-making body for the Fund.  
As such it has responsibility to ensure adequate risk management processes are in 
place.  It discharges this responsibility by ensuring the Fund has an appropriate 
investment strategy and investment management structure in place that is regularly 
monitored.  In addition it monitors the benefits administration, the risk register and 
compliance with relevant investment, finance and administration regulations.  
7. EQUALITIES 
7.1No equalities impact assessment is required as the Report contains only 

recommendations to note. 
8. CONSULTATION  
8.1 None appropriate. 
9. ISSUES TO CONSIDER IN REACHING THE DECISION 

Page 184



 5

9.1 This report is for noting only. 
 
10. ADVICE SOUGHT 
10.1The Council's Monitoring Officer (Council Solicitor) and Section 151 Officer 

(Divisional Director - Finance) have had the opportunity to input to this report and 
have cleared it for publication. 

.Contact person  Steve McMillan, Pensions Manager Tel: 01225 395254 
Background papers None 

 

Page 185



Page 186

This page is intentionally left blank



 1

 
 
 
 

SERVICE LEVEL AGREEMENT  
 

Between 
 

Avon Pension Fund 
 

And 
 

XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXil  
 
Service Level Agreement (SLA) 
 
Introduction 
 
This SLA is an integral part of the Pensions Administration Strategy (PAS) 
which came into effect on 1 April 2011, after approval by the Avon Pension 
Fund Committee.  The PAS outlines the joint role of the Avon Pension Fund 
(the Fund) and Employing Bodies (Employers) in delivering a seamless, 
efficient and cost-effective pensions service by working together in 
partnership.  It is a legal requirement that both the Fund and the Employer 
have regard to the PAS when carrying out their functions1. 
 
Our Service Ethos 
 
The PAS sets out how Employers and the Fund work together as 
administrators of the LGPS in order to provide the best possible pensions 
service to our Stakeholders2.  Our primary Stakeholders are the Members of 
the LGPS and their dependents, as ultimate service users.  But it is important 
for Employers and the Fund to understand from the outset that we are also 
Stakeholders, being service users of one another in the giving and receiving 
of the information we both need in order to administer the Scheme.  The PAS 
highlights three crucial aspects of Service: 
 
• Seamless Service - the pensions service which the Fund and the 

Employer jointly provide will be seamless from the experience of our 
Stakeholders.   

 
• Efficient Service - the pensions service which the Fund and the 

Employer provide will give Stakeholders accessible and timely quality 
information.  We will achieve this by having appropriate administrative 
procedures in place, combined with the application of best practice and 
the use of appropriate technology.  

                                            
1 Regulation 65(7) of the LGPS (Administration) Regulations 2008 (Statutory Instrument 2008 
No  
2 The respective administrative and decision-making roles of the Fund and the Employers 
(known as 'discretions') are helpfully listed by the Local Government Employers organisation 
on their website at: http://www.lge.gov.uk/lge/core/page.do?pageId=279288   

Avon Pension Fund 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT PENSION SCHEME 
 
 

Bath & North East Somerset Council 
Floor 3 South, Riverside, Temple Street, Keynsham, BS31 1LA 

 

Tel: 01225 477000 ~ Fax: 01225 395258 ~ Email: pensionsedi@bathnes.gov.uk 

 

Web: www.avonpensionfund.org.uk 
 

Page 187



 2

 
• Cost-Effective Service - the pensions service which the Fund and the 

Employer provide will maintain costs at industry average levels, or 
below.  We will achieve this by streamlining our administrative 
processes, applying industry best practice, investing in the use of 
technology where appropriate and maintaining a culture of continuous 
improvement. 

 
Although the LGPS is currently exempt from the Pensions Regulator's 
national standards for the quality of pension records3, we will aim to achieve 
these standards as a matter of course. 
 
Legislation requires the Employer to publish policies on the discretions it has 
under Regulations 12, 13, 18 and 30 of the LGPS (Benefits) Regulations 
2007.  The Employer will keep these policies under review and forward a copy 
to the Fund. 
 
 
Engaging the Employer with the LGPS 
 
In order to provide a truly seamless, effective and cost-effective pensions 
service, both the Fund and the Employer must have staff with an appropriate 
level of knowledge about the LGPS and associated administrative 
procedures.   
 
The Employer must ensure therefore that their HR, Payroll and Finance staff 
who deal with pensions issues as part of their work are appropriately trained 
so that they are able to understand and minimise pensions risk and can 
engage in the wider pensions agenda4.  Pensions risk includes Employer 
funding liabilities as well as compliance with pensions legislation and 
disclosure of information requirements. 
 
The Employer must appoint a Pensions Lead Officer to be their primary 
liaison with the Fund and be responsible for disseminating LGPS information 
to appropriate officers in their organisation, as well as ensuring the Fund 
receives all information it requires to administer the LGPS.  The Fund will 
maintain an Employer Website with information about the LGPS and 
administrative procedures which the Employer should follow.  
 
All sensitive personal data will be transferred between the Fund and the 
Employer via a secure portal.   
 
The Fund will hold regular meetings with Scheme Employers. The Fund will 
do everything possible to ensure that these meetings are effective and the 
Employer should ensure that they make every effort to be represented and 
interact with the Fund and at these meetings. 
 
                                            
3 http://www.thepensionsregulator.gov.uk/guidance/guidance-record-keeping.aspx 
4 The Employer should consider sending their officers on training courses, such as the 
‘Understanding the Employer Role’ course run by the Local Government Employers 
organisation 

Page 188



 3

The Fund operates an ongoing Learning and Development Programme for its 
own staff to ensure that they are knowledgeable in the LGPS Regulations, 
investments and benefits administration. 
 
Measuring the quality of our Service   
 
The Employer must ensure that the Fund receives all data it requires to 
administer the LGPS with the time limits outlined in Appendix 1.  The Fund is 
required to report an Employer to the Pensions Ombudsman if pension 
contributions are not received by the 19th of the month following deduction. 
 
Accountability 
 
Summary reports on all employers performance will be submitted to the Avon 
Pension Fund Committee at its quarterly meetings and both the Fund and 
Employers will be accountable for their performance.  
 
Also legislation requires that the Fund and the Employers publish statistics on 
their performance against the targets outlined in Appendix 1. 
 
Quality and Review 
 
Regular meetings will take place as agreed between the Fund and the 
Employer but no less than every six months to review the effectiveness of the 
joint working arrangements and its contribution towards objectives.  
 
Changes to the Agreement 
 
Changes to this SLA will be implemented following full consultation and 
analysis of impacts on both the Fund and the Employer. The overriding 
condition to any such changes is that they are undertaken in the best interests 
of the members of the Fund. Any changes will take place using an agreed and 
managed process and within a time scale that minimises disruption and 
equalises financial issues.   
 
The terms and conditions of this SLA are hereby agreed between the 
following parties: 
Agreed and signed on behalf of the Employer. 
Signed: 
Position: 
Date: 
 
Agreed and signed on behalf of Bath and North East Somerset Council 
(the Administering Authority)  
Signed: 
Position: 
Date: 

Page 189



Page 190

This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

  APPENDIX 2 TO PENSIONS ADMINISTRATION STRATEGY: UPDATE REPORT 
 

 TAKEN FROM AVON PENSION FUND - SERVICE LEVEL AGREEMENT   APPENDIX 1 

PERFORMANCE CRITERIA- JOINT DELIVERY TO MEMBERS 
  (1) ACTIVE MEMBERS / PENSION CONTRIBUTION SUBMISSION 

 

Element 

 

Employer 

Target 
(working 
days) 

 

The Fund 

 

Target (working 
days) 

Starters 

 

 

Issue Member 
Starter Pack 

 

Send notification of 
the starter to the 
Fund 

Within 15 
days of 
commencem
ent 

Within 10 
days of 
month end 

 

Issue a Membership 
Certificate  

Within 10 days of 
receiving the 
required data from 
the employer 

Changes in name. address, 
DOB, NI No, contractual hours  

 

Send notification to 
the Fund 

Within 10 
days of 

month end  
Issue a Membership 

Certificate 
Within 10 days of 
receiving the 
required data from 
the Employer 

Transfers In 

 

 

  Issue quotation to 
member 

 

Request payment of 
the transfer value  

Calculate and advise 
member of benefits  

Within 10 days of 
receiving details 
from previous 
scheme. 
Within 5 days of 
receiving Member 
confirmation  
Within 10 days of 
receiving payment 

Transfers Out  

 

                                                                     issue a quotation, 
guaranteed for 3 
months 

Pay transfer value  

Within 10 days of 
receiving the 
Member request  
 
Within 10 days of 
receiving member 
confirmation 
 

Early Leavers  send the Fund 
completed leaver 
form  - 
electronically by 
01.04.2012* 

Within 15 
days of 
month end 
after date of 
leaving 

The Fund to advise 
member of deferred 
benefits 

Within 10 days of 
being in receipt of 
all necessary 
information 

Actual Retirement Forms  send the Fund 
completed leaver 
forms - 
electronically by 
01.04.2012* 

On or before 
retirement 
date 

The Fund to pay 
benefits to member 

Within 20 days of 
being in receipt of 
all necessary 
information 

 
Element Employer Target 

(working 
The Fund Target (working 

Page 191



Performance Criteria - Joint Delivery to Members                APPENDIX 1 
 

 2

days) days) 
Estimate Requests  

 

Employer request 
for estimate to the 
Fund 

n/a The Fund to provide 
Employer with 
estimate 

Within 10 days of 
receipt of all 
necessary 
information  

Death in Service 

 

Employer to send 
the Fund 
completed form - 
electronically by 
01.04.2012* 

Within 5 
days of 
being 
notified 

The Fund to advise 
member benefits   

Within 10 days  of 
receipt of all 
necessary 
information  

Year End Data Submission 

Employer each year to supply 
schedules showing contribution 
and pensionable pay information 
in the format specified by the Fund 
in LGPS 51 and LGPS 52 format 
(after LGPS 51 has been 
reconciled to LGPS50s) 

 

 

Supply to the Fund 
electronically 

 

 

By 15th May 
(6 weeks 
after year 
end) 

 

  

 

Year End Data Queries 

Responding to Year end/ 
Valuation queries resulting from 
APF reconciliation of member 
data submitted 

 

 

Response to 
queries on 
reconciling the year 
end returns  to the 
Fund 

 

within 1 
month of 
being raised  

 

 

 

 

 

 

Annual Benefit Statements   Issue Statements for 
those  active members 
whose  data is 
updated reconciled 
and complete (Legal 
Requirement to send 
every year under the 
Disclosure 
Regulations) 

Annually by 31st 
December 

Payment of Scheme  Pension 
Contributions 

 

 

Payment of AVC Pension 
Contributions 

 

Pay over to the 
Fund Employee 
and Employer  

 

Pay to AVC 
Provider and 
provide covering 
schedule to 
Provider 

By 19th of the 
month 
following 
deduction 

 

By 19th of the 
month 
following 
deduction 

  

SMALLER Employers have until 01.10. 2012 to move to electronic submission by on-line forms through Employer 
Services 

 

Page 192



Performance Criteria - Joint Delivery to Members                APPENDIX 1 
 

 3

(2) DEFERRED MEMBERS  
 

 The Fund Target 
Benefit Statements 
 

Provide each Deferred Member * 
with Annual Benefit Statement 
showing the current value of 
preserved benefits (as increased 
in line with factors issued by 
Central Government). 
 

Annually by 31st August  

Deferred Benefits into Payment 
 

Write to the Deferred Member* 
requesting personal details 
confirmation before sending of 
the benefits details and options 
available.  
 
Pay benefits to member and set 
up pension  
 

If Fund cannot confirm address make 
every effort to trace deferred member.  
 

6 months before age 65 or earlier 
retirement date if approved by 
employer 
 
 
 
 
Retirement date 

*only If a current address is held 
 
 
(3) PENSIONER MEMBERS 
 

 The Fund Target 
Changes in personal particulars 
(including) 
 

Update payroll record with 
changes to personal details 
However, due to the nature of 
payroll administration, any such 
changes may not take effect 
until a subsequent payroll has 
been run. 
 
Confirmation of changes to bank 
details  
 

Within 5 days of receiving 
the written notification 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Advise on the next pay 
advice  notification. 

Changes of tax code Update payroll record with 
revised tax code. (However, due 
to the nature of payroll 
administration, changes may not 
take effect until a subsequent 
payroll has been run) 
 

Within 2 days of receiving 
notice of the change from 
HMRC 

Newsletter 
 

Send a Newsletter to each of 
our pensioners 
 

Twice a year 

Deaths of pensioners 
 

Acknowledge receipt of a 
notification of the death of a 
pensioner and start action to put 
into payment any dependants’ 
benefits 

Within 5 days of receiving 
the notification. 

 
 

Page 193



Page 194

This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 3to Pensions Administration Strategy: Update Report  
Annex 3 of Administration Strategy Statement  

Performance Criteria (to be reported in Stewardship Report) - Joint Delivery to Members 
Employer Service Information and Performance Standards – OPERATIONAL & FINANCIAL 

Element Employer Target 
(working 

days) 

The Fund Target 
(working 

days) 

Average 
% within 
target? 

Early Leavers  Employer to send 
the Fund 
completed leaver 
form  - 
electronically by 
01.04.2012* 

Within 15 
days of 
month end 
after date 
of leaving 

The Fund to 
advise 
member of 
deferred 
benefits 

Within 10 days 
of being in 
receipt of all 
necessary 
information 
 

 

Actual retirement forms  
 

Employer to send 
the Fund 
completed leaver 
form - 
electronically by 
01.04.2012* 

On or 
before 
retirement 
date  
 

The Fund to 
pay benefits 
to member 
 

Within 10 days 
of being in 
receipt of all 
necessary 
information 

 

Estimate Requests  
 

Employer request 
for estimate to the 
Fund 

n/a The Fund to 
provide 
Employer with 
estimate 

Within 10 days 
of receipt of 
all necessary 
information  

 

Death in Service 
 

Employer to send 
the Fund 
completed form - 
electronically by 
01.04.2012* 

Within 5 
days of 
being 
notified 

The Fund to 
advise 
member 
benefits   

Within 7 days  
of receipt of 
all necessary 
information  

 

Year End Data submission 
Employer each year to 
supply schedules showing 
contribution and 
pensionable pay 
information in the format 
specified by the Fund in 
LGPS 51 and LGPS 52 
format (after LGPS 51 has 
been reconciled to 
LGPS50’s) 

Supply to the Fund 
electronically 
 

By 15th May 
(6 weeks 
after year 
end) 
 

   

Page 195



Year End Data queries 
Responding to Year end/ 
Valuation queries 
resulting from APF 
reconciliation of member 
data submitted 

Response to 
queries on 
reconciling the year 
end returns  to the 
Fund 

within 1 
month of 
being 
raised  

 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 

Annual Benefit 
Statements 

 

  Issue 
Statements 
for those  
active 
members 
whose  data is 
updated 
reconciled and 
complete 

By 31st 
December 
each year 

 

 

SMALLER Employers have until 01.10. 2012 to move to electronic submission by on-line forms 

 

 

Page 196



APPENDIX 4 to Pension Administration Strategy: Update Report 

 

Summary of Employers Responses & roll out of Self Service facilities  

   sent Signed & 
returned 

 

1 Service Level Agreements   110 25 21% 
      
2 Training Questionnaires returned  110 74 57% 
      
 Self Service facilities     
1 Employers registered for Employer 

Self Service – only just rolled ou  
 Offered to all employers. So 

far only 3 users register but 
many more expected to sign 
up soon  

      
2 Members signed up for self service  2,000 out of a total of 

80, 000 (inc deferred 
and pensioners)   

2.5% 

 

Page 197



Page 198

This page is intentionally left blank



Printed on recycled paper 1

  

Bath & North East Somerset Council 
 

MEETING: AVON PENSION FUND COMMITTEE 
MEETING 
DATE: 

23 SEPTEMBER 2011 AGENDA  
ITEM 
NUMBER 

 

TITLE: INVESTMENT PANEL MINUTES 
WARD: ALL 
AN OPEN PUBLIC ITEM 
List of attachments to this report:  
Appendix 1 – Draft minutes from Investment Panel meeting held 7 September 2011  
 
 

1 THE ISSUE 
1.1 The minutes are a record of the Panel’s debate before reaching their conclusions 

and agreeing any recommendations to the Committee. This ensures the 
Committee is informed of the activities of the Panel. 

1.2 The draft minutes of the Panel meeting held on 7 September 2011 are in 
Appendix 1. 

 
 
2 RECOMMENDATION 
2.1 That the Committee notes the draft minutes of the Investment Panel meeting 

held on 7 September 2011. 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Agenda Item 15

Page 199



Printed on recycled paper 2

3 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
3.1 There are no financial implications. 
4 MINUTES  
4.1 The draft minutes of the Investment Panel meeting are in Appendix 1.   
5 RISK MANAGEMENT 
5.1 The Avon Pension Fund Committee is the formal decision-making body for the 

Fund.  As such it has responsibility to ensure adequate risk management 
processes are in place.  It discharges this responsibility by ensuring the Fund has 
an appropriate investment strategy and investment management structure in 
place that is regularly monitored.  In addition it monitors the benefits 
administration, the risk register and compliance with relevant investment, finance 
and administration regulations. The creation of an Investment Panel further 
strengthens the governance of investment matters and contributes to reduced risk 
in these areas. 

6 EQUALITIES 
6.1 An equalities impact assessment is not necessary. 
7 CONSULTATION 
7.1 N/a 
8 ISSUES TO CONSIDER IN REACHING THE DECISION 
8.1 This report is for information only. 
9 ADVICE SOUGHT 
9.1 The Council's Monitoring Officer and Section 151 Officer (Divisional Director - 

Finance) have had the opportunity to input to this report and have cleared it for 
publication.  

 

Contact person  Liz Feinstein, Investments Manager 01225 395306 
Background papers  
Please contact the report author if you need to access this report in an alternative 
format 
 

Page 200



Bath and North EastSomerset Council 
 

 
Page 1 

 

 
AVON PENSION FUND COMMITTEE - INVESTMENT PANEL 
 
Minutes of the Meeting held 
Wednesday, 7th September, 2011, 9.30 am 

 
Members:Councillor Charles Gerrish (Chair), Councillor Mary Blatchford, Andy Riggs 
(Reserve) (In place of Bill Marshall) and Ann Berresford 
Advisors: Tony Earnshaw (Independent Advisor) and John Finch (JLT Investment 
Consultancy) 
Also in attendance: Tony Bartlett (Head of Business, Finance and Pensions), Liz Feinstein 
(Investments Manager) and Matthew Betts (Assistant Investments Manager) 

 
1 EMERGENCY EVACUATION PROCEDURE 

 
The Democratic Services Officer read out the procedure. 
 

2 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 
There were none. 
 

3 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND SUBSTITUTIONS 
 
Apologies were received from Councillor Nicholas Coombes and from Bill Marshall, 
for whom Andy Riggs substituted. 
 

4 TO ANNOUNCE ANY URGENT BUSINESS AGREED BY THE CHAIR 
 
There was none. 
 

5 ITEMS FROM THE PUBLIC - TO RECEIVE DEPUTATIONS, STATEMENTS, 
PETITIONS OR QUESTIONS 
 
There were none. 
 

6 ITEMS FROM COUNCILLORS AND CO-OPTED AND ADDED MEMBERS 
 
There were none. 
 

7 MINUTES: 12 JANUARY 2011 
 
These were approved as a correct record and signed by the Chair. 
 

8 REVIEW OF INVESTMENT PERFORMANCE FOR PERIODS ENDING 30 JUNE 
2011 
 
The Assistant Investments Manager said that although investment report was 
presented quarterly, it was the yearly and three-yearly performance that was 
significant for the Fund. Over the year the Fund had earned a return of 16.5%, with 
positive returns across all asset classes, especially equities. In aggregate the 

Page 201



 

 
Page 2 of 4 

 

managers had marginally underperformed their benchmarks over the year with 
underperformance from Jupiter, TT, Stenham and Lyster Watson offsetting positive 
performance elsewhere in the portfolio. Over the quarter there had been a return of 
1.5%, which was in line with the benchmark.  
 
There were three strategic issues to be noted: 
 
1. The implementation of the currency hedging programme had commenced in 
July with the appointment of Record as the active currency hedging manager. 
 

2. The changes to the hedge fund allocations approved by the Committee had 
been implemented. 
 

3. Exposure of the Fund to Euro and European financials. This was summarised 
in Appendix 3 of the report, an updated version of which was tabled. 

 
The Actuary’s quarterly estimate of the funding level of the Fund was 82% as at 30 
June 2011. 
 
The Assistant Investments Manager clarified that “ESG” in paragraph 8.2 stood for 
“environmental, social and governance”. 
 
The Investments Manager said that as the actuary’s estimate of funding level was 
only received at the end of each quarter, the impact of the latest market turbulence, 
with yields on gilts at their lowest for a century, was not yet known.  
Mr Finch presented the JLT investment review. He said that the report was already 
outdated to a greater extent than usual, because of market turbulence since 30 
June. For example, the report refers to yields on long-term gilts of over 4%, whereas 
the previous day they had been down to 3.5-3.6%. Current yields on gilts were 
unprecedented. Markets were concerned that interest rates were likely to remain low 
for some time. Some time ago fears had been expressed that the UK’s credit rating 
might be downgraded, but since then debt crises had emerged in Spain, Greece and 
Portugal, while the UK had persuaded markets that it was addressing its own debt 
problems, though the rhetoric about this might be tougher than the reality. The Avon 
Pension Fund was slightly underweighted in equities, so is maybeslightly better 
placed than other local authority pension funds. Corporate bonds yields had fallen, 
but not as much as government bonds, and the differential between corporate and 
government bond yields had increased.  
 
Page 14 of the JLT report gave a snapshot of allocations and values at 30 June 
2011. Since then there had been total disinvestment from Lyster Watson and the 
allocation to Man had been reduced.  
 
The Chair asked about the statement that because of data timing issues returns for 
the Partners’ portfolio are lagged by a quarter in the performance reports. He was 
uncomfortable with this, and felt that if the Panel and the Committee were to monitor 
this portfolio effectively they needed more up-to-date information. He wondered 
whether Partners could be persuaded to release information earlier, or whether there 
were alternative sources of information. The Investments Manager explained that 
information from Partners isnot received in time for WM to calculate the performance 
statistics in time for the Panel meetings, which occurred earlier in the quarter than 

Page 202



 

 
Page 3 of 4 

 

meetings of the full Committee Members agreed that a verbal report on Partners 
performance will be required at meetings of the Panel and Committee.  
 
Mr Finch highlighted the following issues with the investment managers. Jupiter had 
underperformed over 12 months, but this was because of the nature of the mandate. 
JLT had concerns about TT’s overall strategy, which the Panel might want to put to 
them when they attended the workshop later today. The Panel might also wish to 
consider the recent large drop in the size of SSgA-Europe ex-UK pooled fund. There 
was no reason to think this would necessarily result in a fall in performance, and the 
fund was performing well at the moment.  With the growth of global mandates, 
regional funds not as popular with institutional investors.  He would have no 
concerns about the APF being the only investor in the fund, provided that SSgA-
Europe were committed to maintain its current mode of operation. It would unwise to 
change the mandate while performance was good, but the situation should be 
monitored. A dip in performance might indicate that it was time to review APF’s 
allocation in this fund. 
 
Mr Finch drew attention to the graph of TT’s relative returns on page 25 of the JLT 
report, which showed a rolling three-year deterioration. He suggested that the 
workshop should focus on this, what they were doing to address it, and whether they 
were making appropriate adjustments in response to current economic conditions. 
 
A Member asked about the reliance of investment managers on computer models. 
Mr Finch replied that TT was an active manager, using fundamental analysis rather 
than quantitative modelling and had used a valuation matrix for many years. It was 
vital for investment managers to consider which companies were likely to do well in 
the current economic climate. It was unlikely that there would be a strong recovery, 
but some companies would do well and when some of the present uncertainties had 
abated it was quite likely that there would be a spate of mergers and acquisitions. 
SSgA uses quantitative models with limited managers’ judgement. 
 
RESOLVED 
 
1. To note the Fund’s return on investments and details of managers’ 
performance as set out in the report. 
 

2. To bring to the attention of  the Avon Pension Fund Committee (as recorded 
in the Performance Report in a later agenda item): 
 
a. The Panel’s request that Officers verbally update the Panel and 
Committee on the latest performance of Partners where necessary. 
 

b. The Panel’sintention to inviteSSgA to the next Investment Panel 
meeting to allow the Panel to fully assess the current situation with 
regard to the overall size of the SSgA pooled funds in which the Fund 
is invested. 

 
 
 
 
 

The meeting ended at 10.30 am  

Page 203



 

 
Page 4 of 4 

 

 
Chair(person)  

 
Date Confirmed and Signed  

 
Prepared by Democratic Services 
 

Page 204



Printed on recycled paper 1

 

Bath & North East Somerset Council 
 

MEETING: AVON PENSION FUND COMMITTEE 
MEETING 
DATE: 23 SEPTEMBER 2011 AGENDA 

ITEM 
NUMBER  

TITLE: Review Of Investment Performance For Periods Ending 30 June 2011 
WARD: ALL 

AN OPEN PUBLIC ITEM 
List of attachments to this report: 
Appendix 1 – Fund Valuation 
Appendix 2 – JLT performance monitoring report 
Appendix 3 - Euro and European Financials exposure  
Exempt Appendix 4 – Summaries of Investment Panel meetings with Investment 
Managers 
 
1 THE ISSUE 
1.1 This paper reports on the investment performance of the Fund and seeks to 

update the Committee on routine strategic areas concerning the Fund’s 
investments. 

1.2 This report contains performance statistics for periods ending 30 June 2011. 
1.3 The main body of the report comprises the following sections: 

 Section 4. Investment Performance: A - Fund, B - Investment Managers. 
 Section 5. Investment Strategy 
 Section 6. Funding Level Update 

  Section 7. Portfolio Rebalancing and Cash Management 
  Section 8. Corporate Governance and Socially Responsible Investment (SRI)  

 Update 
 
2 RECOMMENDATION 
That the Avon Pension Fund Committee: 
2.1 Notes the information as set out in the report. 
 
 

Agenda Item 16

Page 205



Printed on recycled paper 2

3 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
3.1 The returns achieved by the Fund for the three years commencing 1 April 2010 

will impact the next triennial valuation which will be calculated as at 31 March 
2013. Section 6 of this report discusses the trends in the Fund’s liabilities and the 
funding level. 

4 INVESTMENT PERFORMANCE  
4.1 JLT’s report in Appendix 2 provides a full commentary on the performance of the 

fund (pages 15 to 21), the investment managers (pages 22 to 42) and a 
commentary on investment markets (pages 5 to 11). In the section on the Fund 
(page 15), three year rolling returns are included to provide a longer term 
perspective. 

A – Fund Performance   
4.2 The Fund’s assets rose in value by £396m (+16.5%) over the previous 12 months 

and £42m (+1.5%) in the quarter, giving a value for the investment Fund of 
£2,701m at 30 June 2011.  Appendix 1 provides a breakdown of the Fund 
valuation and allocation of monies by asset class and managers.  

4.3 The Fund’s investment return and performance relative to benchmarks is 
summarised in Table 1. 

Table 1: Fund Investment Performance, periods to 30 June 2011
3 years 
 (p.a.)

Avon Pension Fund 1.5% 16.5% 7.2%
Strategic benchmark 1.1% 16.3% 6.1%
(Fund relative to benchmark) (+0.4%) (+0.2%) (+1.1%)
Customised benchmark 1.5% 16.7% 7.9%
(Fund relative to benchmark) (=) (-0.2%) (-0.7%)
Local Authority Average Fund 1.6% 17.8% 6.5%
(Fund relative to benchmark) (-0.1%) (-1.3%) (+0.7%)

3 months  12 months

 

4.4 Avon Pension Fund: Quarterly return driven by good returns from bonds, with 
positive contributions coming from most equity regions and property. These offset 
small negative overall returns from the hedge funds this quarter. Annual return 
driven by positive absolute returns across all asset classes especially equities. 

4.5 Versus Strategic Benchmark (which reflects an allocation of 60% equities, 
20% bonds, 10% property, 10% hedge funds): Quarterly relative 
outperformance driven by Fund being overweight both UK and overseas equities 
(versus the benchmark) and the equity and bond managers outperforming their 
benchmarks. Annual outperformance resulted from being underallocated to hedge 
funds which have underperformed other asset classes and from the Fund’s 
property and bond managers outperforming benchmark returns from their asset 
classes over the year. This  is despite a small cash holding.  

Page 206



Printed on recycled paper 3

4.6 Versus Customised Benchmark (which reflects the individual benchmarks 
of each manager and as such, measures the relative performance of the 
managers as a whole): Underperformed the benchmark over the year, with 
underperformance of Jupiter, TT, Stenham and Lyster Watson more than 
offsetting outperformance by State Street, RLAM and Gottex. The other managers 
performed broadly in line with their benchmarks. 

4.7 Versus Local Authority Average Fund: Annual relative underperformance 
driven by Fund's lower than average allocation to equities which performed 
positively over the year, and higher than average allocation to hedge funds which 
did not match the returns made by equities. 

4.8 Since the end of June global equity markets retreated with the FTSE All Share 
index falling c. 13% (to 9 September).  In contrast, the total return for the Over 15-
year Gilt index was c. 12% during the same period.  The Fund value is estimated 
to be c. £2.55bn, down c. 6%.  These market moves impact the funding position 
and this is discussed in Section 6 below.  

4.9 At the time of writing this report, the markets remain extremely volatile but with 
negative sentiment overall.  Given that the sovereign debt and fiscal crisis in the 
Eurozone has not been resolved and official statistics for consumer confidence 
and global economic growth show a deteriorating economic environment.  As a 
result the risk of many western countries going into recession has increased.  In 
such an environment bond yields are expected to stay at low levels and the 
outlook for corporate earnings could deteriorate. 

B – Investment Manager Performance 
4.10 A detailed report on the performance of each investment manager has been 

produced by JLT – see pages 21 to 41 of Appendix 2. Their report does not 
identify any performance issues with the managers. 

4.11 The decisions taken following the review of the Fund’s investments in hedge 
funds were fully implemented in August. 

4.12 The Committee agreed in December 2010 to appoint Schroder to manage the 
Fund’s active global equity mandate.  Following a managed transition process, the 
assets were transferred to Schroder on 20 April 2011. 

4.13 At its meeting on 7 September, the Investment Panel discussed the decrease in 
the overall size of the State Street pooled funds in which the Fund is invested.  
The Panel have requested that State Street attend the next Investment Panel 
meeting to allow the Panel to fully assess the current situation. 

4.14 The Investment Panel requested that following the decision to lag the reporting of 
Partners performance data by a quarter (due to the difficulty in collecting the data 
within the necessary timeframe for inclusion in the quarterly report), that Officers 
verbally update the Panel and Committee on the latest performance of Partners 
where necessary. 

4.15  As part of the ongoing “Meet the Managers” programme, the Investment Panel 
received presentations from 3 managers in a workshop on September 7: 
BlackRock, TT and Schroder Property. The summaries of these meetings are in 
Exempt Appendix 4.  

Page 207



Printed on recycled paper 4

5 INVESTMENT STRATEGY 
5.1 JLT’s report notes the changes to the strategic allocation that were implemented 

this quarter following the decision by the Committee to increase the allocation to 
overseas equities and reduce the allocation to UK equities within the equity 
portfolio. This implementation was completed with the transition of assets to 
Schroder described above. 

5.2 Following the appointment of Record as the Fund’s active currency hedging 
manager, the implementation of the currency hedging programme commenced in 
July and will be implemented fully within a 12 month timeframe. The decision to 
employ an active currency hedge was an action that came out of the conclusions 
following the strategic investment review in 2009. 

5.3 Appendix 3 provides an analysis of the Fund’s current exposure to Euro 
denominated assets and European financial institutions in light of the current 
concerns regarding European sovereign debt and the potential impact upon 
financial institutions. The Fund’s exposure to Spanish and Italian government 
bonds is very small (there is no exposure to Greece, Ireland and Portugal). 
Approximately 7% of the Fund’s equity holdings are exposed to UK and European 
financial institutions. The active currency hedging programme currently covers 
approximately 25% of the Fund’s Euro denominated equity exposure of 
approximately £185m in total. Implementation of the programme is continuing.  

6 FUNDING LEVEL UPDATE 
6.1 As at 30 June 2011 the Actuary has estimated that the funding level is 82%, the 

same as at 31 March 2010 triennial valuation.   
6.2 Since the 2010 valuation, the value of the assets have increased by £255m 

(10.4%) to £2.7bn, and liabilities increased by £296m (9.8%) to £3.3bn. As a 
result the deficit has increased from £552m to £593m.  Note that the revised 
funding level takes into account benefit payments and contributions received 
during the period. 

6.3 Table 2 shows the change in financial assumptions: 

 
 

6.4 Since the end of June, equity values have fallen and bond prices risen, neither of 
which are positive for the funding level.  The fall in the value of the Fund since the 

Page 208



Printed on recycled paper 5

end of June is estimated to be around 6%.  Of more significance is the fall in long-
dated gilt yields which have declined at least 0.5% (to c. 3.8%) since end June 
(real yields fallen to c. 0.45%).  Such a significant fall in bond yields (which is the 
basis of the discount rate used to value liabilities) could increase the liabilities by 
an estimated 7-10%.  As a result, the funding level is estimated to have fallen to 
70-75% range.  It should however be noted that this is just a snapshot of the 
funding level at a particular point in time. 

6.5 The Actuary is preparing an interim valuation at the Fund level as at 31 March 
2011, rolled forward to 31 August.  This will be discussed at the Committee 
workshop and meeting on 9 December 2011.  The Actuary will also discuss the 
possible implications of the changes to the scheme as a result of the (expected) 
Hutton proposals and the changes put forward to achieve savings equivalent to 
3.2% of contributions. 

  

7 PORTFOLIO REBALANCING AND CASH MANAGEMENT  
Portfolio Rebalancing 
7.1 The rebalancing policy requires rebalancing of the Equity/Bond allocation to occur 

when the equity portion deviates from 75% by +/- 2%, and the valuation metric, in 
this case the equity gilt yield ratio, confirms that the relative valuation between 
equities and bonds is favourable.  The implementation of this policy is delegated 
to officers.  

7.2 There was no rebalancing undertaken this quarter. As at 31 July 2011 the 
Equity:Bond allocation was estimated at 74.6:25.4. It is estimated that recent 
equity market falls will have reduced the equity weighting further. 

Cash Management 
7.3 Cash is not included in the strategic benchmark.  However, cash is held by the 

managers at their discretion within their investment guidelines, and internally to 
meet working requirements.  The segregated portfolios, TT, Jupiter, Schroder 
Equity and BlackRock utilise money market funds offered by the custodian, BNY 
Mellon.  The cash within the pooled funds is managed internally by the manager.  
The cash managed by BlackRock in the property portfolio is invested in the 
BlackRock Sterling Liquidity Fund.  The officers closely monitor the management 
of the Fund’s cash held by the managers and custodian with a particular emphasis 
on the security of the cash.   

7.4 Management of the cash held internally by the Fund to meet working requirements 
is delegated to the Council's Treasury Management Team.  The monies are 
invested separately from the Council's monies and are invested in line with the 
Fund's Treasury Management Policy which was approved on 18 December 2009. 
The Fund adopts the Council’s counterparty list and the latest list approved by the 
Council in February 2011. 

8 CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND SRI UPDATE 
8.1 The Fund is a member of the Local Authority Pension Fund Forum (LAPFF), a 

collaborative body that exists to serve the investment interests of local authority 
pension funds.  In particular, LAPFF seeks to maximise the influence the funds 

Page 209



Printed on recycled paper 6

have as shareholders through co-ordinating shareholder activism amongst the 
pension funds.  

8.2 LAPFF’s current activity includes:  
(1) Integrated Reporting Movement 

Current reporting standards such as International Financial Reporting 
Standards require organisations to produce a “fair and reasonable” account of 
their business in audited financial reports. However, these reports do not fully 
integrate the long-term social, environmental and economic contexts of their 
operating environments. While some companies produce stand-alone 
sustainability reports, they sometimes fail to make the link between their 
sustainability agenda and the company’s overall strategy and business model. 
LAPFF has over a number of years been engaging with companies on 
increasing their Environmental Social Governance (ESG) disclosure within the 
Business Review of their annual reports. LAPFF believes “an integrated report 
is the most appropriate (possibly the only) place a company can hope to 
convey an understanding of how it combines physical and intangible 
resources into processes and practices that provide the organisational capital 
that sets one company apart from another.” 

(2) Engagement activity: 
a) News Corp – LAPFF initiated a dialogue with News Corp in June 2010 to 

address the company’s poor governance record. LAPFF will be meeting 
with News Corp directors in August 2011 to convey concerns about the 
situation and the concentration of power on the Board. The company’s 
succession plans and the Board’s oversight of internal investigations into 
the ethical conduct of company officers will also be discussed. 

b) Palm Oil - LAPFF is currently engaging with companies in the food and 
beverage sector on the importance of seeking sustainable palm oil within 
their global supply chains. 

c) Successful engagement outcome, FirstGroup - Unions first raised 
concerns over alleged anti-union activity in the Company’s US operations 
in 2006. In response to the allegations, LAPFF engaged with both the 
Company and the unions through a series of investor meetings. LAPFF 
proposed the introduction of a “Compliance Monitoring Program” with an 
independent monitor. Several years later, the successful operation of the 
policy has much improved relations between the company and union 
members. It’s an important example of shareholders playing a proactive 
role in ensuring that management and employees at an investee company 
work together more effectively for the benefit of all, and where LAPFF’s 
intervention was a proactive factor.  

 
9 RISK MANAGEMENT 
9.1 A key risk to the Fund is that the investments fail to generate the returns required 

to meet the Fund’s future liabilities.  This risk is managed via the Asset Liability 
Study which determines the appropriate risk adjusted return profile (or strategic 
benchmark) for the Fund and through the selection process followed before 
managers are appointed.  This report monitors the return of the strategic 
benchmark and the performance of the investment managers.  An Investment 

Page 210



Printed on recycled paper 7

Panel has been established to consider in greater detail investment performance 
and related matters and report back to the committee on a regular basis. 

10 EQUALITIES 
10.1 This report is primarily for information only. 
11 CONSULTATION 
11.1 This report is primarily for information and therefore consultation is not 

necessary. 
12 ISSUES TO CONSIDER IN REACHING THE DECISION 
12.1 The issues to consider are contained in the report. 
13 ADVICE SOUGHT 
13.1 The Council's Monitoring Officer (Council Solicitor) and Section 151 Officer 

(Divisional Director - Finance) have had the opportunity to input to this report and 
have cleared it for publication. 

Contact person  Liz Feinstein, Investments Manager (Tel: 01225 395306) 
Background papers LAPPF Member Bulletins, Data supplied by The WM 

Company 
Please contact the report author if you need to access this report in an 
alternative format 
 

Page 211



Page 212

This page is intentionally left blank



             APPENDIX 1 
AVON PENSION FUND VALUATION – 30 JUNE 2011 

 

Passive Multi-
Asset Active Equities Enhanced 

Indexation 
Active 
Bonds 

Funds 
of 

Hedge 
Funds 

Property 
In 

House 
Cash 

TOTAL 
Avon 
Asset 
Mix % 

All figures in £m Black-
Rock 

Black-
Rock 2* TT Int’l Jupiter 

(SRI) Genesis Schroder 
Global Invesco State 

Street 
Royal 
London  Schroder & 

Partners 
   

EQUITIES               

UK 271.0 15.9 133.4 106.5  18.3       545.1 20.2% 
North America 126.5 8.7    54.3       189.5 7.0% 
Europe 133.5 6.3    21.7  34.0     195.5 7.2% 
Japan 35.4     10.2  28.1     73.7 2.7% 
Pacific Rim 49.8     12.5  30.6     92.9 3.5% 
Emerging Markets     147.4 25.5       172.9 6.4% 
Global ex-UK       170.3      170.3 6.3% 
Global inc-UK 239.4            239.4 8.9% 
Total Overseas 584.6 15.0   147.4 124.2 170.3 92.7     1134.2 42.0% 
Total Equities 855.6 30.9 133.4 106.5 147.4 142.5 170.3 92.7     1679.3 62.2% 
BONDS               
Index Linked Gilts 165.6            165.6 6.1% 
Conventional Gilts 157.1 36.0           193.1 7.1% 
Sterling Corporate 6.1        134.7    140.8 5.2% 
Overseas Bonds 76.4            76.4 2.8% 
Total Bonds 405.2 36.0       134.7    575.9 21.2% 
Hedge Funds          219.0   219.0 8.1% 
Property           182.4  182.4 6.8% 
Cash 5.0 10.6 1.4 6.6  7.6      13.5 44.7 1.7% 
TOTAL 1265.8 77.5 134.8 113.1 147.4 150.1 170.3 92.7 134.7 219.0 182.4 13.5 2701.3 100.0% 

N.B. (i) Valued at BID (where appropriate) 
 (ii) In-house cash = short term deposits at NatWest managed on our behalf by B&NES plus general cash held at Custodian 
 (iii) BlackRock 2 * = represents the assets to be invested in property, temporarily managed by BlackRock 

P
age 213



P
age 214

T
his page is intentionally left blank



   

Review for period to 30 June 2011 
Avon Pension Fund    

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
JLT INVESTMENT CONSULTING 

Page 215



Avon Pension Fund  

2

Contents 

Section One – Executive Summary 3

Section Two – Market Background 5

Section Three – Fund Valuations 12

Section Four – Performance Summary 15

Section Five – Manager Performance 22

Jupiter Asset Management – UK Equities (Socially Responsible Investing) 24

TT International – UK Equities (Unconstrained) 25

Invesco – Global ex-UK Equities (Enhanced Indexation) 26

SSgA – Europe ex-UK Equities (Enhanced Indexation) 27

SSgA – Pacific incl. Japan Equities (Enhanced Indexation) 28

Genesis Asset Managers – Emerging Market Equities 29

Lyster Watson Management Inc – Fund of Hedge Funds 30

MAN – Fund of Hedge Funds 31

Signet – Fund of Hedge Funds 32

Stenham – Fund of Hedge Funds 33

Gottex – Fund of Hedge Funds 34

BlackRock – Passive Multi-Asset 35

BlackRock No.2 – Property account (“ring fenced” assets) 36

Royal London Asset Management – Fixed Interest 37

Schroder – UK Property 38

Partners – Overseas Property 40

Appendix A – Glossary of Charts 43

Appendix B – Summary of Mandates 45

Bekki Jones, BSc (Hons), IMC  John Finch, ASIP, FCII
Senior Investment Consultancy Analyst  Divisional Director
  August 2011 

Page 216



Avon Pension Fund 3

Section One – Executive Summary 
! This report is produced by JLT Investment Consulting ("JLT") to assess the performance and risks of 

the investment managers of the Avon Pension Fund (the “Fund”), and of the Fund as a whole.    

Highlights

! The total Fund's assets rose in value by £42m over the second quarter of 2011, to £2,701m as at the 

end of June 2011.      

! Over the last quarter, the total Fund's assets produced a positive absolute investment return of 

1.5%, performing in line with the customised benchmark.  Over the last year, the Fund produced a 

return of 16.5%, which was behind the customised benchmark return by 0.2%.  Over 3 years, the 

Fund has produced a return of 7.2% p.a., underperforming the customised benchmark by 0.7% p.a. 

! Over the quarter, the returns from bonds, and UK index-linked bonds in particular, were the primary 

drivers of positive returns, with positive contributions also coming from most equity regions and the 

property funds.   

! Over the one year period, absolute performance remains positive due to 4 consecutive quarters of 

positive returns.   

! This quarter the Fund performed in line with the benchmark. This was due to the positive 

performances by most managers being largely offset by the underperformance of the fund of hedge 

fund managers.  The strongest relative returns were generated from Jupiter and Genesis.  

! There were changes to the Fund's asset allocation during the quarter besides those driven by 

market movements.  The decision by the Committee to increase the allocation to overseas equities 

within the equity portfolio was completed with the implementation of the Schroder global equity 

mandate.  Further funding of the property portfolios also took place over the quarter. 

Conclusion

! Strategic allocation:  The Fund's strategic allocation remains well diversified in terms of asset class 

and regional exposure.  There were changes made to the strategic asset allocation, mainly the 

appointment of Schroder to manage a global equity portfolio.  The changes to the strategic asset 

allocation are now complete following this implementation.   We have identified no causes for 

concern with this strategy outside of the areas that have been discussed and progressed by the 

Investment Panel.  We also note the Fund's search for an active hedging currency manager has 

concluded and Record Currency Management is due to be implemented during the third quarter of 

2011. 

! Manager Performance: We have identified no areas of significant concern regarding the managers.  

However, it should be noted that the SSgA Europe (ex UK) Enhanced Index Fund fell in size from 

£306.12million as at 31 March 2011 to £46.85million as at 30 June 2011.  SSgA has stated that this 

was due to one of its largest investors in this fund withdrawing their assets as part of a strategic 

review.   

! The largest negative return over the quarter came from Lyster Watson, and all but one of the fund of 

hedge fund managers produced negative absolute returns.  The largest positive return over the 

quarter came from Jupiter.   

Page 217



Avon Pension Fund 4

! The Fund's review of the Fund of Hedge Fund allocation is now complete and the recommended 

changes will be implemented in July and August 2011.   

Page 218



Avon Pension Fund 5

Section Two – Market Background 
! The table below summarises the various market returns to 30 June 2011, which relate the analysis 

of the Fund's performance to the global economic and market background. 

 
Market statistics 

Market Returns 

Growth Assets 

3 Mths 

%

1 Year

%
Change in Sterling 

3 Mths 

%

1 Year 

%

UK Equities 1.9 25.6 Against US Dollar 0.2 7.3 

Overseas Equities 0.2 21.5 Against Euro -2.0 -9.3 

USA 0.0 21.8 Against Yen -2.4 -2.1 

Europe 2.6 29.5 Yields as at 30 June 2011 % p.a. 

Japan 0.2 5.4 UK Equities 2.99 

Asia Pacific (ex Japan) -0.1 21.3 UK Gilts (>15 yrs) 4.22 

Emerging Markets -1.8 17.5 Real Yield (>5 yrs ILG) 0.48 

Property  2.1 9.1 Corporate Bonds (>15 yrs AA) 5.54 

Hedge Funds  -0.4 12.5 Non-Gilts (>15 yrs) 5.53 

Commodities -8.1 17.5 

High Yield 1.1 10.1 
 

Cash 0.1 0.5 

   
Absolute Change in Yields 

3 Mths 

%

1 Year 

%

Market Returns 

Bond Assets 

3 Mths 

%

1 Year

%
UK Gilts (>15 yrs) -0.1 0.1 

UK Gilts (>15 yrs) 2.3 2.8 Index-Linked Gilts (>5 yrs) -0.2 -0.2 

Index-Linked Gilts (>5 yrs) 4.5 9.7 Corporate Bonds (>15 yrs AA) 0.0 0.2 

Corporate Bonds (>15 yrs 

AA) 

1.2 3.5 
Non-Gilts (>15 yrs) 0.0 0.1 

Non-Gilts (>15 yrs) 1.3 4.3    

   

Inflation Indices 
3 Mths 

%

1 Year

%

Price Inflation - RPI  1.2 5.0 * is subject to 1 month lag   

Price Inflation - CPI  1.1 4.2    

Earnings Inflation * 0.9 2.4    

Page 219



Avon Pension Fund 6

Statistical highlights 

! The rate of CPI inflation rose from 4.0% in March to 4.2% in June, and has overshot the Bank of 

England's 2% target for 34 of the past 40 months.  The Bank of England's Monetary Policy 

Committee kept interest rates on hold at 0.5% over the quarter.   

! UK retailers continue to suffer as consumer spending falls; Thorntons and Carpetright both 

announced their intention to close stores.  Meanwhile TJ Hughes has gone into administration 

following Jane Norman, Homeform and the furniture firm Habitat.    

! The Office for National Statistics ("ONS") reported that the number of people unemployed increased 

by 38,000 over the quarter to reach 2.49million in June 2011.  The unemployment rate was 7.9%, up 

0.1% on the quarter.   

! The European Central Bank ("ECB") has raised interest rates from 1.25% to 1.5% in a bid to curb 

inflation and signalled further potential rate rises, despite faltering growth in southern Europe and the 

crisis facing the peripheral European Government bond markets. 

! The pound depreciated against the Euro and Yen over the quarter but was little changed against the 

US Dollar.  Fears about the pace of the UK's economic recovery and the likelihood that interest rates 

will remain at a low level have unsettled the currency markets.   

! The FTSE All-Share Index achieved a positive return over the quarter of 1.9%, despite moderating 

economic data, a sudden increase in the number of profit warnings, heightened anxiety over the 

potential risk of default in Greece and the uncertainty regarding the strength of the global economic 

recovery.  The quarter saw sharp intra-day moves at the market and stock level and unseasonably 

low liquidity.  Although the equity market rose sharply in the latter part of June after the Greek 

Parliament approved austerity measures, which gave the positive return for the quarter as a whole, it 

has subsequently lost most of these gains as the risk of contagion to Italy and Spain became the 

focus of attention.  

! Overall equities had a somewhat muted quarter with the Asia Pacific ex Japan and Emerging 

Markets regions again producing negative returns in sterling terms.  The US and Japanese markets 

were little changed over the quarter while the Europe ex UK region produced a return of 2.6%.  The 

performance of global equities over the quarter was largely impacted by falls in commodity prices, 

which achieved a return of -8.1% amid concerns about the stalling recovery in developed economies 

and a slowdown in growth in emerging markets. 

! Gilts produced a return of 2.3% over the quarter and corporate bonds produced a return of 1.2%. 

UK market events – Q2 2011 

! Quantitative Easing:  The Bank of England has not extended its £200 billion quantitative easing 

programme.   

! Government Debt:  At the end of June 2011 UK national debt stood at £944.3 billion, or 61.9% of 

GDP, as compared to £803.7 billion (55.3% of GDP) at the end of June 2010. 

! Unemployment:  The number of people unemployed in the UK increased by 38,000 over the three 

months to June to reach 2.49 million.  The unemployment rate for the three months to June 2011 

was 7.9%, up 0.1% over the quarter.  The number of people claiming Jobseeker's Allowance (the 

claimant count) increased by 24,500 between May 2011 and June 2011 to 1.52 million according to 

the ONS. 

Page 220



Avon Pension Fund 7

! Manufacturing Sector:  The Purchasing Managers’ Index (“PMI”) manufacturing survey fell to a 

twenty one month low, seasonally adjusted figure of 51.3 in June after declining to 52.0 in May.  The 

50-level being the point at which ‘contraction’ is deemed to become ‘growth’. 

! Inflation:  CPI annual inflation was 4.2% in June 2011, down from 4.5% in May 2011.  RPI annual 

inflation was 5.0%, down from 5.3% in May 2011.  RPIX inflation, which excludes mortgage interest 

payments, was 5.0% in June 2011, down from 5.3% in May 2011.  The equivalent annualised EU 

CPI figure for March was 3.2%.  The largest downward pressures to the change in CPI inflation 

came from recreation and culture where prices, overall, fell by 0.9% between May and June 2011.  

The largest upward pressure came from food and non-alcoholic beverages where prices, overall, 

rose by 0.9% between May and June this year compared with a decrease of 0.1% between the 

same two months a year ago. 

! Gross Domestic Product ("GDP"):  In the second quarter of 2011, GDP increased by 0.2%.  There 

were a number of special events cited as the reasons for lower than expected growth in the second 

quarter, including the additional April bank holiday, the royal wedding and the after-effects of the 

Japanese tsunami and subsequent nuclear failure.  These special events are estimated to have had 

a net downward impact on second quarter GDP.  Total services output increased by 0.5% in the 

second quarter compared with an increase of 0.9% in the previous quarter.  

! Interest Rate:  Despite inflation remaining well above the Bank of England's target of 2.0%, the 

Bank's Monetary Policy Committee maintained interest rates at a record low of 0.5%, which has 

been the case since March 2009.  The Bank has faced a difficult choice - either keep interest rates 

low to try to aid the economic recovery, or raise them to try to cool inflation.    

 

Europe market events – Q2 2011 

! European sovereign debt crisis:  In Europe, concern is growing that Spain, the Eurozone's fourth-

largest economy, hamstrung by meagre growth and high unemployment, will fail to put its finances in 

order and need a Greek-style bailout.  Financial markets too face more turmoil after Moody's put 

Spain's Aa2 credit rating on review for possible downgrade while US debt talks are still deadlocked.  

The news sent the Euro falling and stock markets across the Eurozone down.  Moody's mentioned 

that the recent Greek aid package set a precedent for private sector participation in future debt 

restructurings in the Eurozone. The credit rating agency added that a downgrade is likely to be 

limited to one notch.   

! Spain and Italy:  Spain and Italy were forced to pay a higher price to sell short-term debt amid 

concerns that the recent Greek bailout had failed to solve the problems in the Eurozone. Spain's 

short-term cost of borrowing hit three-year highs and demand fell at its Treasury bills auction, while 

yields at a sale of six-month Italian paper hit their highest since November 2008.  Spanish and Italian 

benchmark bond yields rose after the auctions, and the premium demanded to hold Spanish debt 

rather than lower-risk German bonds widened. 

! Greece: After securing a second rescue package to prop up its debt-stricken economy, Greece has 

implored its citizens to honour the agreement by repatriating cash whisked abroad during the crisis.  

Appealing to businessmen, ship owners and financiers who transferred large amounts of wealth out 

of the crisis-hit country, finance minister Evangelos Venizelos said that the bailout had ensured that 

Greek banks were now among the safest in the world. Having said that, ratings agency Moody's has 

cut Greece's debt rating by three notches to Ca, leaving it just one notch above what is considered 

default. The ratings agency also stated that chances of default were now virtually 100%. 

Page 221



Avon Pension Fund 8

! Unemployment:  The EU27 unemployment rate was at 9.4% in June 2011, unchanged compared 

with May 2011.  Among the Member States, the lowest unemployment rates were recorded in 

Austria (4.0%), the Netherlands (4.1%) and Luxembourg (4.5%), and the highest in Spain (21.0%), 

Lithuania (16.3% in the first quarter of 2011) and Latvia (16.2% in the first quarter of 2011).  

! Services and Manufacturing Sectors: The Eurozone composite PMI registered 50.8 in July 2011 

down from 53.3 in June 2011.   Manufacturing PMI fell to 50.4 from 52.0 in June while services PMI 

declined to 51.4 from 53.7 in June.   

! Inflation:  The inflation rate in the Euro Area was reported at 2.7% in June 2011. 

! GDP:  GDP growth for the second quarter was not available at the time of writing, although it is 

expected to be below the 0.8% achieved during the first quarter of 2011. 

! Interest Rate:  The European Central Bank has increased its base rate by 0.25% in July 2011.  The 

base rate now stands at 1.50%. 

US market events – Q2 2011 

! Unemployment: The rate of unemployment in the US increased from 8.8% in March 2011 to 9.2% 

in June 2011.  However, this was a decrease from the 9.4% rate in December 2010. 

! Manufacturing and Industrial Production:  Industrial production increased 0.2% in June 2011 

after having edged down 0.1% in May 2011.  For the second quarter as a whole, total industrial 

production increased at an annual rate of 0.8%.  In the manufacturing sector, output remained 

unchanged, ending four consecutive months of strong expansion.   

! Inflation: The US CPI rate increased from 2.7% in March 2011 to 3.6% in June 2011. 

! GDP:  US real GDP increased by 1.3% over the second quarter of 2011, against a 0.4% increase in 

the first quarter.  First-quarter growth was revised down sharply to a 0.4% rate from the earlier 

estimate of a 1.9% gain.   

! Interest Rate:  The Federal Reserve continues to hold interest rates at 0.25%. 

Emerging Markets market events – Q2 2011 

! Emerging market assets could lose their appeal as safe havens for global investors despite their 

recent rally, as mounting global risks threaten to undermine sentiment in the remainder of the year, 

leading industry players have warned.  Emerging market stocks, currencies and bonds surged after 

Greece secured the approval for a new set of austerity measures.  However, experts say that returns 

on emerging market equities and bonds are likely to be subdued for the remainder of the year as 

fears resurface over the Eurozone's debt crisis and rising inflation across emerging economies. 

! South Africa could see significant currency depreciation during the second half of this year due to 

the increasingly risk-averse global investment climate and government recognition that the currency 

is overvalued. The country, Africa's largest economy, has seen a sustained surge in capital inflows 

since early 2009, resulting in significant appreciation of the rand. 

! Brazil has signed a ground-breaking agreement with the African Development Bank to set up a 

South-South cooperation fund in a move it dubbed a 'kind provocation' to its Latin American trading 

rivals. Brazil hopes that other countries from the Southern hemisphere, such as South Africa, India 

and Argentina will also take part in the fund, while China had also been approached.  Brazilian 

Page 222



Avon Pension Fund 9

diplomats have been strengthening ties with Africa in recent years as part of Brazil's push to gain the 

region leaders' support in order to gain a permanent seat at the UN's Security Council. 

Market events – Global summary – 1 year 

Economy 

! The rate of inflation, as measured by the Consumer Prices Index ("CPI") rose from 3.2% in June 

2010 to 4.5% in June 2011.  CPI peaked at 4.5% in April and May 2011 but there is widespread 

expectation that this level may be further surpassed in the coming months.  The Retail Prices Index 

(RPI) reached its highest ever level, 5.5%, in February 2011 before falling back to 5.0% in June 

2011.   

! The Bank of England's Monetary Policy Committee have held the base rate constant at 0.5% over 

the course of the year, the last change having come in March 2009, meaning that the base rate has 

now been at this level for 28 consecutive months.  The decision in early June was voted through 

seven against two with Spencer Dale and Martin Weale voting in favour of an increase of 25 basis 

points. The Committee also voted, eight against one, to maintain the asset purchase program at 

£200 billion, Adam Posen being the lone voice preferring an increase of £50 billion. 

! Gross Domestic Product (GDP) grew at an annualised rate of 0.7% over the year to 30 June 2011.  

GDP turned negative in the fourth quarter of 2010 but fears of a double recession were averted after 

a positive quarter in Q1 2011.  Growth in Q2 2011 was weaker than expected, the Office for National 

Statistics ("ONS") cited additional bank holiday weekends for the royal wedding and the after effects 

of the Japanese tsunami. 

! The UK unemployment rate stood at 7.7%, or 2.45 million, while those unemployed for a year or 

longer was 807,000, as at May 2011.  The ONS noted that the fall in unemployment occurred mainly 

among the young (16 to 24 year olds).  Despite the fall in unemployed, the claimant count 

(Jobseeker's allowance) increased to 1.52 million. 

! The Federal Reserve maintained the US base rate at 0.25%.  The US unemployment rate, an 

important factor in determining market sentiment, has decreased over the year as whole from 9.7% 

to 9.1%.  The unemployment rate had fallen to 8.8% in April 2011 before creeping back up.  The US 

trade deficit widened over the year to over $50 billion.   

! The European Central Bank ("ECB") has raised interest rates from 1.25% to 1.5% in a bid to curb 

inflation and signalled further potential rate rises, despite faltering growth in southern Europe and the 

crisis facing the peripheral European Government bond markets.  The ECB is becoming increasingly 

concerned about the rate of inflation, which has risen from 2.2% to 2.7% during 2011.  

! Sterling strengthened by 7.3% against $US due but weakened against the Euro despite widespread 

economic woes in the periphery Eurozone countries, such as Greece and Ireland.  Sterling also 

depreciated against the Yen as the Japanese repatriated its currency following the tsunami in Q1 

2011. 

! The Irish and Portuguese governments have followed their Greek counterpart cap in hand to the 

ECB to request a bailout.  The Greek government passed stringent austerity measures despite fierce 

protests from its citizens and narrowly avoided defaulting by managing to roll over its current debt 

into longer term obligations.  Many commentators believe that the current measures have just 

moved the default "down the road".   

Page 223



Avon Pension Fund 10

! The hard line interest rate policy of the ECB does contain risks, and has had an impact on Italian 

and Spanish government debt increasing yields to 5.3% and 5.7% respectively.  Public debt in Italy 

is the world's third largest, at €1.84 trillion, and the rise in yields has begun to attract unwelcome 

attention from investors.  There has also been much speculation that the Spanish may join the line 

behind Greece, Ireland and Portugal. 

! The Japanese earthquake and ensuing tsunami, whilst first and foremost a human tragedy, 

unnerved markets in Q1 2011.  Japan is responsible for the manufacture of many components, 

particularly in the automotive and technology industries, and the "just in time" nature of these 

industries meant that the destruction to component plants in Japan had a knock on effect on 

production around the globe. 

! Economic growth in emerging markets fell to the lowest level in two years in the second quarter, as 

tightening monetary policies against the background of increasing inflationary pressures resulted in a 

slowdown in output growth.  Rising finished goods inventories and falling export orders in emerging 

market countries such as South Korea and China, are likely to force companies to reduce further 

levels of production.  The "knock-on" impact may lead to slower growth over 2011. 

 

Equities

! Although equities have been extremely volatile, they have produced strong absolute returns over the 

year to 30 June 2011.  Europe (ex UK) has led the way, in Sterling terms, despite the problems 

facing it, with the UK market in second place.  The US, Asia Pacific and emerging markets all 

produced strong absolute returns whilst the Japanese market struggled on the back of the 

earthquake. 

! Equity performance was driven by better than expected corporate profitability and increased investor 

risk appetite. 

 

Fixed Interest 

! The European debt crisis continues to dominate the headlines and the two major ratings agencies 

have downgraded Greece to junk bond status.  The ECB's decision to raise interest rates to 1.5% is 

a further blow to the southern European peripheral economies, which shows the ECB is more 

concerned about fighting inflation than holding down borrowing costs for embattled governments.  

Portuguese government bonds have also been cut to "junk bond" status and the yields on Italian and 

Spanish government bonds have increased significantly.   

! Gilts produced a positive return over the year but underperformed corporate bonds due to the 

increase in risk appetite.  Long dated gilts produced a return of 2.8% over the year compared to 

4.3% for long dated corporate bonds. 

! Index-linked fixed interest assets produced a return of 9.7% over the year.  Inflation remains a 

concern with the Bank of England unlikely to increase interest rates, despite inflation remaining more 

than 2% above the Bank of England's target. 

Page 224



Avon Pension Fund 11

Alternative Asset Classes 

! Commodities produced a 17.5% return over the year.  The price of gold continued its ever increasing 

upward trend while foodstuffs, such as coffee and sugar, also rose.   

! Commercial property continued its upward trend over the last few months, with rental income the 

main driver of performance. 

! Hedge funds produced a strong absolute return over the year but lagged equities. 

 

Page 225



Avon Pension Fund 12

UK Equities
19.3%

Overseas 
Equities
43.3%

Bonds
21.3%

Fund of Hedge 
Fund
8.1%

Cash
1.4%

Property
6.6%

Section Three – Fund Valuations 
! The chart and table below show the asset allocation of the Fund as at 30 June 2011, with the 

BlackRock Multi-Asset portfolio and the BlackRock property portfolio (assets “ring fenced” for 

investment in property) split between the relevant asset classes. 

Asset class allocation as at 30 June 2011 

Asset Class 30 June 2011 

Value

£'000

Proportion

of Total 

%

Strategic

Benchmark 

Weight 

%

UK Equities 521,128 19.3 18.0 

Overseas Equities 1,167,428 43.3 42.0 

Bonds 576,055 21.3 20.0 

Fund of Hedge Funds 218,915 8.1 10.0 

Cash (including currency instruments) 38,737 1.4 - 

Property 178,605 6.6 10.0 

Reconciling differences and rounding 0 0.0 - 

TOTAL FUND VALUE 2,700,868 100.0 100.0 

Source: Data provided by WM Performance Services 

 

! The value of the Fund's assets rose by £42m over the second quarter of 2011 to £2,701m, as a 

result of positive absolute investment performance from most funds.  Bonds produced the highest 

return over the quarter at 2.9%.  Equities and property were also positive contributors.  Equities 

comprise approximately 63% of the Fund's investments. 

! In terms of asset allocation, changes seen over the quarter include: 

" Changes were made at the strategic level to the proportion of the Fund held in UK and 

overseas equities.  The allocation was reduced for UK equities from 21% to 18%, and 

increased for overseas equities from 39% to 42%. 

Page 226



Avon Pension Fund 13

" This new strategic benchmark was implemented by the appointment of Schroders, the 

Fund's new global equity manager.  This completes the changes to the strategic asset 

allocation.   

" There was some further funding of property investments over the quarter. 

! The valuation of the investment with each manager is provided on the following page. 

Page 227



Avon Pension Fund 14

31 March 2011 30 June 2011 

Manager Asset Class 
Value

£'000

Proportion

of Total 

%

Net New 

Money 

£'000

Value

£'000

Proportion

of Total 

%

Jupiter UK Equities  109,260 4.1 - 113,139 4.2 

TT International UK Equities 132,073 5.0 - 134,814 5.0 

Invesco Global ex-UK 
Equities 169,742 6.4 - 170,252 6.3 

Schroder Global Equities - - 148,204 150,254 5.6 

SSgA Europe ex-UK 
Equities and 
Pacific incl. 
Japan Equities 

91,405 3.4 

- 

92,493 3.4 

Genesis Emerging 
Market Equities 147,096 5.5 - 147,493 5.5 

Lyster Watson Fund of Hedge 
Funds 9,582 0.4 - 9,257 0.3 

MAN Fund of Hedge 
Funds 100,418 3.8 - 97,554 3.6 

Signet Fund of Hedge 
Funds 47,225 1.8 - 47,157 1.7 

Stenham Fund of Hedge 
Funds 11,665 0.4 - 11,436 0.4 

Gottex Fund of Hedge 
Funds 53,490 2.0 - 53,578 2.0 

BlackRock Passive Multi-
asset 1,390,146 52.3 -150,267 1,267,555 46.9 

BlackRock 
(property fund) 

Equities, 
Futures, Bonds, 
Cash (held for 
property inv) 

79,793 3.0 -3,450 77,531 2.9 

RLAM Bonds 131,992 5.0 - 134,650 5.0 

Schroder UK Property 120,487 4.5 910 126,415 4.6 

Partners* Property 53,129 2.0 2,450 54,692 2.0 

Internal Cash* Cash 11,115 0.4 2,153 12,597 0.5 

Rounding  -1 0.0 - -1 0.0 

TOTAL  2,658,617 100.0 - 2,700,868 100.0 

Source: Avon Pension Fund, Data provided by WM Performance Services.  From Q2 2011, Partners valuation will be 
lagged by one quarter.  * Cashflows includes one transaction which has been converted to GBP 

Page 228



Avon Pension Fund 15

Section Four – Performance Summary 
Total Fund performance 

! The chart below shows the absolute performance of the total Fund’s assets over the last 3 years. 

Total Fund absolute and relative performance 

-10%

-5%

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

Q3

08

Q4

08

Q1

09

Q2

09

Q3

09

Q4

09

Q1

10

Q2

10

Q3

10

Q4

10

Q1

11

Q2

11

Qua r t e r l y  r e tur n R ol l i ng 3  ye a r  r e t ur n (% p. a . )

Qua r t e r l y  r e l a t i ve  r e tur n R ol l i ng 3  ye a r  be nc hma r k r e tur n  (% p. a . )

Source: Data provided by WM Performance Services 
 

! Over the last quarter (blue bars) the total Fund's assets produced a return of 1.5%, performing in line 

with the customised benchmark. 

! Over the last year (not shown above) the total Fund's assets produced a positive return of 16.5%, 

marginally underperforming the customised benchmark by 0.2%. 

! Over the last 3 years (blue versus grey line), the total Fund's assets produced a positive return of 

7.2% p.a., underperforming the customised benchmark by 0.7% p.a. 

! The driver of positive absolute performance over the last quarter was the positive absolute returns 

from a large number of the Fund's managers.  Only the fund of hedge fund managers produced 

negative absolute returns, the exception in this asset class being Gottex whose return was positive. 

! The Fund performed in line with its benchmark over the quarter.  There were positive relative 

performances from a number of managers, most notably Jupiter, SSgA Europe, Genesis and the 

newly appointed Schroder unconstrained equity.  However, relative underperformances came from 

all the fund of hedge fund managers, which reflects the difficult environment and also the fact that 

their benchmarks are cash plus benchmarks.   

Page 229



Avon Pension Fund 16

Asset classes' performance 

! The chart below and the table on the following page show the absolute performance of the Fund’s 

assets by asset class over the quarter and year to 30 June 2011.  Note that the returns from the 

BlackRock Multi-Asset portfolio and the second BlackRock portfolio, which hold a combination of 

asset classes, are aggregated within the relevant asset class returns. 

                                   Asset class absolute performance to 30 June 2011 
 

-5%

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

30%

UK Equities Overseas
Equities

Bonds Fund of Hedge
Fund

Cash Property

Absolute return over 1 quarter Absolute return over 1 year

Source: Data provided by WM Performance Services 

! Over the second quarter of 2011, all asset classes produced positive absolute returns except fund of 

hedge funds. 

! The key drivers of absolute performance are: 

" UK and overseas equity markets produced returns of 2.0% and 0.9% respectively.   

" Sterling depreciated against the Euro and the Yen over the quarter, meaning a higher return 

on the Euro and Yen denominated overseas equities in sterling terms.  Sterling appreciated 

against the Dollar, meaning a lower return on the Dollar denominated overseas equities in 

sterling terms.  The majority of equity markets produced negative returns for the quarter in 

local currency terms; the only exception to this was the US whose return was marginally 

positive.  The lowest return came from the emerging markets region. 

" Bonds produced positive absolute returns of 2.9% over the quarter.  This is due to UK, UK 

Index-Linked and Overseas bonds all producing positive absolute returns. 

" The fund of hedge fund portfolio produced a negative return of 1.5% over the quarter.  

" Property portfolio generated a positive return over the quarter of 1.4%.  

! The table overleaf shows the returns from major asset class indices over the quarter and year to 30 

June 2011. 

Page 230



Avon Pension Fund 17

 
Asset Class Weight in 

Strategic
Benchmark 

Q2 2011        
(index returns) 

1 year         
(index returns)

UK Equities 18% 1.9% 25.6% 

  Overseas Equities 42% 0.2% 21.5% 

  Index Linked Bonds * 6% 4.0% 8.9% 

  Gov Bonds – Fixed * 2.5% 3.1% 

  Corporate Bonds * 
14% 

1.7% 6.2% 

  Hedge Funds 10% -0.4% 12.5% 

  Property 10% 2.1% 9.1% 

 Total Fund 100%   

*Please note that these are 'all maturities' index returns and so differ from the 'long maturities' index returns 
shown on the Market Background page in Section Two. 

Page 231



Avon Pension Fund 18

Manager performance 

! The charts below show the absolute return for each manager over the quarter and the year to the 

end of June 2011.  The relative quarter and one year returns are marked with green and blue dots 

respectively.  Please note, the quarterly return for Schroder Equity represents the period from 

inception, 20 April 2011, to the end of the quarter.  

! Please note that due to data timing issues, from this quarter onwards Partner’s returns and values 

will be lagged by a quarter and therefore reflect the previous quarters returns and values. As this is 

the first quarter we have done this – this quarter will have the same start and end values (plus any 

cash investments made) and the quarter's return is zero. This also impacts Partner’s annual return 

figure in this report. 

Absolute and relative performance - quarter to 30 June 2011 
 

-5%

-4%

-3%

-2%

-1%

0%

1%

2%

3%

4%

Ju
pit

er TT

Inv
esc

o

SSg
A

Eur

SSg
A

Pac

Gen
esi

s
Sch

rod
er

Equ
ity

Lys
ter

M
AN

Sign
et

Sten
ha

m

Gott
ex

Blac
kR

oc
k M

ult
i

Blac
kR

oc
k 2

RLAM

Int
ern

al
Cash

Sch
rod

er
pro

pe
rty

Part
ne

rs

1 Quarter absolute return 1 Quarter relative to benchmark

 
Absolute and relative performance - year to 30 June 2011 

 

-5%

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

30%

35%

Ju
pite

r
TT

Inv
esc

o

SSg
A Eur

SSg
A Pac

Gen
esi

s

Lyste
r

M
AN

Sign
et

Sten
ham

Gott
ex

Blac
kRock

M
ult

i

Blac
kRock

 2

RLAM

Internal 
Cash

Sch
rod

er 
prope

rty

Part
ne

rs

1 Year absolute return 1 Year relative to benchmark

 
Source: Data provided by WM Performance Services 
 

! The Fund's Investment managers produced mixed returns over the quarter.  The Fund's fund of 

hedge fund managers mostly produced negative absolute returns, the only exception to this was 

Gottex whose return was positive in absolute terms.  The remaining managers for the Fund 

produced positive absolute returns.  Over the quarter, the strongest absolute performance came 

from Jupiter, producing a return of 3.5%.   

Page 232



Avon Pension Fund 19

! In relative terms, it was again Jupiter who performed the best over the quarter, outperforming their 

benchmark by 1.6%.  The worst relative performance came from MAN who underperformed their 

benchmark by 4.4%. 

! Over the year, all absolute returns were positive.  In absolute terms the strongest performance came 

from SSgA Europe.  In relative terms, the top performer was Partners.  

Page 233



Avon Pension Fund 20

Manager and total Fund risk v return 

! The chart below shows the 1 year absolute return (“Annual Absolute Return”) against the 1 year 

volatility of absolute returns (“Annual Risk”), based on monthly/quarterly (as available) data points in 

sterling terms, to the end of June 2011 of each of the funds, along with the total Fund.   

                                      1 Year Risk v 1 Year Return to 30 June 2011 

Total Fund

BlackRock 
M ulti-Asset

BlackRock 2

Jupiter

Internal - Cash

TT Int

RLAM

Genesis

SSgA Europe

SSgA Pacific

Invesco

M ANGottex Signet

Stenham

Lyster 
Watson

Schroders

Partners

-5%

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

30%

35%

0% 2% 4% 6% 8% 10% 12% 14% 16% 18%
Annual Risk

A
nn

ua
l A

bs
ol

ut
e 

R
et

ur
n

Source: Data provided by WM Performance Services  
 

! The managers are colour coded by asset class, as follows: 

- Green: UK equities - Blue: overseas equities 

- Red: fund of hedge funds - Black: bonds 

- Maroon: multi-asset - Brown: BlackRock No. 2 portfolio 

- Grey: internally managed cash - Pink: Property 

- Green Square: total Fund  

 

! The volatility of returns over the year has broadly decreased from the previous quarter.  There were 

however three funds whose volatility increased, those being RLAM, Lyster Watson and Partners.  

However, this was not by a significant amount and is within the parameters expected for each 

mandate. 

! The returns from the fund of hedge funds are generally unchanged (around the left of the chart), 

however the volatility of Lyster Watson has increased over the quarter and has moved to the right on 

the chart.  

! Most notable risk-adjusted returns came from SSgA Europe, TT International and Jupiter over the 

one year.  The comparatively high volatility shown by TT reflects the more concentrated nature of 

their portfolio. The return from SSgA Europe represents somewhat of a bounce following the difficult 

circumstances in Europe at the beginning of the period.   

! The volatility of all of the various funds is broadly in line with expectations.  The total Fund has 

benefited from diversification by asset classes, as Fund volatility is lower than the equity managers, 

despite these making up a large proportion of the total assets. 

 

Page 234



Avon Pension Fund 21

                                      3 Year Risk v 3 Year Return to 30 June 2011 
 

Total Fund

BlackRock 
M ult i-Asset

BlackRock 2

Jupiter

Internal - Cash

TT Int

RLAM

Genesis

SSgA Europe

SSgA Pacif ic
Invesco

M AN

Gottex

Signet

Stenham

Lyster 
Watson

-10%

-5%

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%
0% 5% 10% 15% 20% 25% 30%

Annual Risk

A
nn

ua
l A

bs
ol

ut
e 

R
et

ur
n

Source: Data provided by WM Performance Services  
 

! The managers are colour coded by asset class, as follows: 

- Green: UK equities - Blue: overseas equities 

- Red: fund of hedge funds - Black: bonds 

- Maroon: multi-asset - Brown: BlackRock No. 2 portfolio 

- Grey: internally managed cash - Green Square: total Fund 

 

! The returns from the fund of hedge funds continue to remain at a lower level (lower down on chart) 

than most of the other managers, with continued significantly lower volatility (to the extreme left).   

! The very strong absolute return from Genesis over the last 3 years has provided a very good risk 

adjusted absolute return, when compared with its annualised volatility and other portfolios. 

! The improvement in the 3 year annual absolute return for Jupiter has continued along with several 

other equity funds, whilst the risk has remained at a similar level.  A difficult quarter for the fund of 

hedge funds has resulted in a fall in returns whilst risk has remained at a similar level.  This has 

partially offset the improvement in equity returns thus only a moderate improvement in the risk 

adjusted return of the overall Fund. 

! The volatility of all of the various funds is broadly in line with expectations.  The total Fund has again, 

over the longer period, benefited from diversification by asset classes, as Fund volatility is lower than 

the equity managers, despite these making up a large proportion of the total assets.  The total Fund 

volatility saw a small decrease over the quarter. 

Page 235



Avon Pension Fund 22

Section Five – Manager Performance 
! This section provides a one page summary of the key risk and return characteristics for each 

investment manager.  An explanatory summary of each of the charts is included in the Glossary in 

Appendix A, with a reference for each chart in the chart title (e.g. #1).  A summary of mandates is 

included in Appendix B, which shows the benchmark and outperformance target for each fund. 

Summary of conclusions 

! We have not identified any significant issues with the performance of the active investment 

managers and have no concerns with investment into any of the active managers for rebalancing 

purposes.  As noted last quarter, the review of the fund of hedge fund allocation is now complete 

and changes as a result of this change will be shown in future reports as they are implemented.  The 

implementation of the newly appointment global unconstrained equity manager was completed in Q2 

2011.  The appointment of an active currency hedging manager was also concluded during Q2 

2011, although the mandate had not commenced as at the end of the quarter.  New investment with 

Jupiter should continue to be subject to discussion whilst the review of the Fund's policy to SRI and 

ESG issues is under review. 

! UK Equity Funds:   

" Jupiter outperformed their benchmark over the quarter by 1.6%.  The Fund produced strong 

risk-adjusted returns for the year ended 30 June 2011.   

" TT International outperformed its benchmark over the quarter; over the one year to 30 June 

2011, the Fund underperformed its benchmark.  The Fund continues to be overweight in 

Consumer services and Basic Materials, with underweight positions to Financials and 

Utilities. 

! The newly appointed unconstrained global equity manager, Schroder, produced a positive absolute 

and relative return during the short period from inception to 30 June 2011. 

! Non-UK Enhanced Indexation Funds:  Both SSgA Enhanced Indexation funds outperformance 

relative to their respective benchmarks over the quarter.  Performance over the one year was also 

positive in relative terms for both of the SSgA Enhanced Indexation funds.  Invesco marginally 

outperformed its benchmark over the quarter.  Over the one year performance was in line with its 

benchmark.  We note however that Invesco's relative performance can be affected by 'timing' 

differences in the pricing of their Fund compared to their benchmark. 

! Emerging Markets: Genesis outperformed their benchmark over the quarter and produced a positive 

absolute return, despite the benchmark return being negative. 

! Fund of Hedge Funds:  

" Lyster Watson produced negative absolute and relative returns of -3.0% and -4.2% 

respectively.  Following completion of the Fund's change to the fund of hedge funds 

portfolio, Lyster Watson is due to be removed from the portfolio.  

" Man produced a negative relative return of 4.4%, producing an absolute return of -2.9%.    

" Signet produced a negative relative return over the quarter, underperforming their 

benchmark by 1.1%.  In absolute terms, Signet produced a return of -0.2%. 

" Stenham Asset Management produced a negative relative return for the quarter, 2.9% 

behind their benchmark, with an absolute return of -2.0%. 

Page 236



Avon Pension Fund 23

" Gottex underperformed their benchmark over the quarter by 0.8%, producing an absolute 

return of 0.2%.  Gottex were the only fund of hedge fund manager to produce a positive 

absolute return over Q2 2011. 

" Hedge funds continued to underperform equities for the fourth consecutive calendar quarter, 

which is to be expected following the market rally after negative equity in returns during Q2 

2010. 

" Of the five fund of hedge fund managers Gottex and Signet were ahead of their benchmarks 

over the year to 30 June 2011. 

! BlackRock passive Funds:  there is nothing unusual arising in risk and performance for the two 

BlackRock passive portfolios. 

! Fixed Interest:  RLAM outperformed the benchmark in the last quarter by 0.1%.  In absolute terms, 

RLAM produced a return of 2.0%.  There are no notable changes in the risk profile of this fund.   

! Property:  Performance of the Schroder property fund over the quarter was positive in both absolute 

and relative terms.  See note on page 18 for explanation of a change in performance reporting of the 

Partners fund.  Once a 3 year track record is available for a meaningful proportion of the Fund's 

commitment with Schroder and Partners, a fuller quantitative assessment will be available.  For the 

time being, a qualitative assessment is included for each of these two managers, as such details are 

not provided in the charts following. 

 

Page 237



Avon Pension Fund 24

Jupiter Asset Management – UK Equities (Socially Responsible Investing) 

Relative returns #1

-12%
-10%
-8%
-6%
-4%
-2%
0%
2%
4%
6%
8%

10%
12%

Q2

08

Q3

08

Q4

08

Q1

09

Q2

09

Q3

09

Q4

09

Q1

10

Q2

10

Q3

10

Q4

10

Q1

11

Q2

11

-12.5%

-10.0%
-7.5%

-5.0%

-2.5%

0.0%
2.5%

5.0%

7.5%
10.0%

12.5%

Qua r te r ly  r e l a t i ve  r e t ur n

R ol l i ng  3 ye a r  r e la t i ve  r e t ur n (% p. a . )

R ol l i ng  3 ye a r  be nc hma r k r e t ur n  (% p. a . ) [r i ght  a xi s ]

Monthly relative returns #2

-8%

-6%

-4%

-2%

0%

2%

4%

6%

8%

Q2

08

Q3

08

Q4

08

Q1

09

Q2

09

Q3

09

Q4

09

Q1

10

Q2

10

Q3

10

Q4

10

Q1

11

Q2

11
M onthl y r etur n

+/ - 1 ! monthl y (over  1 year )

+/ - 2 ! monthl y (over  1 year )

C

Performance v fund size #3

-10%

-8%

-6%

-4%

-2%

0%

2%

4%

6%

8%

10%

Sep-

08

Dec-

08

Mar-

09

Jun-

09

Sep-

09

Dec-

09

Mar-

10

Jun-

10

Sep-

10

Dec-

10

Mar-

11

Jun-

11

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

£m

Fund si ze (r i ght  axi s) P 'f ol i o qt r l y excess r etur n (l ef t  axi s)

1 ! i n 3 yr  excess r etur n per  qt r 2 ! i n 3 yr  excess r etur n per  qt r

Tracking error, Information ratio, Turnover #4

0%

1%

2%

3%

4%

5%

6%

7%

8%

9%

Sep

08

Dec

08

Mar

09

Jun

09

Sep

09

Dec

09

Mar

10

Jun

10

Sep

10

Dec

10

Mar

11

Jun 11

-1.2

-1.0

-0.8

-0.6

-0.4

-0.2

0.0

0.2

0.4

T ur nover  (%) [ r i ght  ax i s]

T r ack i ng Er r or  - r ol l i ng 3 year  (% p.a. ) [ l ef t  ax i s]
Inf or mat i on Rat i o - r ol l i ng 3 year  (t i mes) [ r i ght  axi s]

Source: Data provided by WM Performance Services, and Jupiter 

Comments:

! Over the last quarter, the Fund outperformed 
the benchmark by 1.6%, producing an 
absolute return of 3.5%. 

! Over the last year, the Fund underperformed 
the benchmark by 2.2%, producing an 
absolute return of 23.4%.  Over the last 3 
years, the Fund underperformed the 
benchmark by 1.2% p.a., producing an 
absolute return of 5.4% p.a. 

! The Fund's allocation to Cash (5.2%) 
marginally reduced compared to the 
preceding quarter (5.5%). 

 

 

! The industry allocation has remained 
considerably different from the benchmark 
allocation (as expected from Socially 
Responsible Investing), so the variability of 
relative returns (volatility) is expected to be 
high.  Over Q2 2011, Jupiter were 
significantly underweight Basic Materials, 
Oil and Gas, Consumer Services and 
Financials, with significantly overweight 
positions in Industrials, Consumer Goods 
and Utilities.   

Page 238



Avon Pension Fund 25

TT International – UK Equities (Unconstrained) 

Relative returns #1

-5%
-4%

-3%
-2%

-1%
0%

1%
2%

3%
4%

5%

Q3

08

Q4

08

Q1

09

Q2

09

Q3

09

Q4

09

Q1

10

Q2

10

Q3

10

Q4

10

Q1

11

Q2

11

-30%

-20%

-10%

0%

10%

20%

30%

Qua r t e r ly  r e l a t ive  r e tur n

R ol l ing 3 ye a r  r e l a t ive  r e tur n  (% p. a . )

R ol l ing 3 ye a r  be nc hma r k r e tur n  (% p. a . ) [r i ght  a xi s ]

Monthly relative returns #2

-3%

-2%

-1%

0%

1%

2%

3%

Q3

08

Q4

08

Q1

09

Q2

09

Q3

09

Q4

09

Q1

10

Q2

10

Q3

10

Q4

10

Q1

11

Q2

11
M onthl y r etur n

+/ - 1 ! monthl y (over  1 year )

+/ - 2 ! monthl y (over  1 year )

Performance v fund size #3

-5%

-4%

-3%

-2%

-1%

0%

1%

2%

3%

Sep-08 Dec-08 Mar -09 Jun-09 Sep-09 Dec-09 Mar -10 Jun-10 Sep-10 Dec-10 Mar -11 Jun-11

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

160

£m

Fund size (r ight  axis) P'f olio qt r ly excess ret urn ( lef t  axis)

Tracking error, Information ratio, Turnover #4

-80%
-70%
-60%
-50%
-40%
-30%
-20%
-10%

0%
10%
20%
30%
40%
50%

Sep

08

Dec

08

Mar

09

Jun

09

Sep

09

Dec

09

Mar

10

Jun

10

Sep

10

Dec

10

Mar

11

Jun

11

-0.8
-0.7
-0.6
-0.5
-0.4
-0.3
-0.2
-0.1
0.0
0.1
0.2
0.3
0.4
0.5

Turnover 
Tracking Error -  rolling 3 year (% p.a.)

Inf ormat ion Rat io -  rolling 3 year ( t imes)

Source: Data provided by WM Performance Services, and TT International 

Comments:

! Over the last quarter the Fund outperformed 
the benchmark by 0.2%, producing an 
absolute return of 2.1%. 

! Over the last year, the Fund underperformed 
the benchmark by 1.0%, producing an 
absolute return of 24.6%.  Over the last three 
years, the Fund underperformed the 
benchmark by 2.1% p.a., producing an 
absolute return of  4.5% p.a. 

! The Fund continues to maintain its overweight 
position in Consumer Services and Basic 
Materials by 4.9% and 4.2% respectively, and 
is underweight to Financials and Utilities by 
8.5% and 3.8% respectively, which also 
represents a continued increase in 
underweight position compared to the 
preceding quarter.  

! The volatility of monthly relative returns has 
not changed significantly over the most recent 
quarter.  Turnover of 24.2% has remained in 
line compared to the previous quarter 
turnover of 25.1%. 

 

 

! The 3 year tracking error (proxy for risk) 
has remained broadly consistent over the 
quarter.  The 3 year information ratio (risk 
adjusted return), fell slightly from -0.4% to 
-0.6%. 

! Apart from the particularly poor quarter in 
Q3 2008, the volatility of this Fund relative 
to the benchmark is lower than that of 
Jupiter.  This is driven by the fact that 
whilst TT International is more 
unconstrained in approach, their sector 
positions are better able to reflect those of 
the benchmark than Jupiter’s (which are, 
in part, a function of their Socially 
Responsible Investment brief).  This more 
pragmatic style may be more suited for 
investment when rebalancing to active UK 
equities, not least given the review of SRI 
and Corporate Governance planned for 
later in 2011. 

Page 239



Avon Pension Fund 26

Invesco – Global ex-UK Equities (Enhanced Indexation) 

Relative returns #1

-3%

-2%

-1%

0%

1%

2%

3%

4%

5%

Q2

08

Q3

08

Q4

08

Q1

09

Q2

09

Q3

09

Q4

09

Q1

10

Q2

10

Q3

10

Q4

10

Q1

11

Q2

11

-12%

-8%

-4%

0%

4%

8%

12%

16%

20%

Qua r te r ly  r e l a t ive  r e tur n

R ol l ing  3 ye a r  be nc hma r k  r e tur n (% p . a . ) [r ight  a xi s ]
R ol l ing  3 ye a r  r e l a t ive  r e tur n (% p . a . )

Monthly relative returns #2

-5%
-4%
-3%
-2%
-1%
0%

1%
2%
3%
4%
5%

Q2

08

Q3

08

Q4

08

Q1

09

Q2

09

Q3

09

Q4

09

Q1

10

Q2

10

Q3

10

Q4

10

Q1

11

Q2

11
M onthl y r etur n

+/ - 1 ! monthl y (over  1 year )

+/ - 2 ! monthl y (over  1 year )

Performance v fund size #3

-2.0%

-1.0%

0.0%

1.0%

2.0%

3.0%

4.0%

5.0%

Sep-

08

Dec-

08

Mar-

09

Jun-

09

Sep-

09

Dec-

09

Mar-

10

Jun-

10

Sep-

10

Dec-

10

Mar-

11

Jun-

11

0

50

100

150

200

250

£m

Fund si ze (r i ght  ax i s) P 'f ol i o qt r l y  excess r etur n (l ef t  ax i s)

+/ - 1 ! i n 3 yr  excess r etur n per  qt r +/ - 2 ! i n 3 yr  excess r etur n per  qt r

Tracking error, Information ratio, Turnover #4

0.0%

0.2%

0.4%

0.6%

0.8%
1.0%

1.2%

1.4%

1.6%

1.8%

Sep
08

Dec
08

M ar
09

Jun
09

Sep
09

Dec
09

M ar
10

Jun
10

Sep
10

Dec
10

M ar
11

Jun
11

0.0

0.2

0.4

0.6

0.8

1.0

1.2

1.4

Turnover (r ight  axis)
Tracking Error - rolling 3 year (% p.a.)  [ lef t  axis]

Inf ormat ion Rat io -  rolling 3 year ( t imes) [ r ight  axis]

Source: Data provided by WM Performance Services, and Invesco 

Comments:

! Over the last quarter the Fund outperformed 
its benchmark by 0.1%, producing an 
absolute return of 0.3%. 

! Over the last year, the Fund performed in line 
with its benchmark, producing an absolute 
return of 21.3%.  Over three years, the Fund 
outperformed, by 2.1% p.a., producing an 
absolute return of 9.6% p.a. 

! Over the last quarter, stock selection, industry 
selection and style selection were all positive 
contributors.  Country selection and active 
currency selection negatively affected 
contribution to excess returns.  The timing of 
the pricing of the Fund versus the benchmark 
also remains a factor in respect of short term 
relative performance. 

 

! The volatility of monthly relative returns 
has reduced gradually over time. 

! The turnover of 9.0% remained constant 
as compared to the previous quarter, and 
remained low, as expected for this 
mandate.    The number of stocks 
marginally reduced over the quarter from 
417 to 412. 

! The industry allocation is relatively in line 
with the benchmark industry allocations.  
All industry allocations were within +/- 1% 
of benchmark weightings as expected 
from this mandate. 

Page 240



Avon Pension Fund 27

SSgA – Europe ex-UK Equities (Enhanced Indexation) 

Relative returns #1

-0.6%

-0.4%

-0.2%

0.0%

0.2%

0.4%

0.6%

0.8%

1.0%

Q2

08

Q3

08

Q4

08

Q1

09

Q2

09

Q3

09

Q4

09

Q1

10

Q2

10

Q3

10

Q4

10

Q1

11

Q2

11

-18%

-12%

-6%

0%

6%

12%

18%

24%

30%

Qua r t e r ly  r e l a t i ve  r e t ur n

R ol l ing 3 ye a r  r e l a t i ve  r e t ur n (% p. a . )
R ol l ing 3 ye a r  be nc hma r k r e t ur n (% p. a . ) [r i gh t  a xi s ]

Monthly relative returns #2

-1.0%
-0.8%
-0.6%

-0.4%
-0.2%
0.0%
0.2%
0.4%

0.6%
0.8%
1.0%

Q3

08

Q4

08

Q1

09

Q2

09

Q3

09

Q4

09

Q1

10

Q2

10

Q3

10

Q4

10

Q1

11

Q2

11
M onthl y  r etur n

+/ - 1 ! monthl y (over  1 year )

+/ - 2 ! monthl y (over  1 year )

Performance v fund size #3

-2.0%

-1.5%

-1.0%

-0.5%

0.0%

0.5%

1.0%

1.5%

2.0%

Jun-

08

Sep-

08

Dec-

08

Mar -

09

Jun-

09

Sep-

09

Dec-

09

Mar -

10

Jun-

10

Sep-

10

Dec-

10

Mar -

11

Jun-

11

0

200

400

600

800

£m
Fund si ze (r i ght  axi s) P 'f ol i o qt r l y  excess r etur n (l ef t  ax i s)

1 ! i n 3 yr  excess r etur n per  qt r 2 ! i n 3 yr  excess r etur n per  qt r

Tracking error, Information ratio, Turnover #4

0.0%

0.2%

0.4%

0.6%

0.8%

1.0%

1.2%

1.4%

1.6%

1.8%

Sep

08

Dec

08

Mar

09

Jun

09

Sep

09

Dec

09

Mar

10

Jun

10

Sep

10

Dec

10

Mar

11

Jun 11

0.0

0.2

0.4

0.6

0.8

1.0

1.2

T ur nover  p.a.  appr ox (r i ght  ax i s)

T r acki ng E r r or  - r ol l i ng 3 year  (% p.a. ) [ l ef t  ax i s]

Inf or mat i on Rat i o - r ol l i ng 3 year  (t i mes) [ r i ght  axi s]

Source: Data provided by WM Performance Services, and SSgA 

Comments:

! Over the last quarter the Fund outperformed 
the benchmark by 0.6%, producing an 
absolute return of 3.1%. 

! Over the last year, the Fund outperformed the 
benchmark by 0.6%, producing an absolute 
return of 29.7%.  Over the last 3 years, the 
Fund outperformed the benchmark by 0.6% 
p.a., producing an absolute return of 6.7% 
p.a. 

! The pooled fund fell in size from 
£306.12million as at 31 March 2011, to 
£46.85million as at 30 June 2011.  This was 
due to one of SSgA's largest investors in this 
fund withdrawing their assets as part of a 
strategic review. 

 

 

! The volatility of monthly relative returns 
has remained in the narrower band 
experienced since Q1 2010.   As an 
enhanced indexation fund the magnitude 
of the volatility is expected to be very low. 

! Turnover has continued to remain 
consistent over the last 3 years while the 
number of stocks decreased over the 
quarter.  The tracking error has slightly 
increased over the last quarter.      

! This has typically been seen as a suitable 
fund for contributions or investment if 
rebalancing is required into active 
overseas equities.  However, performance 
should be monitored closely in light of the 
recent large drop in the size of the pooled 
fund.  There is no reason to suggest this 
in itself will lead to a deterioration in 
performance, and Avon's share of the 
pooled fund is now similar to that for the 
Pacific enhanced indexation fund. 

Page 241



Avon Pension Fund 28

SSgA – Pacific incl. Japan Equities (Enhanced Indexation) 

Relative returns #1

-2.0%

-1.5%

-1.0%

-0.5%

0.0%

0.5%

1.0%

1.5%

Q3

08

Q4

08

Q1

09

Q2

09

Q3

09

Q4

09

Q1

10

Q2

10

Q3

10

Q4

10

Q1

11

Q2

11

-16%

-12%

-8%

-4%

0%

4%

8%

12%

Qua r t e r l y  r e la t i ve  r e t ur n

R ol l ing 3  ye a r  r e l a t i ve  r e t ur n (% p. a . )

R ol l ing 3  ye a r  be nc hma r k r e t ur n (% p. a . ) [r i ght  a xi s ]

Monthly relative returns #2

-1.5%

-1.0%

-0.5%

0.0%

0.5%

1.0%

1.5%

Q3

08

Q4

08

Q1

09

Q2

09

Q3

09

Q4

09

Q1

10

Q2

10

Q3

10

Q4

10

Q1

11

Q2

11
M onthl y r etur n

+/ - 1 ! monthl y (over  1 year )

+/ - 2 ! monthl y (over  1 year )

Performance v fund size #3

-2.0%

-1.5%

-1.0%

-0.5%

0.0%

0.5%

1.0%

1.5%

Sep-

08

Dec-

08

Mar-

09

Jun-

09

Sep-

09

Dec-

09

Mar-

10

Jun-

10

Sep-

10

Dec-

10

Mar-

11

Jun-

11

0

50

100

150

200

250

£m

Fund si ze (r i ght  ax i s) P 'f ol i o qt r l y  excess r etur n (l ef t  ax i s)

1 ! i n 3 yr  excess r etur n per  qt r 2 ! i n 3 yr  excess r etur n per  qt r

Tracking error, Information ratio, Turnover #4

0.0%

0.2%

0.4%

0.6%

0.8%

1.0%

1.2%

1.4%

Sep

08

Dec

08

Mar

09

Jun

09

Sep

09

Dec

09

Mar

10

Jun

10

Sep

10

Dec

10

Mar

11

Jun 11

-0.8

-0.6

-0.4

-0.2

0.0

0.2

0.4

0.6

0.8

T ur nover  (r i ght  ax i s)

T r acki ng E r r or  - r ol l i ng 3 year  (% p.a. ) [ l ef t  ax i s ]
Inf or mat i on Rat i o - r ol l i ng 3 year  (t i mes) [ r i ght  ax i s ]

Source: Data provided by WM Performance Services, and SSgA 

Comments:

! Over the last quarter, the Fund outperformed 
the benchmark by 0.2%, producing an 
absolute return of 0.5%. 

! Over the last year, the Fund outperformed the 
benchmark by 1.0%, producing an absolute 
return of 16.9%.  Over the last 3 years, the 
Fund underperformed the benchmark by 0.1% 
p.a., producing an absolute return of 8.2% 
p.a. 

 

 

! Turnover has remained consistent over 
the last three years, which is what is 
expected of this style of investment 
management.   

! Given its reasonable return and low risk, 
this Fund would also appear to be suitable 
for new contributions or suitable for 
investment if rebalancing is required.   

Page 242



Avon Pension Fund 29

Genesis Asset Managers – Emerging Market Equities

Relative returns #1

-10%

-5%

0%

5%

10%

15%

Q2

08

Q3

08

Q4

08

Q1

09

Q2

09

Q3

09

Q4

09

Q1

10

Q2

10

Q3

10

Q4

10

Q1

11

Q2

11

-30%

-15%

0%

15%

30%

45%

Qua r te r ly r e l a t i ve  r e t ur n

R ol l i ng  3 ye a r  r e l a t ive  r e tur n (% p . a . )

R ol l i ng  3 ye a r  be nc hma r k  r e tur n (% p . a . ) [r ight  a x i s ]

Monthly relative returns #2

-6%

-4%

-2%

0%

2%

4%

6%

Q2

08

Q3

08

Q4

08

Q1

09

Q2

09

Q3

09

Q4

09

Q1

10

Q2

10

Q3

10

Q4

10

Q1

11

Q2

11

M onthl y r etur n

+/ - 1 ! monthl y (over  1 year )

+/ - 2 ! monthl y (over  1 year )

Performance v fund size #3

-8%

-6%

-4%

-2%

0%

2%

4%

6%

8%

Sep-

08

Dec-

08

Mar-

09

Jun-

09

Sep-

09

Dec-

09

Mar-

10

Jun-

10

Sep-

10

Dec-

10

Mar-

11

Jun-

11

0

500

1,000

1,500

2,000

2,500

3,000

3,500

4,000

4,500

5,000

£m

Por t f ol i o val ue (r i ght  axi s) P 'f ol i o qt r l y  excess r etur n (l ef t  axi s)

1 ! i n 3 yr  excess r etur n per  qt r 2 ! i n 3 yr  excess r etur n per  qt r

Tracking error, Information ratio, Turnover #4

0%

1%

2%

3%

4%

5%

6%

7%

Sep

08

Dec

08

Mar

09

Jun

09

Sep

09

Dec

09

Mar

10

Jun

10

Sep

10

Dec

10

Mar

11

Jun 11

-0.8
-0.6
-0.4
-0.2
0.0
0.2
0.4
0.6
0.8
1.0
1.2
1.4

T ur nover  (r i ght  axi s)

T r acki ng er r or  - 3 year  r ol l i ng (% p.a. ) [ l ef t  axi s ]

Inf or mat i on Rat i o - r ol l i ng 3 year  (t i mes) [ r i ght  axi s]

Source: Data provided by WM Performance Services, and Genesis 

Comments:

! Over the last quarter the Fund outperformed 
the benchmark by 1.4%, producing an 
absolute return of 0.2%. 

! Over the last year, the Fund performed in line 
with the benchmark, producing an absolute 
return of 19.4%.  Over the last 3 years, the 
Fund outperformed the benchmark by 4.8% 
p.a., producing an absolute return of 17.8% 
p.a. 

! The Fund remains overweight to South Africa 
and India, and underweight China and South 
Korea.  The underweight position in China is 
maintained, although this is partly due to the 
restrictions on non-local investors.  Please 
note that the over and underweight's are a 
result of Genesis' stock picking approach, 
rather than taking a view on countries.  

 

 

! The 3 year tracking error (proxy for risk) 
remained broadly consistent over the 
latest quarter.  The 3 year information ratio 
(risk adjusted return), rose slightly from 
0.9% to 1.1%.   

! On an industry basis, the Fund is now 
overweight to Health Care (+8.0%), 
Consumer Staples (+2.5%) and Telecom 
Services (+2.5%).  The Fund is 
underweight to Energy (-5.6%), Consumer 
Discretionary   (-4.5%) and Industrials (-
2.2%).   

 

Page 243



Avon Pension Fund 30

Lyster Watson Management Inc – Fund of Hedge Funds 

Relative returns #1

-30%

-25%

-20%

-15%

-10%

-5%

0%

5%

10%

15%

Q3

08

Q4

08

Q1

09

Q2

09

Q3

09

Q4

09

Q1

10

Q2

10

Q3

10

Q4

10

Q1

11

Q2

11

-30%

-25%

-20%

-15%

-10%

-5%

0%

5%

10%

15%

Qua r t e r ly r e l a t ive  r e tur n

R ol l i ng  3  ye a r  be nc hma r k r e tur n (% p. a . ) [r i ght  a xi s ]

R ol l i ng  3  ye a r  r e l a t i ve  r e tur n (% p. a . )

Monthly / Quarterly relative returns #2

-12%

-10%

-8%

-6%

-4%

-2%

0%

2%

4%

6%

8%

10%

Q3

08

Q4

08

Q1

09

Q2

09

Q3

09

Q4

09

Q1

10

Q2

10

Q3

10

Q4

10

Q1

11

Q2

11
M onthl y r etur n

+/ - 1 ! monthl y (over  1 year )

+/ - 2 ! monthl y (over  1 year )

Note that returns after Q2 2010 above are quarterly returns. 

Hedge fund strategies and source of return #6

-12%
-10%
-8%
-6%
-4%
-2%
0%
2%
4%
6%
8%

Sep-

08

Dec-

08

Mar-

09

Jun-

09

Sep-

09

Dec-

09

Mar-

10

Jun-

10

Sep-

10

Dec-

10

Mar-

11

Jun-

11

Conver t i bl e A r bi t r age Cr edi t  St r ategi es

Di st r ess Secur i t i es Event  Dr i ven

Fi xed Income A r bi t r age Long/ shor t  Equi t y

M acr o St r ategi es - Di scr et i onar y M acr o St r ategi es - Systemat i c

Quant i tat i ve St r ategi es Vol at i l i t y  Ar bi t r age

Por t f ol i o r etur n

Correlation with indices #7

-25.0%
-20.0%
-15.0%
-10.0%
-5.0%
0.0%
5.0%

10.0%
15.0%
20.0%
25.0%

-15.0% -10.0% -5.0% 0.0% 5.0% 10.0% 15.0%
Port f olio ret urn - quart er ly (%)

Benchmark

Cash Global Equit ies Non Gilt s All St ocks

Source: Data provided by WM Performance Services, and Lyster Watson 

Comments:

! Over the last quarter, the Fund 
underperformed the benchmark by 4.2%, 
producing an absolute return of -3.0%. 

! Over the last year, the Fund underperformed 
the benchmark by 2.9%, producing an 
absolute return of 3.6%.  Over the three year 
period, the Fund underperformed the 
benchmark by     10.9% p.a., producing an 
absolute return of  -4.6% p.a. 

 

 

! There is no clear correlation between this 
Fund and cash, global equities or non gilt 
bonds.   

! The allocation to Lyster Watson is to be 
removed from the portfolio in due course.   

Page 244



Avon Pension Fund 31

MAN – Fund of Hedge Funds 

Relative returns #1

-25%

-20%

-15%

-10%

-5%

0%

5%

10%

15%

Q3

08

Q4

08

Q1

09

Q2

09

Q3

09

Q4

09

Q1

10

Q2

10

Q3

10

Q4

10

Q1

11

Q2

11

-25%

-20%

-15%

-10%

-5%

0%

5%

10%

15%

Qua r te r ly r e l a t ive  r e tur n

R ol l i ng 3  ye a r  r e l a t i ve  r e t ur n  (% p. a . )

R ol l i ng 3  ye a r  be nc hma r k r e t ur n  (% p. a . )

Monthly relative returns #2

- 8 %

- 6 %

- 4 %

- 2 %

0 %

2 %

4 %

6 %

Q3

08

Q4

08

Q1

09

Q2

09

Q3

09

Q4

09

Q1

10

Q2

10

Q3

10

Q4

10

Q1

11

Q2

11
M onthl y r etur n

+/ - 1 ! monthl y  (over  1 year )

+/ - 2 ! monthl y  (over  1 year )

Hedge fund strategies and source of return #6

-10%

-8%

-6%

-4%

-2%

0%

2%

4%

6%

8%

Sep-08 Dec-08 M ar -09 Jun-09 Sep-09 Dec-09 M ar -10 Jun-10 Sep-10 Dec-10 M ar -11 Jun-11
Long shor t Shor t  sel l i ng A r bi t r age

Di st r essed Commodi t i es M ul t i -s t r ategi es RV

Speci al  Si tuat i ons Gl obal  T r adi ng Other

Por t f ol i o r etur n

Correlation with indices #7

-25%
-20%

-15%
-10%

-5%
0%

5%
10%

15%
20%

25%

-15% -10% -5% 0% 5% 10% 15%
Port f olio ret urn - quart er ly 

Benchmark

Cash Global Equit ies Non Gilt s All St ocks

Source: Data provided by WM Performance Services, and MAN 

Comments:

! Over the last quarter, the Fund 
underperformed the benchmark by 4.4%, 
producing an absolute return of -2.9%. 

! Over the last year, the Fund underperformed 
the benchmark by 0.7%, producing an 
absolute return of 5.9%.  Over the last 3 
years, the Fund underperformed the 
benchmark by 9.8% p.a., producing an 
absolute return of -2.4% p.a. 

! The key drivers of the negative performance 
were the high allocations to Commodities and 
Long / Short strategies, which produced 
negative returns, except for the Long / Short 
Asia Pacific and US strategies, which 
produced, positive returns.   

 

 

! The Fund continues to hold a diverse 
exposure to hedge fund strategies, with 
the largest allocations to Long / Short and 
Commodities strategies, making up 66.6% 
of the fund. 

! There is no clear correlation between this 
Fund and cash, global equities or non gilt 
bonds.  This suggests that this Fund acts 
as a good diversifier to the Avon Pension 
Fund's other asset classes. 

! As part of the recent review of Fund of 
Hedge Funds, it was decided that the 
allocation to Man will be reduced.  
Updates will be provided in future reports. 

Page 245



Avon Pension Fund 32

Signet – Fund of Hedge Funds 

Relative returns #1

-20%

-15%

-10%

-5%

0%

5%

10%

Q3

08

Q4

08

Q1

09

Q2

09

Q3

09

Q4

09

Q1

10

Q2

10

Q3

10

Q4

10

Q1

11

Q2

11

-20%

-15%

-10%

-5%

0%

5%

10%

Qua r t e r ly  r e l a t i ve  r e tur n

R ol l i ng 3 ye a r  be nc hma r k r e tur n  (% p . a . ) [r i ght  a xi s ]
R ol l i ng 3 ye a r  r e l a t i ve  r e tur n (% p . a . )

 

Monthly relative returns #2

- 12 %

- 10 %

- 8 %

- 6 %

- 4 %

- 2 %

0 %

2 %

4 %

6 %

8 %

Q3

08

Q4

08

Q1

09

Q2

09

Q3

09

Q4

09

Q1

10

Q2

10

Q3

10

Q4

10

Q1

11

Q2

11
M onthl y r etur n

+/ - 1 ! monthl y (over  1 year )

+/ - 2 ! monthl y (over  1 year )

Hedge fund strategies and source of return #6

-6%

-4%

-2%

0%

2%

4%

6%

8%

Sep-

08

Dec-

08

Mar-

09

Jun-

09

Sep-

09

Dec-

09

Mar-

10

Jun-

10

Sep-

10

Dec-

10

Mar-

11

Jun-

11
Conver t i bl e A r bi t r age Di st r ess Secur i t i es Event  Dr i ven

Fi xed Income Ar bi t r age Gl obal  M acr o Other

M ul t i st r ategy Long-Shor t  Cr edi t Por t f ol i o r etur n

Correlation with indices #7

-25%
-20%

-15%
-10%

-5%
0%

5%
10%

15%
20%

25%

-15% -10% -5% 0% 5% 10% 15%
Port f olio ret urn -  quart er ly (%)

Benchmark 

Cash Global Equit ies Non Gilt s All St ocks

Source: Data provided by WM Performance Services, and Signet 

Comments:

! Over the last quarter, the Fund 
underperformed the benchmark by 1.1%, 
producing an absolute return of -0.2%. 

! Over the last year, the Fund outperformed the 
benchmark by 0.9%, producing an absolute 
return of 4.6%.  Over the 3 year period, the 
Fund underperformed the benchmark by 4.3% 
p.a., producing an absolute return of 0.4% 
p.a. 

 

 

! There is no clear correlation between 
this Fund and cash, global equities or 
non gilt bonds.  This suggests that this 
Fund acts as a good diversifier to the 
Avon Pension Fund's other asset 
classes. 

! The reduction in the volatility of monthly 
returns since the middle of 2009 is 
marked, and a trend identifiable in all of 
the Fund of Hedge Fund managers' 
monthly returns.   

 

Page 246



Avon Pension Fund 33

Stenham – Fund of Hedge Funds 

Relative returns #1

-15%

-10%

-5%

0%

5%

10%

Q3

08

Q4

08

Q1

09

Q2

09

Q3

09

Q4

09

Q1

10

Q2

10

Q3

10

Q4

10

Q1

11

Q2

11

-15%

-10%

-5%

0%

5%

10%

Qua r te r ly  r e l a t ive  r e t ur n

R ol l ing 3 ye a r  be nc hma r k r e tur n (% p. a . ) [r ight  a xi s ]

R ol l ing 3 ye a r  r e l a t ive  r e tur n (% p. a . )

Monthly relative returns #2

-6%

-4%

-2%

0%

2%

4%

6%

Q3

08

Q4

08

Q1

09

Q2

09

Q3

09

Q4

09

Q1

10

Q2

10

Q3

10

Q4

10

Q1

11

Q2

11
M onthl y r etur n

+/ - 1 ! monthl y (over  1 year )

+/ - 2 ! monthl y (over  1 year )

Hedge fund strategies and source of return #6

-8%

-6%

-4%

-2%

0%

2%

4%

6%

Sep-

08

Dec-

08

Mar-

09

Jun-

09

Sep-

09

Dec-

09

Mar-

10

Jun-

10

Sep-

10

Dec-

10

Mar-

11

Jun-

11
Event  Driven Global Macro Long/ short  Equit y
Relat ive Value Long Volat ilit y Port f olio ret urn

Correlation with indices #7

-25%
-20%

-15%
-10%
-5%
0%

5%
10%
15%

20%
25%

-15% -10% -5% 0% 5% 10% 15%
Port f olio ret urn -  quart erly 

Benchmark

Cash Global Equit ies Non Gilt s All St ocks

Source: Data provided by WM Performance Services, and Stenham 

Comments:

! Over the last quarter, the Fund 
underperformed the benchmark by 2.9%, 
producing an absolute return of -2.0%. 

! Over the last year, the Fund underperformed 
the benchmark by 1.9%, producing an 
absolute return of 1.9%.  Over the last 3 
years, the Fund underperformed the 
benchmark by 6.4% p.a., producing an 
absolute return of -1.8% p.a. 

! Long/Short Equity, Global Macro and Event 
Driven strategies were the main contributors 
to the negative absolute return.  Relative 
value strategies contributed positively.  

 

! The allocation to the Global Macro and 
Long / Short Equity strategies made up 
69.0% of the total Fund allocation.  The 
allocation to Event Driven strategies 
marginally rose from 17.0% to 18.0% 
over the quarter. 

! There is no clear correlation between 
this Fund and cash, global equities or 
non gilt bonds.  This suggests that this 
Fund acts as a good diversifier to the 
Avon Pension Fund's other asset 
classes. 

Page 247



Avon Pension Fund 34

Gottex – Fund of Hedge Funds 

Relative returns #1

-25%

-20%

-15%

-10%

-5%

0%

5%

10%

Q2

08

Q3

08

Q4

08

Q1

09

Q2

09

Q3

09

Q4

09

Q1

10

Q2

10

Q3

10

Q4

10

Q1

11

Q2

11

-25%

-20%

-15%

-10%

-5%

0%

5%

10%

Qua r t e r l y  r e l a t i ve  r e tur n

R ol l i ng 3  ye a r  be nc hma r k r e tur n (% p. a . ) [r i ght  a xi s ]

R ol l i ng 3  ye a r  r e l a t i ve  r e tur n (% p. a . )

Monthly relative returns #2

- 15 %

- 10 %

- 5 %

0 %

5 %

10 %

15 %

Q2

08

Q3

08

Q4

08

Q1

09

Q2

09

Q3

09

Q4

09

Q1

10

Q2

10

Q3

10

Q4

10

Q1

11

Q2

11
M onthl y r etur n +/ - 1 ! monthl y (over  1 year )

+/ - 2 ! monthl y (over  1 year ) -1 ! monthl y (over  1 year )

-2 ! monthl y (over  1 year )

Hedge fund strategies and source of return #6

-8%

-6%

-4%

-2%

0%

2%

4%

6%

Sep-

08

Dec-

08

Mar-

09

Jun-

09

Sep-

09

Dec-

09

Mar-

10

Jun-

10

Sep-

10

Dec-

10

Mar-

11

Jun-

11
Con ver t ible Ar bit r age Opt ion s Ar bit r age M BS St r at egies

Fixed I n come Ar bit r age Cr edit  Ar bit r age Ot her  Relat ive Value

Lon g- Shor t  Cr edit Asset  Backed Secur it ies Closed- En d Fun d Ar bit r age

M er ger  Ar bit r age Dist r essed Secur it ies Asset - Based Len din g

Pr ivat e Placemen t  Ar bit r age Capit al St r uct ur e Ar bit r age Quan t it at ive M N Equit y

Fun damen t al M N Equit y Lon g- Shor t  Equit y Even t  Dr iven  Equit y

Fut ur es St r at egies Discr et ion ar y M acr o Ot her

Correlation with indices #7

-25%
-20%
-15%
-10%
-5%
0%
5%

10%
15%
20%
25%

-15% -10% -5% 0% 5% 10% 15%

Port f olio ret urn -  quart er ly

Benchmark

Cash Global Equit ies Non Gilt s All St ocks

Source: Data provided by WM Performance Services, and Gottex 

Comments:

! Over the last quarter, the Fund 
underperformed the benchmark by 0.8%, 
producing an absolute return of 0.2%. 

! Over the last year, the Fund outperformed the 
benchmark by 1.8%, producing an absolute 
return of 5.6%.  Over the last 3 years, the 
Fund underperformed the benchmark by 6.8% 
p.a., producing an absolute return of -2.2% 
p.a. 

! The key drivers of performance were MBS 
strategies, Fundamental Market Neutral 
Equity and Fixed Income Arbitrage. 
Performance for the quarter was negatively 
impacted by Asset-Backed lending and Event 
Driven Equity.  

 

! The Fund has a diverse range of strategy 
exposures, with the major exposures to 
ABS, MBS, Fundamental MN Equity, 
Long-Short Credit and Convertible 
Arbitrage Strategies.  There were no 
significant changes to the strategy asset 
allocations in the fund, however, the 
allocations to Asset-Backed Securities 
decreased marginally, after a prolonged 
period of gradual increase.  

! There is no clear correlation between this 
Fund and cash, global equities or non gilt 
bonds.  This suggests that this Fund acts 
as a good diversifier to the Avon Pension 
Fund's other asset classes. 

Page 248



Avon Pension Fund 35

BlackRock – Passive Multi-Asset 

Relative returns #1

-0.2%

-0.1%

0.0%

0.1%

0.2%

0.3%

0.4%

0.5%

0.6%

0.7%

Q3

08

Q4

08

Q1

09

Q2

09

Q3

09

Q4

09

Q1

10

Q2

10

Q3

10

Q4

10

Q1

11

Q2

11

-6%

-3%

0%

3%

6%

9%

12%

15%

18%

21%

Qua r t e r ly  r e l a t ive  r e tur n

R ol l ing 3 ye a r  r e l a t ive  r e tur n  (% p. a . )
R ol l ing 3 ye a r  be nc hma r k r e tur n  (% p. a . ) [r i ght  a xi s ]

Monthly/Quarterly relative returns #2

-0.7%
-0.6%
-0.5%
-0.4%
-0.3%
-0.2%
-0.1%
0.0%
0.1%
0.2%
0.3%
0.4%
0.5%
0.6%
0.7%
0.8%

Q3

08

Q4

08

Q1

09

Q2

09

Q3

09

Q4

09

Q1

10

Q2

10

Q3

10

Q4

10

Q1

11

Q2

11
M onthl y/ quar ter l y r etur ns

+/ - 1 ! monthl y  (over  1 year )

+/ - 2 ! monthl y  (over  1 year )

Note that returns after Q4 2008 above are quarterly returns. 

 Contribution to absolute return #6

-10%

-5%

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

Sep-

08

Dec-

08

Mar-

09

Jun-

09

Sep-

09

Dec-

09

Mar-

10

Jun-

10

Sep-

10

Dec-

10

Mar-

11

Jun-

11
UK equi t i es Nor th Amer i can Equi t i es

Eur opean Equi t i es Japan equi t i es

Pac Ri m Equi t i es Bonds

Cash Fund(s) Canada Equi t i es

T otal

Asset Allocation #5

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

Sep-08 Dec-08 Mar -09 Jun-09 Sep-09 Dec-09 Mar -10 Jun-10 Sep-10 Dec-10 Mar -11 Jun-11
UK equi ties Canada Equi ties Nor th Amer ican Equi ties

Eur opean Equi ties Japan equi ties Pac Rim Equi ties

Total  bonds Cash Fund(s) Global  Equi ties

Source: Data provided by WM Performance Services, and BlackRock 

Comments:

! Over the last quarter, the Fund has 
outperformed its benchmark by 0.2%, 
producing an absolute return of 2.0%. 

! Over the last year, the Fund outperformed its 
benchmark by 0.2%, producing an absolute 
return of 18.4%.  Over the last 3 years, the 
Fund outperformed the benchmark by 0.6% 
p.a., producing an absolute return of 8.5% 
p.a. 

! Being a passive mandate, with a customised 
benchmark based on the monthly mean fund 
weights, there is nothing unusual arising in 
risk and performance. 

 

! The magnitude of the relative volatility in 
the portfolio remains small.  

! Allocations to UK equities reduced by 
8.3%, the allocation to Global Equities has 
increased by 4.5% and to Bonds by 3.6 
compared to Q1 2011.  These changes 
are in line with the changes made to the 
total Fund strategic asset allocation. 

Page 249



Avon Pension Fund 36

BlackRock No.2 – Property account (“ring fenced” assets) 

Relative returns #1

-0.8%

-0.6%

-0.4%

-0.2%

0.0%

0.2%

0.4%

0.6%

0.8%

Q3

08

Q4

08

Q1

09

Q2

09

Q3

09

Q4

09

Q1

10

Q2

10

Q3

10

Q4

10

Q1

11

Q2

11

-6%

-4%

-2%

0%

2%

4%

6%

Qua r te r ly  r e l a t i ve  r e tur n

R ol l i ng 3 ye a r  r e l a t ive  r e tur n (% p. a . )

R ol l i ng 3 ye a r  r e t ur n (% p. a . ) [r ight  a xi s ]

Monthly relative returns #2

-1.0%

-0.8%

-0.6%

-0.4%

-0.2%

0.0%

0.2%

0.4%

0.6%

0.8%

1.0%

Q3

08

Q4

08

Q1

09

Q2

09

Q3

09

Q4

09

Q1

10

Q2

10

Q3

10

Q4

10

Q1

11

Q2

11

M onthl y/ quar ter l y  r etur ns

+/ - 1 ! monthl y (over  1 year )

+/ - 2 ! monthl y (over  1 year )

Note that returns after Q4 2008 above are quarterly returns. 

Source: Data provided by WM Performance Services, and BlackRock 

Comments:

! Over the last quarter, the Fund marginally 
underperformed the benchmark by <0.1%, 
producing an absolute return of 1.5%. 

! Over the last year, the Fund produced a 
return of 9.7%, outperforming the benchmark 
by 1.1%.  Over a rolling 3 year period, the 
Fund produced an absolute return of 5.1% 
p.a., outperforming the benchmark return by 
0.3% p.a. 

! Over the quarter the Fund's holding in cash 
decreased by approximately 4%. 

 

 

! Over the quarter, all asset classes except 
for US equities contributed positively to 
the performance.  However, the negative 
contribution from US equities was not 
significant.  

 

Page 250



Avon Pension Fund 37

Royal London Asset Management – Fixed Interest 

Relative returns #1

-5%
-4%

-3%
-2%
-1%
0%

1%
2%
3%

4%
5%

Q3

08

Q4

08

Q1

09

Q2

09

Q3

09

Q4

09

Q1

10

Q2

10

Q3

10

Q4

10

Q1

11

Q2

11

-8%

-6%

-4%

-2%

0%

2%

4%

6%

8%

10%

Qua r te r ly  r e l a t ive  r e tur n

R ol l ing  3 ye a r  r e l a t ive  r e tur n (% p. a . )
R ol l ing  3 ye a r  be nc hma r k r e tur n (% p . a . )

Monthly relative returns #2

-3.0%

-2.0%

-1.0%

0.0%

1.0%

2.0%

3.0%

Q3

08

Q4

08

Q1

09

Q2

09

Q3

09

Q4

09

Q1

10

Q2

10

Q3

10

Q4

10

Q1

11

Q2

11
M onthl y r etur n

+/ - 1 ! monthl y (over  1 year )

+/ - 2 ! monthl y (over  1 year )

Performance v fund size #3

-6%

-4%

-2%

0%

2%

4%

6%

8%

Sep-

08

Dec-

08

Mar-

09

Jun-

09

Sep-

09

Dec-

09

Mar-

10

Jun-

10

Sep-

10

Dec-

10

Mar-

11

Jun-

11

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

700

800

£m

Fund size (r ight axis) P'f ol io qtr ly excess r etur n (lef t axis)

Relative Maturity exposure #8

-30%

-20%

-10%

0%

10%

20%

30%

Sep-

08

Dec-

08

Mar-

09

Jun-

09

Sep-

09

Dec-

09

Mar-

10

Jun-

10

Sep-

10

Dec-

10

Mar-

11

Jun-

11

Short: < 5 years M edium: 5-10 years

M edium: 10-15 years Long: >15 years

Duration #10

6.2

6.4

6.6

6.8

7.0

7.2

7.4

7.6

Sep

08

Dec

08

Mar

09

Jun

09

Sep

09

Dec

09

Mar

10

Jun

10

Sep

10

Dec

10

Mar

11

Jun 11

Por t f ol i o dur at i on B enchmar k dur at i on

Relative Ratings exposure #9

-25%
-20%
-15%

-10%
-5%
0%
5%

10%

15%
20%
25%

Sep-

08

Dec-

08

Mar-

09

Jun-

09

Sep-

09

Dec-

09

Mar-

10

Jun-

10

Sep-

10

Dec-

10

Mar-

11

Jun-

11

AAA (or equivalent) AA (or equivalent) A (or equivalent)

BBB (or equivalent) Sub-inv. Grade Other

Source: Data provided by WM Performance Services, and RLAM 

Comments:

! Over the last quarter, the Fund outperformed 
the benchmark by 0.1%, producing an 
absolute return of 2.0%. 

! Over the last year, the Fund outperformed the 
benchmark by 3.0%, producing an absolute 
return of 8.2%.  Over a rolling 3 year period, 
the Fund outperformed the benchmark by 
0.4% p.a., producing an absolute return of 
7.7% p.a. 

 

! The Fund remains significantly 
underweight to AAA and to a lesser extent 
AA and A rated bonds, and overweight 
BBB and unrated bonds.  

! The Fund continues to be considerably 
overweight in medium term maturity 
bonds, and underweight short maturity 
and long dated bonds. 

Page 251



Avon Pension Fund 38

Schroder – UK Property 

! The mandate awarded to Schroder by the Fund commenced in February 2009. 

! The Fund appointed Schroder to manage UK property on a segregated, multi-manager basis.  The 

investments held within the underlying funds are primarily direct, although some managers might 

use listed securities for diversification.   

! Once a 3 year track record is available for a meaningful proportion of the Fund's commitment, a 

fuller quantitative assessment of Schroder will be available.  However, we provide here a qualitative 

update and assessment of the manager. 

Portfolio update 

A further £910,000 was drawn by Schroder over the quarter to 30 June 2011.  This takes the aggregate 

figure drawn to date up to £108.9million, or 99% of the Fund's total commitment.   

 

To date, the drawn down monies have been invested across 16 different underlying funds.  Of these funds, 6 

are "core" investments (comprising 61% of the total portfolio) and 10 are "value add" investments (the 

remaining 39% of the portfolio). 

 

The investments in the funds noted above have resulted in a UK property portfolio that, as at 30 June 2011, 

was split between sectors as shown in the following chart.  

     Portfolio split by sector 

10.1%

8.5%

21.7%

19.3%

8.0%

15.3%

9.3%

7.8%

Standard Retail

Shopping Centres

Retail Warehouses

Central Lon. Off ices

Rest of UK Offices

Industrial

Alternatives

Cash

In terms of relative positioning, the allocations above are, compared with the benchmark (the UK IPD Pooled 

Property Index), underweight standard retail (by 4.8%) and non-London offices (by 5.6%) and overweight in 

the other sectors.  The most significant overweights are to central London offices (by 5.4%) and shopping 

centres (by 2.4%). 

Schroder have an overweight position to Central London offices, and office rentals in this area rose by 5% in 

the first half of 2011 due to strong demand from international IT, legal and media companies.   

Page 252



Avon Pension Fund 39

 

Shopping centre rental values fell by 1-3% in the first half of 2011, which has been driven by a new wave of 

retailer insolvencies and store closures.  Schroder state that this turmoil reflects the current squeeze on 

household incomes from tax increases and rising energy prices.  There are other structural changes which 

Schroder believe to be at work, such as the growth of on-line sales which has added pressure to existing 

retailers.  Additionally, poor sales mean that some retailers may be struggling to service their debts.  

Schroder maintain an underweight position to this part of the market. 

 

The remaining equity is committed to existing investments (i.e. Columbus UK Real Estate Fund, 

Threadneedle Strategic Property Fund IV and the Real Income Fund).  Once the investment is complete, 

Schroder may undertake some re-balancing to achieve their favoured sector weightings. 

 

Performance over Q2 2011 

! Schroder produced a return of 1.9% net of fees over the three months to 30 June 2011, versus the 

benchmark return of 1.8%.  The key drivers of the relative return over the period were: 

! The main contributors to the performance this quarter came form the "value add" funds which 

generated above benchmark returns over the quarter.  These included the West End of London 

Property Unit Trust.   

! The core funds remain widely dispersed and this quarter funds with low cash levels outperformed, 

(Hermes Property Unit Trust) and those with high levels of cash diluted returns (Aviva Investors 

Pensions Property Fund and L&G Managed Property Fund).  Overall, the core funds 

underperformed the benchmark this quarter. 

! Over the 12 months, performance is ahead of the benchmark, 7.9% (net of fees) versus 7.7%.  

Value added funds have outperformed the portfolio’s benchmark over twelve months and have 

contributed 1.1% to relative returns.  Core funds including the Hermes Property Unit Truste and 

Aviva Investors Pensions Property Fund have detracted from returns.  Schroder have incurred 

transaction costs entering both these funds in the last year.   

! Schroder estimates that transaction costs impacted performance by 0.6% over the year ended 30 

June 2011.  Now that the investment programme is virtually complete, Schroder expects the 

portfolio's relative returns to improve. 

 

Conclusion

The Schroder property portfolio is almost fully invested, this having occurred in the expected time since they 

were appointed.  The portfolio is well diversified by manager and sector while still showing active sector 

allocation according to the views of the Schroder Property Multi-Manager team.  Transaction costs have a 

large impact in the shorter term and Schroder have shown that they take these into consideration in 

determining if and when to make an investment. 

 

We have no concerns with Schroder.  

Page 253



Avon Pension Fund 40

Partners – Overseas Property 

! The mandate awarded to Partners by the Fund commenced in August 2009, although draw downs 

are being made gradually over time, and the full extent of the Fund's commitment has not yet been 

invested. 

! Partners invest in direct, primary and secondary private real estate investments on a global basis. 

Portfolio update 

To date, Partners have drawn down approximately £54 million of the Fund's intended commitment of 

approximately £135 million.  A total of £2.45 million was drawn down over the quarter.  The draw downs 

commenced in September 2009.    

 

Partners have communicated that the extent of the draw downs to date are broadly as they expected, and 

they note that their strategy is to build a diversified portfolio in a disciplined manner, spread across different 

"vintage" years. 

 

The funds invested to date have been split by Partners between funds as follows: 

Partners Fund Net Drawn Down 
(£ Million) 

Net Asset Value as at 
30 June 2011 

(£ Million) 
Asia Pacific and Emerging Market Real Estate 2009 9.00 9.99 

Direct Real Estate 2011 2.36 2.38 

Distressed US Real Estate 2009  9.53 9.93 

Global Real Estate 2008  23.56 25.83 

Global Real Estate 2011  3.63 3.54 

Real Estate Secondary 2009  5.78 7.01 

Total (£) 53.86 58.68 

Source: Partners.  Please note, whilst the valuation on page 14 is as at 31 March 2011 (adjusted for cash flows), the 
above is Partners' valuation as at 30 June 2011. 

Page 254



Avon Pension Fund 41

The investments in the funds noted above have resulted in a portfolio that was, as at 30 June 2011, split 

regionally as shown in the chart on the left below, and across different investment types as shown on the 

right.  We show in brackets for each region the current guideline allocations to each region that are in place 

for the Fund's portfolio. 

Geographical split based on Net Asset Value

Asia Pacific 
40% (10% - 

50%)

Europe
31% (10% - 

50%)

North America
25% (10% - 

50%)

Rest of the 
World

4% (0% -20%)

Investment type split based on Net Asset Value

Secondary
43% (0% - 

50%)

Primary
33% (40% - 

100%)

Direct
24% (0% - 

30%)

Source: Partners 

The geographical allocation shown is consistent with Partners' current investment outlook, which favours 

Asia Pacific and Emerging Markets on the grounds that such economies will drive future global growth.  

Changes to the geographical allocation to the portfolio over the quarter include a reduction to Europe from 

35% to 31%, North America from 26% to 25%.  The exposure to the Asia Pacific region has increased from 

35% to 40%.  There have been no changes to the exposure to the rest of the world. 

 

In terms of the portfolio allocation by investment type, the exposure to direct investments has reduced from 

the position last quarter from 26% to 24%.  The exposure to primary investments has remained the same, 

and the exposure to secondary investments has increased from 41% to 43%.   These percentage changes 

reflect the ongoing investment programme and vary as Partners continue to invest in the underlying funds. 

 

The exposure to Primary is currently below the guidelines, but short term deviation from the allocation 

restrictions in place can be expected at such an early stage of investment and we do not believe the current 

positioning to be of concern.   

 

Performance over Q2 2011 

Please note that due to data timing issues, from this quarter onwards Partners' returns and values will be 

lagged by a quarter, except those shown on this and the previous page, and therefore reflect the previous 

quarter's returns and values. As this is the first quarter we have done this – this quarter will have the same 

start and end values (plus any cash investments made) and the quarter's return is zero.  This will also impact 

the annual return figures in this report.  Next quarter’s performance report will report Partners' performance 

for the second quarter 2011. 

Distributions since inception total £4.0m, with no new distributions over the most recent quarter. 

Page 255



Avon Pension Fund 42

 

Conclusion

Over the quarter Partners increased the amount drawn down by £2.45 million.  A new fund was added to the 

portfolio over the quarter, Global Real Estate 2011.  There have been some changes to the asset 

allocations, namely an increase in secondary investments in favour of direct and primary assets.  Changes to 

the geographical split include a reduction to Europe and North America in favour of an increase towards Asia 

Pacific.   

 

Over the quarter only modest changes to asset allocation have been made and Partners are continuing to 

invest according to the views most recently expressed, that led to changes in the investment guidelines in 

October 2010. 

 

We have no concerns with Partners. 

Page 256



Avon Pension Fund 43

Appendix A – Glossary of Charts 

The following provides a description of the charts used in Section 5 and a brief description of their 

interpretation. 

Reference Description 

#1 

-0.3%
-0.2%
-0.1%
0.0%
0.1%
0.2%
0.3%
0.4%
0.5%
0.6%
0.7%

Q2

07

Q3

07

Q4

07

Q1

08

Q2

08

Q3

08

Q4

08

Q1

09

Q2

09

Q3

09

Q4

09

Q1

10

-6%

-2%

2%

6%

10%

14%

Qua r t e r l y r e l a t i ve  r e tu r n

R ol l i ng  3  ye a r  r e l a t i ve  r e tu r n (% p . a . )

R ol l i ng  3  ye a r  be nc hma r k r e tu r n  (% p. a . ) [r i ght  a x i s ]  

This chart shows the quarterly relative return (blue bars) and rolling 3 year 

relative return (blue line) for the manager over 3 years/since inception.  This 

shows the ability of the manager to achieve and outperform the benchmark 

over the medium term.  The rolling 3 year benchmark absolute return (grey 

line) is overlayed to provide a context for relative performance, e.g. 

consistent underperformance in a falling market. 

#2 

-8%

-6%

-4%

-2%

0%

2%

4%

6%

8%

Q1

07

Q2

07

Q3

07

Q4

07

Q1

08

Q2

08

Q3

08

Q4

08

Q1

09

Q2

09

Q3

09

Q4

09

M onthl y  r etur n

+/ - 1 ! monthl y (over  1 year )

+/ - 2 !monthl y (over 1 year )

This chart shows the relative monthly returns for 3 years/since inception.  It 

shows the level of fluctuation about the zero axis, i.e. the level of volatility of 

monthly returns and any tendency for positive or negative returns.  The 

dotted lines show the standard deviation of returns over 1 year periods - this 

is a standard measure of risk which shows the magnitude of fluctuations of 

monthly returns.  Under common assumptions, being within the inside 

dotted lines (i.e. 1 standard deviation) is roughly likely to occur 2/3rds of the 

time, while being within the outside lines is roughly likely to occur 1 in 20 

times (i.e. 2 standard deviation - which is considered unlikely). 

#3 

-10%

-8%
-6%

-4%

-2%

0%
2%

4%

6%
8%

10%

Mar-

07

Jun-

07

Sep-

07

Dec-

07

Mar-

08

Jun-

08

Sep-

08

Dec-

08

Mar-

09

Jun-

09

Sep-

09

Dec-

09

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

£m

Fund s i ze (r i ght  ax i s) P 'f ol i o qt r l y excess  r etur n (l ef t  axi s )

1 ! i n 3 y r  excess  r etur n per  qtr 2 ! i n 3 y r  excess  r etur n per  qt r

This chart shows the relative performance on a quarterly basis.  The dotted 

lines show the standard deviation of returns for a quarter - based on the 

latest quarter 3 year standard deviation.  (See #2 above for further detail on 

interpretation).  The total size of the underlying fund is overlayed in yellow 

(portfolio value in blue) to identify any trend in diminished performance with 

increasing fund (portfolio) size, as sometimes observed. 

#4 

0%

1%

2%

3%

4%

5%

6%

7%

8%

Mar

07

Jun

07

Sep

07

Dec

07

Mar

08

Jun

08

Sep

08

Dec

08

Mar

09

Jun

09

Sep

09

Dec

09

-1.5

-1.0

-0.5

0.0

0.5

1.0

1.5

2.0

T ur nover  (%) [ r i ght  ax i s]

T r ack i ng E r r or  - r ol l i ng 3 year  (% p.a. ) [ l ef t  axi s]

Inf or mat i on Rat i o - r ol l i ng 3 year  (t i mes) [ r i ght  axi s ]

This chart shows the 3 year annualised tracking error (this is the standard 

deviation of returns which shows the magnitude of the fund returns 

compared to the benchmark) and the 3 year information ratio (this is the 

excess return divided by the tracking error).  If tracking error increases, the 

risk taken away from the benchmark increases, and we would expect an 

increase in the excess return over time (albeit more variable).  The turnover 

is provided to show if any increase in risk is reflected in an increase in the 

level of active management, i.e. purchases/sales in the portfolio. 

#5 

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

Mar-08 Jun-08 Sep-08 Dec-08 Mar-09 Jun-09 Sep-09 Dec-09

UK equi t i es Canada Equi t i es Nor th Amer i can Equi t i es

Eur opean Equi t i es Japan equi t i es Pac Ri m Equi t i es

total  bonds Cash Fund(s )  

This chart shows the absolute asset allocation or hedge fund strategy 

allocation over time.  This helps to identify any significant change or trends 

over time in allocation to particular asset allocations/hedge fund strategies. 

#6 

- 12 %

- 10 %

- 8 %

- 6 %

- 4 %

- 2 %

0 %

2 %

4 %

6 %

8 %

Sep-07 Dec-07 Mar-08 Jun-08 Sep-08 Dec-08 Mar-09 Jun-09 Sep-09 Dec-09

Conver t i bl e A r bi t r age Cr edi t  St r ategi es

Di st r ess  Secur i t i es Event  Dr i ven

Fi xed I ncome Ar bi t r age Long/ shor t  Equi ty

M acr o St r ategi es - Di scr et i onar y M acr o St r ategi es  - Systemat i c

Quant i tat i ve St r ategi es Vol at i l i t y  A r bi t r age

P or t f ol i o r et ur n  

These charts show the breakdown of the return provided by each of the 

different hedge fund strategies or asset classes over time - this provides a 

profile of where the returns come from, and should be compared with the 

volatility chart above to see if risk taken is being rewarded accordingly.  The 

total portfolio return is also shown. 

Page 257



Avon Pension Fund 44

#7 

-15%

-10%

-5%

0%

5%

10%

15%

-15.0% -10.0% -5.0% 0.0% 5.0% 10.0% 15.0%
Port f olio ret urn -  quart er ly (%)

Benchmark

Cash Global Equit ies Non Gilt s All Stocks

This chart plots the quarterly returns of the fund against quarterly returns of 

various indices.  Any plots on the diagonal line represent the fund and the 

index achieving the same quarterly return - any below the line represents 

underperformance relative to the index, above the line represents 

outperformance.  This is to highlight any apparent correlation between the 

fund returns and any particular index.  If a fund is used as a diversifier from, 

say equities, we would expect to see a lack of returns plotted close to the 

diagonal line. 

#8 

-30%

-20%

-10%

0%

10%

20%

30%

Sep-

07

Dec-

07

Mar-

08

Jun-

08

Sep-

08

Dec-

08

Mar-

09

Jun-

09

Sep-

09

Dec-

09
Short : < 5 years M edium: 5-10 years

M edium: 10-15 years Long: >15 years

This chart shows the holding in short, medium and long maturity bonds 

relative to the benchmark.  Over/underweight positions expose the fund to 

changes in the yield curve at different terms. 

#9 

-30%

-20%

-10%

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

Sep-

07

Dec-

07

Mar-

08

Jun-

08

Sep-

08

Dec-

08

Mar-

09

Jun-

09

Sep-

09

Dec-

09

AAA (or equivalent) AA (or equivalent) A (or equivalent)

BBB (or equivalent) Sub-inv. Grade Other

This chart shows the holding in bonds with different credit ratings.  AAA is 

the highest grading (usually for government or supranational organisation 

bonds) while below BBB is sub-investment grade and has a considerably 

higher risk of default.  The lower the grade the higher the risk and therefore 

the higher the return expected on the bond. 

#1

0 

6.0

6.2

6.4

6.6

6.8

7.0

7.2

7.4

7.6

7.8

8.0

Sep 07 Dec 07 Mar 08 Jun 08 Sep 08 Dec 08 Mar 09 Jun 09 Sep 09 Dec 09

Por t f ol i o dur at i on Benchmar k  dur at i on

This chart shows the duration of the fund against the benchmark duration.  It 

shows whether the fixed interest fund manager is taking duration bets 

against the benchmark. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
This report is written for the addressees only and may not be further copied or distributed without the prior permission of 
JLT Investment Consulting.  The value of investments can fall as well as rise and you may get back less than your 
original investment.  The past is no guide to future performance.  The information contained in this report is compiled 
from sources which we believe to be reliable and accurate at the date of this report. 

Page 258



A
vo

n
 P

en
si

o
n

 F
u

n
d

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

45

A
pp

en
di

x 
B

 –
 S

um
m

ar
y 

of
 M

an
da

te
s 

M
an

ag
er

 
M

an
d

at
e 

B
en

ch
m

ar
k 

O
u

tp
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 t
ar

g
et

 
(p

.a
.)

Ju
pi

te
r 

 
U

K
 E

qu
iti

es
 (

S
oc

ia
lly

 R
es

po
ns

ib
le

 In
ve

st
in

g)
 

F
T

S
E

 A
ll 

S
ha

re
 

+2
%

 

T
T

 In
te

rn
at

io
na

l 
U

K
 E

qu
iti

es
 (

U
nc

on
st

ra
in

ed
) 

F
T

S
E

 A
ll 

S
ha

re
 

+3
-4

%
 

In
ve

sc
o 

G
lo

ba
l e

x-
U

K
 E

qu
iti

es
 E

nh
an

ce
d 

(E
n.

 In
de

xa
tio

n)
 

M
S

C
I W

or
ld

 e
x 

U
K

 N
D

R
 

+0
.5

%
 

S
ch

ro
de

r 
G

lo
ba

l E
qu

iti
es

 (
U

nc
on

st
ra

in
ed

) 
M

S
C

I A
C

 W
or

ld
 In

de
x 

F
re

e 
+3

.5
-4

.5
%

 

S
S

gA
 

E
ur

op
e 

ex
-U

K
 E

qu
iti

es
 (

E
nh

an
ce

d 
In

de
xa

tio
n)

 
F

T
S

E
 A

W
 E

ur
op

e 
ex

 U
K

 
+0

.5
%

 

S
S

gA
 

P
ac

ifi
c 

in
c.

 J
ap

an
 E

qu
iti

es
 (

E
nh

an
ce

d 
In

de
xa

tio
n)

 
F

T
S

E
 A

W
 D

ev
 A

si
a 

P
ac

ifi
c 

+0
.5

%
 

G
en

es
is

 
E

m
er

gi
ng

 M
ar

ke
t E

qu
iti

es
 

M
S

C
I E

M
 IM

I T
R

 
- 

Ly
st

er
 W

at
so

n 
F

un
d 

of
 H

ed
ge

 F
un

ds
 

3M
 L

IB
O

R
 +

 4
%

 
+0

-2
%

 

M
A

N
 

F
un

d 
of

 H
ed

ge
 F

un
ds

 
3M

 L
IB

O
R

 +
 5

.7
5%

 
+0

-0
.2

5%
 

S
ig

ne
t 

F
un

d 
of

 H
ed

ge
 F

un
ds

 
3M

 L
IB

O
R

 +
 3

%
 

+1
-3

%
 

S
te

nh
am

 
F

un
d 

of
 H

ed
ge

 F
un

ds
 

3M
 L

IB
O

R
 +

 3
%

 
+1

-3
%

 

G
ot

te
x 

F
un

d 
of

 H
ed

ge
 F

un
ds

 
3M

 L
IB

O
R

 +
 3

%
 

+1
-3

%
 

B
la

ck
R

oc
k 

P
as

si
ve

 M
ul

ti-
as

se
t 

In
 

lin
e 

w
ith

 
cu

st
om

is
ed

 
be

nc
hm

ar
ks

 
us

in
g 

m
on

th
ly

 m
ea

n 
fu

nd
 w

ei
gh

ts
 

0%
 

B
la

ck
R

oc
k 

O
ve

rs
ea

s 
P

ro
pe

rt
y 

C
us

to
m

is
ed

 
be

nc
hm

ar
ks

 
us

in
g 

m
on

th
ly

 
m

ea
n 

fu
nd

 w
ei

gh
ts

 

0%
 

R
LA

M
 

U
K

 C
or

po
ra

te
 B

on
d 

F
un

d 
iB

ox
x 

£ 
no

n-
G

ilt
s 

al
l m

at
ur

iti
es

 
+0

.8
%

 

S
ch

ro
de

r 
U

K
 P

ro
pe

rt
y 

IP
D

 U
K

 p
oo

le
d 

+1
.0

%
 

P
ar

tn
er

s 
G

lo
ba

l P
ro

pe
rt

y 
IP

D
 G

lo
ba

l p
oo

le
d 

+2
.0

%
 

C
as

h 
In

te
rn

al
ly

 M
an

ag
ed

 
7 

da
y 

LI
B

ID
 

Page 259



   

JLT Investment Consulting.  A trading name of JLT Actuaries and Consultants 
Limited Authorised and regulated by the Financial Services Authority.  
Registered in England: 6 Crutched Friars, London EC3N 2PH 
Tel +44 (0)20 7528 4000 Fax +44 (0)20 7528 4500. www.jltgroup.com.  
Registered in England Number 676122. VAT No. 244 2321 96   
© December 2009 

CONTACTS  
John Finch 
JLT Investment Consulting 
Tel:  +44 (0) 0161 253 1168 
Email:  john_finch@jltgroup.com 
 
Bekki Jones 
JLT Investment Consulting 
Tel:  +44 (0) 0161 253 1159 
Email:  Bekki_jones@jltgroup.com 
 

JLT Investment Consulting 

St James's House, 7 Charlotte Street 
Manchester, M1 4DZ 
Fax +44 (0) 161 253 1169 

Page 260



Appendix 3

Estimated exposure to Euro Denominated assets at 30 June 2011

£m % of asset class
Overseas Bond portfolios 22 3.8%
Equity portfolios 185 11.0%
Global Property Funds 36 61.3%

Total Euro denominated exposure 243 10.5%

Estimated exposure to European Banks and Insurance Companies at 30 June 2011

£m % of asset class
Equities
UK Banks 42
European Banks 37
UK Insurers 18
European Insurers 18
Total 115 6.8%

Corporate Bonds
Financial companies 33
Total 33 24.5%

Stock Price performance since 30 June 2011 (Sterling returns)

Approx % of 
index at 
30/6/11

Price change 
30/6/11 to 30/8/11

HSBC 6.1% -13.3%
Barclays 2.4% -33.6%
Lloyds 1.1% -31.4%
Royal Bank Scotland 1.0% -36.8%

Banking Sector 14.5% -19.0%
Life Insurance Sector 3.0% -13.5%
FTSE All Share -9.6%

European Bank Sector 13.9% -30.0%
European Insurance Sector 6.4% -24.4%
FTSE AW Europe -14.5%

Note: this excludes hedge funds; European banks includes Eurozone, Swiss, Swedish, Danish and 
Norwegian banks

The Overseas Bond Portfolio has no exposure to Sovereign bonds issued by Greece, Ireland and Portugal.  
It has an estimated £2.5m invested in Spanish Government Bonds and £5.5m in Italian Government 
Bonds.

Euro and European Financials exposure

Page 261



Page 262

This page is intentionally left blank



 

Page 1 of 2 

 
Access to Information Arrangements 

 
Exclusion of access by the public to Council meetings 

 
 
Information Compliance Ref: LGA-11-011 
 
 
Meeting / Decision: Avon Pension Fund Committee 
 
Date: 23 September 2011 
 
 
Author: Liz Feinstein 
 
Report Title: Review of Investment Performance for Quarter Ending 30 June 
2011   
 
Exempt Appendix Title: Appendix 4 - Summary of Investment Panel Meetings 
with Investment Managers 
 
 

 
The public interest test has been applied, and it is concluded that the public 
interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs the public interest in 
disclosure at this time. It is therefore recommended that the committee 
resolve to exclude the public. The paragraphs below set out the relevant 
public interest issues in this case. 
 
PUBLIC INTEREST TEST 
 
If the Committee wishes to consider a matter with press and public excluded, 
it must be satisfied on two matters. 
 
Firstly, it must be satisfied that the information likely to be disclosed falls 
within one of the accepted categories of exempt information under the Local 
Government Act 1972.  Paragraph 3 of the revised Schedule 12A of the 1972 
Act exempts information which relates to the financial or business affairs of 
the investment managers which is commercially sensitive to the investment 
managers.  The officer responsible for this item believes that this information 
falls within the exemption under paragraph 3 and this has been confirmed by 
the Council’s Information Compliance Manager.  

Stating the exemption: 
3. Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular 

person (including the authority holding that information). 
 

Page 263



 

Page 2 of 2 

 
Secondly, it is necessary to weigh up the arguments for and against 
disclosure on public interest grounds.  The main factor in favour of disclosure 
is that all possible Council information should be public and that increased 
openness about Council business allows the public and others affected by 
any decision the opportunity to participate in debates on important issues in 
their local area.  Another factor in favour of disclosure is that the public and 
those affected by decisions should be entitled to see the basis on which 
decisions are reached.   
 
Weighed against this is the fact that the exempt appendix contains the 
opinions of Council officers and Panel members.  It also contains details of 
the investment processes/strategies of the investment managers. It would not 
be in the public interest if advisors and officers could not express in 
confidence opinions which are held in good faith and on the basis of the best 
information available. The information to be discussed is also commercially 
sensitive and if disclosed could prejudice the commercial interests of the 
investment managers. 
 
It is also important that the Committee should be able to retain some degree 
of private thinking space while decisions are being made, in order to discuss 
openly and frankly the issues under discussion relating to the investment 
managers in order to make a decision which is in the best interests of the 
Fund’s stakeholders. 
 

Page 264



Page 265

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 266

This page is intentionally left blank



 1

 
 

Bath & North East Somerset Council 
 

MEETING:  AVON PENSION FUND COMMITTEE AGENDA 
ITEM 
NUMBER  

MEETING 
DATE: 

 23 SEPTEMBER 2011 

TITLE: PENSION FUND ADMINISTRATION - EXPENDITURE FOR  YEAR TO 31 
AUGUST 2011  AND PERFORMANCE INDICATORS FOR 3 MONTHS TO 31 
JULY 2011 

WARD: ‘ALL’                          
  AN OPEN PUBLIC ITEM 
List of attachments to this report:   
Appendix 1     Summary Financial Account: financial year to 31 August 2011 
Appendix 2     Summary Budget Variances: financial year to 31 August 2011 
Appendix 3A   Balanced Scorecard : 3 months to 30 April 2011 (narrative) 
Appendix 3B   Balanced Scorecard in 3A: Graphs for selected items 
 Appendix 4A  Customer Satisfaction Feedback in the 3 months to 31 July 2011 

(Retirements from ACTIVE status) 
 Appendix 4B  Customer Satisfaction Feedback in the  3 months to 31 July 2011 

(Retirements from DEFERRED status) 
 Appendix 4C Customer Satisfaction Feedback in the months to 31 July 2011 

(Pensions Clinics) 
Appendix  5   Active membership statistics over 24 months to August 2011 

(graph)  
Appendix 6    Joiners & Leavers  (statistics & graph)  
Appendix 7    Statistics showing the current level of opt outs in major Fund Employers 
        
 
 
THE ISSUE 

1.1 The purpose of this report is to inform the Committee of administration and 
management expenditure incurred against budget for the financial year to 31 August 
2011. This information is set out in Appendix 1 and 2.  

1.2 This report also contains Performance Indicators and Customer Satisfaction Feedback 
from recently retired members and from 31 July 2011.  

 
2.  RECOMMENDATION 
That the Committee notes  

2.1  the expenditure for administration and management expenses incurred for the 
year to 31 August 2011 and Performance Indicators for the 3 months to 31 July 
2011. 

 

Agenda Item 17

Page 267



 2

 3 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
3.1 The administrative and management costs incurred by the Avon Pension Fund are 

recovered from the employing bodies through the employers’ contribution rates. 
3.2 The Local Government Pension Scheme (Management and Investment of Funds) 

Regulations 2009 provide that any costs, charges and expenses incurred 
administering a pension fund may be paid from it.  

  4.   COMMENT ON BUDGET  
  
4.1 The summary Financial Accounts have been prepared to cover the period 1 April 

2011 to 31 August 2011 and are contained in Appendix 1. 
 
4.2  The variance for the year to 31 March 2012 is forecast to be £246,000 over 

budget. Within the directly controlled Administration budget it is forecast that 
expenditure will be £20,000 below budget as a result of reduced expenditure on 
salaries.   

 
4.3 A summary of variances to 31st August 2011 and forecast for the full year is 

contained in Appendix 2 to this Report. 
 
5.  BALANCED SCORECARD SHOWING PERFORMANCE INDICATORS (“PIs”) 

FOR THE 3 MONTHS TO 31 JULY 2011 
5.1 The information provided in this report is consistent with the methodology applied to 

the Council generally but has been customised to reflect the special circumstances 
of the Avon Pension Fund. Full details of performance against target, in tabular and 
graph format, are shown in Appendices 3A and 3B.  

5.2 ADMINISTRATION PERFORMANCE 
5.2.1 Figures in the Balance Scorecard for performance of processing tasks within 

internal targets in SLAs figures are not currently available as work is being carried 
out on the “reporting tool.”  An updated Balance Scorecard will be circulated by e-
mail before the meeting. 

5.2.2 The level of work outstanding (Item C5 and graphs 5-7I In the 3 month period 
3,744 tasks were created and 3,589 cleared (95.8%), leaving an outstanding 
workload of 4.2% well within the target of 10%. 

       5.3 COMPLAINTS:  There were no complaints received in the period.  
5.4 2011 YEAR END AND MEMBERS ANNUAL BENEFIT STATEMENTS (“ABSs”) 

98% of the employers have submitted their year end salary information; this is 
currently being posted to members’ records and reconciled. Statements for active 
and deferred members are due to be rolled out to members starting in October 2011.    

6.   LEVEL OF OPT OUTS FROM THE SCHEME 
6.1 The Committee has asked that the position on opt outs from the Scheme be 

monitored in view of recent events affecting public pensions and the trend reported 
back to each Committee meeting.  

       Concern was expressed at the last meeting that the high profile attaching to public 
sector pensions as a result of significant media coverage of recent events might be 

Page 268



 3

leading to an unwarranted increase in the number of new and existing members 
opting out of the Avon Pension Fund Scheme. In particular, the recent events are 
recommendations to the government by Lord Hutton following his review of Public 
Sector pensions and their sustainability and the announcement by H M Treasury to 
increase members’ contributions from next April, both of which could make LGPS 
benefits less valuable and less attractive to members.  

 6.2 The following are the actions taken by the Fund’s Officers to deter members from 
opting out prematurely and to monitor opt out trends going forward: 
6.2.1. Deterring Members: A special announcement addressed to active members 
has been placed on the prominent News area of the Avon Pension Fund website to 
deter members from making a premature decision to opt out of the Scheme before 
detailed government proposals for change are even announced.  A general 
misconception seems to be that benefits already accrued could be adversely affected by 
future changes and that if members opt out they will avoid this. The Fund announcement 
makes it clear that this is not the case as the government has declared its intention not 
to do this.  
6.2.2 Monitoring future opt outs and reporting trends  
• Employers have been asked to provide information to establish who is in and who is 
out and the Fun. There has been a fair response with 64 replies from employers 
(including all larger employers). This information will be used as a benchmark 
position going forward. See Appendix 7 for statistics for the top 9 employers’ 
responses. This represents 86% of the active membership and reveals that the opt 
out rate across these employers is 80%. Opt outs for the Universities are significantly 
higher perhaps reflecting the lower ages of their staff.  
• Administration processes were amended in June 2011 to identify opt outs in a 
reportable field. At present however it is too soon to be able to provide the 
Committee with any meaningful statistics 
• The standard Opt Out form that members sign has been amended to ask them to 
specify why they have opted out using 4 simple to use tick boxes. 
• The Pension Scheme’s current software is being amended by Heywood for its next 
release in October 2011 to provide “opt out” as a recordable and reportable reason 
for leaving. This will make it much easier to monitor the on-going position on opt outs. 

6.3 Active Membership Statistics (to assist monitoring of opt out trends)   
6.3.1Figures of the current active membership for 24 months to the end of August 2011 

are shown for information in a graph format in Appendix 5. Also enclosed is 
Appendix 6 which shows the joiners and leavers movements from January 2009 to 
August 2011.  As can be seen the number of leavers has outweighed the joiners 
over the period: however this is probably to be expected with the redundancies 
coming through and less staff being taken on by employers due to austerity 
measures.  

6.3.2 Active Membership figures in graph format will be included as a standard item to 
be reported at future Committee meetings to monitor the trend in member 
movements at this volatile time when higher than normal level of 1) redundancies 
and 2) opt outs by members concerned about future scheme changes and potential 
increases to their contributions.  

Page 269



 4

7. CUSTOMER SATISFACTION FEEDBACK IN 3 MONTHS TO 31 JULY 2011 
7.1 Retirement Questionnaires   
  Appendix 4A reports on the customer satisfaction based on 75 questionnaires 

returned from active members retiring. On average 72% received their lump sum and 
75% their first pension payments within “10 day” target   (See chart).  

      Appendix 4B reports on the customer satisfaction based on a small sample of 39 
questionnaires returned from former active members retiring from deferred status. 
90% received their lump sum and 87% their first pension payments within “10 day” 
target (See chart). 

       Overall service rating as good/excellent from both actives and deferreds on the service 
received from Avon Pension Fund staff handling their retirement was 96% (See chart 
Item 5 on both graphs). A few Scheme members suggested some changes to aid the 
retirement administration process and these are being considered.   
   
7.2 Clinics In this period 11 clinics were held 127 members gave feedback with a 

good/excellent rating of 100% for the service provided by APF staff.  The venue and 
location was slightly less well-rated scoring a good/excellent rating of 90%. (See 
Appendix 4C) 

 
8.  EVENTS DURING THE PERIOD 
 
8.1 Pensions Administration Strategy became operative from 1st April 2011. At this 

meeting there is a separate Report to this update on progress of relevant items from 
the Strategy - the rollout of revised Service Level Agreements: proposals for employer 
staff training following analysis of returned questionnaires from employers on their 
requirements and electronic delivery of member data information from employers. 

 
8.2; The Heywood self-service facility for employers has now been tested in-house and 

by a Scheme Employer and has been made available to employers in June 2011. 
(The Report referred to in 7.1 above also covers this.)  

9.  RISK MANAGEMENT 
9.1 The Avon Pension Fund Committee is the formal decision-making body for the Fund. 

As such it has responsibility to ensure adequate risk management processes are in 
place. It discharges this responsibility by ensuring the Fund has an appropriate 
investment strategy and investment management structure in place that is regularly 
monitored.  In addition it monitors the benefits administration, the risk register and 
compliance with relevant investment, finance and administration regulations.  

10. EQUALITIES 
101 No equalities impact assessment is required as the Report contains only 

recommendations to note. 
11. CONSULTATION  
11.1 None appropriate. 
 
12. ISSUES TO CONSIDER IN REACHING THE DECISION 

Page 270



 5

12.1 This report is for noting only. 
13. ADVICE SOUGHT 
13.1 The Council's Monitoring Officer (Council Solicitor) and Section 151 Officer 

(Divisional Director - Finance) have had the opportunity to input to this report and 
have cleared it for publication. 

.Contact person  Martin Phillips Finance & Systems Manager (Pensions)) (Budgets) 
Tel: 01225 395369.   
Steve McMillan, Pensions Manager (All except budgets) Tel: 01225 
395254 

Background papers Various Accounting and Statistical Records  

 

Page 271



Page 272

This page is intentionally left blank



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 1

A
V

O
N

 P
E

N
S

IO
N

 F
U

N
D

S
U

M
M

A
R

Y
 F

IN
A

N
C

IA
L

 A
C

C
O

U
N

T
  :

  Y
E

A
R

 T
O

  3
1 

A
U

G
U

S
T

 2
01

1

Y
E

A
R

 T
O

 3
1 

A
U

G
U

S
T

 2
01

1
F

U
LL

 Y
E

A
R

 F
O

R
E

C
A

S
T

 A
T

 3
1 

/8
/2

01
1

A
C

T
U

A
L

B
U

D
G

E
T

V
A

R
IA

N
C

E
F

O
R

E
C

A
S

T
B

U
D

G
E

T
V

A
R

IA
N

C
E

£
£

£
£

£
£

In
ve

st
m

en
t E

xp
en

se
s

39
,6

56
50

,3
98

(1
0,

74
2)

10
1,

02
6

10
1,

02
6

0

A
dm

in
is

tr
at

io
n 

C
os

ts
30

,0
59

37
,5

76
(7

,5
17

)
78

,3
19

78
,3

19
0

C
om

m
un

ic
at

io
n 

C
os

ts
60

,4
43

65
,7

34
(5

,2
91

)
16

8,
11

7
16

8,
11

7
0

In
fo

rm
at

io
n 

S
ys

te
m

s
44

,1
33

69
,5

65
(2

5,
43

2)
16

6,
95

6
16

6,
95

6
0

S
al

ar
ie

s
51

9,
98

0
54

3,
10

0
(2

3,
12

0)
1,

28
3,

44
0

1,
30

3,
44

0
(2

0,
00

0)

C
en

tr
al

 A
llo

ca
te

d 
C

os
ts

15
0,

26
8

16
4,

34
2

(1
4,

07
4)

39
4,

42
0

39
4,

42
0

0

M
is

ce
lla

ne
ou

s 
R

ec
ov

er
ie

s/
In

co
m

e
(4

3,
07

2)
(5

8,
00

0)
14

,9
28

(1
39

,2
00

)
(1

39
,2

00
)

0
To

ta
l A

d
m

in
is

tr
at

io
n

80
1,

46
8

87
2,

71
5

(7
1,

24
7)

2,
05

3,
07

8
2,

07
3,

07
8

(2
0,

00
0)

In
ve

st
m

en
t G

ov
er

na
nc

e 
&

 M
em

be
r 

T
ra

in
in

g
11

6,
99

0
12

1,
32

1
(4

,3
30

)
29

1,
17

0
29

1,
17

0
0

M
em

be
rs

' A
llo

w
an

ce
s

16
,8

00
16

,8
51

(5
1)

40
,4

43
40

,4
43

0

In
de

pe
nd

en
t M

em
be

rs
' C

os
ts

7,
10

9
7,

81
7

(7
07

)
18

,7
60

18
,7

60
0

C
om

pl
ia

nc
e 

C
os

ts
14

1,
78

8
10

4,
69

5
37

,0
93

24
4,

57
5

26
9,

57
5

(2
5,

00
0)

C
om

pl
ia

nc
e 

C
os

ts
 r

ec
ha

rg
ed

(9
8,

98
8)

(2
1,

66
7)

(7
7,

32
2)

(5
2,

00
0)

(5
2,

00
0)

0
G

o
ve

rn
an

ce
 &

 C
o

m
p

lia
n

ce
18

3,
69

9
22

9,
01

7
(4

5,
31

8)
54

2,
94

8
56

7,
94

8
(2

5,
00

0)

G
lo

ba
l C

us
to

di
an

 F
ee

s
65

,7
79

59
,5

83
6,

19
6

14
3,

00
0

14
3,

00
0

0

In
ve

st
m

en
t M

an
ag

er
 F

ee
s 

3,
40

7,
77

3
   

  
3,

56
1,

22
9

   
 

(1
53

,4
56

)
8,

83
8,

21
0

   
 

8,
54

6,
95

0
   

 
29

1,
26

0
In

ve
st

m
en

t 
F

ee
s 

3,
47

3,
55

2
   

  
3,

62
0,

81
3

   
 

(1
47

,2
60

)
8,

98
1,

21
0

   
 

8,
68

9,
95

0
   

 
29

1,
26

0

N
E

T
 T

O
T

A
L

 C
O

S
T

S
4,

45
8,

71
9

4,
72

2,
54

4
(2

63
,8

25
)

11
,5

77
,2

36
11

,3
30

,9
76

24
6,

26
0

Page 273



Page 274

This page is intentionally left blank



Summary of Budget Variances: Forecast for year, as at 31st August 2011    APPENDIX 2 
 
Variances Analysis of the full year budget against forecasted outturn to the year end 
 
Expenditure Heading Amount of 

Variance * 
Most Significant Reasons for Variance 

Salaries (20,000) Staff vacancies have been left unfilled and some staff have reduced their 
hours. This has not currently affected the level of service provided.  
 

Compliance Costs (25,000) The forecast £25,000 reduction in expenditure against budget follows the audit 
requirement that the cost of the triennial valuation should be charged to the 
year in which the valuation was performed (2010/11) and not to the years in 
which it would apply as was assumed in the budget. This is a change in policy. 
This has resulted in a reduction of the total under-spend against budget in 
2010/11 reported to the Committee in June from £200,000 to £66,000. 
 
Increased expenditure on actuarial fees is offset by increased recharging of 
fees to employing bodies. 
 

Investment Manager Fees: 
 

291,000 The budget was prepared prior to the appointment of the currency hedging 
manager. The full year cost of this is currently forecast to be £605,000. This is 
largely offset by reductions in fees as a result of the markets lagging the return 
assumed in the budget. 
   

 246,000  
-ve variance represents an under-spend or recovery of income over budget 
+ve variance represents an over-spend or recovery of income below budget 

P
age 275



P
age 276

T
his page is intentionally left blank



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 3

A
 t

o
 B

u
d

g
et

 M
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g

 R
ep

o
rt

 a
t 

31
 J

u
ly

  2
01

1

G
re

en
 

R
ed

 
A

m
b

er

R
ep

o
rt

in
g

 
D

ep
t

20
10

/1
1 

A
ct

u
al

 
T

ar
g

et
 f

o
r 

20
11

/1
2

A
ct

u
al

 -
 3

 
m

o
n

th
s 

to
 

30
/0

7/
20

11
C

o
m

m
en

t

A 1a
G

A
dm

in
97

%
95

%
10

0%
 1

1 
cl

in
ic

s 
he

ld
 d

ur
in

g 
pe

rio
d.

G
ra

p
h

 1
1b

G
A

dm
in

95
%

95
%

99
%

G
en

er
al

ly
 g

oo
d 

fr
om

 r
es

po
ns

e 
fr

om
 r

et
ire

es

2
G

A
dm

in
90

%
95

%
97

%
Q

ua
lit

y 
an

d 
in

 p
ar

tic
ul

ar
 c

on
fid

en
tia

lit
y 

of
 v

en
ue

 w
as

 th
e 

le
as

t w
el

l-
sc

or
ed

. C
on

ce
nt

ra
tin

g 
on

 th
is

 fo
r 

fu
tu

re
  S

ee
 s

ep
ar

at
e 

ap
pe

nd
ix

3
G

A
dm

in
10

0%
10

0%
10

0%
C

ha
rt

er
m

ar
k 

A
cc

re
di

ta
tio

n 
ob

ta
in

ed
 a

s 
pa

rt
 o

f B
&

N
E

S
 F

in
an

ce
 in

 2
00

8 
- 

re
-a

ss
es

sm
en

t i
s 

du
e 

in
 2

01
1

4a

G
A

dm
in

76
%

90
%

to
 fo

llo
w

*
* 

se
e 

na
rr

at
iv

e 
in

 r
ep

or
t

G
A

dm
in

82
%

90
%

to
 fo

llo
w

*
* 

se
e 

na
rr

at
iv

e 
in

 r
ep

or
t

A
A

dm
in

62
%

75
%

to
 fo

llo
w

*
* 

se
e 

na
rr

at
iv

e 
in

 r
ep

or
t

G
A

dm
in

85
%

75
%

to
 fo

llo
w

*
* 

se
e 

na
rr

at
iv

e 
in

 r
ep

or
t

G
A

dm
in

64
%

75
%

to
 fo

llo
w

*
* 

se
e 

na
rr

at
iv

e 
in

 r
ep

or
t

G
A

dm
in

74
%

75
%

to
 fo

llo
w

*
* 

se
e 

na
rr

at
iv

e 
in

 r
ep

or
t

G
A

dm
in

94
%

90
%

to
 fo

llo
w

*
* 

se
e 

na
rr

at
iv

e 
in

 r
ep

or
t

4b
G

A
dm

in
10

0%
10

0%
10

0%

5
G

A
dm

in
2

0
0

N
o 

co
m

pl
ai

nt
s 

re
ce

iv
ed

 in
 th

e 
pe

rio
d

6
G

A
dm

in
10

0%
10

0%
10

0%
A

ll 
pa

id
 o

n 
tim

e

7
G

A
dm

in
on

 ti
m

e
10

0%
10

0%
A

ll 
co

m
pl

et
ed

 o
n 

tim
e

8
G

A
dm

in
49

25
6

36
00

0p
/a

 
30

00
p/

q
15

84
7

5,
28

2 
pe

r 
ca

le
nd

ar
 m

on
th

 fo
r 

re
po

rt
in

g 
pe

rio
d

G
ra

p
h

 2

9
G

A
dm

in
10

0%
10

0%
n/

a
no

ne
 th

is
 q

ua
rt

er

11
G

A
dm

in
10

0%
10

0%
N

/A
du

e 
ne

xt
 q

ua
rt

er

12
G

A
dm

in
70

%
10

0%
N

/A
20

11
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
 d

ue
 to

 s
ta

rt
 b

ei
ng

 s
en

t n
ex

t q
ua

rt
er

P
E

N
S

IO
N

S
 S

E
C

T
IO

N
 A

D
M

IN
IS

T
R

A
T

IO
N

K
ey

 P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 In
d

ic
at

o
rs

IN
D

IC
A

T
O

R

C
u

st
o

m
er

 P
er

sp
ec

ti
ve

G
en

er
al

 S
at

is
fa

ct
io

n 
w

ith
 S

er
vi

ce
 -

 c
lin

ic
 fe

ed
ba

ck

G
en

er
al

 S
at

is
fa

ct
io

n 
w

ith
 S

er
vi

ce
 -

 r
et

ire
es

 fe
ed

ba
ck

P
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

C
om

pl
ia

nc
e 

w
ith

 C
ha

rt
er

 M
ar

k 
cr

ite
ria

Le
ve

l o
f E

qu
al

iti
es

 S
ta

nd
ar

d 
fo

r 
Lo

ca
l G

ov
er

nm
en

t

S
er

vi
ce

 S
ta

nd
ar

ds
 -

 P
ro

ce
ss

in
g 

ta
sk

s 
w

ith
in

 in
te

rn
al

 ta
rg

et
s 

(S
LA

)

D
ea

th
s 

[1
2 

da
ys

]

R
et

ire
m

en
ts

 [1
5 

da
ys

]

Le
av

er
s 

(D
ef

er
re

ds
) 

[2
0 

da
ys

]

R
ef

un
ds

 [5
 d

ay
s]

T
ra

ns
fe

r 
In

s 
[2

0 
da

ys
]

T
ra

ns
fe

r 
O

ut
s 

[1
5 

da
ys

]

E
st

im
at

es
 [1

0 
da

ys
]

S
er

vi
ce

 S
ta

nd
ar

ds
 P

ro
ce

ss
in

g 
ta

sk
s 

w
ith

in
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 li
m

its

N
um

be
r 

of
 c

om
pl

ai
nt

s

P
en

si
on

s 
pa

id
 o

n 
tim

e

S
ta

tu
to

ry
 R

et
ur

ns
 s

en
t i

n 
on

 ti
m

e 
(S

F
3/

C
IP

F
A

)

N
um

be
r 

of
 h

its
 p

er
 p

er
io

d 
on

 A
P

F
 w

eb
si

te

A
dv

is
in

g 
m

em
be

rs
 o

f R
eg

 C
ha

ng
es

 w
ith

in
 3

 m
on

th
s 

of
 im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n

Is
su

e 
of

 N
ew

sl
et

te
r 

(A
ct

iv
e 

&
 P

en
si

on
er

s)

A
nn

ua
l B

en
ef

it 
S

ta
te

m
en

ts
 d

is
tr

ib
ut

ed
 b

y 
ye

ar
 e

nd

Page 277



B 1
G

A
ll

10
0%

10
0%

10
0%

U
p 

to
 d

at
e

2
G

A
ll

0%
10

0%
10

0%
n/

a 
- 

re
- 

aw
ar

de
d 

in
 S

um
m

er
 2

01
0

3
G

A
ll

0%
4%

0%
N

o 
le

av
er

s 
in

 th
e 

pe
rio

d

4
G

A
ll

97
%

10
0%

n/
a

N
on

e 
du

e 
in

 th
is

 p
er

io
d

5
G

A
ll

2.
50

%
 a

) 
3%

   
   

   
b)

 3
%

a)
1.

87
   

  b
) 

0%
A

he
ad

 o
f A

P
F

 ta
rg

et
 a

nd
 w

el
l a

he
ad

 o
f c

or
po

ra
te

 ta
rg

et
 o

f 5
%

C
h

a
rt

 3

6
G

A
ll

10
0%

10
0%

10
0%

S
ta

ff 
tr

ai
ni

ng
 r

eq
ui

re
m

en
ts

 fo
r 

al
l s

ta
ff 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
fr

om
. C

ou
rs

es
 (

in
te

rn
al

 
&

 e
xt

er
na

l) 
ar

e 
op

en
 to

 r
el

ev
an

t s
ta

ff 
as

 w
he

n 
av

ai
la

bl
e,

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
bo

ug
ht

 in
 w

he
re

 b
ul

k 
tr

ai
ni

ng
 n

ec
es

sa
ry

. 

C 1
A

A
dm

in
a)

 0
.3

%
   

   
   

b)
 1

00
%

   
a)

 4
%

   
   

  
b)

 1
00

%
a)

 0
.3

%
   

  
b)

 1
00

%

a)
0.

03
%

 r
ep

re
se

nt
s 

th
e 

m
em

be
rs

 w
ho

  a
gr

ee
d 

re
ce

iv
e 

th
e 

N
ew

sl
et

te
r 

el
ec

tr
on

ic
al

ly
.  

 In
te

rn
et

 A
cc

es
s 

m
ea

ns
 th

at
 o

ve
r 

20
00

 m
em

be
rs

 a
re

 h
ap

py
 to

 
re

ce
iv

e 
in

fo
 e

le
ct

ro
ni

ca
lly

   
b)

 S
ec

tio
n 

ab
le

 to
 d

el
iv

er
 a

ll 
ta

rg
et

ed
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

el
ec

tr
on

ic
al

ly
 (

S
ee

 A
dm

in
 R

ep
or

t)
 

2
G

A
dm

in
99

%
98

%
96

.5
%

89
00

 c
al

ls
, 8

58
5 

an
sw

er
ed

 w
ith

in
 2

0 
se

co
nd

s 
-m

ar
gi

na
lly

 b
eh

in
d 

ta
rg

et
G

ra
p

h
 4

3
G

A
dm

in
10

0%
10

0%
n/

a
N

o 
co

m
pl

ai
nt

s 
in

 th
e 

pe
rio

d

4
G

A
dm

in
95

%
95

%
10

0%
A

he
ad

 o
f t

ar
ge

t

5
G

A
dm

in
5.

77
%

10
%

4.
22

%
In

 th
e 

3 
m

on
th

 p
er

io
d 

37
44

 C
re

at
ed

, 3
58

9 
cl

ea
re

d 
( 

95
.7

8.
%

 le
av

in
g 

4.
22

%
 o

f w
or

kl
oa

d 
ou

ts
ta

nd
in

g)
 W

ith
in

 ta
rg

et
G

ra
p

h
s 

5 
6 

&
 7

)

6
G

A
cc

ou
nt

s
 a

) 
6%

 b
) 

0.
05

%
   

   
 a

) 
 0

%
   

   
 

b)
 0

%
a)

 1
.8

%
   

  
b)

  0
.0

8%
   

A
n 

av
er

ag
e 

of
 2

 o
f t

he
 1

12
 e

m
pl

oy
er

s 
se

nt
 th

ei
r 

co
nt

rib
ut

io
ns

 in
 la

te
.  

  N
o

  
p

er
si

st
en

t 
la

te
-p

ay
er

s.
 A

ve
ra

ge
 d

el
ay

 o
f l

at
e 

pa
ye

rs
 w

as
 9

 d
ay

s 
ho

w
ev

er
 th

e 
am

ou
nt

s 
in

vo
lv

ed
 w

er
e 

ne
gl

ig
ib

le
 a

t u
nd

er
 1

%
  o

f t
he

 to
ta

l o
f 1

0.
9m

.  
E

m
pl

oy
er

s 
ar

e 
re

m
in

de
d 

re
gu

la
rly

 o
f t

he
ir 

le
ga

l o
bl

ig
at

io
ns

 to
 p

ay
 o

n 
tim

e 
an

d 
th

e 
po

ss
ib

ili
ty

 
(u

nd
er

 th
e 

20
07

 A
dm

in
 R

eg
s)

 o
f b

ill
in

g 
th

em
 fo

r 
 e

xt
ra

  c
ha

rg
es

 if
 u

nn
ec

es
sa

ry
 

ad
di

tio
na

l w
or

k 
is

 c
re

at
ed

 fo
r 

A
P

F
.

7
G

A
dm

in
81

%
10

0%
98

%
A

ll 
P

en
 C

on
ts

 a
nd

 P
en

 R
em

s 
no

w
 r

ec
ei

ve
d 

ho
w

ev
er

, N
or

th
 S

om
er

se
ts

 
P

en
 R

em
s 

re
tu

rn
ed

 a
s 

15
00

 p
os

t n
um

be
rs

 m
is

si
ng

.

8
G

A
dm

in
2%

3%
2%

A
cc

ep
ta

bl
e 

er
ro

r 
le

ve
l

D 1
G

A
dm

in
91

%
94

%
93

.7
2%

B
us

in
es

s 
F

in
an

ci
al

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
(in

c 
P

en
si

on
s)

 fi
gu

re
 is

 m
ar

gi
na

lly
  b

el
ow

 
ta

rg
et

2
G

A
ll

0.
40

%
3%

2.
66

%
*

* 
F

or
 th

e 
pu

rp
os

es
 o

f r
eo

pr
tin

g 
te

m
po

ra
ra

y 
st

af
f l

ev
el

s 
th

es
e 

on
ly

 s
ho

w
  a

g
e
n

c
y
 

te
m

po
ra

ry
 s

ta
ff.

 P
re

vi
ou

s 
re

po
rt

s 
ha

ve
 in

cl
ud

ed
 B

&
N

E
S

 s
ta

ff 
w

ho
 a

re
 o

n 
te

m
po

ra
ry

 c
on

tr
ac

ts
.T

he
re

 a
re

 c
ur

re
nt

ly
 2

 F
T

E
 s

ta
ff 

in
 te

 b
en

ef
its

 a
re

a 
w

ho
 a

re
 

ke
pt

 o
n 

te
m

po
ra

ry
 c

on
tr

ac
ts

  i
nt

en
tio

na
lly

 s
o 

th
at

 th
ey

 th
er

e 
is

 th
e 

fle
xi

bi
ly

 to
 

m
ov

e 
th

em
 a

ro
un

d 
to

 c
ov

er
 fo

r 
m

at
er

ni
ty

 a
bs

en
ce

. 

3
R

S
up

p 
&

 D
ev

24
%

10
0%

 (
25

%
 p

/q
)

20
%

ED
I p

ro
gr

es
s 

ha
s 

be
en

 s
lo

w.
 T

he
 n

ew
 A

dm
in

 S
tra

te
gy

 w
ill 

be
 u

se
d 

to
 e

nc
ou

ra
ge

 
em

pl
oy

er
s 

to
 p

ro
vid

e 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
el

ec
tro

ni
ca

lly
 a

s 
th

e 
no

rm
. N

ew
 E

m
po

ye
r A

cc
es

s 
m

od
ul

e 
to

 b
e 

ro
lle

d 
ou

t i
n 

20
11

 w
ill 

al
lo

w 
em

pl
oy

er
s 

to
 k

ey
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
el

ec
tro

ni
ca

lly
 

in
to

 th
e 

pe
ns

io
ns

 d
at

ab
as

e.
   

  

4
G

S
up

p 
&

 D
ev

10
0%

10
0%

10
0%

S
ta

ff 
tr

ai
ni

ng
 r

eq
ui

re
m

en
ts

 fo
r 

al
l s

ta
ff 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
fr

om
 S

ta
ff 

m
ee

tin
g 

in
 

20
10

 n
ew

 fo
rm

 s
et

 u
p 

to
 u

se
 a

t 1
 -

 1
 m

ee
tin

gs
 to

 s
up

pl
em

en
t 

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 R
ev

ie
w

 a
ss

es
sm

en
t. 

C
ou

rs
es

 (
in

te
rn

al
 &

 e
xt

er
na

l) 
ar

e 
op

en
 to

 r
el

ev
an

t s
ta

ff 
as

 w
he

n 
av

ai
la

bl
e,

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
bo

ug
ht

 in
 w

he
re

 b
ul

k 
tr

ai
ni

ng
 n

ec
es

sa
ry

. 

P
eo

p
le

 P
er

sp
ec

ti
ve

H
ea

lth
 &

 S
af

et
y 

C
om

pl
ia

nc
e

%
 o

f s
ta

ff 
w

ith
 In

ve
st

or
 in

 P
eo

pl
e 

A
w

ar
d 

(I
IP

)

%
 o

f n
ew

 s
ta

ff 
le

av
in

g 
w

ith
in

 3
 m

on
th

s 
of

 jo
in

in
g

%
 o

f s
ta

ff 
w

ith
 u

p 
to

 d
at

e 
P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 R

ev
ie

w
s

%
 S

ic
kn

es
s 

A
bs

en
ce

a)
 S

ho
rt

 T
er

m
b)

 L
on

g 
T

er
m

N
o.

 o
f c

us
to

m
er

 e
rr

or
s 

(d
ue

 to
 in

co
m

pl
et

e 
da

ta
)

%
 o

f s
ta

ff 
w

ith
 a

n 
up

 to
 d

at
e 

tr
ai

ni
ng

 p
la

n

P
ro

ce
ss

 P
er

sp
ec

ti
ve

a)
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

ac
tu

al
ly

 d
el

iv
er

ed
 

el
ec

tr
on

ic
al

ly
b)

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
ca

pa
bl

e
 o

f d
el

iv
er

y 
to

 
m

em
be

rs

%
 T

el
ep

ho
ne

 a
ns

w
er

ed
 w

ith
in

 2
0 

se
co

nd
s

R
es

o
u

rc
e 

P
er

sp
ec

ti
ve

%
 S

up
pl

ie
r 

In
vo

ic
es

 p
ai

d 
w

ith
in

 3
0 

da
y 

or
 m

ut
ua

lly
 a

gr
ee

d 
te

rm
s

T
em

p 
S

ta
ff 

le
ve

ls
 (

%
 o

f w
or

kf
or

ce
)

%
 o

f I
T

 p
la

n 
ac

hi
ev

ed
 a

ga
in

st
 ta

rg
et

%
 o

f T
ra

in
in

g 
P

la
n 

ac
hi

ev
ed

 a
ga

in
st

 ta
rg

et

%
 C

om
pl

ai
nt

s 
de

al
t w

ith
 w

ith
in

 C
or

po
ra

te
 S

ta
nd

ar
ds

Le
tte

rs
 a

ns
w

er
ed

 w
ith

in
 c

or
po

ra
te

 s
ta

nd
ar

d

M
ai

nt
ai

n 
w

or
k 

in
 p

ro
gr

es
s/

ou
ts

ta
nd

in
g 

at
 b

el
o

w
 1

0%
 

C
ol

le
ct

io
n 

of
 P

en
si

on
 C

on
tr

ib
ut

io
ns

:-
 a

) 
%

 R
ec

ei
ve

d 
la

te
   

b)
 L

at
e 

co
nt

rib
ut

io
ns

 a
s 

a 
%

 o
f  

to
ta

l 

Y
ea

r 
E

nd
 u

pd
at

e 
pr

oc
ed

ur
es

 (
co

nt
s 

&
 s

al
ar

ie
s 

re
ce

iv
ed

 b
y 

31
/0

8/
20

11
)

Page 278



APPENDIX 3B Budget Report as at 30th April 2011 Graph Format

�

��

��

��

��

��

��

��

	�


�

���

���������	������
����
�����

����������

1

�

����

����

����

����

����

����

����

�����������

���

2

�����

�����

�����

�����

�����

�����

�����

����������������
�������������

�������

�������

���������

3

Page 279



APPENDIX 3B Budget Report as at 30th April 2011 Graph Format

�����

������

������

������

	�����

�������

�������

�������

�
��������
����������	����

����� ����

�!"#$�

%&���'����(����
�)�*�����(�����

������+���'�(�)�(����
��,��������

5

�

���

����

����

����

����

����
�������
����������	����

�����,
�-./�$�$0
����,'���

6

�����

������

������

������

������

������

������

������

	�����


�����

�������

��	���������������

"��������%�&��
�������

4

5

Page 280



APPENDIX 3B Budget Report as at 30th April 2011 Graph Format

�

���

���

���

	��

����

����

�����
���������	�
�

%-"1!+�$��!�$�

����,'���

7

Page 281



Page 282

This page is intentionally left blank



Pensions Admin Report: Appendix 4A & B -  Retirees  Feedback Results May to July 2011

75

1 Yes 73 97%

NO 2 3%

A Before R'ment date 43 57%

2
B Within 10 working days after R'ment date 20 27%

C Later than 10 days after R'ment date 12 16%

Within 10 days after R'ment date 36 84%

3A
Later than 10 days after R'ment date 7 16%

Within 10 days after returning Opt Form 14 70%

3B
Later than 10 days after returning Opt Form 6 30%

Within 10 days after returning Opt Form 4 33%
3C

Later than 10 days after returning Opt Form 8 67%

Within 1 month after R'ment date 56 75%

4

Later than 1 month after R'ment date 19 25%

Excellent 46 61%

Good 24 32%

5
Average 5 7%

Poor 0 0%

Yes 13 17%

6
No 62 83%

Yes 75 100%

7
No 0 0%

Is there anything we could have done to improve the 
service we provided?

Were you treated with sensitivity & fairness?

Number of Questionnaires in this period

Was the information provided to you bythe Avon 
Pension Fund both clear & concise?

Did you receive your Lump Sum Payment…..

Did you receive your first Pension Payment….

Overall, how would you rate the service you received 
from Avon Pension Fund?

Did you receive your Lump Sum Payment…..

Responses to Retirement Questionnaire

Did you receive your LGPS Retirement Benefits Option 
Form…….

Did you receive your Lump Sum Payment…..

Page 283



Page 284

This page is intentionally left blank



Pensions Admin Report: Appendix 4A & B -  Retirees  Feedback Results May to July 2011

39

1 Yes 39 100%

NO 0%

A Before R'ment date 35 90%

2
B Within 10 working days after R'ment date 1 3%

C Later than 10 days after R'ment date 3 8%

Within 10 days after R'ment date 32 91%

3A
Later than 10 days after R'ment date 3 9%

Within 10 days after returning Opt Form 1 100%

3B
Later than 10 days after returning Opt Form 0 0%

Within 10 days after returning Opt Form 2 67%
3C

Later than 10 days after returning Opt Form 1 33%

Within 1 month after R'ment date 34 87%

4

Later than 1 month after R'ment date 5 13%

Excellent 31 79%

Good 8 21%

5
Average 0 0%

Poor 0 0%

Yes 6 15%

6
No 33 85%

Yes 39 100%

7
No 0 0%

Responses to Retirement Questionnaire

Number of Questionnaires in this period

Was the information provided to you bythe Avon 
Pension Fund both clear & concise?

Overall, how would you rate the service you received 
from Avon Pension Fund?

Is there anything we could have done to improve the 
service we provided?

Were you treated with sensitivity & fairness?

Did you receive your LGPS Retirement Benefits Option 
Form…….

Did you receive your Lump Sum Payment…..

Did you receive your Lump Sum Payment…..

Did you receive your first Pension Payment….

Did you receive your Lump Sum Payment…..

Page 285



Page 286

This page is intentionally left blank



Pensions Admin Report: 

From Question 2 above (column 1) From Question 2 above (column 2 & 3) 

Appendix 4B

57%

27%
16%

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

Before R'ment date Within 10 working
days after R'ment

date

Later than 10 days
after R'ment date

2.  Did you receive your LGPS Retirement 
Benefits Option Form…...?

97%

3%
0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

Yes NO

1.  Was the information provided to you by 
the Avon Pension Fund both clear & 

concise?

84%

16%

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

Within 10 days after R'ment
date

Later than 10 days after R'ment
date

3A.  Did you receive your Lump Sum 
Payment…..?

75%

25%

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

Within 1 month after R'ment
date

Later than 1 month after
R'ment date

4.  Did you receive your first Pension 
Payment...?

70%

30%

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

Within 10 days after returning
Opt Form

Later than 10 days after
returning Opt Form

3B.  Did you receive your Lump Sum 
Payment...?

61%

32%

7%
0%

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

Excellent Good Average Poor

5.  Overall, how would you rate the service 
you received from Avon Pension Fund?

17%

83%

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

Yes No

6.  Is there anything we could have done to 
improve the service we provided?

100%

0%
0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

Yes No

7.  Were you treated with sensitivity & 
fairness?

33%

67%

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

Within 10 days after returning
Opt Form

Later than 10 days after
returning Opt Form

3C.  Did you receive your Lump Sum 
Payment….?

Page 287



Page 288

This page is intentionally left blank



From Question 2 above (column 1) From Question 2 above (column 2 & 3) )

Appendix 4B

100%

0%
0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

Yes NO

1.  Was the information provided to you by 
the Avon Pension Fund both clear & 

concise?
90%

3%
8%

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

Before R'ment date Within 10 working
days after R'ment

date

Later than 10 days
after R'ment date

2.  Did you receive your LGPS Retirement 
Benefits Option Form...?

91%

9%

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

Within 10 days after R'ment
date

Later than 10 days after R'ment
date

3A.  Did you receive your Lump Sum 
Payment...?

100%

0%
0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

Within 10 days after returning
Opt Form

Later than 10 days after
returning Opt Form

3B.  Did you receive your Lump Sum 
Payment...?

87%

13%

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

Within 1 month after R'ment
date

Later than 1 month after
R'ment date

4.  Did you receive your First Pension 
Payment...?

79%

21%

0% 0%
0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

Excellent Good Average Poor

5.  Overall, how would you rate the service 
you received from Avon Pension Fund?

15%

85%

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

Yes No

6.  Is there anything we could have done to 
improve the service we provided?

100%

0%
0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

Yes No

7.  Were you treated with sensitivity & 
fairness?

67%

33%

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

Within 10 days after returning
Opt Form

Later than 10 days after
returning Opt Form

3C.  Did you receive your Lump Sum 
Payment….?

Page 289



Page 290

This page is intentionally left blank



���������	
����������������������������������	�

�����������	
�����������������������������������������������������
����������� �!���"��#����$"����!�%#�&%!��%���#�!���'�#�&&�!�����(�#��)��%'�!��

�*+,����-�.*�/
0�		�0��/ ��1
��2 3 �

� ��� 413
� �� ��3
� � �3
� 5 53
� 5 53

� ��� 613
� � �3
� 5 53
� 5 53
� 5 53

'�/ ��1 �553
�� 5 53

� 4� 773
� �5 ��3
� �� 63
� � �2553
� 5 52553

'�/ ��7 663
�� � �3

5 53

'�/ ��6 6�3
�� 4 73

5 53

'�/ ��� 613
�� � �3

 �/�
80/�����
0�	���	��	0�	
�-���9�*:

�����/;�	/�

"������9�*���
��
8����	*�:

��0	0��&���,��<�!�/*�
/��/
�)�9�=��/
�>*�9��5��

 ����9�*��.*�/
0�	/��	/������
��9�*��-*���/�
0/-��
0�	:

 �/�
8��+�+,����-�/
�--��8������
��0
8�9�*�8��;-*���	��;��0
�:

#��9�*�-����9�*���;;�0	
+�	
�;���0�����	�*�8�
0+��
�����.*�
��9���/�����9�*��.*��9:

�����/;�	/�

 ����9�*��--������/*--0�0�	
�;�0���9��*�0	��9�*���;;�0	
+�	
:

�-�9�*�8���-*�
8���.*�/
0�	/��	�����8��������0	0���
�
80/���	*�����0	���*���9�*��

�	�:����

87%

12%

2% 0% 0%
0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

1 2 3 4 5

Were your questions answered to you full 
satisfaction?

(1=Good - 5=Poor)
97%

3%
0% 0% 0%

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

1 2 3 4 5

Was the member of staff who dealt with you helpful & 
polite?

(1=Good - 5=Poor)

100%

0%
0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

Yes No

Do you feel your appointment time provide enough 
time to adequatley resolve your query?

66%

24% 9%

1.00% 0.00%
0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

1 2 3 4 5

How do you rate the venue?
(1=Good - 5=Poor)

Page 291



99%

1% 0%
0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

Yes No

Were you afforded sufficient privacy during your 
appointment?

94%

6%
0%

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

Yes No

If you had further questions and we held a Clinic at 
this venue again, would you attend?

97%

3%
0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

Yes No

Was this location convenient for you?

Page 292



Pension Admin Report Appendix 5 

�����

�����

�����

�����

�����

�����

�����

������

���	
��������������
�	
���

��������	
����

Page 293



Page 294

This page is intentionally left blank



Pensions Administration Report  Appendix  6
Joiners and leavers (graph) 

Joiners and leavers in years 2009-2011 (Total in the period) 

Apr-09 May-09 Jun-09 Jul-09 Aug-09 Sep-09 Oct-09 Nov-09 Dec-09 Jan-10 Feb-10 Mar-10

2009-10 joiners 307 206 179 174 183 566 291 469 112 384 224 210 3305

leavers 277 209 193 260 243 356 237 279 186 230 218 222 2910

30 -3 -14 -86 -60 210 54 190 -74 154 6 -12 395

Apr-10 May-10 Jun-10 Jul-10 Aug-10 Sep-10 Oct-10 Nov-10 Dec-10 Jan-11 Feb-11 Mar-11

2010-11 joiners 287 210 287 205 242 151 150 348 270 228 88 389 2855

leavers 315 249 238 301 247 338 234 233 125 242 188 177 2887

-28 -39 49 -96 -5 -187 -84 115 145 -14 -100 212 -32

Apr-11 May-11 Jun-11 Jul-11 Aug-11 Recent months prably have more to be sent from employers

2011 joiners 171 170 205 91 26 663

Apr-Aug leavers 211 188 184 157 68 808

-40 -18 21 -66 -42 -145

�

���

���

���

���

���

���

���������	�
���� �	
���

������

�
���
��	
����

�

���

����

����

����

����

����

����

���� ���� ����

�	
���

������

Page 295



Page 296

This page is intentionally left blank



Pension  Fund Admin Report: Appendix 7

Table of largest empoyers opt out statistics

9 largest employers total 
e'es 

in fund opted 
out 

% in 
Fund

City of Bristol Council 13610 11089 2521 81%

South Gloucestershire Council 7553 6100 1453 81%
Bath & North East Somerset Council 5424 4413 1011 81%
North Somerset Council 4759 3982 777 84%
University of the West of England 2678 1675 1003 63%

University of Bath 1035 819 216 79%

City of Bristol College 781 646 135 83%

Avon Fire & Rescue - Civilians 361 176 185 49%

Bath Spa University 356 314 42 88%

                          total/average 36557 29214 7343 80%

Page 297



Page 298

This page is intentionally left blank



Printed on recycled paper 1

 

Bath & North East Somerset Council 
 

MEETING: AVON PENSION FUND COMMITTEE 
MEETING 
DATE: 23 SEPTEMBER 2011 AGENDA 

ITEM 
NUMBER  

TITLE: WORKPLANS 
WARD: ALL 

AN OPEN PUBLIC ITEM  
List of attachments to this report: 
Appendix 1 – Investments Workplan to 31 March 2012 
Appendix 2 – Pensions Benefits Workplan to 31 March 2012 
Appendix 3 – Committee Workplan to 31 March 2012 
Appendix 4 – Investments Panel Workplan to 31 March 2012 
Appendix 5 – Training Programme 2011-13 

 
 
 
1 THE ISSUE 
1.1 Attached to this report are updated workplans for the Investments and Pensions 

Benefit teams which set out the various issues on which work will be undertaken 
in the period to at least 31 March 2012 and which may result in reports being 
brought to Committee.  In addition there is a Committee workplan which sets out 
provisional agendas for the Committee’s forthcoming meetings. 

1.2 The workplan for the Investment Panel is also included for the Committee to 
review and amend as appropriate. 

1.3 The provisional training programme for 2011-2013 which was discussed at the 
March 2011 committee meeting is included as Appendix 5.   

1.4 The workplans are consistent with the 2011/2014 Service Plan but also include a 
number of items of lesser significance which are not in the Service Plan.     

1.5 The workplans will be updated quarterly 
2 RECOMMENDATION 
2.1 That the workplans for the period to 31 March 2012 be noted. 
 
 

Agenda Item 18

Page 299



Printed on recycled paper 2

3 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
3.1 There are no financial implications arising from this report. 
4 THE PURPOSE OF THE WORKPLANS 
4.1 The purpose of the workplans is to enable members to have a better appreciation 

of their future workload and the associated timetable. In effect they represent an 
ongoing review of the Service Plan while including a little more detail.  The plans 
are however subject to change to reflect either a change in priorities or 
opportunities / issues arising from the markets. 

4.2 Reviewing the future workplan provides the opportunity for the Committee to 
consider the process to be undertaken for each project, their level of involvement 
and whether any of the work should be delegated to the Investment Panel and/or 
officers.   

4.3 At this stage the primary focus of the Panel is monitoring the investment 
managers as no investment projects are currently delegated to the Panel 

4.4 As this is a new committee, the committee workplan includes a number of training 
sessions planned for 2011/12 which are designed to support the committee in 
their role.  In addition the provisional training plan for 2011 -13 is also included so 
that Members are aware of intended training sessions.  This plan will be updated 
quarterly. 

4.5 Please note that a workshop for the Interim Actuarial Valuation is to be held 
on the morning of the Committee meeting on 9 December (11 to 1 pm).  This 
will cover the valuation process as well as the outcome from the Interim 
Valuation.  There will be a report on the outcome of the valuation (and 
potential implications of scheme changes) on the Committee agenda.  

5 RISK MANAGEMENT 
5.1 Forward planning and training plans form part of the risk management framework. 
6 EQUALITIES 
6.1 This report is for information only. 
7 CONSULTATION 
7.1 N/a 
8 ISSUES TO CONSIDER IN REACHING THE DECISION 
8.1 N/a 
9 ADVICE SOUGHT 
9.1 The Council's Monitoring Officer and Section 151 Officer (Divisional Director – 

Finance) have had the opportunity to input to this report and have cleared it for 
publication. 

Contact person  Liz Feinstein, Investments Manager; Steve McMillan, Pensions 
Page 300



Printed on recycled paper 3

Manager 
Background 
papers 

 

Please contact the report author if you need to access this report in an alternative 
format 
 

Page 301



Page 302

This page is intentionally left blank



   Appendix 1 
 

INVESTMENTS TEAM WORKPLAN TO 31 MARCH 2012 
 

 

Project Proposed Action Committee Report 
Member Training Develop training policy for members (and then 

officers) in line with CIPFA Knowledge and Skills 
Framework and Toolkit (when issued). Arrange 
training sessions as necessary to  
ensure that all Committee members stay abreast 
of the latest developments in the world of local 
government pensions by being given the 
opportunity to attend seminars 
 

ongoing 

Review of 
investment strategy  

Investment Panel to make recommendations to 
Committee – see Investment Panel workplan for 
projects 
 

ongoing 

Review manager 
performance 

Officers to formally meet managers annually 
See IP workplan for Panel meetings 

2011 dates confirmed 
SRI Review Workshops to be planned for September- 

December to review SRI policy 
December 2011/March 
2012 

Interim valuation Report to committee and employers on outcome 
of interim valuation.  

December 2011 
Custody Contract Re tender the custody contract  

 
December 2011 

Review AAF 01/06 & 
SAS70 reports 

Annual review of external providers internal 
control reports 
 

December 2011 

Statement of 
Investment 
Principles 

Revise following any change in Fund 
strategy/policies. Publish within 6 months of any 
changes. 
 

ongoing 

Budget and Service 
Plan 2012/15 

Preparation of budget and service plan for 
2012/15 
 

March 2012 

Investments Forum Organise forum meetings expected to be held in 
Autumn 2011 (covering interim valuation, 
Hutton) 
 

 

FRS 17 Liaise with the Fund’s actuary in the production 
of FRS 17 disclosures for  employing bodies 
 

 

Page 303



Page 304

This page is intentionally left blank



 
WORK PLAN POSITION AS AT 31 AUGUST 2011                               APPENDIX 2     

 
WORKPLAN - PENSION ADMINISTRATION TO 31 MARCH 2012 

Project Proposed Action Report 

Employer Self Service  Employer Self Service a heywood software application) 
allowing Employers to do their own member estimates 
and associated cost calculations for redundancies.  
Introduce the facility for employers  to advise the Fund on 
member data changes from October 2011, (Data 
Protection issues currently need clarification).  

N/A 

Administration 
Strategy(SLA) 
Agreements 

The Pensions Administration Strategy effective from April 
2011. important areas to be progressed: 
- Employer staff training  
- Electronic reporting of member data changes either 

by bulk Electronic Data Interface or via Employer Self 
Service (see above) by April or October 2012, 
depending on employer’s size 

- Performance Reporting and review meetings with  
employers 

See Report on Pensions Administration Strategy Report 
submitted to this meeting. 

N/A 

Electronic Delivery of 
information to members 

Devise a Strategy to move to electronic delivery to all 
members (other than those who choose to remain with 
paper)  
 Provide members with the 3 appropriate notices of the 
Fund’s intention to cease to send them paper copy 
communication in favour of electronic delivery (unless 
they opt out from this)  
See item within Budget Monitoring and Performance 
Indicators Report submitted to this meeting. 

N/A 

Strategy  to communicate  
proposed government 

changes to LGPS benefits 
(Post Hutton and H M 

Treasury proposed increase 
in members’ contributions) 

To put in place a workable Strategy/Timetable to 
effectively communicate the proposed changes (Post 
Hutton and H M Treasury proposed increase in members’ 
contributions) to the Scheme and what it will mean for 
members/employers utilising  electronic (website) paper 
and face to face meetings with employers’ and their staff  

N/A 

Monitor Opt out rates  Change processes to mark opt out on memebers records 
as reason for leaving and be able to monitor and report 
on these to Committee)  

N/A 

AVC Strategy Finalise new AVC Investment Strategy for  approval by 
Committee 

Dec 2011 

 Page 305



Page 306

This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 3 
Committee Workplan to 31 March 2012 

 
December 2011 

Interim Actuarial Valuation – update of funding level; implications of Hutton 
proposals 
Review of Investment Performance for Quarter Ending 30 September 2011 
Pension Fund Administration – Budget Monitoring 2011/12, Performance Indicators 
for Quarter Ending 30 September 2011 and Risk Register Action Plan 
Investment Panel Minutes 
Review Investment Panel Recommendations 
Review of SRI Policy – Stage 1 report 
Compliance report: Annual review of internal control reports of external service 
providers; SIP 
Custody Contract Tender outcome 
Workplans 
Planned Workshops & Training sessions 
– Interim Actuarial Valuation training workshop to be held on 9 December 2011 

11-1 pm prior to Committee meeting  
– SRI Policy Review 4Q11 Stage 1  
 

March 2012 
Review of Investment Performance for Quarter Ending 31 December 2011 
Pension Fund Administration – Budget Monitoring 2011/12, Performance Indicators 
for Quarter Ending 31 December 2011 and Risk Register Action Plan 
Budget and Service Plan 2012/15 
Investment Panel Minutes 
Review Investment Panel Recommendations 
Review of SRI Policy – Stage 2 report 
Workplans 
Planned Workshop  
– SRI Policy Review 1Q12 Stage 2 
  
Planned Training session – February 2012  
Investment Manager Selection and Monitoring or The Basics of Asset Allocation  
 
 

Page 307



Page 308

This page is intentionally left blank



   Appendix 4 
 

INVESTMENT PANEL WORKPLAN to 31 March 2012 

 
 

 

Panel meeting 
/ workshop 

Proposed reports Outcome 

7 Sept 2011 
Workshop and 
Meeting 

• Review mangers 
performance to June 2011 

 
• Meet the Managers workshop 

(BlackRock, Genesis and 
Schroder property) 

 
 

• Agree any 
recommendations to 
Committee 

 
• Agree any 

recommendations to 
Committee 

 
Oct 2011 
Workshop 
 

• Meet the managers workshop  
(Royal London, TT, Invesco) 

 
• Agree any 

recommendations to 
Committee 

 
 

22 Nov 2011 
Workshop and 
Meeting 

• Review mangers 
performance to Sept 2011 

 
 
• Meet the managers workshop 

(Jupiter, SSgA) 
 

• Agree any 
recommendations to 
Committee 

 
• Agree any 

recommendations to 
Committee 

 
22 Feb 2012 
Workshop and 
Meeting 

• Review mangers 
performance to Dec 2011 

 
 
• Meet the managers workshop 

(Partners, Schroder equity) 
 

• Agree any 
recommendations to 
Committee 

 
• Agree any 

recommendations to 
Committee 

 
Apr 2012 
Workshop 

• Meet the managers workshop  
(Intro to Hedge Funds, Man, 
Signet) 

 

• Agree any 
recommendations to 
Committee 

 
May 2012 
Workshop and 
Meeting 

• Review mangers 
performance to Dec 2011 

 
 
• Meet the managers workshop 

(Gottex, Stenham) 
 

• Agree any 
recommendations to 
Committee 

 
• Agree any 

recommendations to 
Committee 

Page 309



Page 310

This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 5 
 

Avon Pension Fund Committee Training Programme 2011-13 
 

General Topics  
 

Topic Content Timing 
Fund Governance and 
Assurance 
(relates to CIPFA Knowledge & 
Skills Framework areas: 
Legislative & Governance, Auditing 
& Accounting Standards, 
Procurement & Relationship 
Management) 

• Role of the administering authority 
- How AA exercises its powers (delegation, role of statutory 151 Officer) 
- Governance Policy Statement 

• Members duties and responsibilities 
- LGPS specific – duties under regulatory framework 

o Admin regulations (including discretions), admin strategy, communications 
strategy 

o Investment regulations 
o Statutory documents -  Statement of Investment Principles, Myners compliance, 

Funding Strategy Statement, Annual Report  
- Wider Pensions context 

• Assurance framework 
- S 151 Officer 
- Council Solicitor 
- FoI Officer/Data Protection 
- Internal Audit 
- External Audit 
- Risk Register 

 
 

June 2011 

Manager selection and 
monitoring  
(relates to CIPFA Knowledge & 
Skills Framework areas: 
Investment Performance & Risk 
Management) 
 
 

• What look for in a manager – people, philosophy and process 
• How to select the right manager – roles of officers & members, procurement, selection 

criteria, evaluation  
• Monitoring performance & de-selection  
• Fees 
 

2012 

P
age 311



Asset Allocation   
(relates to CIPFA Knowledge & 
Skills Framework areas: 
Investment Performance & Risk 
Management, Financial Markets & 
Products) 
 

• Basic concepts – Expected Return, Risk Budget, efficient markets 
• Why is asset allocation important – correlations, strategic vs. tactical allocation 
• Implementation of strategy – active/passive investing, large/mid/small cap, UK/overseas, 

relative/absolute return, quantitative/fundamental investment approaches 
 

2012 

Actuarial valuation and 
practices   
(relates to CIPFA Knowledge & 
Skills Framework areas: Actuarial 
Methods, Standards and 
Practices) 
 

• Understanding the valuation process 
- Future and past service contributions 
- Financial Assumptions 
- Demographic Assumptions including longevity 

• Importance of Funding Strategy Statement 
• Inter-valuation monitoring 
• Managing Admissions/cessations 
• Managing Outsourcings/bulk transfers 

Interim 
Valuation 
workshop  
4Q11 
 
Refresher 
for 2013 
valuation in 
late 2012  

 
Planned Committee Workshops 2011/12 

 
Workshop Content Timing 
SRI  - Stage 1 Overview and Direction of Policy 4Q11 
SRI – Stage 2 Implementation options 1Q12 
Hutton Proposals Implications of Hutton proposals will be covered in Interim Valuation Workshop 4Q11 

 
Investment Market Topics  

 
Topic Content Timing 
Current market outlook - 
(delivered by a manager) 

- focus on inflation risk and impact on quantitative easing in particular on bonds June/ Sep 
2011 

Emerging markets – (delivered 
by a manager) 
 

potential opportunities/risks  2012 

Infrastructure introduction to opportunities  2012 
Private Equity introduction to the asset class 2013 

 

P
age 312



Note – changes since last meeting in bold italics 

P
age 313



P
age 314

T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	7 MINUTES: 24 JUNE 2011
	8 FINAL ACCOUNTS 2010/11, GOVERNANCE REPORT AND AUDIT PLAN 2011/12
	8z1Audited Statement of Accounts 201011 - Appendix 1
	8z2Audited Statement of Accounts & Annual Governance Report - Appendix 2

	9 AVON PENSION FUND ANNUAL REPORT 2010/11
	9z1rep Draft Annual Report 2010-11- Appendix 1

	10 APPLICATION BY THE PARK FOR COMMUNITY ADMISSION BODY STATUS
	10z1Rep Application by The Park for Community Admission Body status - Appendix 1
	10z2Rep Application by The Park  for Community Admission Body status Appendix 2

	11 APPLICATION BY SOUTH  WEST ACADEMIES FOR COMMUNITY ADMISSION BODY STATUS
	11z1Rep Application by South West Academies Limited for Community Admission Body status - Appendix 1

	13 ADMINISTRATION STRATEGY - STEWARDSHIP REPORT
	13z1RepAdmin Strategy 2011 Update Report. Appendix 1
	13z2RepAdmin Strategy 2011 Update Report - Appendix 2
	13z3RepAdmin Strategy 2011 Update Report - Appendix 3
	13z4APPENDIX 4 to Pension Administration Strategy.final docx

	15 INVESTMENT PANEL MINUTES
	15z1Rep Minutes Investment Panel - Appendix 1

	16 REVIEW OF INVESTMENT PERFORMANCE FOR QUARTER ENDING 30 JUNE 2011
	16z01Repperfqe30Jun11 - Appendix 1
	16z2Repperfqe30Jun11 - Appendix 2
	16z3Repperfqe30Jun11 - Appendix 3
	16z4aRepperfqe30Jun2011 -Exempt Appendix 4 Public Interest Notice
	16z4Repperfqe30Jun11 - Exempt Appendix 4

	17 PENSION FUND ADMINISTRATION - BUDGET MONITORING FOR YEAR TO 31 AUGUST 2011 AND PERFORMANCE INDICATORS FOR QUARTER ENDING 31 JULY 2011
	17z1RepBudMon - Appendix 1
	17z2RepBudMon - Appendix 2
	17z3A
	17z3B
	17z4A(i)
	17z4A(ii)
	17z4B(i)
	17z4B(ii)
	17z4C
	17z5
	17z6
	17z7

	18 WORKPLANS
	18z1RepWorkplanto 31 March 2012 - Appendix 1 Investments
	18z2RepWorkplanto 31 March 2012 - Appendix 2 Benefits Administration
	18z3RepWorkplanto31 March 2012 - Appendix 3 Committee
	18z4RepWorkplanto 31 March 2012 -Appendix 4 Investment Panel
	18z5RepWorkplanto 31 March 2012 -Appendix 5 Training Programme


